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STANDING COMMITTEE ON AGENCIES, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

YELLOWKNIFE, NORTHWEST TERRITORIES 

MAY 11, 1992 

Members Present 

Mr. Antoine, Mr. Arvaluk, Mr. Dent, Mr. Koe, Mr. Lewis, Mrs. Marie-Jewell, Mr. Todd 

Chairman's Opening Remarks 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Good afternoon everyone. I would 
like to welcome you all to this public meeting of the standing 
committee on agencies, boards and commissions. My name 
is Fred Koe and I am chairman of the standing committee on 
agencies, boards and commissions. We have convened this 
public as a first session of a public review of the Northwest 
Territories Workers' Compensation Board. 

I would like to make a few comments before we start, about 
the role of the standing committee and about the process that 
we will be using throughout this public review. 

I would like to mention that ourselves, our staff. and I hope 
you people here today will join me for a moment reflection on 
what is happening in Nova Scotia. There has bffn a major 
tragedy in Plymouth, Nova Scotia and we are aware of what 
is going on, the· search and rescue being undertaken. We 
hope that things work out for the on" that are still 
underground and our sympathies go with the familie1 of the 
ones they have found. I think it is .. d but I think it one of the 
things that miners in the industry are faced with. Our prayers 
go out to all those who are involved. 

The standing committee on agencies, board• and 
commissions wu established by the 12th Legislative Anembly 
for the purpose of inquiring, reviewing, and commenting upon 
the affairs of all agencies. boards or commiuion1 to which the 
Legislative Assembly or a Minister of thi1 govemment makes 
appointments to. 

Our committee i1 made up of NYen Members. One ii not 
here right now. He is in transit right now from the Keewatin. 
but I will ask the Members here to introduce themMlvn. 

MR. LEWIS: My name is Brian Lewi1 and I wu a Member of 
this committee du.ring the last ASMmbly. 

MR. ARVALUK: I am James Arvaluk. I am the Member tor 
Aivilik. This is my first term and the first time I am a Member 
of this committee. 

MR. DENT: I am Charles Dent I am the Member tor 
Yellowknife Frame Lake. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Jeannie Mari...S.W.11. Member tor 
Thebacha. 

MR. ANTOINE: My name i1 Jim Antoine, I am the Member 
for Nahendeh. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): I am Fred Koe and I represent the 
constituency of lnuvik. Back in December of last year the 
standing committee tabled a work plan which indicated itl 
intent to complete a review on a number of the agencaes and 
boards under the mandate approved for u, by the legtllative 
Assembly. One of the initiatives which - ,ndtealed 1n our 
work plan wu a comprehensive review of the NWT Workers· 
Compensetion Board. 

This is the first stage in that process. Over the next three 
day, we are going to be hearing the viewpoints of what we 
consider major stakeholders, clients, officials, of the Workers' 
Compensetion Board and people who a,e .. involved with the 
Workers' Compensation Board. We will be listening closely to 
your comments about the boards organizational structure, its 
authorities which it derives from the Workers' Compensation 
Act; the various modes of accountability which must 
characterize public organizations of the 1990s. We will also 
be listening to worker and other members of the public's 
frustrations or compliments with respect to process through 
which workers deal with the compensation process and the 
follow-up of work place injuries. 

Our purpose basically is to identify some of the concepts, 
concems and suggestions for change that people will be 
recommending to us and we may wish in turn to make 
recommendations to the board through the Minister. 

In undertaking this review the standing committee fully realizes 
that by design the Workers' Compensation Board is intended 
to be an independent and autonomous body running at arms 
length from the government This indeed is one of the 
principles that hu formed the fundamental basis of the system 
of workers' compensation in Canada. At the same time 
electors of the NWT put their trust in Members of the 
Legislative Assembly to enwre that public institutions are run 
efficiently, effectively, and there is some accountability and 
responsibility of the officers. 

So throughout this public review I guess we are looking at 
IOfflething hopefully constructive; that something that will 
come out of sharing viewpoints from all people that are going 
to come forward. We are going to have presenters here, we 
are also going to have people phone in and we have some 
written submi11ions that we will take into consideration. 

With those opening remarks I would like to start the formal 
session by welcoming the Minister responsible for the 
Workers' Compensation Board, Hon. Dennis Patterson, and I 
would also like to welcome the chairman of the Workers' 
Compensation Board, Bryan Roberts. Gentlemen, I take the 
microphones over to you. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Also with me is Mr. Barney Dohm, chief operating officer for 
the Workers' Compensetion Board. These gentlemen will be 
usisting me today if there are questions. 

a.tore I begin my remarks, Mr. Chairman, which I will 
distribute to you, I would like to echo your remarks that this 
hearing ii timely in a sense that since Saturday and late last 
night and early this morning I have been following the tragic 
events in Nova Scotia and I think that although these events 
are tragic, It does bring home to us the hazards of the work 
place and the importance of the Workers' Compensation 

· scheme and the i11ues that we are going to be examining and 
your committee is going to be examining in the coming days. 

I do want to say that I welcome this initiative on the part of 
your committee. I offer to extend my assistance wherever 
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possible in providing information and hopefully I will begin 
that today with this presentation and I know you will have the 
assistance of Mr. Roberts and his staff 88 well in getting 
information. 

I am confident that your recommendations, based on the 
advice that you will get from citizens and other interested 
parties, will undoubtedly be helpful to myself and the 
Legislature in meeting our responsibilities and in assisting the 
board and its staff in discharging their duties as well. 

I will ask that copies of my opening remarks will be circulated, 
including a number of appendices that I will be referring to, 
which I hope will be of assistance to the committee. 

Mr. Chairman, I should perhaps also mention that an important 
person In the Workers' Compensation system, Ms. Kathe 
Pagonis, the workers' advisor, who I understand you will be 
hearing from later, Is also here today. 

Minister'• Opening Remarks 

Prior to 1953, compensation was administered by two 
ordinances: An Ordinance Respecting Employer's Liability 
and an Ordinance Respecting Compensation to Wortcmen for 
Injuries Sustained in the Course of their Employment. These 
ordinances were passed in 1908 and 1917 respectively. 

In 1953 those ordinances were repealed with the introduction 
of the new Worker.em's Compensation Ordinance. The 
provisions of that ordinance were administered by the 
Department of Indian Affairs and Northam Resources and 
coverage by employers for their workers wu obtained through 
the private Insurance Industry. 

In October 1974 the GNWT passed the Workmen's 
Compensation Ordinance creating the establishment of a 
Workers' Compensation Board r"ponaible for the 
administration of that act. Coverage by employers for the 
protection of their workers remained with the private Insurance 
industry. 

In 19n the GNWT puaed a new Workers' Compensation 
Ordinance, now called the Workers' Compensation Act. 
888uming responsibility for the workers' compensation tystem 
In the NWT. by establishing the formation of the accident fund 
from which employers obtain protection for their workers for 
accidents and industrial diseas" that ariM out of and during 
the course of employment. Aside from a few amendments. 
the contents of the act have remained .... nt1a1 unchanged 
since 19n. 

The Workers' Compensation Act establish" the Workers· 
Compensation Board with exclusive juriadictlOn u to how the 
act should be interpreted, including whettlef an inJu,Y or 
disease is employment related, whether benefits should be 
paid, whether an Industry falls within the scope of the at: the 
amount of ..... aments to be paid by an employer. and arry 
other matter required under the act. The act empowers the 
board to develop pollci"· practices and procedur". The 
board's authority la not bound by legal precedent or legal 
rul" of evidence. 

The decisions of the board are final and conclusive. However, 
a very important provision of the act allows the board to 
reeonaider and change any of Its decisions at arry time the 
board of directors considers it advisable to do so. 

As you know, the Workers' Compensation Board is 
accountable to the Legislative Assembly through the Minister 
responsible for the Workers' Compena«tion Act. 

Baelc Prlnclpl" Of Workers' CompenMtlon 

The workers' compensation system is based on two main 
principles: collective liability on the part of employers; and 
compulsory insurance in a state fund known 88 the accident 
fund. Maybe 1!"8 should call it a territorial fund instead of a 
state fund, Mr. Chairman. 

A worker who is entitled to compensation may not take action 
against his or her employer or a fellow worker of that 
employer for an accident In the course of his/her employment. 
In retum for giving up the right to take action against the 
employer, compensation is payable as a matter of right, 
regardless of negligence on the part of the employer, the 
worker or his or her fellow workers. Free medical aid, medical 
and vocational rehabilitation services are provided. All costs 
of compensation are raised by assessments on employers. 

Industries are divided into groups according to the risks of 
accidents related to their industry. The industry is established 
according to the end product or services being provided and 
it la the employer's overall operations which determine the 
classification rather than the individual occupations of the 
workers. 

The system la administered by an autonomous board will full 
and final authority to determine all matters arising in the 
administration of the act. These basic principles and the 
administration of the act are consistent with all other workers' 
compensation jurisdictions in Canada. 

Board S1ructure And Organization 

The Workers' Compensation Act establishes the board as a 
body corporate consisting of not more than seven members, 
one of whom la chairman appointed by the Minister 
responsible. And right now we have seven including the 
chairman. 

The corporate board has three distinct and separate functions: 
It acts as the board of directors for the corporation; it is a 
quui-judicial administrative tribunal replacing the courts in 
adjudicating workers' claims for compensation; and it is the 
trustee of the accident fund with legal responsibilities to the 
workers, employers and the Government of the NWT. 

Reporting to the board of directors, the general manager and 
chief operating officer is responsible for the day-to-day 
administration of the boards programs and services. 
Reporting to the general manager and chief operating officer 
are nine positions: the managers of administrative services; 
claims services; rehabilitation services; financial services; 
safety education; Information services; the personnel 
administrator: corporate auditor; and the policy and program 
analyst. Appendix A is a copy of the organization chart, Mr. 
Chairman. 

Human Resource Servlcea 

The personnel administrator is responsible for the staffing 
proc"8. Other responsibilities of the personnel administrator 
Include: the provision of training services; the maintenance of 
the performance appraisal system; the drafting of position 
descriptions; and the cl888ification of wee positions. 

Information Servlc" 

The information services division has a mission of providing 
Information to the clients of the wee In a timely and effective 
manner. 

The information services division utilizes a variety of computer 
technologies to provide an integrated approach to information 
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processing. The main system is an IBM AS/400 mid-range 
computer. 

The data are protected by transferring copies to magnetic tape 
and storing them outside the building on a daily basis. The 
hardware is protected by a maintenance agreement with IBM; 
there is also an agreement with a company outside the 
Territories to provide an alternative machine and terminal sin 
the unlikely event this site were damaged or destroyed. 

Flnanclal Services 

The role of the financial services division is to safeguard and 
control the assets of the Workers' Compensation Board. 
External advice is obtained as required on issues relating to 
funding B11umption1 and policy, investment management, 
custodial services for investments and actuarial evaluations. 
Appendix Bis a copy of the board's funding policy. 

The financial services divisions provides the structure to 
ensure that the information required for accounting and 
preparation of financial statements and reports is accurate and 
timely. Procedures are also in place to ensure the accurate 
reflection of assets and liabilities. 

A key element in the responsibilities of the financial services 
division is the valuation of the future liabilities to be incurred 
by the WCB for existing claims. The present and future 
financial well-being of the WCB is dependent to a significant 
degree on the appropriateness of this valuation. The board 
has a consulting actuary verify the liability valuations annually. 

As the liabilities of the board extend far into the future, a pool 
of funds la available for investment. Financial services, 
working with the investment committN of the board of 
directors, ensures that these monies re invested in accordance 
with the investment policy of the board. This will ensure that 
adequate funds will be available to cover all future liabilities 
associated with current or previous year accidents. Appendix 
C is a copy of the board's investment policy. 

We do not have staff who are professionally qualified to act as 
investment managers. Consequently the board has contracted 
with four professional investment management firms to invest 
our funds in accordance with the investment policy. Further, 
the board has also engaged a trust company as custodian to 
undertake the actual transactions recommended by the 
investment counsellors and to Nfeguard the board's 
investments assets. 

On an annual basis, using an in-houN rat•Mtting program. 
the financial services division generates assessment rates for 
each sub-clue of employer. Because of the complex nature 
of this process. we have our consulting actuary review the 
rates prior to submission to the board of directors for 
approval. 

Administrative Services 

The administrative services division is comprised of two 
departments: revenue services and administrative Ml'Vicea. 
The division is managed by the manager of administrative 
services. 

RevenueServicff 

The objective of revenue services is to maintain the accident 
fund at a level which will adequately provide for the effective 
administration of the Workers' Compensation Act. The primary 
tasks undertake by revenue services are to: ensure that all 
employers are registered' levy and. collect ...... ment 
premiums; issue clearances for contract payment; provide 
optional coverage as requested; aaaiat in interpreting the act; 

maintain the classification system. 

The classification system for the assessment of employers is 
baaed on the principle of collective liability. Employers are 
divided into individual groups based on products produced 
and/or services provided. While the assessments paid by 
employers are pooled in a common fund called the accident 
fund, the board requires that each rate group be seif­
supporting. Copies of the 1992 information brochure on the 
classification of industries/provisional rates are enclosed as 
appendix D. 

A junior assessor and three assessors report to the 
asseasments supervisor. The junior assessor and each of the 
assessors have several hundred corporate clients for which 
they are responsible on a day-to-day basis. The asaesements 
supervisor is responsible for classification decisions as well as 
the consistent application of the Workers' Compensation ACt 
and policies. All new employer accounts are initiated and 
updated by the asseasments registrar. The assessments 
collector focuses on the timely collection of outstanding 
assessments. 

Administrative Services 

This section is responsible for the prov1s1on of facilities 
management and administrative support services. The primary 
responsibilities of this division are to: provide reception and 
communication services; handle filing and record keeping; 
offer French language services to all clients; provide desktop 
publishing; provide purchasing and facility management 
services; handle centralized word processing. 

Records management and filing are handled by two records 
clerks. Purchasing and facility management are the 
responsibility of the administrative clerk. Both the bilingual 
word processing and desktop publishing positions provide 
support to the entire organization. A receptionist/switchboard 
operator provides client reception as well as telephone 
communication services. 

Audit Services 

The audit services division is responsible for both internal, 
operational, and external, employer payroll auditing. Internal 
auditing is a review of operating activities within the Workers' 
Compensation Board to monitor compliance with policies and 
procedures. 

Payro1V81181Sment auditing Is a review of employer payroll 
records and operations to ensure accurate assessment and 
compliance with the Workers' Compensation Act and proper 
assessment. 

Safety Education 

The safety education division of the Workers' Compensation 
Board wu established in November 1991. The mandate of 
this division is to offer safety education courses to workers 
and employers. The WCB safety education division is also 
committed to educating young people about potential hazards 
to their Nfety and health before they enter the work force. 
This gives us the opportunity to reach the future workers in 
the NWT before they develop unsafe work habits. Hopefully. 
CourHS are being developed on an ongoing basis. 

Claims Services 

The purposes of the claims services division is to provide 
financial assistance to workers who are injured in work-related 
accidents and who have suffered a loss of their earning 
capacity. The board covers the cost associated with providing 
the necessary medical treatment to ensure the optimum level 
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of recovery so that the worker may return to the work force. 

Each worker's claim ia administered by a claims adjudicator. 
All the adjudicator use the same criteria for ruling on the initial 
acceptance of a claim. This system la known aa the five point 
check system and has the following five components: 

1) A worker; 
2) An employer; 
3) Peraonal injury by accident arising out of an during the 
course of employment; 
4) Proof of accident; 
5) Compatibility of diagnosis to accident or disablement 
history. 

Once a claim ia eatabliahed, the adjudicator will pay the coats 
of the claim. Coats include daily time Ion benefits, medical 
aid, transportation, prescriptions and, in some cases, partial 
time Ion benefits. The adjudicator will administer the claim 
until the worker ia either medically flt to retum to some type 
of employment or until the worker ia aaaigned a rehabilitation 
counsellor in the cue of serious permanent physical 
impairment 

Rehabllltatlon Services 

The board started a rehabilitation program in January 1991. 
Some of the aervic81 available through this program include 
the provision of medical and vocational aaaeuments, job 
placement aaaiatance, counselling and retraining, where 
required. Thie help ia available to Injured workera who are 
unable to return to work within 90 day• of the accident. For 
the seriously Injured, Immediate service, are provided within 
day, of the accident 

To be eligible for auiatance, a worker must have an approved 
wee claim and be likely to encounter difficulty retuming to 
work because of diminiehed phyeical capacity. Preventive 
rehabilitation ,ervicee are available to wortcera whose 
employment could cause a recurrence or aggravation of a 
compensable condition. 

To the extent pouible. the board's mandate is to help the 
worker restore Ion of earning,. maximize phyeical 
conditioning and maintain the lifestyle to which he or the was 
accustomed prior to the injury. 

The injured worker i• provided with a rehabilitation allowance 
equivalent to hit or her compensation rate for the period of 
time it takee to complete the rehabilitation program. There are 
additional allowanc81 available to the WOftle,s in eupport of 
their rehabilitation; these include: -the purchase of tools. coat 
of work place modification. relocation expen1H, vehicle and 
home modifications. 

It the worker it left with a disability u a rnull of the accident. 
he or she is eligible for a diaabil,ty pena,on ewarcs Th,, w•II 
be determined when the worker's mecfical condlbOtl atabtlczn 
The pension award compenaatea for remairung dlNbil,ty 
reeulting from the work-related injury. Once a person·• 
impairment ia determined, the file is transferred to the 
extended benefits adjudicator who determinN the benefita 
payable. The extended benefa adjudicator provide9 ong0tng 
management and approval of future !Mdical treatmenl and 
coats after the pension it Ntabliahed for the wonier. 

Initiatives Undertake By The Board 

In 1989 an independent review panel wu appotnted by the 
Minister mponaible for Workers' CompenaabOn - that wu 
Ma. Coumoyea at the time. A copy of the review panel report 
is enclosed u appendix F. Also enclosed u appendix G are 
the actiona taken by the Workers' Compenaabon Board in 

reeponae to the panel'• recommendation,. 

In addition to addreuing many of the concerns raised by the 
review panel, numerou, chang" beneficial to our clients have 
been implemented 1ince early 1989. Some of the initiatives 
undertaken are: 

A comprehensive client service audit, a copy of this report is 
enclosed as Appendix E, the purple document; the 
development and documentation of board policies, including 
an adjudication manual that will be available to the public; the 
acquisition of a portable information booth for taking the wee 
message to communitie,, schools, trade 1howa, et cetera; the 
development of divlaional client service standards; the 
development of information brochures and related program 
material• for communicating the board's policies and 
program,; the development and Implementation of a new rate­
Htting program; the redeelgn of the annual report to make it 
more informative; the identification of the need for a workers' 
advisor and the hiring of a person to fill the position, and I 
mentioned Ma. Pagoni• la here today and she has been the 
workers' advisor since that position was established in 1989; 
the development and documentation of formal investment and 
funding policies; identification of the need for an appeals 
tribunal; the introduction of annual public communication 
seminars with employers. A copy of the 1990 information 
handout i1 enclosed as Appendix I. 

Conclusion 

I hope thl• presentation has given you a picture of the 
structure and organization and mandate of the board. In 
conclusion I would like to note that the Northwest Territories 
Workers' Compensation Board are one of four fully funded 
WCBI in Canada. Other boards have various levels of 
deficite, one exceeding eight billion dollars - that it Ontario. 
I believe that the fact that our board i1 fully funded ia very 
1ignificant when one realizes that, should the board incur a 
deficit, the government would have a contingent liability for 
the full amount of any deficit. 

Our board of directors ia committed to a full funding policy 
and it 11 our intention to 1eek legislative approval to have a 
statement of full funding included in the Workers' 
Compeneation Act. 

Full funding requires continued informed decision making on 
the part of our board of directora and ,enior management, 
with strong 1upport from government Decision, that will 
affect the long-term viability of the Workers' Compeneation 
Board muet continue to be made on the basis of sound 
financial and management policies. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I hope this material is helpful. Aa 
I have indicated, we are open to providing other information 
that you might require. This may well not be complete, but I 
hope it i• a good start. So that concludes my presentation, 
Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Mr. Patterson. Bryan are 
you going to add aomething to this presentation or are you 
going to do something later? 

MR. ROBERTS: H the Members of the committee had any 
specific questions we would attempt to provide the 
information. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you for your presentation. 
Normal procedure, in these committee meetings is we hear a 
preeentation and committee Members in turn may have 
queationa or comments they wish to make. So I will turn the 
floor over to any Member who wishes to make a comment or 
uk a question. Mr. Arvaluk. -
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MR. ARVALUK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just for my own 
clarification. On the last part I noticed that Ontario probably 
has many, many employers contributing to their own Workers' 
Compensation Board. With so many employers, how do they 
manage to get into so much deficit? Have you had a 
contingency plan that will not copy that kind of deficit in an 
event that the NWT could have a lot of contributing 
employers? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Patterson. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, I certainly do 
not pretend to be an expert on the problems in Ontario, but 
I think it is generally agreed that one of the problems that has 
led to the deficit in Ontario is that assessment rates were 
simply not adequate to meet the operating requirements and 
ongoing liabilities of the board. I suppose that for any 
government or any board there Is a temptation to try to 
respond to concerns of employers or Industry about keeping 
assessment rates down. I believe that rates were kept down 
below the required levels in Ontario, at least at some point In 
the history of the board, which aggravated the financial 
problem. 

I think that there were bad years in Ontario where costs, as a 
result of higher accident rates, put burdens on the board and 
for some reason they did not respond with increased levels of 
assessment to meet those burdens. So I think that is in 
simple terms what I understand the problem la. I am also 
informed that Ontario now has a strategy to overcome that 
problem and to make the board fully funded over a period of 
years. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): The point is though, that I hope none 
of our strategic planning will be focused on doing what they 
are doing there with their moneys. James. 

Premiums 

MR. ARVALUK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I guen my 
original question was in trying to lead to my second question. 
I understand in WCB that you have a n~fault coverage. No 
matter what kind of accident there is, the Workers' 
Compensation Board will cover that Incident. The wee is. in 
this case, attempting to allow small buaine ... , in the small 
communities to be able to afford the coverage when they have 
a small construction businen, for example, It will not have so 
much burden on the small businen. I understand that is the 
purpose of it. 

Now in order to have the full funding f01 wee 01 Nit.funding 
for WCe, then if there is more demand on WCe for the injured 
workers or discarded workers. then you will have to ra,N the 
premiers. according to your an-er. How would you then be 
able to allow the small business to continue to afford thoH 
kind of premiums? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Minister. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman. I think the best 
way I would try to respond to the Member i1 to expta,n that in 
a particular industry or particular clanification of bu11nes1. the 
costs of meeting the demands flowing from accidents 1n that 
particular aector are shared throughout the ind11stry on an 
equitable basis. So an individual business and let us say a 
small busineu as the Member has referred to. that may 1ufler 
the misfortune of perhaps having a Hrioua accident. will not 
alone bear the cost of dealing with that accident. n will be 
spread throughout the particular industry in the NWT. I think 
this · is a contrast to the situation in the United Statn. as I 
understand it. where workers can and do sue an individual 
employer and a successful law suit can, in effect. put a small 
business under or make them bankrupt 

So I think the theory is that if it is a cartage business or heavy 
equipment buslnen or a store, the burden is shared across 
the class of employee/employer, so that it can be spread and 
it will not impact a particular business that may have the 
misfortune to have an accident and particularly a small 
business. 

I think the Member's assessment of the description of the n~ 
fault character is correct and it is also important. As long as 
the injury arises out of the course of work and the work place, 
then the employee gives up the right to sue in return for the 
right to be compensated, regardless of fault. That is correct. 
Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Charles. 

Increase In YMIR 

MR. DENT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. There are a couple 
of Issues that I would like to ask some questions about. I 
think one of the reasons that we have seen so much - or 
things that we have seen in terms of controversy in the last 
little while, in terms of workers being concerned about how 
they are being treated by the Wo~ers' Compensation Board, 
has to do with the level of support. So I was interested in the 
Minister's statement to hear him say that to the extent 
ponible, the mandate is to help the worker restore loss of 
earnings, maximize physical conditioning, and maintain the 
lifestyle to which he or she was accustomed prior to the injury. 

I think one of the major concerns is that the YMIR has not 
been increased for a number of years and as I understand it, 
the NWT is actually behind many of the provinces in terms of 
level of support. Can we look forward to the Minister coming 
forward to the Legislature in the near future and 
recommending an increase in the YMIR? What sort of time 
frame are we expecting that to be in? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Minister. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Mr. 'Chairman, I think the 
Member is correct that our YMIR has not been adjusted for 
about frve years. Although we do not have the lowest in the 
country, we are falling behind most jurisdictions. That is 
correct. I suppoee that the point is especially well taken when 
one looks at the higher costs of living and higher earnings 
generally In the Territories. 

Mr. Chairman, I do expect that this will be a major issue in 
repr"8ntations made by workers and workers' representative 
before the board this week. I do expect that your committee 
will be making recommendations on that issue. The Member 
hu asked how soon can changes be made. Changes to the 
VMIR will require, at least under the present legislation, an 
amendment to the Workers' Compensation Act. The Member 
asks how soon could changes be made. I guess technically 
they could be made as early as June when the Legislature 
next sits. 

On that point, I will act as quickly as I can on 
recommendatlon1 that your committee might make as a result 
of submissions you receive this week. There is a legislative 
process in place. It ordinarily requires a period of time for 
public input on legislative changes. Ordinarily that period of 
time i1 120 deys, but It may be possible that that period of 
time could be shortened or dispensed with, depending on the 
.urgency and the nature of the legislative change. That is a 
matter that I think your committee could recommend on to the 
government and to the chairman of the standing committee on 
legislation. 

I understand I am going to have an opportunity to meet with 
your committee again towards the end of your hearings and 
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perhaps I might respectfully suggest that we could addr ... 
that l11ue again once you have heard submissions from 
interested parties on that point I am not trying to dodge the 
question, but I think we will all be in a better position to 
respond once we hear submissions from the public and 
interested parties. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Charles. 

MR. DENT: Since the YMIR has not been raised in five years, 
and given the outcry that we have heard, I had no doubt that 
we would be recommending and increase. I would hope that 
whatever steps could be taken by the board to prepare for 
that in terms of actuarial studies and other information that is 
going to be undertaken right away so that we do not get an 
excuse back from the board that we do not have time to 
figure it out. in terms of getting it to the June session. I 
suspect that there is going to be the will to proceed with it 
fairly quickly. 

Lump Sum Polley 

One other m~ntaining lifestyle that is a problem Is the lump 
sum policy. I wonder if we could get aome explanation as to 
why there has been a policy put in place limiting its 
application to those workers who have a 10 per cent disability 
or a $40,000. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman. I would like Mr. 
Roberts to respond to this one. 

MR. ROBERTS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. With the 
establishment of a partial disability award the whole purpose 
of that award is Intended as partial replacement of Mure 
earnings that are lost by reason of the accident. In keeping 
with that intent It is reaaonable that thoM benefits should take 
the form of future income. rather than some form of cash pay­
out. One of the very purposes of the Canadian compensation 
system actually was to get away from lump sum Mttlements 
which dffpite their short-terms attrac1Jon1, did leave a great 
many workers deatitute in their later years. 

Common arguments that are put forth ia that a lump sum 
settlement should almost be automatic upon requeat because 
the capital fund established to meet the pension II v,ew.d by 
the workers as their monay. But it is quite a common 
misunderstanding and it is inconsistent with the terms and 
objectives of the legislation. 

The system was designed for the benefit of ttuM main 
groups: 1) the workers were to be protected from f1nanc1al 
hardship of industrial injury; 2) employers we,e to be 
protected from the coat of supporting the lneurance industry 
and the legal prof ... ion; 3) the tupeyer9 we,e to be NVed 
from the cost of eupport,ng industrial accident v~ out of 
general taxation. 

Clearly. an automatic lump sum payment policy would defeat 
this purpose. In addition to that. when a lump sum Mftlement 
is paid to the worker they lose the nght to future co.I of t,v1ng 
increases that may be awarded from time to tame Our cunent 
lump sum policy wu designed with th11 intent an mind. and 
in addition it wu intended to provide the staff -,,tt1 clear 
direction and to remove the many au~• dec,s,ons 
required in the administration of the previous policy. 

Obviousiy. a policy cannot be designed to cover the 1nd,vldual 
circumstances of each situation. and it is not Intended to do 
so. It should however. satisfy the requirements of the ma1or,ty 
of the cases. A system is therefore required to cons,def those 
cases to which a policy may not apply. or where the ,nd,vidual 
circumstances of the case do not meet the norm Such a 
system is ,n place within the Compensation Board. through the 

appeal procea. Decisions of the review committee and the 
appeals tribunal must be made according to the individual 
merits and justice of the case, and they are also governed by 
the rules of natural justice. 

White the act states that the tribunal la to apply the policy of 
the board, it cannot, by law, fetter its discretion, and it must 
consider the individual merits and justice of each application 
before them. In our opinion, with this independent review the 
necessary checks and balances are in place to ensure 
individual consideration of each case. 

Some of the recent appeal decisions at the review committee 
level have found in favour of the workers' requests, and the 
lump sums have been granted. The results of appeals are 
monitored to 888ist the board in determining whether or not a 
policy requires change, and in addition, we review our policies 
on an annual basis and It is certainly our intention to continue 
this proce.. so that we can keep abreast of the clients' 
concerns and respond accordingly. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Dent. 

MR. DENT: I have a number of questions about the lump 
sum policy. I would have to question you, Mr. Roberts, on 
your statement that it is inconsistent with the terms of the 
legislation. Lump sums are specifically mentioned in the 
legislation u I recall, so it would seem that that is not 
necessarily inconsistent. 

You say that there are three purposes, and one of the 
purposes of the Workers' Compensation Board Is to protect 
the taxpayer. I have never seen that set out anywhere. 
Where did you get that from, the statement of purpose? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Roberts. 

MR. ROBERTS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The statement 
dealing with the taxpayers goes right back to the original 
concept of workers' compensation in the original agreement 
between workers and their employers. to establish the system. 

On the matter of the lump sum not being consistent with the 
terms of the act. we are talking about virtually an automatic 
payment policy that would not be consistent There are 
certainly cases where a lump sum payment is actually the best 
decision for the worker. With our policy what we were doing 
ia taking and giving clear direction for the staff on the ongoing 
basis which will take care of the majority of our clients and 
allowing the other percentage to be dealt with by the claims 
review committee and the appeals tribunal. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Dent 

MR. DENT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I assume you are 
referring to the Meredith principles when you say this Is where 
your taxpayer protection comes in. I do not have the actual 
copy of the report but I do not see that in there as one of the 
basic principles, coming from Meredith; not that it is 
necfflarily bed. I was just wondering where you were getting 
that from. 

You still have not answered the original question though; why 
11 the limit at 10 per cent and $40,0007 Why not 11 per cent 
and $44,000 or 50 per cenl Why was that limit chosen. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Roberts. 

MR. ROBERTS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Going way back 
in the history of workers' compensation, that percentage has 
changed within the legislation across the country, from five per 
cent to 1·0 per cent over the years. The act states that a 
disability of less than 10 per cent may be commuted to a 
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lump sum. The $40,000 wu put there after a study by the 
board- to put a limit on the amount of moneys that would be 
paid. Depending on a person's age, the value of a lump aum 
increase, the younger they are the higher the value of the 
lump sum. It wu felt that a payment of the equivalent of one 
year's benefit would be adequate and would not erode the 
purchasing power for persons who have a more serious 
disability, and the capitalized value of their claims would be 
quite higher. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Charles. 

MR. DENT: Further with lump sums. Are you aware of other 
jurisdictions having higher limits? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Roberts. 

MR. ROBERTS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The lump sum 
policies, there are 12 compensation boards in Canada and 
there are 12 different policies on lump sums. Each board hu 
its own policy, and they vary substantially across the country. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Dent We will allow you one 
more on lump sums, and then we will go on.· 

MR. DENT: Actually, Mr. Chairman, I was going to end my 
questioning, but I think Mr. Roberts was going to add 
something to this last answer. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Roberta. 

MR. ROBERTS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. When I aaid that 
the policies vary acrou the country. there are aome boards 
that do not allow lump sum payments of any description. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Mr. Lewis. 

Arm'a Length Nature Of The Board 

MR. LEWIS: Mr. Chairman, my first question is to do with the 
arm's length nature of the board. Since this board is set up 
under our own territorial legislation, there is some perception, 
I suppose. that since it is a creature of government in the 
sense that it was our legislation that Mt it up, that it 1hould be 
guided somewhat by the overall wishn of the people that are 
represented, so I would like to ask the Minister whether. 11nce 
this is a board that deals with all the people In the Northwest 
Territories who are in the work place. whether in fact the 
public will, if you like, through the Minister, can be expre1aed 
in the way it develops itl policin, the way It does things 
consistent with the legislation, or whether in fact the board has 
a degree of latitude to develop itl own style. and Ill own 
policies. and its own plans. and so on. Since 11 .. above 
political interference, It cannot be interfered With 1n the aenae 
that it ia an arm·• length agency with itl own board. 11 that 
a major impediment to making 91,1re that. for example. 
throughout the Northwest T emtone1 those people that do not 
belong to organized labour. and I am thinking of hunte,. and 
trapper• and fi1hermen and can,e,-, and so on. can 1n fact 
take advantage of this particular form of compenaabOn" 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Minister. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Thank you, Mr. O\a.rman 
think thi1 i1 quite a profound issue, an important iuue that the 
Member hu brought up. I believe, on the quntion of the 
board's jurisdiction to deal with individual c..... that it 11 
probably very important that the board lhould be independent 
and not subject to political prnaurn. or interference If you 
like. I believe that this is probably the belt way of en1unng 
fairness, given that there is a recourse of appeal to the courts 
if bias or perverse decisions can be establi1hed and presented 
to the court 

However, Mr. Chairman, the Member raises an important 
question about iuue1 of policy, and I do believe that because 
the Legislature, through the Minister, does oversee the 
provisions of the act, which basically outlines the policy and 
the structure of the workers' compensation system, there is a 
good possibility for public policy question• to be dealt with by 
the legislature, and so the Member refers to the issue of 
hunters and trappers compensation. That became an iasue in 
a previous Legislature and it wu dealt with by public pressure 
and by an amendment to the act Now, whether that 
amendment has done the job is a question you may well 
address in the course of your hearings or your work. I think 
there is an important role for the Minister and the Legislature 
to, I guess, reflect the public will, because it is the legislation 
and the board which is ultimately a creature of the Legislature. 

So Mr. Chairman, I think this week your committee hu an 
opportunity to look at those broad policy issues and to make 
recommendations which could change the way the board 
operates by changing legislation. So I think that the arm's 
length relation, to.answer the Member's question, I personally 
do not think it is a problem with regard to individual cases. 
I do not think any of ua would want to have the responsibility 
for dealing with the grievances of workers who may feel they 
were not dealt with properly by the system. I just do not 
know how that actually could really work. You may want to 
examine the appeals process and its adequacy, but I believe 
that should be kept separate from the legislature and the 
political forum in order to have fairness. So I do not think 
arm's length relationship is a problem with regard to cases, 
and I believe that u far u policy i11ues, we should not 
consider the legislation cast in stone, especially legislation that 
ii 15 yeara old. It is probably out of date; it is probably in 
need of a major overhaul: and this la where your committee 
should not hesitate to reflect the public will and ,provide 
advice to the government about dealing with those broader 
policy i11ue1. 

So that is the root, Mr. Chairman, and I do not think it is 
something that should be seen u restrictive. Legislation can 
be changed, and I frankly would not be surprised if that was 
not a recommendation that came out of your work this week, 
that there are at leut areas that you will uncover that may be 
out of date and may be out of .step with the current situation 
in the Territories, and I want to tell you that I am open to 
responding to your recommendations on those broader policy 
iuues. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Mr. Lewis. 

Safety 

MR. LEWIS: Mr. Chairman, the iasue of safety is always a 
controversial one, and the government does have within one 
of ita departments the responsibility for safety education, 
in1pection1. and 10 on. There has been discussion for some 
time now about the possible transfer of that responsibility to 
the Worke,-· Compensation Board, since it would be very 
much in the interests of the board to · promote safety. I am not 
aaying that the govemment does not have it. What I am 
aaying ia that since the board obviously ia going to deal with 
people who are victims of accidents, then they obviously 
would have a very, very exclusive kind of interest in this. That 
11 their main concern. 

So my question to the Minister is, what consideration has 
been given to delegating this responsibility to the board, and 
at what level? Would this include just education programs, or 
would it include some kind of inspection function u well? 
Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Minister. 
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HON. DENNIS PATTERSO~: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
This issue was dealt with by the fairly comprehensive review 
of the Workers' Compensation Review Panel in 1989, and just 
glancing at appendix G, I see that point 19, which responds 
to a recommendation that the Workers' Compensation Board 
should take action to reduce the rate and severity of 
accidents, notes that the board does have the authority under 
the act to take on a work site safety education role. Appendix 
G further notes, point 19, that the board has committed to 
exercise this authority, and has hired a manager of 
occupational health and safety education and budgeted funds. 

Mr. Chairman, this recommendation has been Implemented 
and the board has a program in place. It does not 
encompass the whole safety function, in that the Department 
of Safety and Public Services, which I am also responsible for, 
has a mandate to enforce the Safety Act and to police and 
monitor practices In the work place, and to inspect work 
places and, if necessary, to take action in unsafe work places. 
Of course, there Is also a Mine Safety Act and an activity 
within the department specifically focused at the special needs 
of-the mine work place. 

So Mr. Chairman, to answer the Member'• question, the 
Workers' Compensation Board, following the recommendatioM 
of the 1989 review, has established a lafety education function 
and funded It with moneys from the board, but my department 
retains responsibility for lafety Inspections, and I guess 
prosecution, for unlafe practices. I have had eome 
discussion, with the board lince my appointment. about 
en1uring that there la c»operatlon betwNn the board'• lafety 
education activities and the activitln of my department. There 
is a potential, looking at the fact that the ~ueation of lafety Is 
1plit with eome responsibilities with the board and eome with 
my department. for a lack of co-ordination. 

I am determined to lff that. 1ince I am rnponsible for both 
the board and the department. there la a good working 
relationship and that co-operation takn place. This 11 
eomething that your committN may wilh to review in the 
course of its work, but the 11tuation I inherited wu that the 
board had a 1afety education function funded and establi1hed 
with a manager, and that the govemment hu the 
responsibility tor inspections and enforcement of the Safety 
Act. IO my attitude i1 that until other changn are made I 
should act to enaure the maximum degrN of co-operation 

In ,ome provinces all lafety activitin. including i~n. are 
under the workers· compenaation board. In other 1unecl1ctton1, 
I think workera' compensation board• leave that to 
departments of government. often CM~ of labour. 
Here we have. I gue11, a little bit of bolt\. Aa I aay. 11nce I 
have responlibility tor both areu, I am In a good poe,bOn to 
eneure a co-operative kind of approach. 

One area of discussion I have had with the board i.. with 
safety officers in the field throughout the Nof1hweat Temtonee. 
we have an ability to deliver lafety eclucatiOft p,ograma 
outlide the Yellowknife area. and eo I have encouraged my 
department and the board to take advantage of that field 
presence. because the Workers' CompenMdlon Board. at lealt 
at the moment doe• not have the ltaff to delrver program, ,n 
the field. So. in pursuing thia apirit of co-operation I have alto 
encouraged my staff in the field to wortc with the board IO that 
the aaiety program, will be delivered u widely u pouible. 
Whether It be through the board or thtOYgh the ct.pa,trnent 11 
not my concem u much u that the prograrM be delrvered u 
widely as possible, 10 that Is an example of the eort of co­
operative arrangement I have been encouraging to take place. 

Frankly, the safety education program is relatively new I think 
we are still eorting out eome of the working relation,. But I 
am satisfied that Mr. Roberts and Mr. Quirke, the deputy 

minister of Safety and Public Services, are working hard at a 
co-operative approach and that it will be to the mutual benefit 
of the board and the department and the public, hopefully. 
Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Lewis. 

MR. LEWIS: Since there are jurisdictions where the whole 
safety Is under the WCB in that jurisdiction, it would lffm that 
since these boards are arm's length and there is no 
Interference and so on, that they have a greater discretion to 
move If you like, than our own, where you have so many 
political pressures from all over the place. Does the Minister 
have any comment to make on that? Sometimes we just do 
not have a very big economy, so does that put certain 
constraints on government as it relates to the safety provisions 
within our jurisdiction, which will not exist say somewhere else 
where they have a much bigger economy and can maybe 
take a different approach? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Patterson. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, I think the 
Member 11 correct. that putting the enforcemem of safety 
meuuree under the political arm, if you like, can certainly lead 
to pressures that may compromise safety. On the other hand, 
you might hear from representatives of the business 
community that it Is appropriate that rules and regulations be 
tempered with practical considerations, especially in a 
jurisdiction like the North where there are unique 
circumstancn that perhap1 have to be taken into account in 
a remote setting and difficult climatic conditions that are 
eometimes different than an urban, more developed economy. 

But I think the Member hu raised an important question of 
policy. I do not have any firm strong opinions on it. I think 
we could probably go either way. Perhaps it might be easier 
for the public if this function was dealt with clearly in one 
window; either the board, which obviously has an Interest in 
reducing assessment rates and reducing its costs by 
preventing accidents, or in the govemment, which provides 
more of a kind of political accountability that some people 
would like to see. 

I cannot really give the Members a strong opinion on which 
ia the correct way to go. Perhaps if we review our legislation, 
and this may be something your committee will want to 
consider over the course of its review of the board, this is a 
question that should be reviewed. I know previous Ministers 
to myself have had strong views about the appropriateness of 
the board dealing with these issues. I guess for me, since I 
Inherited a situation where the board had a safety program up 
and running, my feeling wu that I would try to make it work 
co-operatively with my department. since it wu there and 
there were people in place and a budget. I decided that I 
would accept the status quo and try to make it work. But I am 
open to advice from the committee on that point and there 
may ·well be strong views coming from the interest groups that 
you will hear from. 

I 1uppose in times of financial restraint I would have to say 
that I am happy the board is paying for this program because 
It i. getting harder and harder for me as a Minister in times of 
financial restraint. to identify the funds for safety programs. I 
suppose a part of me says I am grateful that the employers, 
through their assessments, are paying some of these costs 
because it is not getting any euier to identify these moneys 
within government. So that is a consideration that has to 
motivate me as well In times of restraint particularly. From 
that point of view I would say perhaps more responsibility 
should be given to the board because they may be in a better 
position, especially considering their rather healthy financial 
situation compared with other boards. They may be in a 

.. 
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position to take on more responsibilities, including financial 
obligations. 

I think I am wondering, Mr. Chairman, and maybe thinking out 
loud here. The short answer is I do not have any firm and 
hard opinions on this important policy question and I welcome 
committee's advice in due course. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim Antoine. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have some 
concern here as a Member of the Legislative Assembly. You 
say the WCB is accountable to the Legislative Assembly as a 
whole. You also mention a number of things like the WCB 
has exclusive jurisdiction as to how the act should be 
interpreted, whether injury, disease, employment-related and 
so forth. You also interpret the act the way you think it should 
be interpreted. You have certain powers in WCB, one of them 

· being a kind of quasi-judicial administrative tribunal where a 
worker gets heard and If the board decide• If It 11 not 
employment-related and so forth, then that i1 it, and the 
worker doeo not have any other recourse to go to. There are 
a number of 1pecific areas that I am aware of where a lot of 
workers in the North do not have any other place to go to, but 
through the MLA. That i1 one concern. 

EmphHls On Funding Versus Servlcn 

The other one is just a general overall concern I have about 
whether, because the WCB interprets the act the way they see 
fat. I would like to know where the emphasis i1 in relation to 
the workers. As an MLA I am involved in the Legielative 
A11embly to try and provide program, and eervicee to the 
people I represent. I '" my role on thi1 committu as also 
trying to find out the program, and service, that are available 
to the general public in the NWT. WCB providee a Hrvice to 
workers and I am concerned whether the emphasi1 of WCB i1 
on trying to protect ite funding more than providing the 
services to the people. I am concerned about that 

In your interpretation of the act. what ia more important? What 
is the policy here or the direction you are going on WCB? la 
it trying to protect the funds more than providing the Hrvicea 
to the workers that are injured? Mahsi. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Minieter. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman. I think the 
Member has raised a question that goee to the heatt of the 
responsibilitie1 of the Workers' Compensation Board I would 
simply note. in response to the first quntion, that th11 is a 
body that acts like a court. as the Member aaid. quUt-judicial 
function. It might be seen that the wortter doee not have 
much choice but to accept the rulings of the board 

I know that you are going to be rece,v1ng a pr ... ntabOn from 
the chairman of the appeals committN th,1 wffk Mr J,m 
Evoy. I think everyone knows that he ii ac:tnle 1n the labour 
movement and i1 preeently the head of the t,N{T Federation 
of Labour. I would invite you to put that qUfftlon to him 
because I think the answer I would give to you i1 there II a 
recourse available to the worker which is the appeal proceea 
I believe that it is fair to say that the appeal proceea 11 
independent and does have powere to overturn and review 
decision, of an adjudicator. 

I also point out that you are going to hear from the workers· 
advisor. That person is independent of the board and reports 
to the Minister and that persons job 111 to assist worilers who 
feel they have been wronged. who feel they nud independent 
assistance. I would also invite you to question that person 
about whether the present proce11 is fair . 

I will mention again that it i• not a complete dead end. If 
there is a fHling, If there Is evidence of bias or error in 
interpreting the act, then there is always a right of appeal to 
the courts. You have to eatabllsh grounds of couree, and that 
would be a rare caee. But there is alway1 that right of appeal 
to the courts. 

Mr. Antoine asked whether the act emphasizes the rights of 
workers enough. I would draw his attention to one section in 
the act which Mr. Roberts has pointed out to me, section 7(5), 
which I think establishes a standard of proof. It says that all 
decisions of the board shall be given according to the justice 
and merits of the case. The board shall from circumstances 
of the case, the evidence adduced and medical opinions, 
draw all reasonable inferences and presumptions in favour of 
the worker. That may be one example of a provision in 
legislation which tries to assist the worker, where there may be 
some doubt 

I would also point out Appendix E. As I understand it, this 
independent review of what is called client service delivery, 
which I think means how well the board is looking after 
workers, is as I understand it, one of the first times in the 
country there has been a request to do an independent review 
of basically how well the board is serving workers . . I think that 
report speaks for iteelf. Obviously there are some 
recommendations about how things can be improved, but I 
think that the general finding of the review is that, and I quote 
from page two, "The NWT is doing a fairly good job of serving 
the needs of ite clients in a vast and diverse geographic 
territory. Individual workers report and overall level which is 
not quite so high but it is still within the range of good. 
Where problem areas do arise the difficulties are procedural 
problems more often than people problems.• 

I think this study should go some way to answering the 
question in a fairly Independent way. I do not want to be 
defensive of the board. I think there Is a lot of room for 
improvement, that is why we are here today and that is why 
your committee has undertaken its review. I guess all I will 
say to the Member is that this is a workers' compensation 
board, the emphasis should be on workers. You need funds 
to adequately provide compensation to workers, so obviously 
there has to be a concern about the accident fund and the 
investment policies and all that. But I think I would answer 
the Member that the primary emphasis should be the workers. 
Employers would agree with that, I believe. Their interests are 
in having workers return to the work place and in preventing 
accidents. 

But I think if you want to explore that Important question 
further, ask those questions of Mr. Evoy, who represents 
labour on the board and is no shrinking violet; • ask Ms. 
Pagonis who hears from the frustrated workers and has a 
difficult job; and review this independent review of the 
service, to clients. Then I will be open to your advice about 
whether there 1hould be more done than is in place now. 

I am hear to respond to your recommendations and I think 
with those witnesses you will hear this week and with this 
report you will have the tools to form your own judgement, 
rather than relying on me to say everything is fine. Thank 
you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jeannie. 

Independence 01 The Board 

MRS. MARIE-JEWELL: There are a couple of comments the 
Minister made that I am somewhat concerned about. First of 
all I believe the public review, as I had said earlier, our 
responsibility to listen to some of the problems that are 
happening with the Workers' Compensation Board and there 
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le no doubt a concem with the public on the way the Workers' 
Compeneatlon Board deal• with injured workers. 

First of all In the Minister'• closing remarks he Indicated that 
the board must continue to make these decisions baaed on 
eound financial and management policies when they make 
their policies, but at the same time recognizing that up until 
recently the board has had a lot of individuals from the larger 
communities, some of these policies were not acceptable to 
the smaller communities; and recognizing that the board is 
totally independent with no responsibility or the Minieter 
having no recourse of advising the board as to what policies 
are acceptable to smaller communitiea and what are not. 
because of the independence of the board. Is the Minieter 
basically advising this committee that even though there are 
many concern• on the board and even though he doe• not 
want to get Into individual concerns that are brought to the 
board with respect to cl(lims. Is he basically stating that this 
board should continue. to be independent? Even though he 
is ultimately public responsible through the elected proceu? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Minister. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, I think that 
where there are pub1ic concerns and concerns of smaller 
communitiea that the Member hu In. mind, it is my 
responsibility to deal with those concern,. I think when I was 
responding to Mr. Lewie, I suggested that there is a very 
powerful tool available to MLAs and the Minister which le the 
legislation, which provides the foundation for the policies and 
the very existence of the board. So If there are problems with 
the boards policlN and with decieions that are unfair to 
sectors in the NWT, eay small communitiN or cl ..... of 
workers, then I would ilke to hear about them. And I think 
through the legieiation we have the toola to deal with those 
problems. And I am the first to acknowledge that the 
legislation hu basically been unchanged, except for cosmetic 
changes for the last 15 years. And It le timely that we look at 
those problem•. 

I think It is poasible to make changff by tacking the 
legislation, rather than by having the Minieter or politicians 
meddle with the day to day operation• of the board. So I 
think that is the way to tackle It and If the Member or your 
committee can identify th"8 problems and bring them 
forward, or If they come forward through eubmiaaions from the 
public this week, then I am certainly very open to malung the 
changes u the basic fundamental level of legislative change. 
which I think is the biggest hammer that we have and we 
hold. That is what J am here to respond to, and I think that 
is the mandate of your committff. I will take your 
recommendations very seriously on problems that the Member 
is referring to. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Bryan, did you want to add 
aomething? 

MR. ROBERTS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This• part of 
our ongoing development for policy. It le cet1alnty our 
intention as we coneider new policift or coneider amending 
policies, is to solicit input from all our atakeholdef9 from the 
regions within the Territories. And then one. we have a policy 
drafted it would be sent out to the intereeted parties for their 
comment and input to see what problems mey be developing 
and what change• would be needed to rectify that. prior to the 
policy being implemented. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Jeannie. 

Leglslatlve Review 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: There is no doubt that there is a 
proceu for public input but it is very, very limited. When you 

look at trying to get the viewpoints of trappers or carvers or 
people that do crafte, there le very limited opportunity for them 
to place their opinion• on your policy developm~nt process. 
I am not disputing in regard to the policy development I just 
want to make a point. The Minister on one hand is basically 
eaying the board ehould be totally independent My concern 
ie the board is totally independent where there is no process 
for any type of concerns to be addressed. 

If the board wants to tell the Minister, 'No, we do not have to 
listen to you. We have exclusive jurisdiction as a board to 
develop whatever we see fit,• that is their total prerogative and 
they can do that 

The concern that I have, and I have advised even in the 
House, is the fact that If the Minister realizea that legislation ia 
our alternative, and we all recognize legislation ie our option 
to look at solutions - and I am aure that recommendations for 
changes to legialation will come out as a result of these public 
hearing•. Is the Minister considering any legislation now to 
make changes to the act that does come under his 
responaibility, prior to thia committee coming forth with 
legialation, or hu he just waited for this committee to do the 
public review and then is going to consider totality all 
legislation changes at once? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Minister. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, I think the 
Member does make a good point. that public consultation 
procNSes can be limited and perhaps with the most 
dieadvantages members of our society they can be left out of 
public processes that rely on written 1ubmission1 and 
documents and the like. So I do believe that we have to re­
examine how policiee are made and how it can be changed. 
I want to eay that thia, I think, is an important role of MLAs, 
who have the responsibility for speaking up, particularly for 
thoae who may not be able to repreaent their own case for 
one reuon or another. I think I am accountable to the 
Legialature for policies. 

I do not want to give the Member the impression that I feel 
that the board is immune from ministerial direction. There are 
provisions in the Legislative Assembly and the Executive 
Council Act which can provide for the Miniater to give policy 
direction to a board. I think that the present legislation may 
be ambiguous about the extent to which the Legislative 
Aasembly and Executive Council Act can be used to interfere 
with areu that are quite carefully carved out as areas of 
exclusive jurisdiction of the board. But I think that there are 
powers that a Minister has and perhaps a legislative review 
ahould examine and clarify that issue where there are 
ambiguities, because I believe it is not as clear as it might be. 
Perhaps that should be clarified. 

To anawer the Member's queation about a legislative review, 
I had some discuuions with you, Mr. Chairman, about the 
need to review the Workers' Compenaation Act when I first 
met with your committee earlier this year. At that time I wu 
talking with the board and with some of my advisora about the 
deeirability of an initiating a legislative review. I think that a 
legislative review ia overdue. It wu recommended in a 1989 
report and it hu not been undertaken. 

When I heard that your committee was going to make the · 
Workers' Compensation Board a priority, I guess I did decide 
that I should work co-operatively with the committee and 
ahould perhaps await your recommendations on how to 
proceed with a legislative review. Some work has been done 
on that with the board and by my office. I have, for example, 
met with the chairman of the Yukon Compensation Board• and 
received quite a lot of material on the comprehensive review 
of their legislation that was just completed. I think your staff 
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may in fact be aware of that work. My feeling is that with a 
neighbouring jurisdiction which has at least some similarities . 
with the Nwr, we may be able to avoid reinventing the wheel 
in some sense, by taking advantage of a very current review 
that was done of their act. 

I also was impressed with the process that was followed in 
Yukon, which I think we might want to examine carefully as 
perhaps a useful model for a legislative review that we might 
want to undertake here. 

But to answer the Member's question, I have not actually 
initiated any legislative review. I have discussed it with the 
board. The board has indicated their willingness to fund 
much of the costs of a legislative review, but since your 
committee is going to be examining this issue and obviously 
hearing comments on the legislation and its adequacy or 
inadequacy, I felt that it was appropriate not to initiate 
anything until I have the benefit of your recommendations on 
that point. 

So I hope that the board and myself, as Minister, can work co­
operatively with your committee in improving the act as a 
result of your work. I think one of the changes we should put 
in the act is a mandatory review built right into the legislation, 
and we probably would not be in the situation we are in right 
now where we have basically a 15 year old act. That is 
something I think should be done almost routinely, at least 
every four or five years. · 

To answer the Member's question, I have not initiated anything 
but I am open to your advice, and I think such a review is 
probably overdue. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Mr. Chairman, there is one section of 
the Workers' Compensation Act that I would like to bring to 
the Minister's attention. It is under part 1, section 7, and It 
basically indicates: subject to section 7(3), the board has · 
exclusive jurisdiction to examine. inquire into, hear, and 
determine all matters and questions arising under th11 act. 
The actions or decision of the board on them is final and 
conclusive, and it is not open to question or rev,ew In any 
court. and except where there has been a denial of natural 
justice or an excess of jurisdiction exercised by the board. no 
proceedings by or before the board shall be restrained by 
injunction, prohibitation or other process or proceedings in 
any court, or be removable or otherwise into any court. nor 
shall any action be maintained or brought against the board 
in respect to any act or decision done or made by the board 
in the honest belief that it was within the board '• 1unsdIction. 

The reason why I read this section, Mr. Chairman, wu to 
make the Minister aware - and I am 1ure he 11 - there •• no 
executive council act, there i• no financial adm,n1strebon •et. 
that gives you as a Minister, any authority c,,,er that board 
once it is appointed. I do not know whether the M,mater 11 

aware of that and this is why I had indicated that there 11 
probably need for legislative changes. But that •• one of the 
concerns with respect to the Assembly, or even many 
Membera of the Assembly. Once that board is appointed they 
have total authority over that act. No M1n11ter of the 
government can tell them what to do. So the M1n11ter cannot 
tell me any different either. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Minister. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: I will note the Member's 
comments and defer to her experience, her longer experience 
than I as Minister. Since this is a problem it is obviously 
something that should be looked at in a legislative review. I 
just want to say that in my opinion, when rt comes to 

adjudicating questions like the degree of impairment, the 
amount of compensation, issues like lump sum payments, and 
injury specific questions, I am not sure that any Member of 
this Legislature or any Minister wants to be given the authority 
to interfere in such highly technical matters. I do not think we 
would ever be able to hire enough accountants, actuaries, 
physicians, to adequately review the decisions of the Workers' 
Compensation Board on specific worker-injury claims. 

However, there are many other policy issues that obviously, 
there is a very large public interest. It is those areas that I 
think the Member is probably most concerned about. I am 
open to examining the adequacy of the act in that regard, 
comparing it with the provisions of the Legislative Assembly 
and Executive Council Act and the Financial Administration 
Act, and where the provisions are wanting we should clarify 
ambiguities and perhaps strengthen provisio_ns in those acts 
so that the board is more accountable to the Legislature in 
those policy areas. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Jeannie. 

Jurisdiction Over The Board 

MRS. MARIE-JEWELL: I just want to point out one more 
item, Mr. Chairman. The point of the Minister rebutting and 
basically saying, 'I do not think an MLA or a Minister wants to 
have this type of authority to interfere,' I do not believe that is 
the concern I am implying. I am not implying that a Minister 
or MLA should be able to interfere into the process. But I do 
want the Minister to understand that there is currently, 
because of the board having total jurisdiction in the act and 
the Minister having no authority to advise the board differently, 
in the event that a policy is developed that is not acceptable 
to the people of the North, that there is no other alternative for 
a check and balance when this policy is developed. And 
generally in our system there are forms of checks and 
balances on development whether or a policy or decisions that 
are made. And currently there is none and I think that is one 
of the major concerns in respect to creation of criticism toward 
the Workers' Compensation Board. 

That is the point and that is why I am advising the Minister in 
respect to policy development or who has jurisdiction over the 
board. The board can develop a policy with no check and 
balance on determining on whether that policy is acceptable. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Minister. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, I accept the 
Member's experience and strong views on that point. I would 
just say that quite apart from the legal constraints that a 
Minister may find preventing influencing the board from 
developing appropriate policies, it has been my determination 
to develop a working relationship with the board chairman and 
with the board of directors of the Workers' Compensation 
Board, such that these kinds of problems and conflicts do not 
anse. 

So for example, on the question of hunter coverage, which I 
know is a concern to many Members of the Legislature, I early 
on met with the board and chairman, the previous chairman 
and the present chairman, and pointed out that this is a 
Hn0u1 area of public concern and that I wanted something 
done about it So I think even though there may be legal 
barriers to accountability, until we change the act and examine 
those legal issues, it should be possible to develop solutions 
to problems as they arise, by a good working relationship. 

And I am sure Members of this committee will appreciate that 
the members of the board are appointed by the Minister and 
they should be responsive to the Minister. I do not say 
responsible, because I realize there is a large legal authority 
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that provides them with independence, but there is no reason 
they cannot be responsive. 

So my attitude is that until there is a comprehensive review in 
place, I am going to do everything in my power to ensure that 
the chairman and members of the board are at least 
responsive to issues that may arise. And so far I may say that 
I have not encountered a situation where I have personally 
have had problems encouraging the board to deal with 
political issues and concerns that have been brought to me. 
That is not to say that such a conflict could not arise and has 
not arisen in the past But I will say that so far in my short 
tenure, I have enjoyed a good co-operative working 
relationship with the board, such that these legal issues have 
not prevented a problem solving approach to be taken. 

But I agree that it is an important issue that should be 
examined and it may be that the legislation needs to provide 
more accountability than it does now. And I am quite open 
to seeing changes take place. In the meantime I am going to 
try and cultivate a good working relationship with the board 
so that these legal issues need not become a problem. Thank 
you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Mr. Minister. A point of 
clarification in terms of the legislative review. For the record, 
this committee is not undertaking a major review at this time. 
What we are doing is a desk paper review of the act for 
purposes of these meetings. We, in turn, are also waiting for 
the results of the hearings this week and then we will reassess 
what needs to be done. We assume there will be major focal 
points that we have to address quickly and by Friday or 
Thursday hopefully we will have theu and then we can 
commission whatever - working of couru In cooperation with 
the board and looking at the legislation. That is a big 
exercise. So I think we want to take It on in Isolation of what 
you guys are doing. 

The other issue we are discussing. accountability and 
responsibility , and I am sure you are all aware that most of 
your standing committees are very concerned of accountability 
and responsibility by public servants. We want to know what 
our departments are doing, where public money is being 
spent and of course th is committH is concerned about 
efficiency, effectiveness, economy. 

The Minister indicated that it is important for the legislature to 
make sure that policies of the board reflects the will of the 
people of the NWT and the one way we had to do it is 
through the act Remember other Membera have raised the 
difficulty with existing legislation. Maybe I could ask the 
question of the chairman of the board, from the board's 
perspective, what actions do you '" the Minister or Members 
of the Legislative Assembly taking In influencing Internal 
policies. 

Minister And Members Influencing Internal Pollcle9 

MR. ROBERTS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I win go back 
and reiterate the need for legislative review and I also believe 
very strongly that there should be a clauu in the act tor a 
mandatory review, at whatever time is acceptable by the 
Assembly . It is the Legislative Assembly, in d"1gning and 
approving an act that set the intent Anytime the board is to 
interpret the act they must go back to what the Legislature 
intended. 

I think one of the problems that has come up is that it was 15 
years ago, the last time. that that intent waa establ,ahed. 
Many, many circumstances have changed. The compensation 
system has changed, the world has changed. people are 
much more aware. of their rights. I can only say how 
important it is, from my point of view anyway. to have a 

legislative review so that a new act is established and then the 
board of directors can carry that out with the intent of the will 
of the people of the NWT. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Arvaluk. 

MR. ARVALUK: I like what Mrs. Marie-Jewell was elaborating 
on, that is I strongly believe that the legislation must create a 
suitable act for WCB and set principles or policies for the 
Workers' Compensation Board to follow. Since the WCB is a 
public service, then ultimately the Legislative Assembly has a 
responsibility to ensure that the act and the policies arising 
from the act or regulations is abided by the WCB. I think we 
have to keep that in mind. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you very much. Our time has 
run out and these gentlemen are scheduled to appear before 
us on Wednesday afternoon, .after we have heard from the 
majority of people who have been asked to make a 
presentation. Any last comments? Okay we will recess until 
7:00 p.m. tonight 

-SHORT RECESS 

The committee will come back to order. We are in the 
process of hearing presentations relating to the Workers' 
Compensation Board, and before we start I would just like to 
advise anyone in the public, or if you people who are here 
know of anyone that wants to make presentations to this 
committee, there are forms available out on the front desk. If 
anybody wants to make a presentation, ask them to fill one of 
these out and give it to one of our clerks, and we will try to 
schedule them in during the next couple of days. At this time 
I would like to welcome Kathe Pagonis, who is the workers' 
advisor. Kathe, welcome. 

Presentation By Ms. Kathe Pagonis Workers' Advisor 

MS. PAGONIS: Good evening, honourable Members and 
ladies and gentlemen. The position of the workers' advisor 
wu created in November 1989, and I was appointed as the 
first workers· advisor in the Northwest Territories. The position 
has been challenging and rewarding. The rewards of my job 
are seeing a smile on the injured worker's face after winning 
an appeal, hearing the relief in the injured worker's voice over 
the telephone, and hearing positive feedback when, for 
months, It wu only negative. Injured workers feel there is no 
tomorrow to better themselves, as today is difficult enough. 
Over the next few days, you will be listening to the pain of 
injured worbrs. Listen closely, as this pain is genuine. 

There is a real need for the workers' advisor position. I have 
compiled statistics on the number of clients using my services, 
the activities of the workers' advisor, and compared statistics 
for 1990 and 1991 . I have attached two bar graphs to 
illustrate this information in my submission that should be in 
front of you. As workers' advisor, I have attended workers' 
advisor conferences in British Columbia. This was an 
opportunity for me to meet with other workers' advisors from 
across Canada and share mutual concerns. For your 
information, I have attached a brief data sheet on workers' 
advlsors acron Canada. In my presentation I will be 
diseuning the role of the workers' advisor, recommendations 
of the workers' advisor, and concerns of the injured workers. 

Role Of The Workers' Advisor 

To the role of the workers' advisor, the mandate of the 
workers' advisor position is not as focused as it could be. I 
would like to share with you the actual role of the workers' 
advisor as it has developed. 

The workers' advisor position was created in November of 
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1989 to assist the injured worker, their dependants and 
representatives, with difficulties encountered with the 
bureaucracy and structures of the Workers' Compensation 
Board. 

Some injured workers, because of cultural differences, limited 
education and poor communication skills, feel intimidated 
when dealing with the Workers' Compensation Board. In 
many cases, the injured worker experiences problems with 
their claim due to incomplete documentation. They do not 
understand the importance of the necessary paper work. 
Often injured workers contact the workers' advisor for an 
explanation on letters and verbal instructions received from 
WCB. Considerable time and effort is spent in translating 
Workers' Compensation Board correspondence and 
instructions into plain English. 

The transition from a healthy, able worker to an injured worker 
receiving WCB benefits is a very difficult road for many 
individuals. Over the past two and a half years as workers' 
advisor, I have dealt with this transition in many ways. Clients 
have called feeling hopeless, helpless and hapless, and have 
spoken of suicide; others have spoken of serious family 
problems which have occurred after the accident. and others 
have expressed fear and anxiety over occupational changes. 
Countless hours have been spent in listening and empathizing 
with these individuals. I have developed and maintained a 
network of professionals who can assist the injured worker 
during these troubled times. 

At times the injured worker may disagree with a doctor's 
opinion regarding possible surgery, treatment, degree of 
disability and availability to return to work. As workers' 
advisor, I discuss alternatives with the injured worker, such as 
obtaining a second medical opinion to ensure WCB benefits 
continue. 

Specific compensable mJurtes, such u white hand and 
hearing loss, happen over a long period of time. Injured 
workers may have worked in other provinces during their 
employment history. In these cases, if compensation is 
awarded, only a percentage is by the Northwest Territoriff 
WCB. The injured worker must than apply to the other WCBs 
for the remainder. At this time the injured worker falls 
between the cracks and becomes a victim of the ayatam. and 
during these times I use the service of other workers ' advisers 
to assist the injured worker in obtaining informabon across 
Canada. 

On occasion, the injured worker and WCB adjudicators may 
have difficulties communicating. In th ... instances, I act u 
a mediator, clarifying the assisting the coneema of both 
parties. 

Many workers who were injured in the Northwest T emtones 
and receive benefits from WCB, now reside ~n southern 
Canada. Difficulties arise from time to time and theM m1ured 
workers depend on the workers· advisor to ensure the,r claim 
continues in a timely manner. 

Injured workers· daily living stresses are extreme Cop,ng with 
minor tasks. such u putting on clothing. becomes difficult if 
not possible. On bad days, the injured worker needs a 
shoulder to cry on. someone who understands how hard life 
has become. The workers ' advisor is that shoulder. 

At times, the injured workers disagree with WCB's final 
decisions. The workers' advisor assists the injured woriler with 
the appeal by reviewing the claimant'• file, suggests a plan of 
action. and involves the injured worker in the appeal process 
for presentation. 

Injured workers who feel frustrated and confused with WCB'a 

system, often contact their MLAs for help in dealing with their 
situation. The workers' advisor has received referrals from 
MLAs over the past years. The relationship between the 
workers advisor and the MLAs has been open and honest, as 
both parties have the concern of the injured worker at heart. 
There have been no problems in this relationship. 

Since my appointment in November, 1989, three MLAs have 
served as Minister of WCB: Hon. Stephen Kakfwi, Hon. 
Jeannie Marie-Jewell, and presently the Hon. Dennis 
Patterson. I have had an open relationship with all three 
Ministers. 

Currently the workers' advisor reports directly to the Minister 
of WCB. This reporting system must remain intact. To place 
the position with another department would undermine the 
spirit and attitude of the position and could cause the position 
to be 'lost' in future government changes. 

Workers' Advisor Recommendations 

The role of the workers advisor has been satisfying and 
fulfilling. However, J would like to address some issues which 
occur on a regular basis in my job. Over the past two and a 
half years, I have provided quality service to the injured 
worker, and from time to time I have experienced road blocks 
in the performance of my duties. I would like to share with 
you four issues I have experienced, and my recommendations 
to eliminate these problems. 

Letter Of Authorization 

The first one, on page 5, is the letter of authorization. The 
workers' advisor is required to have a signed letter of 
authorization from the client before reviewing WCB client files. 

This process is satisfactory for Yellowknife residents; however, 
I have injured workers all across Canada and it just causes a 
lot of problems because of the vast distance. It is crucial that 
the workers' advisor have access to the worker's file with a 
minimum of restriction. The present policy causes delays for 
the injured worker's claim and prevents the workers' advisor 
from completing her duties effectively. 

Recommendations: My recommendations on that are: (Q 
The workers' advisor signs a statutory document declaring the 
client has given the workers' advisor permission to review their 
WCB files, and: (2) A new claim file policy be developed 
which reflects 'northern realities' of distance and includes 
provisions for ·a signed declaration from the workers' advisor. 

Procedurn Related To The Review Of WCB Client Flies 

The second issue is procedures related to the review of WCB 
client files. First of all, the workers' advisor is required to give 
advance notice before reviewing files. I do not have a 
problem with that at all; however, the workers' advisor must 
wait in the reception area, then be escorted by WCB staff 
members to an appropriate meeting room, and then have a 
staff member sit in attendance whfle I am reviewing the file. 
I find this treatment humiliating and it demonstrates a lack of 
respect and trust for the workers' advisor. 

I have signed an oath of confidentiality with the Government 
of the Northwest Territories, and I feel I should have access to 
the claimants' files to provide quality service to the injured 
worker. 

Recommendations: My recommendations are: (I) The 
workers' advisor is not an employee of the government nor of 
WCB and is not included in the WCB Act. I recommend the 
workers' advisor position be incorporated into the act to 
ensure access to files, and: (2) That the workers' advisor be 



Page 14 STANDING COMMITTEE ON AGENCIES, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS May 11 1 1992 

treated with respect and trust and be allowed to review client 
files without supervision in the meeting room. 

Working Relatlonshlp With Workers' Compensation Board 

When an injured worker disagrees with an adjudicator's 
decision and requests the workers' advisor's assistance, the 
workers' advisor is only allowed to speak to the manager of 
the claims department, not the adjudicator who has made the 
decision. This process creates unnecessary problems, 
repetition, and wastes a lot of valuable time. 

Recommendation: My recommendation is, I should be 
allowed to go directly to the adjudicator who has made the 
decision, to discuss the problems of the injured worker. 

The second issue here is, any changes regarding WCB 
policies and procedures should be forwarded to the office of 
the workers' advisor in a timely fashion. Currently, the 
workers' advisor finds out about these changes in a hit or 
miss manner. 

Recommendation: My recommendation would be to have 
these procedures and policies forwarded to the workers' 
advisor in a timely manner. 

Workload Of Workers' Advisor 

The workload of the workers' advisor has increased steadily 
in the past two and a half years. 

The day to day work of the workers' advisor is extremely 
diverse, from answering a routine question about WCB to 
dealing with an injured worker thinking about suicide. These 
drastic changes in focus are stressful. Support within the 
workplace ia essential to prevent employee burnout. 

As the workers ' advisor works in complete isolation, there is 
not an opportunity to debrief from criaia calla. or an 
opportunity to plan. strategize or discuss client cases and 
appeals. 

If I am absent from the office due to illnfta, vacation or travel. 
the workload does not diminish. It stockpiles and ia attended 
to upon my return. 

There is little or no opportunity for carNr development. 

Recommendation : A second workers' advisor position should 
be created immediately to ensure quality of service to the 
injured worker. 

Injured Workers' Concerns 

Now I will go into seven of the injured worilers' ~•- A.a 
workers' advisor. I have listened to theae concerns and 
frustrations of injured workers in their dealings With WCB. 
Over the put two and a half years. MYen conatstent iaauea 
have been brought to my attention. I would like to talte th1a 
opportunity to share these MYen concerns and 
recommendations with you. Removing th ... road blocks will 
give the injured worker some hope. 

The Cumbersome WCB System 

Tha" f,rst one is the cumbersome WCB system. When an 
injured worker first applies for WCB benefits. the entire ayatem, 
its benefits and procedures are a mystery. It ia like giving a 
person a vault without the combination. Information that •• 
available ia written in hundred dollar words and almost 
requires a masters in English to undermnd. Many claimants 
who use my services are confused about what they are 
entitled to and what information they must provide WCB. 

Each department within WCB keeps its secrets behind closed 
doors and inspires fear in the injured worker when his claim 
is transferred within departments. 

Recommendation: I recommend the development of a simple 
pamphlet This pamphlet must be written in plain English. 
This pamphlet should include step by step instructions on how 
to complete an application, specific information on each 
department, and a list of benefits the injured worker is entitled 
to. Information on the workers' advisor and the appeal 
process should also be included in these pamphlets. 

Re-examination Of A Decision 

The claims adjudicator makes decisions regarding the initial 
claim. If a claim is denied, it then would go to the manager 
for re-examination for a decision. On November 30, 1990, this 
procesa was eliminated. The next option open to the injured 
worker is the first level of appeal. Once at the appeal level, 
the injured worker suffers unduly because of excessive time 
delays. 

Recommendation: My recommendation is to reinstate the re­
examination of the manager's decision policy to allow the 
injured worker to have his claim reassessed prior to going to 
appeal. 

Appeal Proeeu 

Over the past week or so, the appeal process has been a 
concern for a lot of injured workers. 

The first level of appeal consists of a review committee made 
up of two members appointed by the board of directors. The 
review committee members carry out an in depth review of the 
claimant's file. Then the review committee, if they find no 
Justification for changing the previous decision, the injured 
worker may pursue a final level of appeal. The claimant does 
not have an opportunity to be present at this first level of 
appeal. It is documentary submission only. I feel it is 
essential for the injured worker to be present at the first level 
of appeal. Denying the injured worker an opportunity to be 
present is denying the worker a fair appeal. 

Recommendation: The worker should be allowed to appear 
at the first level of appeal. 

Rehabilitation Departmen1 

Injured workers must change their occupations when their 
disability interferes with their ability to perform. Change in 
occupation causes fear and anxiety for the injured worker. 
There ia not a qualified career counsellor presently employed 
in the Workers' Compensation Board rehabilitation department, 
to aaaist the worker in this transition. 

Recommendation: A qualified career counsellor should be 
hired for WCB rehabilitation department 

Pr ... ntly I have worked with employment and immigration for 
eight years before this position and I have assisted many 
Injured workers on their goals and career counselling and 
have referred them to people I know can help them. I do not 
mind doing that in my position, but I feel that it ia important 
that WCB haa someone to do this job. 

wee Legal Counsel 

WCB haa awarded its contract for legal services to three 
prestigious Yellowknife law firms. If the injured worker 
requires fair and equal representation, there is a conflict of 
interest with these firms. This system of awarding WCB legal 
contracts to three firms has limited the number of law firms 
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available to the injured worker. 

Recommendation: WCB must retain one law firm to 
represent its interests. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Brian. 

MR. LEWIS: The words are clear but you in fact define the 
three firms, limits the number of law firms available, how does 
limiting to one firm make it better? Because that is less than 
three. What does this mean? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): My understanding is the WCB has on 
retainer three law firms in town. Therefore if a worker requires 
a lawyer, he or she cannot go to any one of those three firms, 
they go to whoever is left, who is nobody. 

MR. LEWIS: Okay, thank you. 

YMIR 

MS. PAGONIS: YMIR is calculated at a maximum of $40,000. 
This level of compensation is not adequate to meet the cost 
of living in the North and is forcing a lot of injured workers to 
relocate to southern Canada. 

Recommendation: The YMIR must be increased to reflect the 
cost of living in the NWT and to ensure injured workers do not 
suffer further financial difficulties. 

Lump Sum Section 41 (3) 

I have written in the book the act and the policy that you can 
read. Presently this policy is dealt with in a rigid manner with 
no exceptions. The request for lump sum settlements should 
be assessed on individual merits and not as a general ruling. 
A lot of the people feel that a person with a minor disability, 
under the 10 per cent, they have access to receive their lump 
sum payout and they have access to become financially 
ahead, and a person with a major disability of 10 per cent and 
over, does not have the same opportunity. So it is basically 
discriminating and a lot of the injured workers do not feel this 
policy is a fair one and they should really look into the 
concerns of the injured worker and try to have some type of 
balance so everyone will be happy. 

The impact of the lump sum policy affects injured workers 
lives. It is for this reason I would encourage you to consider 
the policy on a case by case basis with emphasis on fairness 
and compassion toward the Injured wortcer. On occasion I 
have met with clients whose requests for lump ,um 
settlements are justifiable. These legitimate requeltl are 
currently being denied. When a wortcer'1 ditability ia over 10 
per cent and his pen1ion is over $40.000, the wortcere· lump 
sum request will automatically be denied and the wortcer must 
use the appeal process. 

Recommendation: The act allows lump ,um Httlements, 
however the policy does not The policy should be corrected 
by submitting an amendment to the policy which states: 
'Each ease should be taken on its own merrts.' With thi1 
amendment the WCB adjudicator will allow individual 
settlements on a case by case basis, not as a general ruling. 

I hope this information I provided tonight will be helpful in 
your review of the Workers' Compensation Board. I thank you 
for this wonderful opportunity. In closing, may I leave you 
with a thought: We must remember the very first work in 
-Workers· Compensation Board' is 'worker' . WCB must now 
become worker focused, not investment focused. Are there 
any questions? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you very much, Kathe. It is 

well document and I think the issues are very clear. The floor 
is open. Brian. 

MR. LEWIS: On the issue of lump sum payments. It says 
here the act allows lump sum settlements, however the policy 
does not Is Kathe saying then that although there is a 
practice whereby there is a limit placed on the amount of 
money that can be paid as lump sum, this is not written down 
as a policy anywhere? Because from what I gather here this 
is just something that is done but there is no policy that 
governs it. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Kathe. 

MS. PAGONIS: There is a policy regarding this. I believe it 
was 1989 they did give out lump sums to people who asked, 
if there was a sound investment of some kind. But I believe 
it is changed and it has become so rigid that if you are at 11 
per cent, there is no possible way you can get a lump sum 
unless you appeal it. And even going through the appeal 
process, you have to have a pretty sound investment or pretty 
sound ideas before they will even say yes or no. 

MR. LEWIS: It says, 'The act allows lump sum settlements, 
however the policy does not• But from what I gather the 
policy does allow lump sum settlements except it is limited 
and restricted. That is what is meant. Okay. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): James.• 

MR. ARVALUK: How is the WCB given by legislation a legal 
option to decided which route to grant compensation, whether 
it is lump sum or on the breakdown basis. Where is the 
legislation that allows them to decide that as a board. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Kathe. 

MS. PAGONIS: I am not sure. Save that one for the appeal 
tribunal. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Would the committee Members try 
and ask questions of the representative here and then other 
technical ones we can get back to the board members. 

MR. ARVALUK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will try to keep 
that in mind. I would like to get an interpretation from the 
workers' advisor as to how she understands why she thinks 
which way the WCB is given a legal responsibility to decide 
on individual injured workers. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Kathe. 

MS. PAGONIS: On page 15 the board may direct that a 
lump sum that it considers to be equivalent of the periodic 
payment, shall be paid to the worker instead of making the 
periodic payments. So the board is saying that they will give 
a lump sum. A lot · of the injured workers only want partial 
pay outs. They want maybe $20,000. They do not want their 
full lump sum. If their disability is over that 10 per cent, they 
cannot 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): James. 

MR. ARVALUK: I think we have to remember we will have to 
ask that specific question because if there is legislation 
respecting WCB then we will probably want to have specific 
guidelines authorizing WCB on page 15. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: I think this is where some of the 
problems begin. Even though legislation allows for things like 
this, it is up to the discretion of the board as to how the 
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policy is to be developed. I think that the concern that I 
expressed this afternoon, as to no process in regard to policy 
development is made available to injured workers or to the 
public besides the board members. This is where some of 
the problems are created, when they are developed with some 
rigid guidelines and no discretionary allowance being made. 

But I did want to make a comment that I find this presentation 
very plain and basically indicates many of the concerns that 
have been expressed to the MLAs and to the Ministers. These 
are some of the fundamental concerns that cause a lot of 
criticism toward the Workers' Compensation Board, that it is 
not focused toward the worker but a lot toward investment. 
It somewhat reflects either on their mandate or their 
responsibilities that they seem to take on. 

So I did want to thank the workers' advisor for the 
presentation. I think it is very clear to many of us and to the 
public and I think it is a very well documented presentation in 
very plain language. So it is a job well done. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Kathe. 

MS. PAGONIS: I put a lot of hard work into this report and 
I thank you for reading it. It was basically meant to be in 
plain English, like the pamphlet should be. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe) : John. 

MR. TODD: In the old Workers' Compensation Board, before 
the current regime got in. there wu the ability of the board to 
make those kinds of decisions. There wu no policy that said 
whatever the 10 per cent wu. It wu individually adjudicated 
by the board of directors. So this policy, if It hu changed 
and it if it is a detriment or an asset or liability, depending on 
how you view it. it came under the current regime. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to 
thank the workers' advisor for her presentation. It ia very 
good information for me. I have not been involved with WCB 
in the past, except for paying large auma of money tn different 
corporations I have been involved. 

-Laughter 

There is one area you mentioned. can you maybe clarify. you 
said that your mandate in your ~ition is not as focused u 
it could be. I think the role of the workers· advl.or la very 
necessary and I th ink you have done a lot of worll here. I juat 
want to know what you meant by that 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Kathe. 

MS. PAGONIS: It basically was juat about eight or nine line,. 
When the position was created It wu .ort of a pilo( p<oJect 
and they basically assist the injured woriler and help through 
the appeal process and travel in the notthern commun~ and 
drop pamphlets off at the hospital and thinga like that. But I 
do not think they realized there was a ~and for thi1 
position at that time and I have not had a chance lo do erry 
travelling. I have gone to Fort Smith. that was about the 
extent of my travels. I am really buay In thia poertion and I do 
net have tha! opportunity to cover the travelling aspect and 
that seemed to be, they thought. was moa1 of the ~on. 

To assist the injured worker, you are not just dealing with the 
injured worker. you are dealing with the family . You are 
dealing with the children. You are dealing with them going 
through depressions and anger. At WCB they 1hould have a 
display of pamphlets of how to deal with anger. how to deal 
with depression. so that the injured worker and the families 

can go in there and have some direction on where to go 
when. they are dealing with their traumas. It is a very vague 
mandate and it has to be a little deeper, because I do not just 
do that I deal with the whole family. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you Kathe. Can you tell me at what 
stage in the process you get involved? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Kathe. 

MS. PAGONIS: Just when they have the accident They do 
not know what to do. They are afraid, they are scared, they 
have never been on WCB. So I take their hand right through 
the whole system and I explain to them right from the 
beginning to the end. At times when they are in the 
adjudication area, the claims area, they are transferred to 
another department There is a great deal of fear there. So 
I have to go through each process with them. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. ANTOINE: I would like to know if there are personnel in 
the WCB itself to do that kind of work. If there is, why are 
they not providing that service? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Kathe. 

MS. PAGONIS: You have to understand they have an 
extremely heavy workload and sometimes they do explain to 
them that they are going through this, they will send them a 
letter. But a lot of the time the injured worker has limited 
education, does not understand what is going on, feels he is 
going to be cut off and then you are talking about finances 
and how is he going to llve and how is he going to eat. 

I am really down to earth with them. I tell them this is what 
they are doing. Do not get upset and they have to go 
through this. I just go through it in. a very down to earth 
manner. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: In the eight years that I sat on the board of 
directors of the WCB one of my continuing frustrations was the 
inability for them to see beyond organized labour and large 
industry. The larger industries are generally represented well 
through their union people, et cetera. I am wondering if you 
have had any experience in the outlying communities where 
there are people who are also covered by WCB and do not 
have the expertise or professionalism or the organized groups 
to represent them. With all due respect I recognize there is a 
large employee component in the larger centres, but there are 
a great deal of people out there, aboriginal_ people, people in 
the smaller communities, non-aboriginal people. I am 
wondering if you had any experience with people being 
concerned about the WCB? 

Workers' Advisor Travelling To Smaller Communities 

Within the mandate of your job, have you been given any 
instructions - you should travel into the communities and talk 
to people. I aura as hell could not get the WCB to even 
travel, unlesa it were Calgary, Vancouver - there was no more 
Whale Cove, more Iqaluit, Grise Fiord. Is there any mandate 
whatsoever in your job to travel outside the large centres? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Kathe. 

MS. PAGONIS: That is part of my job to travel to the 
communities. I have requested a few times and because my 
position was under review, should it go permanent, contract. 
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with the government, what department should it go with. We 
were just sort of waiting for the review to be finished to go up 
to the northern communities. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: It is fine to say you are waiting, but are you 
telling me that is there anything within your mandate and your 
discussions with the board that says part of your 
responsibility, while it is recognized there are larger concerns 
in the larger communities with organized labour, that you have 
to get out there and talk to people. Let us say the hunters 
and trappers for example. 

I have one guy in Rankin Inlet who is 64 years old, a 
unilingual Inuit, that is desperately looking for someone to go 
and talk to him and I could not even get the chairman to go 
and talk to it. He sent me forms in English with his card 
attached to it. It was very rewarding to know he was 
concerned about his interest. I am wondering If you are 
eoncerneci about their interest. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Kathe. 

MS. PAGONIS: At times I call them outreach workers, but in 
the different communities I talk to outreach workers and try to 
assist them in any way that I can. The Hunters' and Trappers' 
Act is a _bit big right now and I know it is being reviewed but 
I have gone to the different outreach worker• in the 
communities and discussed it with them, because I speak 
English and do not speak their language I use those Nrvices 
in the communities. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: Kathe, I am going to put you on the apot for a 
reason. Where have you travelled to outaide of Fort Smith, 
Yellowknife, Hay River? What small communities? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Kathe. 

MS. PAGONIS: I have not 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: Within your budget is there any diacUffion that 
relates to getting outside of the centre and going to talk to the 
small communities, where they have injured workers the aame 
as the larger communities, where they do not have organized 
labour to represent their interest? la there anything in your 
job that says that is part of your mandate and there is a 
budget for it? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Kathe. 

MS. PAGONIS: It does say it is part of my mandate but I 
have not seen the budget for it. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Under what terms and condrtiona are 
you employed? Are you on a contract ot a permanent 
employee of the board or an employff of the govem,,,.nt a 
daily rate or weekly rate or what'? 

MS. PAGONIS: Presently it is on a contract baa,, and the 
position is being reviewed right now with the Department of 
Porsonnel. They are going to be putting it with a dopartment. 
I am not sure which one. They mentioned they were gomg to 
put it as a permanent full time. with benefita. But that 11 all 
I know. I have sort of been left in the dark. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): What is your current contract for? 
Six months or one week? Or do you have one? 

MS. PAGONIS: No I do not. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Who do you report to? 

MS. PAGONIS: I report to the Minister of WCB. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Brian. 

MR. LEWIS: When I was first elected in 1987, the vast 
majority of the things I had to deal with had to do with WCB. 
I felt very uncomfortable trying to deal with something that is 
supposed to be at arm's length from the government. But I 
did go over the WCB on many occasions and everybody felt 
awkward. The people there felt awkward and I felt awkward. 
And I was very happy to find that this appointment was made 
and I think it has been a very valuable one. It has certainly 
taken a lot of pressure from elected people who really are not 
quite sure how they should handle stuff like that. So I think 
it has been a very valuable development and I hope to see 
it strengthened. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Any other comments. Kathe, I would 
like to thank you for your well-prepared presentation, your 
frankness. We will seriously consider the recommendations 
you made. 

MS. PAGONIS: Thank you very much for your time and all 
the best in the next few days. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Next we will be talking to the WCB 
appeal tribunal. We will take a 10 minute coffee break. 

-SHORT RECESS 

I would like to welcome Mr. Jim Evoy, who is the chairman of 
the WBC appeal tribunal. Jim, if you do not mind, I would 
like you to introduce your team and go ahead with your 
presentation. 

MR. EVOY: Thank you, Mr. Chairm~n. and good evening 
ladies and gentlemen. This evening we are here, at the 
bequest of the communication of April 24, written to the 
chairman of the Workers' Compensation Board, asking the 
appeals tribunal representatives to make themselves available 
thia evening. We certainly look forward to this exchange of 
thoughts and Ideas with great enthusiasm. 

With me this evening, on my left is counsel to the tribunal, Mr. 
John Bayly. I am sure most of you know John. On my right 
ia the appeals registrar, Ms. Lynne Green. She works at the 
WCB, and during our opening comments Ms. Green will give 
you a small summary of some of the duties that her job 
entails. Should I proceed? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Go ahead. 

Pr ... ntatlon By Mr. Jim Evoy, WCB Appeals Tribunal 

MR. EVOY: I am sorry I do not have anything to hand out 
but I am sure you can bear with me. The appeals tribunal 
came Into being by legislation on April 11, 1990. It functions 
u a body to hear appeals that are brought before it under the 
Workers' Compensation Act. The purpose is to provide the 
final opportunity for workers and employers to have their 
appeals heard. 

I might digress briefly and tell you that prior to that date, 
appeals were heard by the boards of directors or the 
corporate board, which was sometimes 11 men in suits 
rendering decisions in half an hour to an hour - in jeans too. 
Prior to late 1987, the first level of appeal, which is a claims 
review, were actually non-existent, although the act did cover 
it. So in essence what the tribunal replaced was the board of 
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dire~ors hearing the appeals. 

Appeals arise from the review committee, which is the first 
level of objection in the Nwr. The appeals tribunal has 
exclusive jurisdiction over appeals and its decisions are not 
open to question or review by any court The appeals tribunal 
is not bound be precedent. There are five part-time appeals 
commissioners and a hearing panel consists of a chairperson 
and two commissioners; one of those commissioners, 
representing workers' interests, and the other representing the 
interests of employers. Training is provided to the appeals 
commissioners to keep them abreast of the ever-changing 
complexities surrounding workers' compensation and the laws 
of natural justice. 

Hearings are generally held in person and conducted in an 
informal atmosphere. Hearings are short on legalistic trades 
and features, but are conducted in a manner that assures 
fairness. Since the appeals tribunal is the final level of 
adjudication of the WCB, it is, in essence, the final quality 
control method of this historic relationship between workers 
and employers. 

I think, having said that, if a aystem is working I think it is 
evident in the type and number of appeals that are coming 
forward. If you looked at 12 boards across Canada, if you 
looked at what was happening in the appeals area, you might 
be able to understand better what the whole system was 
about. It is sort of indicative or reflective of the aystem in that 
jurisdiction. 

For instance in Quebec, I understand this was last year, 
granted they have a large population, at firat level of appeals 
they had 64,000 appeals and a backlog. So that gives you an 
idea of what is happening In some jurisdictions. 

Before I go any further I would like to have Mr. John Bayly, 
counsel to the tribunal, say a f- words about the overall 
aspects of natural justice, as tied into the legislation we work 
under and maybe the Charter of Rights and things of that 
nature. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. BA Yl Y: Mr. Chairman, my remarks will be bMf. Those 
of you who have had the opportunity before the meeting 
tonight to have a look at the legislation, will find that there are 
very brief things said about the opportunity of appellants and 
other interested people on appeal to be heard. Section 7 .6, 
for example, says that the appeals tribunal shall g,ve the 
appellant and any other interested per900. an opportunity to 
be heard and to prHent evidence. And of course the board 
may direct the appeals tribunal to rehear an appeal if it IHls 
that the appeals tribunal hu not complied with the prov,11on1 
of the act or given a fair and reasonable hearing to in1eretted 
people. 

But the Workers· Compensation Act II part of a web of law. 
some of which is staMory law which your own Legislature hu 
passed. For example. the appeals tribunal'• powers are those 
which are found in the Public lnquiri" Act. and those include 
the responsibilities to allow people who have an lnterfft to be 
heard, to hold their hearings in public unl"8 there ie a very 
good reason not to. I think the appeals tnbunal .._ and has 
to be, cognizant of the fact that although the dectalona may 
not be reviewed as deciaions, they may be examined to lff 

whether the principles of faimeaa which are the requirement 
of all hearing tribunals have been fully exerciMd and allowed 
to those who bring their grievances or appeals to the 
committee. I think it is perhapa for that reason that the WCB 
had not only changed its procedure som~at. and I think the 
chairman will expand on that som-hat. but hu also chosen 
to have counsel appointed who can assist them to concentrate 

on those very aspects when appeals come before them. 

MR. EVOY: Thank you, John. I would like to call upon 
Lynne Green now, the appeals registrar, to give the committee 
a brief overview of her duties, what they entail and what her 
function is. Lynne. 

Duties And Function Of Appeals Registrar 

MS. GREEN: In order to carry out the duties of the appeals 
registrar, comprehensive knowledge of rules of natural justice, 
rules of evidence and administration of quasi-judicial tribunals 
is required. The following steps outline what the registrar is 
required to do from the time a request to the appeals tribunal 
is received, to the mailing of the appeals tribunal's decision to 
the appellant: 

1) review requests to appeals tribunal to ensure the issue or 
issues of appeal may promptly be dealt with by the tribunal ; 
that la to say that the appellant is challenging a decision of 
the review committee. If not, the appellant is advised and the 
file is returned to the appropriate division for action; 

2) identify relevant policies, sections of the act that relate to 
the issue under appeal; 

3) acknowledge the appeal, providing full disclosure or 
updated disclosure of the claim file, if requested; 

4) prepare a detailed chronological file summary, containing 
relevant documentation and presentation of facts ; 

5) schedule pre-hearing caucus meetings with appeals 
commissioners and meet with them to determine what further 
action or information is required. If further medical is required, 
advise appellant and/or their representative and make the 
necessary arrangements; 

6) achedule the appeal hearing and make necessary travel 
arrangements for the appellant and/or. their representative in 
relation to an oral hearing; 

7) attend appeal hearings as a resource person; 

8) identify for consideration by the appeals commission as 
possible decision options and their likely implications; 

9) advise commi$1ioners of possible impact on policies and 
procedurea; 

10) prepare for aignature clear, concise decisions of the 
appeals tribunal and mail the decision to the appellant or their 
representative and refer the file to the appropriate division for 
administration of decision, if required. 

Thank you. 

Selection Of Tribunal 

MR. EVOY: Thank you, Lynne. If I might continue, I would 
hazard that one of the questions or one of the things that you 
might want information on is how the tribunal is actually 
selected. So I will just proceed with that assumption. 

Under section 7.1 of the act: an appeals tribunal is 
established composed of five members appointed by the 
Minister, including a) one member appointed on the 
recommendation of the board from among the members of the 
board. So u chair of the tribunal I was chosen by my fellow 
board members, those being both from the worker community 
and the employer community. So among that group of seven 
I wu chosen as the chair. 
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As far as the commissioners go - and when we use the 
number five, any one hearing panel is only three people. 
There is an alternate in each case; one on the workers' side 
and one on the employers' side in case there is a conflict or 
someone is not available. 

The Minister responsible for the Workers' Compensation Board 
appoints members of the appeals tribunal on the 
recommendations of their peers - and these are the 
comm1ss1oners. The labour community is poled and the 
business community is polled. From the names brought 
forward, the WCB makes a recommendation to the Minister for 
that appointment. 

Some of the earlier appointments included high ranking 
people from the Chamber of Commerce. One of the present 
incumbents is the president of the Construction Association. 
At one time we had the past president of the Federation of 
Labour. So the people that were appointed as commissioners 
to represent both workers' and employers' interests had the 
support and backing of their peer groups, whether they be 
from business or from labour. 

There are terms of reference for the tribunal to operate under. 
Those would be available if you should so wish. 

There is the operation of the general appeals activity, the 
general operation of the tribunal itself. A lot of the things that 
brought this thing together and a lot of the operating rules 
were a result of myself and other people working with other 
jurisdictions, Alberta for one. We used some models in 
western Canada to try to get something that would work in 
the t#'/T. We tried to avoid what may be working in Ontario, 
but certainly would not work up here. was a very legalistic, 
very slow and very plodding procedural thing. We came up 
with what we thought would be the best thing at the present 
time for the t#'/T, and that is the way it was put together. As 
I say, it all started off in April of 1990. 

We have a tracking system that generates what we call a 
pyramid or the actual number of - say if 3000 WBC filea are 
opened in a year. how many of them would ultimately result 
in a first level of appeal at the claims review, and ultimately 
how many of those would result in appeals to the tribunal. It 
is going to take a couple of years for that to generate truthful 
statistics because some appeals might be five years after the 
fact. 

We operate within the act and within the policies of the board. 
Yet, we have to work within the Charter. There are certain 
things. although we have not encountered it yet. where the 
policy may say one thing, but our consc,encea and the 
Charter of Rights and Freedoms may say another We have 
not encountered that yet. We have not yet encountered wt"lere 
the board says, 'Rehear that case .' They cannot say "Change 
your decision.' But they could say. 'Rehear that caM • We 
have had one case appealed but we have gone through that 
hurdle ; where one case has gone beyond the tnbunal to a 
high court. 

So we are just really about a year and a half Into the 
inception and as the new appeals generate out et claim, 
review, now thay are ,lowly coming up to the appeal• level. 
It is sometime rather cumbersome to get going beeauH the 
part-time nature of both the chair and the commi111oners 
dictates that meetings have to be lined up, review of files have 
to be lined up, writing of decisions, and it is very hard to get 
everyone at a certain time in a certain week to hear these 
things. But we manage to survive. 

I think your original correspondence. Mr. Chairman. mentioned 
about 10 to 15 minutes of dissertation from me and I think if 
the proper procedure is maybe to thank you for your 

attentiveness and maybe respond to any questions that you 
might ~ave. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Committee Members, 
any questions? James. 

Employer-Employee Relatlonshlp On Tribunal 

MR. ARVALUK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to 
thank the witness for his presentation. It would have been 
even nicer if we could have had a copy of your presentation 
for our own review. However, my question, Mr. Chairman, I 

will ask it now for me to determine how the question 
respecting the WCB may be asked in a couple of days, 
probably on Wednesday . with the Minister responsible for 
WCB. 

I saw the appeals tribunal in the way that it should be similar 
to that of the workers' advisor, except that the appeals tribunal 
is a body rather than an individual. Maybe I misunderstand. 
My question is respecting the act, appeals tribunal, section 
7.1. I want to see a logical reasoning behind the appeals 
tribunal that is appointed by the Minister. One is appointed 
on the recommendation of the WCB, two are from the 
employers and two from the employees. If I was WCB, I 
would have to make sure that two of those appointed on 
behalf of the Minister, and the two being appointed by the 
employers, have to be very articulate psychologically and 
Intellectually, so that they will completely overrule the appeal 
case that may be fought by the employee representatives and 
that appeal tribunal. 

I cannot see the logic in the act here, how the appeal tribunal 
is set here, so that you are still tied up. You have no true 
appeal by the persons who have been rejected by WCB. If 
the WCB rejects the application, then you are the body to 
appeal that. But you still have two appointed by the 
employers; one appointed by the WCB; you have only 
recommended by the employees, who have this interest of a 
claim. Where is the logic, without putt!ng the politics aside? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. EVOY: I wlll attempt to answer that question. I am not 
sure if I can answer it correctly, but in theory the chair is 
neutral in this, and the chair comes from the members of the 
board of directors, so that the chair in most cases is not 
making the decisions. It Is the two commissioners that are 
really making the decisions; and in all cases since our 
inception we have not had a dissenting opinion. Therefore 
business and workers have agreed with the decision. So that 
works : and it works in other jurisdictions. 

We do not sit there and uphold WCB administration decisions, 
much to the chagrin and disliking of some internal aspects of 
the WCB. We are just as soon to grant the appeal as we are 
to deny it I certainly would not want to convey the 
impression that we are draconian in the sense that we are 
turning appeals down. Nor would I want to give the 
impression that we are giving away the store. But I can tell 
you we grant just as many appeals as we deny, and we could 
provide you with thoee figures. The reason we have the 
employer-worker representation on the tribunal is because, 
quite frankly, those are the two people that have the most 
invested in the system, is number one, the workers, and 
number two, the employers that really fund the system. It 

does work. 

I guess I, for one, if we had a bigger jurisdiction and better 
numbers, I might go a little further. I would be a strong 
supporter, personally, of seeing the tribunal completely off to 
the side. Completely separate, as, say, in Ontario, where the 
compensation appeals tribunal is just far at arm's length of the 
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WCB system. We do not have the number of cases here, nor 
do we have the population, nor do we have the number of 
appeals to completely sever that relationship, to make it a 
completely independent body. 

I hope that helps answer your question. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe) : Thank you. James. 

MR. ARVALUK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It does not, 
really. I am not convinced that we can be so naive as to 
think that the chairman of that appeals tribunal is completely 
free of all thoughts and influences that the chairman has. 
However, Mr. Chairman, I will leave that for now until probably 
on Wednesday when the Minister Is sitting as a witness. 
Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay. John. 

MR. TODD: Thanks, Mr. Chairman. Let me say I am a free 
boy. I do miss these monthly jousts that we used to have 
when we used to be on the WCB, and I am somewhat taken 
aback with this new, conciliatory approach. Perhaps we 
should have appointed you as chairman a long time ago. 

Members Of The Appeals Review Committee 

I was just concerned about who the members are. Who are 
the names attached to the appeals review committee? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. EVOY: The tribunal presently consists of myself - and 
no matter what some members think, is the unbiased, neutral 
chair, who is quite comfortable in that position. 

MR. TODD: Could you repeat that. for the record please? 
That is very good. 

MR. EVOY: Well, it was either me or the Chamber of 
Commerce. 

MR. TODD: Well, you have certainly been more colourful. Mr. 
Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: Thank you. I have tried to tone it down. but it 
is hard. God knows it is hard, some days. 

-Laughter 

From the bu1ine11 community we have Mr. Rob Roman. who. 
I believe - and I do not want to put too many tit!.- on him 
because he runs • rHponsible bualnea - I bel~e he ls 
president of the Conwuction Aaeoelatlon. He • quite 
competent, quite • capable pe~. The ocn.r bus.nan 
representative is a Mr. Dave McCann, who has ~ held a 
senior position in the chamber of com~ce here. and he runs 
his own business; and I am sure in your travels Of in your 
letters to the editor. you have all become famihanzed with Mr 
McCann. He, quite capably. in my estimation, represents 
employers' interests very, very well. 

On the workers' side we have a Mr. Roland GoSHltn. who is 
a Government of the Northwest TerritortH employH, who had 
some previous union experience with the Union of Northern 
Wo,llers. They actually brought his name forv,ard. And the 
other person on the workers ' side i1 a carpenter from the 
Royal Oak Mines, a man that worked himself up later in his 
work career, and took an apprenticeship and became a 
carpenter, and earn, hi• living by the sweat of hit brow. A 
very articulate, very intelligent young man. Hi1 name is Dan 
Short. Those are the two workera ' reps on the tribunal. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: Well, Jim, I am wondering what your feelings are 
- you know I have had some frustrations with the WCB and 
I am particularly frustrated with the lack of regional 
representation and no aboriginal people. I do not want to be 
pious about it, but we did have that at one time. Now I see 
in this committee there is also no aboriginal representation. 
I also see in this committee a strong, if you will excuse the 
selfish question, Western influence, again. I wonder how you 
feel about this. How do you feel about the fact that not only 
is WCB dominated by people from the West - and I use that 
word deliberately, no matter how well-intentioned they are. 
We also note that the appeals committee is dominated by the 
West. I am wondering as chairman, because you in some 
ways speak for the group, and as a long-time member of the 
WCB, how you feel about that situation. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: Well, I do not know how far I can go. I am 
going to reappear here on Wednesday, and I am going to be 
going into my phone booth and changing into my other - I 
would feel much more comfortable addressing SOITle of those 
things - as far as the tribunal goes, for practicality reasons, 
and I know this is not going to wash with you, John, or other 
Members from the Eastern Arctic or even people from the 
communities, we get together maybe once every three weeks, 
once every four weeks, and we try to hold a hearing and we 
try to render a decision. It is very hard to get us together. 
The part-timeness is really hurting us. 

If you want a statement from me as to where I stand on 
representation, as an individual on the board of directors, as 
far as regional representation and Dene, Inuit, lnuvialuit - I do 
not think I have to go into a long dissertation about that. The 
board should be representative of the Northwest Territories. 
Having said that, they should also be representative - and I 
atrongly believe in this - in the stakeholder communities, too. 

I do not make appointments to the board. I am but a member 
of the board of directors. I work with people from the 
communities on the board; I worked with a .completely 
Yellowknife-based board. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: I did not really want to get into this, but tonight 
obviously is not a time to get into it, but at some point in the 
agenda we have got to get into this. No matter how well­
intentioned you are, whether you are from the East of from the 
West. whether you are left in your politics or are right in your 
politics, this country needs a balance. There is nobody more 
extreme than I am. That is why we get along so well, Mr. 
Evoy. Anyway, the point was that you need a balance, a 
balance of opinion, a balance of attitude. And what I find 
somewhat frustrating in this last little while is that I do not see 
any balance. I see a balance between industry and labour, 
which is a historic thing, and it is well represented on both 
1ide1 of the equation, you are correct; both the union 
representatives and the business community are well 
represented. But I do not see a balance geographically, 
representing interests. And I think that is essential, but what 
I would like to is probably pursue that discussion later on this 
week, because it has to be discussed, particularly in light of 
significant political changes that are going to take place in this 
country in the next 10 years. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy, any comments? 

MR. EVOY: I agree. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 
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MR. TODD: I will say that occasionally I was complimentary 
to Mr. Evoy and he was a strong advocate of this appeals 
review committee, so he should be congratulated for its efforts. 

Do you know, Jim, the costs associated with this appeal 
committee; what is it costing on a annual basis? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: Last year roughly, to do this final level of appeals 
cost $47,000. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Mr. Dent. 

Appeals Process Cumbersome 

MR. DENT: Mr. Evoy, you mentioned that you thought the 
appeals process was cumbersome. I know that I have had 
workers come to me and that they felt very much that way. 
Has the appeals tribunal taken a look at the process to see if 
there is any way to make it less cumbersome for the worker, 
and come back to the board with recommendations for 
changing the process? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: Actually, I sometime have a habit of contradicting 
myself. It was cumbersome and it still is cumbersome 
because the numbers are not there really, to feed the system 
that has been set up. The tribunal itself, the way it is set up, 
works. If there are complaints - in another career that I have 
in another life, I represent over 9000 working families in the 
MNT, and I do not have a great preponderance of issues in 
front of them that say to the appeals trlbu:'lal per se. There 
are always complaints about the appeals system in WCB in 
any jurisdiction. I personally have some. But at the tribunal 
level which I chair, and I do not want to sound egotistical, I 
am not aware of any complaints at present at the tribunal 
level. There has been a backlog at the review level. There 
was an acceleration of hearings last month that is hopefully 
going to catch up to that. 

I think right now, to deliver natural justice. the tribunal we 
have in place is about the best we can come up with. A$ far 
as hearing the claims on time, I think that is something that 
could be directed more to the board u a whole. u to what 
they can do to facilitate the appeal• to make sure they are 
heard quickly. But I can assure you at the tribunal level we 
do them as fast as we can. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Charles. 

Time Lapse Between FIiing An ~al And WMn It la 
Heard 

MR. DENT: What is the time lapse nght now betwffn . the 
filing of an appeal and the time that rt 11 heard You 
mentioned that you meet only about once a month So are 
people looking at four weeks or thrH weeks or what son of 
time lapse is there? 

MR. EVOY: It is clearly defined in the terms of reference. and 
it is 60 days from the time the appeal ia filed. I for one, am 
a person that pushed for a quick hearing of the appeal The 
road to hell, as we all know, is paved with good intentions. 
We have found out that in some cases it takes from 60 to 120 
dayi just to get an expert medical opinion. We have one 
case in front of us that goes back to 1990, for an example. 
That is a case of lawyers not being able to come up on dates. 
But in the terms of reference it is suppose to be heard within 
60 days; from the time the appeal is received until the time 
the decision is written . That is the way it II set up. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Charles. 

MR. DENT: What happens to the worker whose case has 
been held up for that long? Are they in limbo or are they 
being dealt with in a reasonable manner? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. EVOY: I think this gentleman is getting his temporary, 
partial disability and it is his lawyers that do not seem to be 
coming forward and wanting to have it heard. I certainly 
would not want to give the impression, Mr. Dent, that I chair 
a tribunal that is sitting there watching workers out there while 
they are slithering and suffering and waiting for justice to be 
dispensed, because I certainly would not be involved in a 
process or system that would do that. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Charles. 

MR. DENT: Mr. Evoy, could you tell me about how many 
appeals you hear in a month? 

MR. EVOY: Right off the top of my head right now, and I do 
have the numbers here, it was only about one a month last 
year. There are two reasons for that. We would have to get 
more information out telling workers about their right to appeal 
to the tribunal, and secondly the backlog came at the review 
level, which .is the first level of appeal. That backlog now is 
just spilling over. It is just coming now. So I would entertain 
that probably three times that many appeals would be heard 
in 1992, in the vicinity to 36 to 40 or 45 appeals. 

Last year there was only about a dozen appeals heard and 
decisions rendered and yet we had the thing in place to 
probably handle 50. Most of it was due to the fact that the 
review committees were not hearing them as fast as they 
should have. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Charles. 

MR. DENT: I know you have mentioned, Mr. Evoy, that you 
have not encountered a situation yet where your conscience 
dictated that you should be doing something outside of board 
policy. A question for Mr. Bayly is, it would appear to me that 
section 7.7(2) would appear to cast the board policy in stone. 
So that in those situations where the appeals tribunal may feel 
that a person would be better served by a flexible policy, they 
do not really appear to have that right. As a matter of fact, 
the board appears not to be able to recommend the appeals 
tribunal, rehear something just on the basis of a policy 
perhaps needing to be somewhat flexible. 

Let us take a specific case. If you were to hear an appeal for 
someone who is looking for a commutation that had a 10.5 
per cent disability. They may have an excellent business 
plan. an excellent opportunity, and be close to the line. But 
in fact your tribunal cannot take a look at being flexible, as I 
understand it. Is that a correct understanding? 

MR. EVOY: If I might, before John proceeds, there have been 
in the cases of commutations, where the individual merits of 
the case is judged on those merits. That could happen. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Bayly. 

MR. BAYLY: Mr. Chairman, I think Mr. Evoy had said earlier, 
and I think it is importan1 to underline that the board can 
direct the appeals tribunal to rehear the appeal. They cannot 
overrule the appeals tribunal. So if the appeals tribunal is to 
interpret the policy in a certain way in which the board does 
not like, even on rehearing, the appeals tribunal might stand 
by its decision and perhaps would feel bound to do so. That 
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is not to say it could disregard the act or the regulations. 

The one matter that has gone to the Supreme Court of the 
NWT is the decision rendered a week ago, is one in which the 
appeals tribunal had made a decision that the act did not 
allow it to give a lump sum award for a purpose which was 
not deemed to be compensation. It was not something that 
they wanted to do, but at the same time they said that is what 
the act says and the court said, you are absolutely right, what 
was being requested was not compensation and you had no 
right to give it. So there are difficult decisions, obviously, 
because the appeals tribunal has to act within the act and 
regulations. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: The appeals committee I understand has been 
in place since 1990. Do you think it is just because the 
worker does not know about the appeals - I am kind of 
impressed you only have 12 appeals. I thought I was going 
to beat on WCB but if we are sitting in a situation with 12 
appeals, do you think that is because you are doing a good 
job or because the workers do not know what the information 
is? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. EVOY: Thank you. I think you can attribute to some of 
that backlog at the review level. If I might, It '"ms to be a 
user friendly room here and we talked about regional interests, 
the East and the political realities of the North. Some of It is 
attributed to backlog and some of it Is attributed, quite frankly, 
to a lack of knowledge of the system. If we do it in small 
steps at a time, what we have to do Is we have to get more 
information out into the communities and perfect a system or 
a means of getting it out there. 

I did a quick analysis in my mind today of where the appeals 
are coming from and they are coming from southern Canada. 
There is a few exceptions to this case. A few of our injured 
workers feel they have been denied remain in the ~ - most 
of them go south. Most of them are either from the South or 
they end up in the South after they get Into this appeal 
process. Most of the cases that we hear and have in front of 
us are from southern Canada. 

Obviously there Is something wrong If that la where they are 
coming from. Granted we do get some e ... , from 
Yellowknife. from the mines and from government offleM and 
institutions. But w~ do not get appeals from Iqaluit. We do 
not get appeals from lnwik. We do not get appeals from 
Rankin Inlet. When you look at the overall conc:ept of this 
board, it is Yellowknife based and it Is rHlly the nuei.us of it 
and those are really the forces that are dealing In the appeals 
venue right now. The big compan1M, the big WOfli placM 

I have often commented in the conflnee of the boardroom. 
Where are the appeals from the Eastern Arctic? ~re are 
the appeals from the High Arctic? The intonnatlon has to get 
out there. It has to get out there that WOfli~ do have the 
right to appeal and that is something elN that has to be 
promoted. 

I do not mean to create a whole little army of people that are 
just satisfied with decisions, but just to teach workers that they 
do have the right to appeal. That they do have the nght to 
question the decisions of the bureaucracy . And I think that ia 
the start of getting this message out to the eommunrttea 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): _ John. 

MR. TODD: That was the question I wu lead,ng up to. I am 
not naive enough to assume we are going to have a whole 

bunch of activity in the WCB outside of the major centres. 
But when there is no activity out there. And you do have 
organized and industrial activity in Nanisivik and Cornwallis. 
It is frustrating for me, whether I am a politician or not, that I 
see this thing just too clearly focused - there seems to be no 
focus outside the major centres. We will debate that issue 
later on this week. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. ANTOINE: I would like to thank the presenters. Earlier 
today I talked to the Minister responsible for WCB, Dennis 
Patterson. My concern is that as an MLA I am here to 
represent my people and try to provide them with programs 
and seNices. I see my involvement here on this committee as 
trying to look into what we can do for everybody in the North. 
I see myself sitting here and listening to the whole area of 
workers' compensation. Is the overall focus of the Workers' 
Compensation Board on providing seNices to the workers, 
providing them with good seNice when they get hurt? Or is 
it more involved in protecting the investment of the Workers' 
Compensation Board? Where is the focus? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: If I could speak as a director that sits on the 
board. I would say my focus on the board is two-fold and I 
hate to put the monetary aspect first, but by protecting the 
accident fund, it is the only way to ensure that the workers are 
looked after. It is the Workers' Compensation Board. It is not 
the employers protection association. It is there for workers. 
Our workers gave up their right to sue and this Is what this 
system is all about If we want to go back and give the 
workers the right to sue, I am sure they will take it It is there 
for workers. 

The investment aspect of it or the fact that it is fully funded is 
very, very important. It is important to everyone in the North. 
It Is one of the few boards in Canada that is fully funded. 

So along with the multitude of criticisms that the board very 
often does deseNe, I think somewhere in the past 10 or 15 
yeara they must have done something right to attain that 
financial stability. I think sometimes in attaining that stability 
I might have to agree with Mr. Antoine that maybe the workers 
were no longer as important as the grinding bureaucracy as 
the accident fund, as some of the investment things, and the 
polities of it The WCB should not be a political thing, it 
should be a quasi-government thing. 

But I think certainly in my mind and the people I associate 
with and the people I work with, it is the workers ' 
compensation board. It is one of the few things that workers 
have. It ia thelr's. No matter what anyone else things, it is 
their's. It belongs to no one but the workers. I should not 
digress like that but ... 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate the 
an-er there, Jim. In trying to provide seNice to workers, one 
problem that you have identified is that the people who are on 
the committee or the appeals tribunal, there seems to be a 
backlog. because the members that are appointed to this 
body are not meeting enough. My suggestion is that if they 
are not meeting enough, then they are not providing 
necessary seNices to the workers and we should re-look at 
the members of this board and try to get people on there that 
will meet as often as possible to provide the necessary 
seNices that workers require. That is a suggestion I would 
like to make. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy. 
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MR. EVOY: I agree with Jim and I would be proud to say 
that some of the lobbying on my part and other people's part, 
that effective May 1 st that first level of appeal where the 
backlog was, is now being taken out of the boards hands and 
it is going to be done on a much more expeditious manner 
by two outside people. I am sure that is going to increase the 
speed in which appeals are heard at the first level. 

If I might just add, put my proverbial foot in my proverbial 
mouth, that maybe when we talk about development and 
developing other people to sit on such institutions, maybe the 
time is right to start bringing people into some of these 
systems slowly and developing something that will work for 
all the people in the North. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. ANTOINE: The other concern - I am looking for the 
snags in the system and it seems to me the appeals 
committee, the adjudicators, do they have the necessary 
authority to make the decisions so that it does not go into the 
appeals process. Is there a mechanism in there for that? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. EVOY: Certainty the adjudicators under the act have the 
authority to rule on a claim or a file. Having said that. all the 
training they can get and all the technical help they can get 
would' certainly help them do the job better. A good 
adjudication would certainly cut down on the number of 
appeals and that is another way to cut down on the number 
of appeals, to have good timely adjudication on the files. But 
all the adjudicators decisions can be appealed to two different 
levels above. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. ANTOINE: I want to ask about Mr. Hinchey and Mr. 
Johnson. I understand they were appointed to the review 
committee. Have they been appointed? I understand that 
happened just before their terms were expired. Can you 
explain that to us; what happened there? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Any comments on that? I am not 
sure who we should ask here. 

MR. EVOY: I can confirm Mr. Antoine's statement that those 
are the two gentlemen, and join the names I gave you with 
some of the appeals tribunal, but I would defer to the learned 
Minister whoever wo.u_ld handle that question. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Any other comments? Questions" 
Any questions or issues by the pr ... nters? Lut comments. 
Mr. Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: I would wish you well In the rest of your 
endeavours and, like I say, I will probably be having some 
dialogue with you at a later date. I would just like to say that 
in the whole area of the appeals tribunal, on the surface It can 
sometimes appear to be quite simple. We have our laws and 
our rules and our policies. Some people might wonder how 
a person like myself would handle chainng something like 
that The responsibility is a lot more than one might think. 
The first decision I ever signed u the appeals tnbunal 
chairman was denying a full pension to a woman who lost 
her husband due to silicosis. If anyone wants to replace me, 
please, it is not always a pleasant task, but u they say, 
someone has got to do it. I notice the streu on the 
commissioners themselves too. It is sometimes very, very 
trying. I am not looking for sympathy or dirt pey or anything 
like that, but sometimes it is very demanding. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. John? 

MR. TODD: In your many faceted careers and positions, are 
you going to be addressing us later on this week, as you are 
a representative of the NWT Federation of l.abour or 
something like that? I will tell you why, Jim. I would like to 
get some debate going, Mr. Chairman, on the investment 
component of the thing, and try to get at least some 
discussion going. You know where I am coming from, and I 
am wondering if you are going to be here representing labour 
on Wednesday. Is it you who are going to do that? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: Yes, I struggled with that and I have decided to 
come forward again, and I beg your indulgence to understand 
that although we wear different hats in the North, that I might 
be wearing too many of them, but the fact still remains that in 
that position - I was elected to that position by people from 
every community in the Northwest Territories, so I feel that 
when I speak here on Wednesday as a representative of 
workers - that I hope I had votes from everywhere from 
Cambridge Bay to Gjoa Haven to Hay River - so we speak on 
a broad mandate from all northern workers. Yes, we will be 
back on Wednesday and we wish to engage you in some 
lively interchanges of thought and ideas. 

MR. TODD: We will certainly have to give the press 
something to talk about, Jim. Can we discuss that on 
Wednesday? Is that okay? 

MR. EVOY: Yes, certainly. 

MR. TODD: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Arvaluk. 

MR. ARVALUK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Would Mr. Evoy 
supply this committee a list of the appeal tribunal members 
before Wednesday, and also a copy of his opening 
presentation? I would really like to have a copy of that one. 
Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): If we can put the notes together, we 
would get them typed up and presented. Mr. Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: We will certainly attempt to put that in some kind 
of cohesive order for you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Do you have a comment. Jeannie? 

Appointments To Review Board 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Yes. I wanted to make one 
comment. I recognize that Mr. Evoy is here as the tribunal 
representative, as the chairperson of the tribunal; however, at 
the same time realizing that he has retained his position by 
being a board member of the Workers' Compensation Board. 
It is my understanding that Mr. Hinchey and Mr. Johnston 's 
appointment to the review board was made on the 
recommendation of the Workers' Compensation Board. Is that 
not correct? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy? 

MR. EVOY: Yes, that is correct. Under the section of the act, 
the board can appoint the review committee. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: So therefore these appointments to 
the review committee were made on the recommendation of 
the Workers' Compensation Act, and not the Minister? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: It would be my understanding the 
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recommendation was made by the board, but I think in all 
instances of this manner, I am certain that the Minister was 
flagged and made aware of the intentions of the board. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mrs. Marie-Jewell. 

MRS. MARIE-JEWELL: According to the act, the 
responsibility lies with the Workers' Compensation Board ·tor 
recommendation of the appointment to the board, and this is 
where the responsibility lies. I would presume that the 
process allowed the board to make recommendation to the 
Minister's office as to who they wanted to be on this review 
committee, so am I correct in stating, Mr. Chairman, through 
you to Mr. Evoy, that the board did make recommendation for 
Mr. Johnston and Mr. Hinchey to be the review committee 
members to the Minister's office. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): You may comment if you wish. 

MR. EVOY: Yes, they did, to my understanding. But I am 
sure you could check with the board. I am sure you are 
going to be talking to them again. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mrs. Marie-Jewell. 

MRS. MARIE-JEWELL: I guess the one concern that I want 
to ask is, I recognize that the Minister affirms these once the 
board makes this recommendation, because the Minister 
politically would not deny it, but I guess the question I have 
and the concern I have that probably is in the public is, what 
or where is the public's concern addressed where there may 
be a perception of conflict of interest on decisions that maybe 
Mr. Hinchey or Mr. Johnston have made on the part of the 
board. and they are the first level of appeal? So what assures 
the public that there is no conflict of interest in addressing 
their concerns? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy? 

MR. EVOY: I think .you would have to addr ... that to the 
chairman of the board. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Lewis. 

MR. LEWIS: Just something that caught my ear earlier on 
about the province of Quebec. I think you mentioned that 
there was something like 64,000 appeals that would be heard. 
I was not quite clear. Are those appeals that would be heard 
by various ·tribunals throughout the province? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: There are approximately. I think, eo to 70 
tribunals at any given time operating The first tev.l of 
appeal, they call it the practise level; the MCond level is 
where they go for the gusto. So IOfM ol the province. are 
just inundated with thousands and thousands and thouHnds 
of appeals. 

MR. LEWIS: I know Mr. Todd, Mr. Chairman. wu very 
complimentary that this tribunal of ourt is VffY, VffY co.t 
effective, because it only costs $48.000. but It only heard 12 
appeals. That is $4000 per crack, and in Quebec it we - re 
to use the same figures. it would be $256 million just to listen 
to those appeals. It is just a point I am wondering whether, 
in iact, the way we are set up now, we could be handling an 
awful lot more appeals and it would be more cost effective it 
it were doing more than what it is doing. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe) : I think that point was made earlier. 
We are set up to do 50 easily, or more. Okay, any other 
comments or issues? I think we have got a f- more titbits 
of information that we will be using, I think, in our further 

discussions. On behalf of the committee I would like to thank 
you for appearing before us, and we are looking forward to 
seeing you later on in the week. Thank you very much. 

MR. EVOY: Thank you very much, and thank you for your 
attention and your interest in the tribunal. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): For Members of the committee, we 
will resume at 9:00 a.m. tomorrow on the dot. 

-ADJOURNMENT 
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STANDING COMMITTEE ON AGENCIES, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

YELLOWKNIFE, NORTHWEST TERRITORIES 

MAY 12, 1992 

Members Present 

Mr. Antoine, Mr. Arvaluk, Mr. Dent, Mr. Koe, Mr. Lewis, Mrs. Marie-Jewell, Mr. Todd 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): I would like to call the meeting to 
order. Before we start this morning, just for the record I would 
like to mention that we have received two written submissions: 
one submission from the Norman Wells and District Chamber 
of Commerce, and we will table that for our records; and we 
have another submission from Mr. E. Melcosky from 
Peachland, BC, and I will table that for the record. This 
morning we have representatives from the Northwest 
Territories Chamber of Mines, and I see Mr. Willy is in the 
middle. Maybe I will ask him to take the mike and introduce 
his team, and once you do that you can proceed with your 
presentation. 

Presentation By Mr. Doug WIiiy, Echo Bay Mines 

MR. WILLY: Good morning, Fred. Mr. Chairman and 
members of the ABC committee, as Fred suggested, my name 
is Doug Willy. I am with Echo Bay Mines Limited. Along with 
me today are Brian Hagen from Royal Oak Mines. and Tom 
Hoefer, the general manager of the t-llNT Chamber of Mines. 
The three of us are responsible for dealing with workers' 
compensation issues. Specifically, Brian and I, on behalf of 
our compl!nies, and Tom in a co-ordinating effort with the 
Chamber of Mines. 

Role Of WCB 

Before we go any further, it is important to provide you with 
an overview of how we see workers ' compensation. As 
Minister Patterson indicated to you yesterday, the WCB was 
created to provide the injured worker with financial 
compensation, free medical aid. and medical and vocational 
rehabilitation in return for giving up the right to take legal 
action against the employer. 

To provide the worker with this service efficiently, the WCB 
must strike a balance between the level of compensation 
provided to injured workers and the ability of industry. or 
society, to provide the compensation. 

To again quote the Minister, the WCB system is based on 
compulsory insurance in a state accident fund. II is this 
accident fund which fully funds . the WCB and allowa it to 
operate without burdening the taxpeyer. This Is In stark 
contrast to government departments and most government 
corporations. 

We believe it bears repeating that our Workers ' Compensation 
Board is one of the few fully-funded boards in Canada, and 
we wish to see it remain so. 

If the Workers' Compensation Board's accident fund is eroded, 
the shortfall must be made up by increases ,n employer 
premiums. It will not be made up by government us,stance. 
Therefore, as major members of the stakeholders that pay all 
the costs of workers' compensation, we are very motrvated to 
ensure our investments are being managed wisely . 

Concerns 

We are very concerned with recent development that threatens 
to damage the funding which supports the WCB, and 
ultimately its programs for protecting the workers. Taken 

individually, these threats may seem minor, but when taken as 
a whole, they could seriously damage the Workers' 
Compensation Board. 

Poor Communication 

The first of our concerns is a lack of constructive 
communication on behalf of the Workers' Compensation 
Board. In its dealings with industry, the board paid little 
attention to our concerns, and what we received was basically 
lip service. 

We have been called upon only when deep pockets were 
required to build up the accident fund, and we receive only 
double talk in return. If this attitude continues, we predict that 
rising WCB costs will ultimately reduce the industry's ability to 
compete, and mines will shut down. This is not the intent of 
WCB, as we are sure you will all agree. 

Thankfully, since Mr. Patterson took over as Minister, we have 
seen a refreshing change of attitude at the WCB. We hope 
this finally indicates a start of valuable dialogue between 
employers, stakeholders and the board. Dialogue that will 
allow us to find innovative methods to provide workers with 
benefits without damaging the ability of employers to pay for 
them. 

Investment Polley 

The next of our concerns is the investment policy of the 
board. The accident fund relies on sound investments if the 
board is to maintain its fully funded status. Poor investment 
policy could collapse the accident fund. Workers, industry 
and the public would consequently suffer. 

We agree with the present policy of the Workers' 
Compensation Board to contract investment management firms 
to invest employers' premiums to maximize returns. These 
investment professionals have the experience and expertise 
required to wisely invest employers' premiums. They must be 
allowed freedom to do this as they see fit. 

Safety Training And Inspections 

A third concern we have is the recent foray by the Workers' 
Compensation Board into safety training. While we 
understand the present act allows the board to make this 
move, we are against any further growth in this area. We are 
strongly against any amalgamation of inspection services with 
WCB. 

The WCB was created as an insurance vehicle, and it should 
remain so. We see great danger in the insurer becoming the 
policing agent We see administration costs increasing to pay 
for this growth, at the expense of the accident fund, and the 
stakeholders. We are against rising costs. 

We see no suitable need to transfer boiler inspectors, fire 
inspectors, electrical inspectors, elevator inspectors and mine 
inspectors to the Workers' Compensation Board. We see this 
as a way for government to pass its financial obligations for 
these safety services on to the accident fund, which we are 
against. 
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Hunters And Trappers Issue 

A fourth concern has surfaced from .some MLA.s and 
communities' apparent confusion over hunters and trappers 
coverage by the Workers ' Compensation Board. 

In 1987, the territorial government arranged, essentially, to 
contract the WCB to administer compensation for hunters and 
trappers. The territorial government covers all claim costs for 
this group. The claim costs do not come from the accident 
fund. However, administration costs do come from the 
accident fund. We bel ieve this to be wrong, and these costs 
should rightfully also be paid for by the territorial government. 

As a final point in this issue, hunters and trappers 
compensation is not related to the YMIA, and therefore has no 
place in setting its level. 

The Board 

Our fifth concern is with the board itself. As the two major 
stakeholders of the Workers' Compensation Board are industry 
and labour, past Ministers have recognized the necessity of 
having them represented equally on the board. Until recently, 
the board operated without a full complement of members, 
despite our attempts to have it brought back to full strength. 
This was Incomprehensible. We are encouraged that the new 
Minister has finally corrected this, and we are heartened that 
stakeholders will be consulted on future appointments. 

We were disappointed, however, when stakeholders were not 
consulted on the two recent board appointments. We now 
wish to determine which stakeholder groups the new 
appointees represent 

This brings us to an interesting observation. tt is strange that 
majority of the business workers, mining workers, construction 
workers, and transportation workers, in essence the majority 
of workers that create the wealth in the Northwest Territories, 
are not part of organized labour, and therefore are not 
represented on the Workers ' Compensation Board. 

A final concern on the issue of the board, is the position of 
chairman. The chairman is currently appointed by the Minister 
with no input from stakeholders. We are surprised that a 
position that carries such great responsibility and recetvea 
such a significant remuneration, i1 not advertiaed nationally 
from the ranks of professional managers. 

General Concerns 

Our sixth and final concern i1 a general one that et.al• with 
various areas of workers' comperlaation that must be 
improved. 

First of theH is the isaue of rehabilitation. It is important to 
employers that workers' injuries are rehabilitated quickly in 

order that they can return to useful worll u soon u po111ble 
Workers represent an expensive investment by the empioyer. 
an investment that is lost without rehabilitation. Without 
rehabilitation, injured workers also repreHnt a dram on the 
accident fund. 

The second of these general concerns i1 fraudulent claims. 
These are nothing but a total train on the accident fund. and 
ii burden to the 1ystem. Fraudulent claims are eapecially 
elusive when the workers live in the south, far away from the 
observation of the WCB staff. 

Conclusions 

We would like to draw some conclusions from our experience 
with the WCB, and from our study of the i11ue1 we have 

raised today. 

Our first conclusion is that the WCB is susceptible to political 
interference. In areas such as investment decision, political 
interference would destroy the fully funded position of the 
Workers' Compensation Board. Therefore, we believe it is 
imperative that the Workers' Compensation Board remain at 
arm's length from political interference. 

Our second conclusion is that periodic review of the WCB is 
mandatory. The 1989 review also recommended this. The 
response you are receiving at these public hearings should 
clearly point out the need for periodic review of the workers' 
compensation legislation and policies. 

Recommendations 

Finally, we would like to close our presentation with several 
recommendations: 

We recommend that policy be established requmng useful 
dialogue.not lip service, to be paid to the stakeholders. We 
further recommend that this dialogue be aimed at seeking 
innovative ways to balance the needs of stakeholders, 
especially in these recessionary times. For example, tying 
pension increases to investments, not to the YMIA; 

We recommend that the Workers' Compensation Board 
continue to contract investment managers to professionally 
manage the board's investments; 

We recommend that the Workers' Compensation Board remain 
an insuring body, and that occupational health and safety, and 
safety inspection services not be amalgamated with WCB: 

We recommend that all coats associated with providing the 
Territorial Government with administration services for hunters 
and trappers be recovered. If this cannot be done effectively, 
consideration should be given to handing this service back to 
the government; 

We recommend that the board be kept at full strength. To 
this end, we further recommend, for continuity, that board 
terms overlap; 

We recommend that the recently appointed two board 
members be given responsibility to stakeholders. We 
recommend Mr. Wray become a business representative. We 
recommend Mr. Kuptana be given responsibility for 
unorganized labour; 

We recommend the position of chairman be advertised 
nationally to ensure a qualified manager is found. We further 
recommend stakeholder input on the selection of this position: 

We recommend renewed effort be given to rehabilitation of 
workers, and to the reduction of fraudulent claims; 

We recommend that the Workers' Compensation Board be 
protected from political interference by remaining at arm's 
length from the government; 

And finally, we recommend a periodic review of the WCB 
'-gislation and policies take place f!Nery four to five years. 
This review should be conducted by an impartial body similar 
to that which completed the 1989 rf!Niew. Thank you very 
much. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Mr Willy. Is it possible 
that we can get a copy of that submission? You made a lot 
of comments and'a lot of recommendations and I think during 
our discussions it would be useful for our Members to have 
that handy. The floor is open to Members. Mr. Todd. 
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MR. TODD: Thank you. It sounds like a manifesto from the 
Reform Party, the presentation. Anyway, I wondered first of 
all, the stakeholders you keep talking about, Mr. Willy. What 
about aboriginal stakeholders? You do not think Mr. Kuptana 
represents aboriginal stakeholders? 

MR. WILLY: John, we really do not know Mr. Kuptana. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Microphone. Please address through 
the Chair. 

MR. WILLY: Mr. Chairman, to answer John's question, I think 
one of the concerns is that we really do not know Mr. 
Kuptana. I think the selections, as we pointed out, were made 
without consultation, and although he has probably had some 
previous experience, I think one of the important issues must 
be that the role of a board of directors is not an easy task. 
It takes a considerable amount of time and I think we have to 
have some very strict rules, which I think the board has, on 
the qualifications of a board of director. 

MR. TODD: Are you suggesting Kuptana is not is not 
qualified? 

MR. WILLY: I do not think I said that at all. 

MR. TODD: Well I know Mr. Kuptana and think he is 
perfectly capable of representing the interests of the Eastern 
Arctic and Nunavut and I find it somewhat offensive - we 
have had a whole bloody presentation this morning that is 
somewhat rigid in its thinking. 

Let me ask you a couple of other things. You told me that 
the mining industry would be In serious financial jeopardy if 
the rates of the WCB went up. The fact of the matter i1 that 
six per cent of your payroll costs are related to WCB 
premiums. Are you telling me that with six per cent payroll 
costs in the operation of mines that that is going to jeopardize 
a gold mine or especially one that is as successful and 
affluent as yours? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Willy. 

MR. WIUY: Mr. Chairman. some of the companies that are 
represented by the Chamber of Mine• pay 18.25 per cent of 
payroll as premiums in workers· compensation. I think just to 
bring it into perspective a little bit, a few other companin that 
are represented by u1 pay one million dollar• a year 
premiums. Probably significantly more than a majority of the 
companies have as a total operating budget So it i1 a 
significant amount 

MR. TODD: There are others besides just the mining 
industry. let me assure you of that The world doea not HI 
and rise on mining. 

I am concerned with your almost paranoia approach to this 
investment thing. The fact of the matter ii that WCB does 
have a sound investment policy from what I know. There 11 
no intention whatsoever of having the board of directors or 
political interference determining how itl money II invested. 
What ha1 been suggested by some of us, myNlf included. 
that we could take a small portion of that fund. which 11 
currently sitting at $125 million and when I left it u chairman 
of tha finance committee of WCB it was sitting at $105 million. 
You could take a small portion of It and invm It back into the 
country. I would have thought an operation like yourselves 
who are constantly looking for some kind of assistance In 
terms of the building of infrastructure, roads. et cetera, would 
have been encouraged with that Are you suggesting that the 
mining industry is taking a position that we should not put five 
or 10 per cent back into the country? · 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Willy. 

MR. WILLY: Mr. Chairman, I think if we are going to collect 
premiums from companies under the guise of workers' 
compensation, to develop other economic development 
whatever in the NWT, then maybe we should change the 
name of workers' compensation. The workers' compensation 
is there very distinctly for one purpose; to ensure that 
employees who are injured during the course of work have 
some coverage. Not for politically driven motives of economic 
development throughout the NWT. 

As far as the mine industry contributing to the NWT, I think we 
should just review who is the biggest private employer in the 
NWT. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: So that gives you the biggest share of the pie. 
Is that what you are saying? I guess I am not suggesting for 
one minute that the Workers' Compensation funds should be 
used as a great big economic activity. Currently we are 
moving $125 million of that fund into southern Canada. We 
have not got enough faith in our own country to invest some 
of it back in. Something is fundamentally wrong. When 
people like yourself who are•pioneers in the mining field and 
working under difficult conditions, it sort of mind boggling 
when we get this attitude. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Willy. 

MR. WILLY: We do not use these funds for the development 
of our own interest, which we could possibly do. We are 
currently going out all the time and trying to raise funds to 
develop new projects. But that is not what this fund is there 
for. This fund is there for one specific reason, and that is to 
ensure that in the distant future we still have moneys available 
for people who are injured when they are working. 

MR. TODD: I am fully aware what the fund is for. I sat on 
the board for eight years. What I am suggesting to you is that 
a small portion of the financial portfolio should go back into 
the North and get the same kind of return whether you are 
putting into Alberta gas and oil or bonds or anything else. 

Where did you get the idea that all these inspectors are going 
to be transferred over to the WCB and the costs associated 
with that are going to come out of the fund? Fire inspectors, 
boiler inspectors, where do you get this? Is this something I 
am not aware of? I know they are looking at safety, but you 
suggested In your presentation here that WCB was looking at 
taking over the responsibility or fire, boiler, elevators, et cetera. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Willy. 

MR. WIUY: Mr. Chairman, we are making a statement that 
we do not think that this is the way we should go. There has 
been discussion in the last number of years along these lines. 
This just is not something that fell out of the sky. It has been 
discussed a number of times by the Workers' Compensation, 
by the previous - within the last two years it has come up a 
number of times. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

Proceu For Appointing WBC Chairman 

MR. TODD: Your comments about the chairman. I am 
wondering how you feel, should the chairman perhaps be 
someone in the mining field, like the mine manager or 
someone like that? What is your problem with the chairman 
and the process of the chairman? Where do you see the 
stakeholder Involved? Should we hold an election? Should 
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we just put out a ballot? How do you see the chairman being 
appointed? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Willy. 

MR. WILLY: Mr. Chairman, I think like a number of the other 
jurisdictions across Canada, we are talking about a company 
that has assets of $150 to $200 million and what we need is 
someone who has the professional management know-how, 
preferably with an industrial background. Mine managers, 
some of them probably would definitely be qualified for the 
job. But construction industry in the NWT is a significant 
industry also. I think that there has to be someone who 
knows something about running a business. 

We do not hire people to run our mines just because they are 
good guys and they deserve a pat on the back along the 
lines because of past service. We hire them because of the 
expertise that they bring along with them to the job. We are 
told that the Workers' Compensation Board and the chairman 
are overworked and have been for the last couple of years 
and that it is almost becoming a full-time job, and we just say 
that with the interest of labour and employers in the North at 
heart, that we have to have someone in that position who can 
manage a company, not a small company, a medium to large 
company. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: Well maybe that is where we differ. It 11 not a 
company, Mr. Willy. It is an organization that i• euppoMd to 
look after injured workers and It should not be run u a 
company. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Lewi, . 

MR. LEWIS: I would like to thank the witneu for a very clear 
presentation. There i• no ambiguity there. It 11 very clear and 
I do not think it is right that if we do not agrff with what 
someone i• saying that we ahould make thia a forum for 
argument We should listen to what the man hu to e., and 
I think he said It very clearly and I think - ahould take what 
he ha• said. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe) : Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. There ia 
no doubt we are here to listen to what th... organization• 
have to say but I guess I am somewhat taken back at the 
arrogant type of self-righteousneu that ie presented to us. 
Particularly in respect to the area of hunters and trippers. 
And also in respect to the safety training and inspection 

It appears the NWT Chamber of MiMS fNls that the 
administration coats should not be burdened by tl'le accident 
fund in that the government should pay for thlS I am 
somewhat thinking that I know many mines aer011 the 
Territories sometim" go into areu of hunters and trappers 
and probably go into areu that may haw diMupC the land fOf 
many trappers. I gu"' the point of the hunters and trappers 
was somewhat of a concern where the government had ... n 
it as a livelihood, just u they uw miners and carvers and 
other type of industrial workers. It appears that the attitude 
that is prevailing is only the highest paid contributors to WCB 
should be- considered for coverage. I have a problem with 
that 

The government could take this Nit-righteous attitude and 
indicating that 65 per cent of WCB's contributions comes from 
the Government of the NWT, even though the Chamber of 
Mines feels - and we recognize the economic viabllity that the 
mines give to the Territories and we recognize the amount of 
contribution they give, but what I do want to state it the fact 

that there are other, in my opinion, equal groups that should 
be treated equally as the Chamber of Mines. I do not feel it 
is fair that the Chamber of Mines should self-righteously state 
that because we are one of the biggest employers or one of 
the highest contributing employers in the NWT that we should 
be given preferential treatment This seems to be what you 
are implying. Is this basically the implication that the mining 
companies should be given preferential treatment? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Willy. 

MR. WIUY: You can draw any conclusions you want, which 
seems to be one of the problems we have been faced with for 
the last number of years. But I do not know where you get 
the figures of 65 per cent of the contributions are made by 
NWT government to Workers' Compensation. Maybe you are 
privy to some information that has not been distributed to the 
companies that contribute. But that is definitely not the figures 
that we ever see. 

The hunters and trappers associations, speaking personally 
from a point of Echo Bay Mines, we did not disrupt anybody's 
trapping. We have worked harder toward ensuring minimum 
disruption of that whole traditional way of earning a living, to 
the point that our two and two rotation totally complements the 
Inuit lifestyle in the areas of influence that we have in 
Cambridge Bay and Coppermine. 

Preferential treatment We never said anything about 
preferential treatment and we came here with the 
understanding of presenting our point of view. Now I guess 
it is a bit consistent with one of the points that we raised, that 
lip Hrvice is maybe what it has all been about But we are 
pointing out to you some of our concerns, some of the 
euggestions that we think the stakeholders, including the 
employees, not just the employers, have to look at, have to 
conalder in the coming years. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to make 
that point as a Member of the committee. It appears that is 
the type of approach that is being brought forth to us and I 
wanted to get clarification from the individual during his 
pr ... ntation. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

Hun1era And Trapper• Compenaatlon 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to 
thank the presenters for their presentation. Myself, I am the 
Member for the Nahendeh area, we do not have any mines in 
our area except for Cadillac Mines that is still sitting there and 
also Tungsten that is closed down. 

My main concern is about the workers and that is what we are 
here for, Injured workers. I have not been involved in the 
WOfkers' Compensation Board either but I have been involved 
In companie• back in Simpson where we pay huge sums of 
money to them every year to provide the service for the 
Injured workers. 

The one area I am concerned about is the hunters and 
trappers. I represent a lot of hunters and trappers. In your 
pr ... ntation you stated that the hunters and trappers 
compensation is not related to the YMIR and therefore has no 
place in setting its limits. Do you have any suggestions on 
that? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Willy. 

MR. WILLY: Mr. Chairman, I think our only point is that there 
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is a difference between the YMIR and any of the funds that 
are paid out to hunters and trappers. There is a distinct 
difference, I think. Now we are addressing more the concerns 
of the Workers' Compensation Board and one of the points I 
think we are trying to make is that the hunters and trappers 
issue is different than the issues of the Workers' Compensation 
Board as far as injured workers go. So it is a point that we 
are looking at the cost end of it when we are looking at 
hunters and trappers. We are looking at the administration 
costs that have significantly increased since the hunters and 
trappers fund was introduced. We have a problem basing the 
YMIR on anything dealing with the hunters and trappers. 

The YMIR is supposedly based on the wages that are paid to 
the employees in the NWT. I think there is a policy directive 
that they would like the YMIR set at a level that would cover 
80 per cent of the employees in this jurisdiction. I do not 
think we are addressing the issue, trying to tie that in with the 
hunters and trappers at all. We are talking more about the 
administration costs, dealing with the board itself and the 
administration. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Any other questions? I would like to 
thank you gentlemen for your presentation. I would like to 
make a couple of comments before you leave and for the 
benefit of other presenters in the next few days. 

Basically our purpose of these hearings is obviously to listen 
to presentations. We have a whole slate of different groups, 
organizations that will be making presentations to us and in 
turn it gives the committee Members for some dialogue and 
exchange, basically to try to get clarification of the points that 
are raised by the presenters. 

This committee in turn then will take all the information that 
has been received, both verbal and written, keeping in mind 
that everything that has been said in this room is recorded, 
documented and it will be available for the public once it is 
all typed up. 

We in turn then will be making a public report. We will be 
tabling a report in the Assembly and more than likely we will 
be including certain recommendations. I do not think it is 
conceivable for us to take every recommendation that we 
receive, because obviously not every one of us agree with 
what has been said. So we will take what we do agree on 
and report those to the Legislative Assembly. The report will 
be addressed to the Minister responsible for the Woricers· 
Compensation Board, with a series of recommendations and 
in our report we also request the Minister to respond within a 
certain time frame. 

So that is the process and hopefully throughout the next two 
days the people keep that in mind and - will try and get the 
work done as best as possible. like I sa•d. we do not always 
agree on everything and the dialogue may get heated. but 
that is part of the game. Thank you very much 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: If it is possible pnor to these 
presentations being made and we can go through them when 
they are going through theirs . It 1s easier to make notes and 
formulate my questions accordingly. It will probably save us 
some time. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): To members of the public making 
presentations. If you have a written submission, we would 
prefer that before you make your presentation. It is easier 
then for committee Members to highlight different points and 
when it comes to questions we can refer back to them. The 
Clerks are available and they will be getting names. II you 
have a copy we will appreciate it 

MR. TODD: It is unfortunate that they left but just for 
clarification purposes, first of all he claimed it was 18 per cent 
of payroll costs. It is not 18 per cent of payroll costs. The 
operation of mineral mines is $5.75 per $100. There is a 
situation with the operation of asbestos, coal or uranium mines 
is $18 per $100. So it is important for clarification purposes. 
They are not paying overall $18 per $100. They are paying 
$5.75, which by the way, just so everybody knows, is cheaper 
than the construction industry paying because they are paying 
around eight dollars. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): We will recess. 

-SHORT RECESS 

The committee will come to order. We will hear now from the 
injured, disabled and discarded workers. I would like to 
introduce Ron Celej who is the president of the group. Ron, 
please introduce your members and proceed with your 
presentation. 

Prnentatlon By Mr. Ron Celej, Injured, Disabled And 
Discarded Workers 

MR. CELEJ: Mr. Chairman, to my left we have Austin Page 
and to my right is Roland Gravel. I will try and do the best I 
can. I am relatively new to this type of thing but I will just go 
right through our presentation. I supplied other information, 
but it is rather lengthy, so I will let you look through that at 
your own leisure. 

On behalf of the Injured, Disabled and Discarded Workers 
group, I must say it is an honour and a pleasure to be 
included In this review. This is indeed a sure sign that the 
government is upholding its commitment to be a responsible 
governing bodies. Injured workers, and I mean all injured 
workers, not just our group, are victims of an historic 
compromise that took place many years ago. 

In the year 1913 Chief Justice William Meredith recommended 
workers receive benefits for work injuries irrespective of who 
was at fault. The principle of this historic compromise is still 
basically sound, but the recent trend to reduce compensation 
cost by eroding entitlement benefits, reducing rehabilitation 
costs and benefit amounts is a threat to the integrity of this 
compromise. 

The only way to effectively reduce compensation costs is to 
reduce accidents and injuries in the work place. Perhaps the 
single most important cost cutting measure that must be taken 
is an effective piece of legislation that requires pre-accident 
employers, who benefit from this social insurance scheme 
more so than the worker, to re-employ the disabled worker at 
his or her pre-accident income, in a meaningful career, if the 
woricer so chooses. 

We as injured workers see here in the North a WCB that is 
totally insensitive to the human resources in the region they 
service. This is demonstrated by: 

A YMIR that barely meets the needs of higher income earners, 
not to mention lower income earners or those in regions with 
an even higher cost of living than here in Yellowknife. 

The income tax deduction implemented by WCB to reflect 90 
per cent of net on the 40,000 YMIR does not reflect the 
northern resident deduction nor any other tax shelter an 
individual may be afforded; and as this money does not to the 
federal Revenue Canada, the territorial government loses tax 
dollars as well . · 

This YMIR, the fourth lowest in Canada, forces injured workers 
to move to the South so they can afford to meet their basic 
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needs. To put this in perspective so that you can see the 
effects on the northern economy, approximately 60 out of 100 
injured workers that have to be retrained leave the Territories. 
At an average of $25,000 per man or woman this translates 
into $1.5 million per 100 injured workers per year in retraining, 
not to mention lost revenue and the scores of quality skills lost 
to the northern economy. 

We the injured workers see a rehab department that does little 
or nothing to utilize northern resources so that the injured 
worker can remain here in the North. Further, the rehab 
department is totally insensitive to social problems caused by 
its lethargic approach to retraining. This rehab department 
has no clear-cut guidelines available to each injured worker 
that clearly defines available benefits. This creates turmoil and 
helps to drive up compensation costs. And more often than 
not, information is only received through the grapevine after 
out of pocket money has been spent 

This rehab dep~rtment clearly has a vested interest in each 
and every injured worker and u a result, future careers are 
compromised with no respect of individualism and the needs 
of the injured worker, much less the northern economy. 

In the area of policy the injured worker is subjected to board 
policy that too often comes before the interest of the injured 
worker and family. The policies set by the board all too often 
spill over into other jurisdictions that cost this government 
money by way of court costs, legal fMs and lost revenue. 

The policy of no pay-out for pensions over 10 per cent is 
another example of a policy that effects not just the injured 
worker but the northern economy u -11. In most cases the 
monthly pension is leu than interest paid If the total pey-out 
was deposited In a local bank on a term deposit. 

It has been said that sometimes an injured worker reacts to 
this money like a lottery windfall. I am sure that a simple 
credit check and a short follow-up course with a local 
investment counsellor could alleviate this problem and cut 
down related costs. which in tum would contribute to lower 
compensation costs and help to boott our economy 

Many a viable business proposition hu bffn tu~ down by 
these policies and in some cases the co.t would have been 
less than the compromised alternative. TheM policies are 
purely at the discretion of the board and are too eu1ly 
manipulated againet the injured woner. virtually allowing a 
departmental manager to pley the role of God. 

The Territories has a set of wee statutes that it not only 
incomprehensible to the average reader. but clearty leeves too 
much jurisdiction In the hands of the board. The tef'm "the 
board may" should be eliminated from these etatvtes and 
another term substituted to clearly define statutOty authority 
Most other wee statutes in other Iunsdiebons reflect these 
changes by the simple term. "the board shalr I triese 
measures were implemented. the number of rev-. and 
appeals would decrease significantly. ther.iore reducing i.gal 
and compensation costs. 

It Is most disturbing and unfair that no advocate it present 
during mMtings betwMn the board and the in1ured wortr.er 
It is an equal injustice that no representation II appotnted on 
behalf of the injured worker at reviews or appeals I - are 
going to ;;ontk1;;e to have little or no reeourw u would 
otherwise be granted under common 1-. then - must have 
this representation. 

If it would please the committM I would now like to read 
some letters from other inIured workers and families who are 
also suffering from a aystem that is in dire nffd of change. 

Letter• From Injured Workers 

MR. GRAVEL: Good day, Mr. Chairman. I will read the 
letters: 

'To the attention of Injured Workers: Being on the WCB is 
just a way for them to have control of your life. It takes away 
all your self-esteem and makes you feel that you are begging 
for something that is rightfully yours to begin with. My . 
husband's mood is up one day and down the next, never 
knowing what each day will bring. We live in a two-bedroom 
basement suite because right now this is all we can afford. 
Having two boys and a girl it is very unfair to them. They 
had to adapt to a lot since the accident and being parents it 
ls breaking our hearts. Stress is the one thing that is always 
with us. It does not go away, it just builds up. An accident 
can happen to anyone anywhere. The shame of it all is that 
someone has to suffer during and after this ordeal.' 

Another one. 'What is today's society coming to when an 
injured worker that has worked for 18 years is virtually put into 
prison with no bars. I am totally appalled with the way the 
WCB treats injured workers, from the time you are injured right 
up to the time you start rehabilitation and after. You are put 
in a state of chaos and confusion. The only way you know 
what your rights are is when someone else tells you them. 
You do not find them out from the WCB and when you 
approach them on these matters they then tell you about 
them. Here are just a few dilemmas that I have encountered. 

'First came the initial talk that I would have to retrain. I could 
no longer do carpentry work. Then came the drop in income 
from $70,000 to $27,000. This has forced my wife to go back 
into the work force to supplement our income. This also has 
added the expense of day-care for our two children. When I 
first was Injured I asked WCB if there was some place that 
could help me get back to work and I was told no. I was told 
I would have to retrain, so in October 1991 I started a 
retraining program at Arctic College. In January 1992 the 
WCB phoned me and said they wanted me to go to the care 
clinic in Edmonton to see if they could get me back into the 
work force. I was ecstatic. Finally after two years they were 
sending me somewhere to see if they could help. I was 
pulled out of school for one month to go to this clinic. I was 
told to retrain there, there was nothing they could do for me. 
At this point I lost all faith in WCB. Maybe if I had been sent 
to this clinic earlier I would still be working. 

'The final straw happened last week when I received a letter 
from the WCB telling me I had to find work for the two months 
of summer when school is out or my WCB would be cut off. 
I am only upgrading this year in school. The only work I can 
do is desk top work. So tell me who is going to hire me? 
Who is going to pay my mortgage? Who is going to feed my 
kids? 

'In conclusion. I have no where to turn. I wish that I had 
never got hurt on the job and never heard of WCB. Dealing 
with their bureaucracy is a constant nightmare.' 

MR. PAGE: Mr. Chairman, I also have some letters here that 
were addressed to the workers' support group. 

•1 am a tlmberman underground at Royal Oak - Giant Mines. 
On November 6, 1990 I was carrying a 3 by 8 plank and 
when making a turn my foot got stuck in the mud or slime 
and I twisted my knee. The slime or mud was supposed to 
be cleaned up, but the company did not clean it up. I worked 
about three months but had to quit work and go on WCB. I 
was on WCB for 55 working days and then returned to work 
which was supposed to be to a different job than timbering. 
I ended up back on timbering and this time my knee started 
giving me more trouble and I had to go back on WCB in July 
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of last year. 

'I had an operation that did cut some of the cartilage inside 
my knee and it did not seem to help that much. In March I 
went to a specialist in Edmonton where I was checked over 
and had an x-ray taken. I was on therapy all the time and I 
am doing that at home. I am getting a new brace for my 
knee and I am using a cane also. I now find out that WCB 
will discontinue my benefits as I will be 65 this month. The 
mine does not have light duty any more; in fact they offered 
me a job underground where I cannot work any more. 

'They wanted me to sign a slip that I would retire on my 
birthday. I have no intentions of retiring for at least two more 
years. And after 40 years of working underground I think I 
should get a better deal and should not be discriminated 
against because of my age.' 

I have another letter that is also addressed to the workers' 
support committee: 'I am a carpenter at Nerco-Con Mine with 
cervical disc injury and have been off work since September 
16, 1991. Since then I have been receiving benefits from the 
Workers' Compensation Board and I have spent two months -
- mid-February to mid-April 1992 - at the Centre for Active 
Rehabilitation and Exercise in Edmonton, under the auspices 
of the wee. 

'My concem with the WCB centres around a number of areas: 
1) A lack of consistency in how injured workers are treated in 
exactly the aame circumstances; 2) Decisions on my cue 
seem to be made in an arbitrary fashion without reference to 
policy; 3) There appears to be a lack of written policy and 
procedures In how injured workers are treated with many 
decisions seeming to be at the discretion of the cue worker 
or whoever. 

'I would like to give a few examples of the points I noted 
above from my own experiences: 

'1) When I was referred to the CARE facility in Edmonton. I 
was told that because I was driving down I would get $480 in 
cash to recover my return expenses. Shortly after arriving 
there I talked to another injured worker from Yellowknife. 
travelling under the same circumstancff. who told me he had 
received $690. I complained and wu eventually paid the 
difference. 

'2) I bought a pair of exercise shoes recommended by the 
CARE centre with my own money and wu advised by fellow 
patients that they had been provided with similar shoes by 
WCB. I approached WCB and wu reimbul'Hd for 75 per 
cent of the cost, yet fellow patients were reimbul'Hd 100 per 
cent of the cost. 

'3) My discharge uaessment from lhe Edmonton centre 
recommended for my continued rehabilitation that I be 
provided with a pool pus. a gym paH and a treadmill I had 
been told that WCB will provide a pool paH but are refu11ng 
the gym pass and the treadmill. The dec11t0n has not been 
explained to me nor do I know what authority It • made 
under. A policy or criteria for such decisions has not been 
given to me and I assume dOff not exist. 

'4) My income was above the $40.000 WCB cesltng but my 
biweekly income from WCB is $1100, which everagff out to 
$28,600 per year. I have not been given an understandable 
explanation as to why I am not receiving the maximum of 
$40,000 per year. 

'5) My most important concern has to do with my long-term 
future. The Centre for Active Rehabilitation and Exercise after 
the two-month assessment cor,cluded that my ,n,ury is so 
severe that I cannot continue u a carpenter and must work at 

a aecondary occupation. The report has been with WCB for 
three week• and all I have been told ie to wait and eee what 
Nerco pay,. Again I have eeen no policy or program or 
guidelines, nor do I have any idea what my options are. I am 
a 33 year old man who hu just been told that I must give up 
my trade and take a secondary job. I think that the WCB 
attitude is -awful casual in the wake of such a stressful and 
traumatic situation. If Nerco cannot do anything for me, I have. 
at this point no idea what future choices are available to me. 
I do not know how long I am going to be in this situation. 

'To eum up,,the WCB does not seem to operate from a well 
defined · policy and program base and I seem to be at the 
mercy of whoever is handling my case. I have nothing to 
refer to so that I can determine whether or not I am being 
treated fairly or receiving · all the benefits I am entitled to. 
Furthermore, at a critical time in my life, I am told to sit and 
wait Not knowing what my options are I do ('lot know where 
to turn. 

'My strong recommendation is that the WCB will be instructed 
to develop I well defined written policy, program and 
guidelines, so that the worker knows what his entitlements are 
and what authority the staff and management have in 
interpreting and implementing them. As well there should be 
and easy aocessible appeal procedure, so that the workers 
concerne can be dealt with quickly and efficiently.' 

MR. CELEJ: In conclusion I urge this committee to keep in 
mind that the North is not so rich in human resources that we 
can allow thle board to allow to continue to drive injured 
workers into such a moral and spiritual bankruptcy, that 
stripped of all dignity they are forced into seeking a more 
sensitive climate. Human resources play an integral part of 
.every growing economy no matter where the region. An 
injured worker may be disabled physically but that does not 
mean he cannot still contribute to society. So why discard 
him? 

I wish to take this time to thank the committee on behalf of all 
injured workers for allowing the Injured, Disabled and 
Discarded Workers for the opportunity to have our views 
heard. 

I do not have any recommendations but I thought of a few 
things last night I submitted a copy of page 19(22) in 
retrospect to another thing that could be implemented so that 
the injured worker has another recourse. I am not too familiar 
on how that can be done here but I think it is a pretty good 
idea what they have done there. 

Secondly I think another thing that would benefit just about 
everyone, probably the business community and the injured 
worker to help them get back into the work force quickly, 
would be a fully funded apprenticeship program sponsored by 
wee. 

A third recommendation would be a review of the act Review 
of deductione, review of adjudications would be essential and 
I would urge that the maximize on capabilities, not disabilities. 
Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you very much Ron and your 
group. Any questions? Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Mr. Chairman, I want to thank the 
Members for bringing forth their concerns. I have recognized 
somewhat the inconsistent approach of solutions that WCB 
has taken toward workers and I think some of these examples 
will give us more information so we can deliberate on trying 
to address many of their concerns. 

Their concerns have been very well articulated and I believe 
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Membel'9 will take their concerns and try to addre11 them 
accordingly. I agree with many of their recommendations, 
particularly in respect to the legislation. But I did want to 
mention that the YMIR is not set by the wee board, but it is 
set by legislation, which should be increased on a continual 
basis and not always being looked at as it has been three to 
five years, as it appeal'9 to have been dealt with in the past 
few years. 

The submissions were very good and well documented and 
articulated to the committee Membel'9. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: No matter what aide of the equation you sit on 
in this debate, the fact of the matter is there are some 
concerns out there, in my opinion and I said It in the House 
and I will say it again, we have to humanize WCB. We have 
to make it more sensitive to the injured worker. It does not 
matter H you are industry or a unionized worker, there has to 
be a clear recognition that you have to atop worrying about 
forms and start talking about people. You have to aimplify 
what la going on. 

Never mind the worker who can relate to Engliah, what 
happen, to the guy• who cannot even relate to that. The 
WCB does not even get off its ass - excuse the exprH1ion • 
• and get into the Arctic. It ,its in the major centrea because 
it has organized labour and it hu organized bu1ine11 to 
repreNnt and lobby It. There are a whole bunch of other 
people outside of organized labour and organized companiea 
that need to be represented. 

I think It 11 tragic that theN guy• have had to get together 
and organize aome injured workel'9 aupport group. It ia a 
reflection of aomething out there. Again no matter what aide 
of the equation you are on, whether you agree or dlaagrN 
with this group, the fact thay had to organize mean, that 
aomething fundamental haa gone wrong, and my belt gu ... 
ia we have kind of dehumanized, in aome waya, the Worker9' 
Compensation Board. I know when I Mt on It. the primary 
objective wu the injured worker. Whether it wu me fighting 
with Jim Evoy or Arnold Hope or whatever, the focua waa the 
injured worker. 

Thi• group, u indicated to me anyway, whether they .,. nght 
or wrong, whether you interpret it. wh9ther you are on the•r 
side or not on their aide, aomething ia fundamentally wrong 
and we have got to get back to la focua, and that ia lo looll 
after the injured worker. Being fiacally reaponsible. and by the 
way with $125 million to $130 million in the bank, that ie preuy 
fiacally reaponaible, in my opinion anyway. The acc:ldenl fund 
and the penaion fund being eroded 19 an ovet-dramamalion. 
We have got a very conNrvatlve approech to the '"-.-menl 
portfolio, unle11 it hu changed, and I think that unleN the 
costa of running thia operation have increued d~ally • 
• when I left it wu fairly intact in te""9 of the coeta related to 
the aervicea provided. 

Surely, again if I can repeat myaeH. aom.th•ng II wrong and 
I hope that bringing in Mr. Robert. who hel got probebty fflOfe 
experience than anybody in the NWT, aven Bryan Aobel1S, 
who is the acting chairman right now, he will bring about that 
human component to the thing. H anybody understand, mine 
worke,., northern worke,., it ii him. He haa got my aupport 
and I want to aay that publicly, ao ; hope we will noc have to 
go through thia atuff again a year from now or two ye..,. from 
now. 

So again, it does not matter what (inaudible) you are on, you 
obviously have a problem out there. n II a disgrace You 
have to organize youraeH, and it ia a reflection. •n my opinion, 
of the insensitivity of the bureaucracy within the WCB. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Any comments? Mr. L-is. 

lnconalstency Among Clalmant Benefits 

MR. LEWIS: Thanks, Mr. Chairman. Just one ·matter that I 
listened to very carefully, and when I first heard it I thought, 
well, It does not seem such a big deal whether you could get 
this level of benefit or another level of benefit. But the more 
you think about it, the more you realize that what you hope to 
achieve by having an arm's length agency, which is an 
agency that does things according to the book, according to 
policy, according to standards, with no interference from 
anybody, that you would expect it to be consistent. And when 
you hear stories about somebody who gets this amount of 
money for that, and somebody else gets this amount, what 
you are really saying is that · the · more politically astute 
individual, perhaps, who knows how to do things, will get one 
level of benefit and somebody else who does not question 
things and just takes what he is given, he just gets this much. 
What you hope to achieve by having this arm's length thing 
that does things according to proper procedure is just not 
happening. 

Although It seems small whether you have a pair of shoes or 
not. or whether you have to pay for it or not, H there is 
Inconsistency, it makes you lose faith that there Is a system 
there which Is consistent and which has a policy that 
everybody · unde1'9tands, everybody knows what their 
entitlements are. _And it is a symptom, it seems to me, of a 
ayltem which is supposed to be straightforward and 
aboveboard, and so on, not really working very well. 
So that letter, although when I first got it, I thought, "Well, this 
11 not a big deal." really Is, because it is symptomatic of the 
fact that you do not have a system which treats everybody 
fairly, which is what we had hoped having an arm's length 
agency would definitely provide. Thanks. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Jim Antoine. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to 
thank Ron and Austin, and is it Roland? Thank you for your 
pr ... ntation. 

In your presentation you mentioned the board's relying quite 
a bit on southern resources for training and assessment. Can 
you tell me more about that? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Ron. 

Fully Funded Apprenticeship Program 

MR. CELEJ: Well, e11entially there Is not much training 
available. In my per90nal acenario, I tried to get into an 
apprentlceahip program and it did not work out. They were 
willing to go 50-50, but the employer wu not quite willing to 
do that. And I can ,ee hla point, becauae he has got a lot of 
extra paperwork and he has got to worry about me, whether 
I am going to reinjure myself, and that. That is why I 
auggeated the po11ibility, seeing as we do not have the 
reaourcea available here, maybe a fully funded apprenticeship 
program might be esNntial, and it might help everybody. It 
might help small business; it might help the injured worker to 
get back to work quickly; give him some sett-esteem back 
becauae he 11 doing aomething Instead of sitting at home 
waiting to find out what he is going to go into. It is just a 
way to save money for everybody, as far as I am concerned. 
For myself per9onally, I like the North. I would like to stay 
here. But I find myself day by day getting forced more and 
more Into a situation where I have to go south, because there 
is no other alternative. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim, Charles, Jeannie? Ron, can you 
elaborate a little more on that last point, a fully funded 



May 121 1992 STANDING COMMITTEE ON AGENCIES, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS Page 33 

apprenticeship program? Give me some of your thoughts on 
what you see. 

MR. CELEJ: Well, if it was fully funded by WCB at no cost 
to the employer, you would probably have quite a few 
employers interested in it. As I said, I think it would benefit 
everybody. Like myself, if I had the opportunity from the very 
beginning to do that, I would have taken it, because it gets 
me back to work right away; I am retraining right away; and 
at least I am doing something that is meaningful. 

I am not good at organizing anything like that. That I am 
going to have to leave up to you guys; but I just thought it 
might be a good idea and something that the North should 
maybe consider looking at; and to benefit everybody. The 
employer is paying into this compensation scheme; I think 
maybe at one point or the other he should get something out 
of it. If he can take advantage of a situation like that and still 
help out the injured worker, as I said, I think it would benefit 
everybody involved. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): You visualize this as something that 
would benefit people that would have to be retrained? They 
cannot work underground; they have to do something else, 
or ... 

MR. CELEJ: Yes. In some scenarios it would. Obviously, if 
somebody has got a real serious injury and he cannot be 
retrained as a small engine mechanic or something - I do not 
know how he could get into office work through an 
apprenticeship, but in a lot of cases it would alleviate a lot of • 
• you could get into hotel management; you could get into all 
kinds of different carHrs by developing something like that 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): One more question where I need 
some clarification. In your presentation you said that the 
current policies and legislation leave a lot of the decision­
making in the hands of the board. And you said that the term 
"the board may• should be ch&nged. Can you elaborate on 
that a little more? 

MR. CELEJ: Well, again, speaking for the few people I know, 
I. would like to SN something that is a little more clear-cul 
Because to me, "The board may' meant 'maybe.• It doe• not 
mean definitely that they are going to do it or they have to do 
it. It means that maybe we will do it and maybe we will not 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

Intimidation By WCB 

MR. TODD: Maybe I am wrong on th11 idea. but I Jult want 
to come to grips with it a little more I think attitu~• hat got 
a heck of a lot to do with what you are doing. no matter 
which aide of the equation you are on. I am getting a tense. 
when I talked to you guys during the lut Mstton and the 
stuff I have been doing in reviewing the WCB that - do you 
sense an adversarial role rather than a complementary one. u 
an injured worker when you walk in there - and I know It 11 
pretty intimidating when you are in thne palatial palace, 
down the hall wey there, but. you know It it like the Eiffel 
Tower - but anyway. I am wondering about when you walk in 
there, do you feel comfortable that theH people are sansitlva 
to your concems, or do you think it it more an advarsanal 
role this last little while? Do you think that you would walk in 
there, and whoever you have talk to, is it intimidating? Do 
feel that it is an adveraarial type of situation? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Ron. 

MR. CELEJ: Mr. Chairman, I think that is depending on the 
situation. If you are a person that has stood up for the rights, 

you are going to get an adversarial role. But if you are a 
person that is intimidated - it depends on the certain 
individual, eh? Everybody is an individual; I cannot speak for 
everybody else. I can speak from my side of the story. But 
everybody is different I know, myself, when I first went in 
there, when you are sitting in those glass rooms on display for 
everybody, it is pretty intimidating. 

MR. TODD: Maybe we should change to slogan to "The 
Crew that Cares.• Maybe that might work. I am finding that 
kind of awkward, how much I am representing the workers 
here. I used to work to represent business. But anyway. I 
guess my point is that I am finding it right across, whether it 
is in this group or others, there is this adversarial thing that is 
going on all the time. To me, the common se1U1e approach 
is to sit around and try to work out your differences. 

Again, I am trying to get you to be a little more articulate. 
How do you feel the ltaff - because we do not make this 
thing run. Let us not kid ourselves. The bureaucracy makes 
it run. If they want to do· an end run on you, they will do an 
end run on you. That la just the way it works. You can just 
beat on them occasionally and try to get some changes. You 
cannot change the world; you can just make it a little bit 
better. I am wondering, at the staff level, whether it is the 
counsellors or whatever, do you really think - I need to know, 
okay? - that there is a sensitivity? Are there difficulties that 
you are under as an injured worker? A serious question. I 
need to know that 

MR. CELEJ: Mr. Chairman, from my personal perspective 
and the few people I UIOCiate with in our group there, I do 
not think there is a sensitivity there, in adjudications or in 
rehab. Once you might get up to review or appeals, you 
might get some sensitivity, but in the process of getting there, 
no, I do not think there is any. 

Union Representation 

MR. TODD: Let me ask you another question, if I can. Are 
you comfortable? I thought Mr. Evoy would have been here 
today. I am most disappointed. Anyway, are you comfortable 
that at a board level, as an injured worker - were you a 
unionized worker? Are you comfortable with your union 
representation, that it is really addressing the issue of injured 
workers? Because I am a little confused, here. I have got to 
be quite candid with you. I thought that somebody as 
aggreuive and as adversarial as Mr. Evoy has been, that he 
would have taken care of you guys. So I am just curious if 
you are comfortable with your union representation. 

MR. CELEJ: Yes, basically I never went to the union too 
much on it. I usually tried to go at things myself and with the 
help of a lawyer, because I figured that was my right and I 
figured I would probably get better results. 

I think the union is doing the best they can, but again, as I 
aaid, I do not know how to put it, but basically what happens 
it that the board is almost untouchable. You can put it 
wherever you want, there, and try to talk with them, but unless 
there it a clear-cut guideline that says that they have to be 
more sensitive, and stuff like that, and have some 
accountability there, I am at a loss to say how you could do 
it. 

MR. TODD: Well, you set a whole adversarial tone by saying, 
"You are union and you are business' anyway, and that is a 
bit of a concern I had when I was on the board. Okay. I was 
just curious. You know, attitude and the approach to whether 
you are a chairman, or - and I, for one, I felt that the board 
and perhaps in the leadership at WCB had lost some kind of 
sensitivity to the fact that their job was to look after injured 
workers and be fiscally conservative, I suppose, to keep all 
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the stakeholders, including myself, by the way, happy. But I 
kind of sense that there la a lack of caring, a lack of sort of 
knowing what their job la, and I have just got to get a better . 
feel for that. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Any other Members have any other 
statements? Mr. Lewis. 

Recour" To Court System 

MR. LEWIS: This is a basic question about the whole l11ue 
of workers' compensation. how it la set up and why it la set 
up, and so on. la there a general feeling - I know it la 
difficult to ask this kind of question of any individual, because 
they have their own experience to go on, and things they pick 
up In the workplace. But is there a feeling among some 
workers that would probably have got a better deal, especially 
in cases where maybe the company has been negligent, If, in 
fact, they ~ad recourse to the court system? 

This whole workers' comp la set up, you know, as a judicial 
procedure that la different from the normal court procedure. 
And It was set up for that reason, I suppose. It was a way of 
avoiding very expensive court actions, and so on. But la there 
a feeling in the workplace that some people, or maybe a lot 
of people, would be far better off if, in fact, they did not have 
this Imposed system in order to arrive at fair compensation for 
Injured workers? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Ron. 

MR. CELEJ: Mr. Chairman, as far as the negligent end goes, 
I do not know. That la kind of a controversial question. You 
do not want to take the employer to the cleaners. so to speak, 
either, because he does have a certain amount of 
rnponsibility In making jobs available and everything else. 
There is no doubt you would probably get a better deal. but. 
again, there has to be some discretion, because u I said. you 
do not want to take the employer to the cleaners. either, 
because that is not right. either. But in an instance, let us 
say, for a miner that la losing so many thousand dollars a · 
year and coming home with $26,!500 or S27.!500. whatever the 
case may be, like myself personally In the last 12 years that 
I have been working - I have been mining for the lut 12 
years. and each year that I have paid income tax. I paid more 
Income tax than I am now getting from WCB. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Brian. 

MR. LEWIS: Okay. Really. there is no criticism then. from 
the way you see it, anyway. of this u being the beat way to 
arbitrate, if you like, on the issue of compensation for workers. 
This is the best model that can be used. 

MR. CELEJ: It probably is. A. I said III the beginning. the 
principle of historic compromise la attn basically sound. bul the 
recent trend to reduce compensation coeta by eroding enlltled 
benefits. reducing rehabilitation coats, et cetera - ,..,ly, the 
only way to cut compensation coats la to cut eccldentl By 
putting the rffponaibllity on the employer to rehtte and 
accident employee. maybe those larger compen'" that do 
have the large amount of accidents will police themaelvff. 

MR. LEWIS: Okay. Thanks. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: Let me try one more. I have a bit of a conc.m 
that we have 20 per cent of the population in the Northwftt 
TerritoriH doing well, and a great deal of It not doing that 
well. Let me try to ask you this: I come from a very simple 
world. That is the way I ... life. la it policy or people that is 
the problem In the WCB? If you hed people that were 

sensitive to you; If you had people that would listen, la it really 
policy or la it people? That la the way I see It 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Ron. 

MR. CELEJ: Mr. Chairman, the only way I could probably 
addreas that one would be that the policies as well as the 
people have to be sensitive. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Mr. Chairman, maybe for Information 
for Mr. Todd, it appears that the policy that has been 
developed has been developed in isolation, with very little 
sensitivity toward the Individual workers, or injured workers, 
and has caused frustration to the point where this group has 
been formulated, and the board, working in exclusive 
jurisdiction, allows them to determine what policies and how 
It should be developed and how it should be applied. 
Probably some of It la a lack of policy that allows for 
Inconsistencies. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Are there any other comments? Do 
the presenters have any last parting words? 

MR. CELEJ: No. I would like to take this time to thank you 
again. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): On behalf of the committee, I would 
like to thank you for your presentation and well documented 
material that you submitted. We will rece11 until 11 :00 
o'clock. 

-SHORT RECESS 

I call the committee back to order. Before we get Into the 
next presentation, I would like, for the record, to table a written 
submission received from Or. J. Corkal from Yellowknife. 

At this time I would like to welcome Mayor Pat McMahon from 
Yellowknife, who la the president of the Northwest Territories 
Association of Municipalities. Welcome, Pat, and you can 
Introduce your cohort and proceed with your presentation, 
p1e .... 

MAYOR McMAHON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Ladies and 
gentlemen. Members of the committee, I would like to 
introduce to you Roy Clarke. He is the city's purchasing 
manager. Yvette Bungay, my executive director, was to be 
here with me but she got tied up In meetings with Municipal 
Affairs and wu not able to make it, 10 I asked Mr. Clarke to 
fill in at the very last moment 

Presentation By Mayor Pat McMahon, NWT Association Of 
Munlclpalltlee 

I am pleased to be able to appear In front of you on behalf of 
the Association of Municipalities for the Northwest Territories. 
and provide a municipal viewpoint on the subject you are 
dealing with today. We all know that many of the 
mponaibilltles of the federal and territorial govemmenta are 
being passed on to municipal govemmenta, and the role of 
municipalities In dealing with matters close to our citizens is 
becoming paramount When the contact between govemment 
and the citizen la predominantly at the municipal level, 
citizens. rightly or wrongly, judge the effectiveness of 
govemment and govemment Institutions by how well this 
contact functions. 

Workers' compensation~ a "people busine11•; 10 is municipal 
government This ever increasing role has municipal budgets 
strained to the limit. Municipalities are therefore looking in 
every posaible direction for help In meeting their citizens' 
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needs, while at the same time keeping costs under control. 

Municipalities are grateful for the existence of workers' · 
compensation, and have praise forthe compensation system. 
I do not have to repeat here that workers' compensation meets 
a most important need, the need for benefits when disease, 
injury or death results from the work place hazards. At the 
same time, a workers' compensation system is a means for 
workers to get coverage within a framework of pre-established 
costs. Our members have no flexibility in their budgets to 
meet these costs themselves, so they deem the workers' 
compensation system essential. 

Our member municipalities are mindful of the record of service 
of NWT workers' compensation, and in particular commend 
the board for being able to have the program fully funded by 
its own resources. We envy you. We understand that the 
principle by which workers' compensation has become 
universally accepted is that. as a result of payment of workers' 
compensation fees by employers, employees are compensated 
for work related disease, injury and death, and employers are 
immune from claim by employees. I am told that this is 
known as the 'exclusive remedy doctrine.• It has apparently 
been tested all the way up to the Supreme Court of Canada 
and has been found to be fair, and not to contravene our 
charter of rights. 

So we understand that the employee gets compensated 
without having to go to court - 'no fault coverage' - and 
employers, having funded this, are immune from further claim. 
This is how it works. The legislation in Alberta. for example, 
says: 

'H an accident happens to a worker, entitling him or his 
dependants to compensation under this act, neither the 
worker, his legal personal representatives, his dependants nor 
his employer has any cause of action in respect of or arising 
out of the personal injury suffered by, or the death of, the 
worker as a result of the accident; (II) against any employer, 
or (b) any worker of an employer. 

'In an industry to which this act applies, when the conduct of 
that employer or worker that caused or contributed to the 
injury arose out of and in the course of employment In an 
industry to which this act applies.' 

This, we understand, is how the legislation generally read• -
except for the Northwest Territorie1. Here. the bar to recovery 
action only appliea to the actual employer of the 1nIured 
employH. We understand that thia ~ extraordinary and 
exclusive to the Northwest T erritorin Act. 

I have been told that for all other workers· compenaatIon 
boards. such is not the case The employer et.-here 11 alto 
protected against legal action by any worker or employer who 
is covered by the act relative to 1ndustr1al acc,dentl or 
diseases. 

So the exclusive remedy doctrine applies both ways -
workers' compensation benefits are the exclu1rve remedy for 
workers' injuries. and the source of fund• to prov,de for th,1 
are confined to the fee contribution, of employer,. except in 
the Northwest T errrtories. 

Here, we have the potential for an employee who hu been 
injured on the job, and who has received NWT workers· 
compensation benefits, to go on and 1ue a mun1c1pality for 
whom his employer is under contract In fact, the board can 
sue too. to recover its payout. if it can be alleged that the 
cause of the disease or the injury wu the fault of the 
municipality. 

No other municipality in North America is faced with this 

exposure to liability. The city of Yellowknife and other 
communities, for instance, contributes to NWT workers' 
compensation and is subject to all territorial safety programs. 
In all other jurisdictions it would therefore be immune from 
claims, but not here. 

Why our concern? You might respond that the city has public 
liability insurance to protect against claims alleging negligence 
causing injury, sickness, disease or death. Yes, the city has 
such insurance, but there are two problems: First, the 
municipal liability insurance is about the hardest kind of 
liability insurance to get That is because municipalities are 
perceived to have 'deep pockets.' Lawyers for injured people 
say that municipalities have unlimited liability, and this is true. 
But how do municipalities meet this potential demand? 
Through insurance, to the extent that they can afford it. 

Municipalities are frequently sued as a result of people getting 
injured on roadways, children getting injured in playgrounds, 
and in other situations of ordinary exposure. Because courts 
have been sympathetic to claimants for all kinds of perceived 
wrongs, municipalities and their insurers have had to pay out 
staggering amounts. 

Where does this money come from? The existence of 
insurance creates no new funds. The insurance companies 
get their money from the policy holders. Municipal sett­
insurance or reciprocal insurance programs get their money 
from the participants in the plan. So any additional exposure 
of municipalities ultimately falls on the shoulders of the 
taxpayers 

H premiums cannot keep up with claims - as happened in the 
mid-70s - municipalities just cannot get the insurance. Cities 
like Chicago and Toronto actually could not get liability 
insurance at any price at that time. Playground equipment 
had to be taken down and sports programs had to be 
cancelled. The pressure has only lessened in recent years. 

Thanks in part to a vigorous loss control program, the NWT 
Auociation of Municipalities is embarking on a loss control 
program now, too. They can take many forms - workers' 
compensation is one. 

To repeat the principle once more, employers contribute to the 
workers' compensation pool and are therefore immune from 
claims. At this system exists everywhere in our country except 
here in the Northwest Territories. 

Second, there is an added feature to the problem - pollution 
exclusion in insurance policies. The cost of coverage is so 
high as to be virtually prohibitive. And the definition of 
pollution is very broad. It includes sickness, disease, and 
contamination resulting from discharges, seepages, and 
emissions. 

So a garbage hauling contractor's worker who catches a 
disease from his duties at the dump receives workers' 
compensation benefits. And then he, and the board. can. 
under existing workers' compensation law, recover from the 
c,ty. And in this case, the city is on its own, with no 
in1urance coverage. 

The problem goes further. The city of Yellowknife, the town 
of Hay River, and other municipalities are, in the interests of 
conservation and ecology, becoming parties to salvage 
retrieval, recycling and, in the most positive sense of the word, 
scavenging programs. Are we to abort these commendable 
efforts because the NWT Workers' Compensation Act puts an 
uninsured exposure on ·Nwr municipalities not faced by 
municipalities anywhere else? 

What is the remedy? The association this April was able to 
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have its liability Insurance broadened slightly to cover sudden 
and accidental pollution. But the coverage is very limited. 
True environmental liability insurance is just too expensive. 
The association has explored other alternatives. 

The remedy, as we see it, is simply to use the system that ia 
in place everywhere else, to make the NWT Workers' 
Compensation Act read like all similar legislation elaewhere. 
To bring the exclusive remedy doctrine that applies 
everywhere else to the NWT. Obviously It hu already been 
given careful thought elsewhere, and has been found to be a 
practical anawer. We do not have to r•lnvent the whHI. It 
already exists. We have just kicked a couple of spoke• out 
of it. Let us put them back in. 

Yes, NWT usesament rates may be affected by not being 
able to recover payouts. But where does the cost belong? 
In all other jurisdiction, it has been determined that the cost 
is best flXed by containing it in the workers' compenaation fee 
structure. 

It is evident that the NWT workers' compenaation system 
operates efficiently. I am confident that the board can '" the 
added efficiency of adopting thia approach. Surely It is more 
efficient for the board to operate a system that it totally cost 
contained and aclentifically funded, than to have munlcipalitiet 
running unenforceable and, H they occur, unaffordable 
contingenciea. The alternative It to leave NWT municipalities 
in a poaition of heightened expoaure faced by no other 
municipalities on the North American continent 

The Northwest Territories Association of Municipalities askt 
that the NWT Workers' Compenaation Act be brought Into 
conformity with other timllar acts in Canada on the aubject of 
barring any further recovery of compentation from employers 
who are contributing to the fund. 

I would like to note that the NWTAM't board hu granted 
support to the Minister of Safety and Public Services to 
strengthen and expand the government'• safety education 
programs. The Northwest Territories Attoclatlon of 
Municipalitiea and ltt member municipalitlet, 44 of the 47 
incorporated municipalitiet in the Territories. alto endorse 
safety education and, in fact. are very much involved rn it. 

In closing, It is my view that the Workers' Compenaation 
Board ia as effective u it ia becaute It it located here rn 
Yellowknife where itt clientt are concentrated. It only malies 
sense to '" this continue. I aay th•• in the context of 
providing service to the employees and employers that the 
Workers' Compensation Board terves. but alto recognize that 
It it true from the perspective of adminrttratNe -'ficiency 

The one thing that could be done It that the boarda could be 
moved around - the board meeting, could be mowcs around 
- and I think they ahould be moved around We at the 
association move our board meeting• around. It • an 
accepted practice and I think you thould be doing it too 

We thare your Interest in aafety and we want to wOftl with the 
board in the mutual interest of public and wortip&ace aafety 
We are alto interested in the board's efficient and -"ectlve 
service delivery. Let ua work together for the good of our 
work force and the NWT public. I would like to mention alto 
that the u.ociation hu puled. for the tut """ years, 
reaolutiona on this legialation, and I certainly win be tending 
that legialation over to you. I was unable ·to get hold of it 
today. So I ask for your commentt and questions. I would 
be happy to take them. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Pat. Do 81'1'/ committH 
Members have any comments? Mr. Todd. 

Centralization Of WCB 

MR. TODD: Yes, thank God we got a "yea• vote. I can 
understand, as the Mayor of Yellowknife and, I auppoae to 
aome extent, representing the munlclpalitiea, that you could 
'" the nHd for centralization. I would certainly like to get 
four million dollars worth of O and M costs that are spent in 
the East, but you know, we have got to find a way to make 
ture that other Interests outside the heavy centres are 
represented. I am saying thlt to the point of boredom, I think, 
but you· know that old movle "Network• where Peter Flynn 
aald, •1 am mad as hell and I am not going to take it any 
more"? That Is frankly where I am at right now. 

I '" a strong centralization of this WCB. I aee people like 
yourseH lobbying hard, and that ia understandable. You 
should be lobbying hard for the interests of your municipality, 
but my job la to lobby hard for the interests of the Eastern 
Arctic and other people'• interests, and I am not convinced 
that we have necessarily got a balance In the WCB right now 
that repreaents all the intereats in the Terrltorlea, as it should. 
I am not convinced that by almply aaying, ■well, let ua go into 
the Keewatin for a meeting once every flVe years,■ we will 
bring about the expoaure, H you want, and the understanding 
and feeling of what the concems are out there. 

We heard this morning a very aggreaaive presentation by the 
NWT Chamber of Mines, and yours la the same way, and it 
acarea me even more becauae you are both well organized, 
and I commend you for that, but I think we have to find a way 
In which to - you are not going to like thia, but I think we 
have to find a way where we have to find some method either 
to senaitlze organization• like the WCB to the iasues outside 
of the larger centres, whether it la big industry or organized 
labour, and H we cannot do that, then I am aaying to you that 
polltlcally we have to find another method, and it may be that 
we have to decentralize it. 

It may be that you have to do aomethlng with It, but to 
auggest that It la more cost effective depends on how you 
look at cost effectiveness. I take exception, if you want - and 
I aay that in the kindest way - and the fact that we ahould 
continue with this thing In a concentrated manner. There are 
other interests out there; there are other ·contributors besides 
the mining industry. We may not be as large, but we certainly 
contribute the aame as everybody else doea. That voice 
thould be heard. 

Thit WCB was currently sitting until recently with four 
Yellowknife representative,. You have the ability to lobby 
wery day because you juat walk down the hallway; it does 
not coet you $1500 to get an air fare, never mind the coat of 
living in hotels and spending your money in the Gold Range. 

I think that aa representative of the NWT Asaociation of 
Municipalities, you are going to have to look beyond that -
beyond jutt Yellowknife. That ia the point I am trying to make 
with you here. That it the one iaaue. 

MAYOR McMAHON: Thank you. Mr. Chairman, could I 
apeak? I think that the WCB, which Is appointed by the 
territorial government, had beat be looking at Its own 
organization. The Association of Municipalitiea moves ltt 
board around thrH time, a year. In the lut year, we have 
been In Iqaluit. Fort Smith and Hay River. We have three or 
four meeting• a year and wen moved our annual general 
meeting thia year. I think that, aa an asaociation, we 
recognize that here is our-headquarters, but there is absolutely 
nothing wrong with spending the extra dollars to move the 
board around to get that kind of Input. 

I would suggest that the WCB be modeled on that aort of 
thing. We do not have the kinda of problems that maybe the 
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board has in getting that kind of information that they need 
and being sensitized. We already are sensitized. We have on 
our board, members from across the Territories. We move our 
meetings across the Territories, and I do not understand why 
the board does not do the same thing. To me, it makes 
perfect sense. But in the words of efficiency, you must have 
some place where you have a central incubated area. I would 
recommend that the board begin moving their meetings 
around. I do not know how often you have board meetings, 
but certainly if we can move our board meetings around more 
than once every five years, the board of the Workers' 
Compensation can do the same thing. 

I really, truly take exception of the fact that we can just walk 
down the hallway and get an appointment with the WCB 
members. It does not work that easily, not even when you are 
in Yellowknife. We, too, have to move through the process. 
The process can be extremely unwieldy at times. I would like 
to make the point that it is just as hard for people in 
Yellowknife to get appointments at times as it is for people 
from outside Yellowknife. The association has been 
successful in being sensitized and moving their boards 
around, and I think the WCB should be moved around as 
well. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: I do not think you are giving yourseH enough 
credit, Pat I cannot see anybody not taking the time to meet 
with you considering you are as articulate and outspoken as 
you are. I do not .think that is an argument .. 

MAYOR McMAHON: One to another. 

MR. TODD: That is no the argument here. The argument. 
and the fact of the matter. is that people simply do not 
understand the issues outside of the larger centrei when it 
comes to this WCB in my opinion. You are wrong, ,n a sense 
- and I do not want to debate with you on this too much -
that you can walk down the hallway. I know you can. I have 
been around long enough. It does not cost you $2000 to 
walk down the hallway. That is what I am trying to aay. I 
commend the NWT Association of Municipalities for mov•ng 
around and about That is not my concern. My concern II to 
make sure that the attitude and the policies are a reflection. 
not of just the strongest lobby group out there that we got th11 
morning with these NWT Chamber of Mines people It 11 not 
just the reflection of Yellowknife"s municipal attitude - these 
are all legitimate attitudes, do not misunderstand me - but 
you articulaie them well and have the lobbying abilities all of 
you over here. But we need to make sure the other 11lent 
majority is heard as well. I do not see that right now in the 
WCB. I guess. I am talking to you more than ulung you a 
question. I think you have a responsibility. also. as an 
association of municipalities representing mun1c1pahtiff outside 
of the West. 

MAYOR McMAHON: I know 

MR. TODD: To seek out in support of the k•nda of things 
myseH and others are trying to aay when it comes to this 
board. This has blinkers on. 

MAYOR McMAHON: H I can. Mr. Chairman. I agrH that 
there needs to be that aensitization. but I also think that rt 11 
in the board"s best interests to be aensitized What I am 
saying. Mr. Todd, is that if the board does not understand the 
issues outside of Yellowknife. it is nobody"s fault but the 
board"s - if they would get out into the communrt1n and 
understand those. The resolutions that were pasaed through 
the NWT Association of Municipalities were passed 
unanimously by the association - 44 out of 47 of the 
communities in the NWT. Th!t)' have exactly the same 

problems as Yellowknife, Hay River and Iqaluit have. All I am 
saying is if you want to sensitize, meet in those areas. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Mr. Lewis. 

Suing City For Neglect 

MR. LEWIS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In the presentation 
there was no specific recommendation made other than our 
act should be changed to make it consistent with other acts 
across the country. It is not quite clear from·the presentation 
what the real difference is. H I can try - see if I have it right -
• under our act. if an employee of a contracting company is 
injured during work related to the demands or needs of the 
city, then that individual could get compensation because he 
is employed by a company. But that does not mean it is 
exclusive. After having his benefits from WCB as an 
employee of that company, he still could sue the city if there 
was something that could be proved to be negligent on the 
part of the city. Is that not the same as exists everywhere 
else? Really, it ia an employer contribution that funds the 
compensation boards across the country. Since it is an 
Insurance fund that exists in every other jurisdiction, what 
makes ours different to the other jurisdictions? I do not think 
there is any difference. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Pal 

MAYOR McMAHON: What makes yours different from the 
other jurisdictions is that the WCB can sue us to recover their 
costs. But we pay WCB fees so why should we be dinged 
twice when we already paid the WCB fees and you come 
along and sue us again to recover them? In essence, we pay 
twice when we are already paying to belong to the family of 
people who pay their fees. That is not fair. In every other 
jurisdiction, that cannot happen. In essence, the NWT 
legislation is out of step with the rest of North America. That 
worker has the opportunity to sue the City of Yellowknife or 
the Town of Fort Smith, and we cannot recover that At the 
same time, they can recover from the WCB. So they recover 
twice. We have to pay two or three times. The bottom line 
is that kind of insurance is very detrimental to us as 
municipalitiea when we go into the market to get coverage. 
They are saying it does not really make any difference 
whether you have the insurance; you are going to get dinged 
anyhow. Then, if you are going to get dinged anyhow, you 
have to have a larger than normal amount of coverage to 
cover the two dings. That is not fair because we pay our fees 
the same as everybody else does. That does not happen 
anywhere elae. in Canada. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): How many instances of this are you 
aware of municipalities getting double or triple dinged? 

MAYOR McMAHON: Mr. Clarke can probably answer that 
There is one under way right now. I know we have had other 
cases in the past. In essence, a worker who was working for 
a contactor slipped and fall on our steps. He then went to the 
WCB for compensation and is now in the process of suing us. 
In Haence. we are getting dinged twice for one accident. and 
that is not fair. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Brian. 

MR. LEWIS: I do not see that this is any different to what 
exists in southern Canada though. H you are injured because 
of negligence by a third party, then I do not sea how other 
legislation would be different to ours; to exempt an individual, 
a citizen, from suing because the WCB is set up and funded 
by employer contributions. Just because your city happens 
to be a contributor is not the issue. The issue is that it is a 
third party. I do not see how other jurisdictions would be 
exempted because all municipalities get coverage. They all 
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have liability insurance of some kind. 

MR. CLARKE: Mr. Chairman, through you, I do not have 
hard evidence in front of me, but It is a fact that not only can 
an individual pursue damages against an employ!Jr - not his • 
- a third employer, the WCB can also pursue damages not 
only for costs but for duress, if you like. That is the case that 
we have before us over at the city. The WCB is pursuing the 
city for damages. We are going through our insurance 
program which - if we are found negligent - we will have to 
pay moneys and our insurance costs are going to go up. Not 
only are you claiming for the damages, you are also claiming 
for the duress. WCB does not pay duress costs directly. 
They pay for lhe damages incurred, but not duress. • 

MAYOR McMAHON: So in essence, we are paying the f8" 
to the WCB. We are also paying damages to the WCB, unlike 
any place else in CanadL That does not happen. When you 
pay your fMa, It I• supposed to cover everything; and It does 
not When you get a little further along with the whole thing 
of the environmental issue, that ia going to be an incredible 
bugaboo. We are having a really difficult time getting 
coverage because it is so open-ended. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Brian. 

MR. LEWIS: I would like to suggest that our research staff 
examine this issue to see what kind of exemptions- exist under 
the other acts because I understand that our act le modelled 
on the provincial acts. That l1 why I find It difficult to He how 
this would have slipped through. 

MAYOR McMAHON: If I could, Mr. Chairman, It is modelled 
on other acts, but you very conveniently left out the one thing 
that save• us from paying extra ,.... We have a lot of 
research that has already bffn done on that. We would be 
more than happy to make this available to you. It is reHarch 
that hu been done by the Department of Municipal Affairs. 
It is research that hu bffn done by the Aseociation of 
Municipalities and our insurance people. It le , ... arch that 
has bffn done by the City of Yellowknife. We will be more 
than happy to make this available to you. We have 
researched It to death. We have written letters to the Minister 
to change the legislation. We have Wlitl9n resolutions and 
passed them. Putting It very bluntly. nothing has been done. 
It 11 getting to the stage now where It le co.ting ue double 
what It should be. The bottom line i.. why pay , ... If you 
cannot get coverage'? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Ko.): Thie goes back to the act which has 
not bffn looked at since 19n. and this was probably not a 
big issue then. 

MAYOR McMAHON: Well. it i1 now. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Ko.): Any other questiona from Members'? 

MAYOR McMAHON: If I could just sum up. then. Mr 
Chairman. I would like to have the act changed in that 
instance. Also. the association would very much like to have 
the whole aspect of environmental liability looked into. It is 
becoming much more of a high profile thing than It wu 
before. because a number of municipalities are getting into the 
whole recycling, scavenging type of thing, and aooner or later 
municipalitiff are going to be dinged with a real whopper. 
We just cannot get the kind of coverage that we need. 
becauH the act is 10 broad. 

So I would really appreciate it is you could do that. Also. I 
would also recommend that the board move Its meeting, 
around. We have never had any problem in the association 
with the fact of not being sensitized, simply becauN of the 
fact that we do move our board meeting• around, and we 

meet with the local councils. And those local councils 
sensitize us to their needs. And I think It is critical that that 
be done. Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Ko.): Jim Antoine. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to 
thank Pat and Roy for their presentation. You mentioned 
something about safety education. You mentioned that the 
Association of Municipalities endorses safety education. I 
would like to know from you what role WCB should play in 
safety programming. Thank you. 

MAYOR McMAHON: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I think that the 
WCB should be guiding the small communities, as well as the 
larger ones, Into what kind of safety education should be 
given. When you are looking at municipalities and 
communltiH, there Ii everything from defensive driving, if you 
t:iave a truck, to proper handling of hazardous waste,, if you 
are shipping them. Every community has hazardous wastes. 
I will bet you not very many of them have got trained people 
In how to handle them. Every community has a land fill site 
or a dump; every community has heavy equipment on their 
roads - I mean, there is everything from fire safety, to 
handling of hazardous goods, to driving defensively - the list 
goes on and on, and the association right now is very 
Involved In what they call a loss control program, where a 
number of these types of programs are being put forward as 
the types of things that our members should be educating 
their employM1 In to make the workplace safer. And the 
Workers' Compensation Board should be in there like a dirty, 
wet shirt - pardon my colloquium. But you should be 
Involved in it And I do not know whether you are, because 
the bottom line le, we pay the fMs to the Workers' 
Compensation Board. If the Workers' Compensation Board is 
not Involved In the education program, then what happens is 
that the thing has the tendency to break down haH way 
through. 

We can say to our mernbers, •Yes, we would like you to be 
educated In this, this, and this and to educate your employMs 
In It.• and H the Workers' Compensation Board does not start 
saying, -Vea. We need to have this type of education done." 
then when the claims start coming in, they can say to us, 
Wtry did you not do this a long time ago?• But It is only in 
the last year that we have started doing that. And we did It 
becauM we could not get coverage for a lot of things. 

We went out onto the International market for insurance for all 
of our municipalities, and until we had an up-to-date appraisal 
done of all of our communltiH and a loss control program, we 
were not able to get It. What that means In the totality of it, 
ii that if workers have an accident and we cannot get 
insurance, then It is the worker who suffers. And that is not 
fair to them. either. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Pat Jeannie. 

URS. MARIE.JEWELL: Mr. Chairman, some of my comments 
were covered. However, at the same time, just to note in the 
Wortlera' Compenaatlon Act under part 1 of section 5 it does 
indicate that not only the office of the board shall be situated 
at YellowknHe, but It does state that the meetings of the board 
Iha.II be held In Yellowknife or at another place that the board 
may direct So the board probably felt that the "shall' gives 
them basically the discretion to use Yellowknife only for their 
meeting places. 

MAYOR McMAHON: If I can, Mr. Chairman, just to speak 
about that for a moment longer, as I said before, the 
association has Its headquarters here, but It was a conscious 
decision of our board to move them around where at all 
posaible. So we did that, and It has been very successful. 
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And it has sensitized everybody on our board, whether they 
are board members from the East being sensitized to 
problems in the West, or board members, say, from Fort Smith 
being sensitized to problems in Sachs Harbour. It has made 
the operation of the board a much more well-rounded and 
comprehensive board. 

And it certainly has done our members an awful lot of good 
by just virtually having the board members learning that if 
they come from a very small community, that there are 
problems that maybe larger communities are having that they 
may run irito, or that there are problems that the smaller 
communities are having that the larger communities can help 
with. It has worked very well. And the legislation, if it reads 
'or another place as the board directs• - maybe the board 
should be looking at that. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): I -do not think you will get any 
argument from some of us. 

Just to summarize, then. Your association can provide this 
committee with copies of the resolutions regarding workers' 
compensation. And if you can provide that research material, 
that would be helpful. And we will do some research on the 
environmental issue, and we will, obviously, consider the other 
recommendations you made. · 

On behalf of the committee, I thank you for your presentation. 
I guess that is it for this portion. So we will recess until 1 :30. 

MAYOR McMAHON: Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. 

-SHORT RECESS 

The committee will come to order. This afternoon we have the 
Northwest Territories Chamber of Commerce. I would like to 
invite Don Vamkowy and Louise Nielsen to the table, please. 
Don, you are the president of the Northwest Territories 
Chamber of Commerce? 

MR. YAMKOWY; Yes. I am. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay, if you would like to introduce 
Louise and then proceed with your presentation. 

MR. YAMKOWY: Thank you. Mr. Koe and Members of the 
standing committee on agencies, boards and commissions. I 
am Don Yamkowy, president of the NWT Chamber of 
Commerce. I have with me Louise Nielsen. the chamber's 
executive director. I have only bean in the chair tor two 
months, 10 I have invited Louise to join ma to an-•r any 
difficult questions which I may be lacking aoma information. 
We wish to thank the committee for extending to the chamber 
the invitation to address you on these matters which relate to 
workers· compensation. 

Prnentatlon By Mr. Don Yamkowy, NWT Chamber Of 
Commerce 

The Northwest Territories Chamber of Commerce membership 
is comprised of 11 local and regional chambers of commerce 
from all regions of the Northwest T erritoriaa with the exception 
of the Keewatin. As well, a growing number of larger 
corporations. whose business activities span all or a significant 
portion of the total Northwest Territories, have 10:ned us as 
associate members. The Northwest Territories Chamber of 
Commerce oversees Prospects North '92. • major business 
and investment conference which is to be hosted 1n June in 
Yellowknife. 

Northern Employer•• Council On Workers' Compensation 
(NECWC) 

This past year, the Northwest Territories chamber joined with 
other industry members in forming the Northern Employers' 
Council on Workers' Compensation. We applaud the efforts 
of the council and are active participants in working towards 
its objectives of becoming an effective employer advocate on 
workers' compensation matters. 

Workers' Compensation Mandate 

As our industry colleague• have emphasized to you earlier in 
your proceedings, the Workers' Compensation Board is unlike 
just about all other boards and agencies in the Northwest 
Territories in that its sole source of revenue is from employe_r 
assessments and the return on the investment of those 
assessments. It is not funded from GNWT general revenues. 
Workers' compensation is an insurance fund which was 
established from employer contributions for the benefit of 
workers injured in the workplace. It provides protection for 
both employers and employees. It is imperative that WCB's 
total effort be focused to this purpose and that under no 
circumstance should other agendas be permitted to encroach 
upon the sanctity of this mandate. The WCB enjoys powerful 
legislation, and so it should, in terms of its ability to tax, if you 
will, employers and its responsibilities to ensure that workers 
receive reasonable and just compensation for injuries. It is 
incumbent upon all of us to protect the process that ensures 
that these responsibilities are then administered efficiently, 
justly and effectively. 

1989 Workers' Compensation Review 

It is often said that history repeats itself. In the spring of 1989, 
there was a major, and we might mention thoroughly credible, 
review of the WGB which was precipitated by an outcry over 
significant rate increases to 58 per cent of the industry sub­
classes, concerns over the proposed move of the WCB to new 
premises, and the impact of other WCB policies and 
procedures. In a split decision, the 1989 review panel found 
that the rate increases set by the board were ill-founded and 
recommended that they be moderated. 

In addition they unanimously stated: "We found, in the course 
of our review, many very basic management deficiencies. In 
particular, it was clear that strategic planning, clarity of roles, 
responsibilities and accountabilities, management ownership, 
leadership and direction are not evident in the WCB. 
Criticisms that the board is not operating in a financially 
efficient and responsible manner are borne out.• 

Regarding the move to the new City Centre accommodation 
and whether it wu 'advantageous to the WCB financially and 
administratively' the finding was: 
'The leasehold agreement is not advantageous to the WCB 
financially and administratively. It would appear to be a case 
of wanting one thing and getting something quite different. 
We believe a prudent person, in the board's position, would 
have built their own 13,000 square foot building for 
S2,035,000.' 

The review that took place in 1989 was performed by a review 
panel comprised of an independent chairperson, and 
representatives from both the Northwest Territories Chamber 
of Commerce and labour groups. We think this is the 
appropriate composition of a review panel, that is: a panel 
with representation from the stakeholder groups, employers 
and employees, chaired by a neutral candidate. 

We mention the findings of the 1989 review panel to set a 
needed backdrop to your proceedings today. Through our 
experience in being actively involved in the 1989 review 
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process, we are all too acutely aware of the lack of financial 
management and accountability to the stakeholders that took 
place during the years preceding the review. We have closely 
monitored tl)e board's proceedings subsequent to 1989 and 
find that there have been significant improvement In all areas. 
Management has been tighter, policies have been developed, 
investment results have been stable, decisions have been 
explainable In most Instances, and the board has put forth a 
commendable effort in meeting with industry groups, and our 
chamber in particular, to Inform us about plans In progress. 

Which Is not to say that continuing assessments, monitoring 
and changes are not required. Further, we must ensure there 
are no more costly · •deata• or decisions made for political 
purposes, as noted In the 1989 review, that drive up 
asaessment rates and dilute the focus of the WCB. 

Matters Needing Attention 

The NWT Chamber of Commerce notes the following areas 
requiring Investigation and satisfactory reaolutlon: 

Q Workplace safety. We must work to a system that provide, 
recognition to employers who Improve the ufety of the 
workplace and therefore reduce claim,. While there it 
proviaion In the act In aectlon 62 for what have become 
known as •auper asaesamenta• for employers with poor claim 
records, there is no recognition for employers with good or 
improving claim records. Thit lhould be remedied. 

2) Costs. WCB administration and general coata betwHn 
1989 and 1990 roae from $3.4 million to $4.1 million. an 
increase of 20 per cent. Wtry? 

3) Contingency r ... rve. The contingency r ... rve Increased 
from $6.7 million in 1989 to $9.2 million In 1990, an Increase 
of 37 per cent. When will there be enough In the contingency 
fund? 

4) Economic condition,. While the chamber app,eclatet the 
need for WCB to remain fully funded and fuffil ltl 
reaponaibilltiff, WCB must alao fulfil thoae funetloM In the 
context of the Northwest Territoriff economic picture. With the 
downtum in economic activity, the employer·• ability to pay in 
aome circumatances Is diminiahed. All agenciea with the 
power to tax must be respectful of the broade, milieu. 
particularly for employers 1ubject to condition• ~ond their 
control or Influence. 

5) Appeal, tribunal. Under Section 7.1 the chairpenon of the 
appeals tribunal must be a member of the Workera· 
Compensation Board. How can the rui. of Ndural justice be 
reapected by having appeal• to a ct.ciaion hMrd by a 
member with the ability to influence the onginal decitlon7 
The appealt tribunal mult be. and be peN:etYed to be. 
completely aeparate from the board 

6) Injured worker tranaportation. For eome time the Norman 
Well• Chamber of Commerce hu uked for Section 54 (9) to 
be changed to have the employe, ~ble tor 
tranaportation to the nearest nurting ttalion. Employefl 
operating In communitiea without phyticiana or hoapltall are 
unfairty burdened through incurring the coeta of air medivacs. 
In the case of aome of our amaller employ.,., theee coata. in 
the case of multiple injuriN. could ~ipltate the demlM of 
the bullneaa. We do not think thia waa the board'a intent. 

Agencies, Board And Commi..lon• CommlttN Review 

The Northwest Territoriea Chamber of Commerce urgea you to 
proceed cautioualy with your review. We hew pondered long 
the role that your committff might have in relation to workera· 
compenaation. We have reviewed the complaints membera 

have brought to the Legislative Asaembly during the last 
sesaion. We find it appropriate that you comment only on the 
political aspecta of workers' compensation. 

Exclusive Jurisdiction 

We would find It totally Inappropriate were you to be tempted 
to dabble In matters that Infringe upon the exclusive 
jurisdiction of WCB. It la not the job of the Legislative 
Aaaembly or thl1 committee to aet asaeasment rates, policy on 
lump aum payments, rehabilitation programs, medical 
evaluations, investment policy or other function• preaently 
under the mandate of the board. Becauae we do not aH this 
aa part of your responsibility, coupled with our lack of 
technical knowledge in theae matters, we will not offer any 
further comment. 

However, we do encourage a periodic review of the operations 
of the board, by an Independent agency, to offer an 
evaluation of the board'• progress in aatisfactorily improving 
Its aervice. Any review ahould be accompanied by a financial 
asaesament of the recommendatlona. 

Legislative Assembly 

It 11 the job of the Legislative Aasembly to pus legislation and 
to provide input into and review proposed legislation. We 
understand the current workers' compensation legislation Is in 
aeriou, need of review. We strongly urge the formation of a 
working group, the same u was established to develop the 
new Mine Safety Act. for thia proceas. Any propoaed changes 
should be accompanied by coating of such change,. 

Minister Responsible For The Workers' Compen .. tton 
Board 

Harmony. Among the Minister'• responsibilities should be 
asalltance to the board to function harmoniously with other 
mandated govemment departments and programa. Had the 
Minister played a stronger mediator role In the recent split 
betwNn the Workers' Compensation Board and the 
Department of Safety and Public Services over the delivery of 
aafety education programs, and with the NWT Power 
Corporation over investments, we would not have been treated 
to the public aquabbles which could and should have been 
avoided. As well, aolutlons could have been found that would 
have reaulted in a more satisfactory end. 

Board Appointments. The Minister ia also responsible for 
appointing board members. The whole tenor of the 
effectiveneaa of the Workers' Compensation Board is aet by 
the board of directors. We cannot emphasize too strongly 
the Importance of filling theae poaitlona with highly competent 
and dedicated people who will bring to the table the skills 
required to property manage the $100 million trust fund and 
NI the pollciN and proc"'" for fairty, justly and attentively 
delivering the compenaation programs. 

The miniaterial tolerance of the inefficiencies of the board in 
the 19801 is well documented in the 1989 review. Since 1989 
vacant poaitions have been left unfilled despite 1ubmiasions 
by induatry and follow-up inquiries and requests which went 
unanswered. Two positiona were filled thit past winter with no 
CONultation with Industry groupa. Aleo, two wHka ago we 
learned that all preaent appointments have been extended, 
again with no conaultation or Industry Input. 

The chairperaon hu fared no better. All stakeholder groups 
applauded . the appointment by the then Mln_ister, the 
honourable Nellie Coumoyea. of a strong chairperson in 1989, 
to effect the improvements recommended by the 1989 review 
panel. Earlier this year, the chairmanship was not renewed 
but rather left to lapse. We now nave an amazing situation 
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where a mid-level Workers' Compensation Board employee 
has been appointed as chairperson. This absolutely defies 
explanation and could be sequeled to appointing a civil 
servant, for example, the director of policy in the Department 
of Economic Development and Tourism, to fill the position of 
Minister of Economic Development and Tourism should it, for 
some reason, become vacant. Why was a board member not 
appointed to serve as acting chairperson? More importantly, 
why was such an important position left to lapse? The expiry 
date of the incumbent's term was well known. Responsible 
conduct dictates that a decision or appointment should be 
been made in a timely manner in order to ensure the 
leadership of the board continued uninterrupted. 

Further, we have no knowledge of how long this interim 
arrangement is to continue. The cha.irmanship role remains 
undefined. Are we looking for part time, full time, public 
relations skills, northern knowledge, investment expertise, 
claims expertise? The list goes on. How can we fill the 
position without defining the job? How can we expect to 
attract a competent person to the position without offering 
some guidelines, stability and defined framework? These 
questions must be answered, and it is imperative that the 
parties answering the questions be from the employer and the 
employee groups. To assist the Minister, we offer the 
following recommendations on the board appointments, which 
includes the chairmanship. 

Recom·mendetions 

I) The board be composed of a neutral chairperson, who is 
acceptable to both employers and employees. Remaining 
board positions be filled only by representation of employers 
and employees. 

2) Job descriptions be developed; time commitments, duties, 
and knowledge required by well documented. understood and 
accepted. 

3) Interested applicants be interviewed and assessed. based 
on the requirements of the position . 

4) Accountability for board members be defined. understood. 
and accepted for all parties. 

5) Board position terms be staggered in time 10 that all 
positions do not come up for renewal at the same time. 

6) The remuneration for the chairperson and board members 
be adequate to attract competent people; employers be 
involved in setting rates. At the present time we do not know 
the levels that are being paid. 

Board members must be accountable to the stakeholder 
groups; namely the employers and the employees At 
present. we are bystanders to the process. y~ are legislated 
to contribute assessments with no control or input Th,a must 
change. Employers must have direct input into determ,nat,on 
of costs and assessments . By developing accountab,hty from 
the board of d irectors. we will be able to work wrth them in 
dealing with the frustrations encountered in the admin,strat,on 
of the workers · compensation program. 

The Nature Of The Workers' Compensation Board 

We also urge you as legislators to seriously consider the 
nature of boards. If you want a program controlled by . or 
under the direction of, a Minister of the government. then a 
department staffed by civil servants should be established 
The nature of a board . and especially a board such as the 
Workers · Compensation Board. which 1s not f,nancially 
supported by general revenues. 1s that rt 1s created to operate 
at arm 's length from the government. The legislative 

Assembly has the power to enact the legislation but them 
must remove itself and charge the board with fulfilling the 
requirements of the legislation. Periodic reviews and a 
framework of accountability are then the tools available to 
measure performance. 

Conclusion 

In conclusion, we wish to repeat our appreciation of your 
invitation to appear before you. We also repeat our general 
support of the progress made since 1989 in bringing the 
Northwest Territories workers' compensation to becoming a 
more credible, financially responsible and stable program. We 
trust you will implement our suggestions for further 
improvements, however, and strongly emphasize our position 
that the exclusive jurisdiction of workers' compensation be 
protected in order that resources be devoted to fair and 
equitable compensation for injured workers at a manageable 
cost to employers. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Mr. Yamkowy. I assume 
there are a few issues the Members may wish to address. 
Don, our committee has no questions, but do you have any 
other comments you wish to make? 

MR. YAMKOWY: No. I do not, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay. The next group is the 
Northern Employers' Council on Workers' ·Compensation. 
They are scheduled for 2:30, but I see, I think, most of their 
representatives are here. I do not know if they are ready to 
make their presentation or not. 

If you are ready to proceed, maybe we should, because I 
think we may have similar themes here. Okay. I appreciate 
your groups' ability to appear before us a little before the time 
scheduled. You are representing the Northern Employers' 
Council on Workers' Compensation. Please use the 
microphone; there is a button on it. You can introduce 
yourself and cohorts and proceed wjth your presentation. 
please. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Thank you Mr. Chairman and committee 
Members. My name is Fred Leonardis, and I am a director of 
the Northern Employers' Council on Workers' Compensation. 
We will refer to it by its acronym, NECWC. Appearing with 
me are fellow directors, Garth Wood, representing the retailers, 
and Charlie Fair, representing road transport. I represent the 
Yellowknife Chamber of Commerce on the board. 

Presentation By Mr. Fred Leonardis, Northern Employers' 
Council On Workers' Compensation 

NECWC is an association of employers groups representing 
the NWT Chamber of Mines, the NWT Construction 
Association, the NWT Chambers of Commerce, Road and Air 
Transport. Marine Transport, as well as tourism, retail and 
hotel groups. The industries we represent contribute 
approximately 80 per cent of the total employer premiums 
paid to the Workers' Compensation Board, or almost $60 
million annually. 

NECWC was formed in the winter of 1991-92 as a result of 
commonly held employer concerns and frustrations regarding 
WCB activities and costs. The announcement last September 
of significant rate increases, coupled with individual employer 
helplessness to significantly affect WCB operations and 
decision-making, led to the formation of this council. 

As one of the two major stakeholders in WCB, the other being 
the workers, it is our intent to become much more involved in 
WCB activities: to monitor, advise and consult on issues 
related to the WCB. 
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Mr. Chairman, one of the critical concerns NECWC has today 
is the relationship between the Legislative Assembly and the 
WCB: what it is, what it has been, and, most importantly, 
what we believe it should be. Recent debates in the 
Legislative Assembly regarding WCB accountability, board 
appointments, and WCB investment policy have, in our 
estimation, demonstrated a lack of understanding of what 
WCB is. The WCB is an agency established to provide 
protection to employers and workers. Unlike other boards and 
agencies which your committee might review, this agency Is 
totally funded through employer contributions and returns on 
the investment of these contributions. It is not a government 
department or a government funded agency. This distinction 
must be clearly understood. 

When individual companies currently pay premiums in the 
range of eight per cent of their payroll to support the activities 
of the WCB, they have a direct and very real interest in any 
decisions which could increase these already significant costs. 

Board Appointments 

Mr. Chairman, as employers whose contributions fund this 
multi-million dollar agency, we have a direct interest in seeing 
the most capable and skilled people appointed as board 
directors. Direction provided by this board is critical to the 
stewardship of WCB funds and the reconciliation of employer 
and worker interests. The involvement of employers and 
workers in the selection of board appointHs is essential. In 
fact. echoing the recommendations of the government­
commissioned WCB Review Panel Report of 1989, the board 
itself should consist solely of an equal balance of labour and 
employer representatives with a neutral chair. The drive to 
make board appointments based on political considerations of 
ethnicity, regionalism or gender can rHult in a board lacking 
the skills and understandiog to adequately perform its duties. 
We cannot support such appointments. 

Investment Polley 

Mr. Chairman. the NWT WCB is one of the fully funded WCBs 
in Canada today . We want to keep it that way. 

Investment decisions which reduce the viability of these funds 
· will ultimately require either an increue in employer premiums 

or infusions of government funding Neither of these options 
Is desirable. WCB pension and contingency funds cannot be 
viewed as a cash cow which can be milked for cheap sources 
of GNWT funding . Investment decisions mul1 continue to be 
made by professional invHtment managers whose 
performance is monitored by the WCB. TheH investment 
managers cannot be directed to accept non-marhtable 
securities which would seriously impact on their fle1ub1hty and 
ability to manage WCB funds tor maximum retuma 

Exclusive Jurisdiction 

Mr. Chairman, in the matter of •exclusive jurisdic:tion." It is our 
strong conviction that control of the claims p,oeess and 
decision-making must remain with the WCB Systems and 
policies must be defendable and equitably appl..C, To do 
otherwise leaves the process open to a whole range of 
interference and possible abuse of the proeHs While we 
recognize the responsibility and dHire of politicians to 
represent their constituents· lnterem, the Mttlement of 
outstanding WCB claims and/or grievance, cannot take place 
in the political arena. 

Hunters And Trappers 

It was a decision of the GNWT in 1987 to extend coverage to 
hunters and trappers and to fund claims through the 
Department of Renewable Resources. As an employer group 

we raise this issue for two reasons: One, the WCB has taken 
a lot of criticism lately for a program that is not. even theirs. 
The criteria for claimants and the amounts they can claim 
should properly be determined by those who established the 
program and pay for it. This is the GNWT and the 
Department of Renewable Resources. Number two, the WCB 
administers thii program for the Department of Renewable 
Resources and the GNWT and must be able to recover all 
costs plus the administration costs. Such arrangements 
should be formalized in a memorandum of agreement and not 
In legislation. 

The WCB Review Panel Report of 1989 observed that from its 
first year of operation, when claims costs were approximately 
$28,000, hunters' and trappers' claims mushroomed in 1989 
to increase costs to the GNWT by a million dollars. We 
understand that claims costs under this program for the period 
of 1988 to 1990 exceeded $2.4 million. 

This cost was not originally anticipated when the decision was 
made to provide coverage for hunters and trappers. It 
underlines the fact that hard political decision must be made 
as to who, how, and to what extent hunters and trappers can 
access these benefits. Mr. Chairman, we believe these 
decisions are not the responsibility of the WCB but must be 
placed in the hands of a more appropriate agency such as the 
Department of Renewable Resources or the FMB, as 
examples. 

Role Of Legislative Assembly Re wee 

Mr. Chairman, we see the role of the Legislative Assembly as 
an Important one in many areas such as the passage of 
legislation, ensuring regular reviews are conducted, and acting 
u a guardian of the public trust I will expand on this: 

1) Board appointments. Board appointments must take place 
on a timely basis. We cannot afford to repeat the experience 
of the past few years, where board positions remained vacant 
despite numerous submissions of qualified nominees. Terms 
for board appointments must be staggered so as to promote 
liability, improve continuity, and enable the WCB to maximize 
the benefit of funds expended on directors' skills development. 
The Legislative Assembly must ensure that proposed 
appointments to the board and the chair have the support of 
employer and labour groups. 

2) Periodic reviews. Mr. Chairman, WCB legislation and 
operations must be reviewed and possibly amended on a 
regular basis. As well, issues and concerns raised by 
constituents may point to a need for a need for a review of 
existing policy or procedures. Ensuring that these reviews 
take place and that they are conducted by knowledgeable, 
impartial :::ommittees Is another important function of the 
Minister and the Legislative Assembly. Of course, any review 
of the WCB must Involve employer and labour groups; further, 
any proposed recommendations for change must be costed 
prior to Implementation. 

3) Public guardianship. Mr. Chairman, the Legislative 
Assembly cannot allow individual or political agendas to 
impact the future of the WCB. A financially weakened WCB 
requiring massive additional infusions of employer and/or 
public moneys must be avoided. That leads me to my final 
observation on the role of the GNWT and the WCB. The 
GNWT should act as a guardian of the overall public interest 
in ensuring that the WCB is wisely and prudently managing 
the moneys entrusted to it by the employers and safeguarding 
it for the benefit of the workers. 

Legislation 

Mr. Chairman, it is our recommendation that a review similar 
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to th!l one being done for the Mine Safety Act be established 
for the Workers' Compensation Act. This would consist of an 
independent review conducted by a committee made us of 
labour and employer representatives and a neutral chair, 
which would invite stakeholder submissions. 
Recommendations for legislative change would be costed for 
their impact on assessment rates and, if acceptable, prepared 
as draft legislation which would be presented to the 
Legislative Assembly in the normal channels. 

GNWT Lease Of Surplus Space 

Mr. Chairman, in 1984 the boards submitted a proposal to the 
Minister of the day for the construction of an office building in 
downtown Yellowknife. The response at that time was 
negative and stated that it 'would not be in the best interests 
of the government at this time to allow the WCB to acquire its 
own office building.' The WCB today occupies the leased 
space in the City Centre Square. How and why the WCB 
entered into its current lease, which includes approximately 
5000 square feet of surplus space, is a matter of history. 
However, the additional drain on WCB funds is significant. 

The Review Committee Report of 1989 observed that the effect 
of the move to these premises on the operating costs of the 
WCB in the next five to 1 O years would be, and I quote, 
"increased in the order of $1 .5 million more than if they had 
purchased their own office space ... .' That means that by 
renting the space, the cost has increased to the employers by 
$1 .5 million. 'There is a risk that additional costs may be as 
high as $1 .8 million to two million dollars.' 

Political decisions forced the WCB. and employers, to assume 
these increased costs; therefore, it is our recommendation that 
where a need for GNWT office space is identified, first 
consideration should be given to leasing the WCB surplus 
space. 

WCB Accessibility 

One of the greatest sources of frustration over the past few 
years has been the lack of responsiveness and accountability 
of the WCB Minister, and consequently the board . to employer 
concerns and interests. Submissions of nominations to the 
Minister for the vacant WCB board positions were 
unacknowledged and ignored, as were requests for 
information. Mr. Chairman. committee Members, there is an 
old principle we th ink should be kept in m•nd. You pay . you 
play . 

I am happy to report that we have begun to see .ome moves 
toward better consultation with industry . The Workers· 
Compensation Board and staff have made senous attempts to 
respond to our inquiries We have been able to meet with the 
new Minister responsible for the WCB and have begun the 
process of provI0Ing informed input into the WCB process 
To do this . NECWC has set up committees respons,ble for 
researching and developing employer posrt1on1 on WCB 
issues. We are not in the process of gathering employer 
nominations for the upcoming vacanciea on the bOard We 
expect two, and ultimately three. appoIntmenta to the bOard to 
result from these nominations. 

Mr. Chairman. it is our hope and expectation that this 
committee, and indeed. all Members of the Leg11latrve 
Assembly will recognize that their respons1biht1es extend 
beyond simple representation of individual constrtuent interests 
to acting as guardians of the general public good This 
particularly applies to the WCB. which provides an essential 
service to all employees and employers. wrth funds drawn 
from employer premiums and investments. It Is in all our best 
interests to ensure that the WCB can continue to provide the 
service It was created to provide. at a cost that employers can 

bear. To do otherwise is to risk increased business failure, 
diminished funds for injured workers, and,_ ultimately, 
increased costs for government. 

Mr. Chairman, and Members of the committee, thank you very 
much for inviting us to make this pcesentation. We are open 
to your questions. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Mr. Leonardis. Do any 
of the committee Members wish to respond? Do you have 
any questions or comments on the presentation? Mr. Lewis. 

WCB As Arm's Length Agency And Political interference 

MR. LEWIS: We have had several submissions which point 
out the need to have this remain as an arm's length agency. 
It seems to run through all the submissions we get, because 
of the history, I suppose, of what is considered to be political 
interference. 

One thing I do know on the one issue you raise about 
whether they should have built their own building or whether 
they should have leased it. You have to remember that at that 
particular time there was a considerable effort on behalf of 
several Members throughout the Territories to move the 
Workers' Compensation Board out of Yellowknife, and it was 
in that environment that all of this discussion took place. 
Because there were lots of things on the chopping block to be 
moved out of the city, and there was some feeling that 
perhaps the desire to own the building was being done to 
prevent that process from taking place. There was also some 
speculation that the leasing arrangement that was entered into 
was done in such a way that would curtail any possibility of 
moving it out, because of the kind of lease that was entered 
into. 

I make that comment simply because it is still unclear in some 
areas where political activity is all right and where it is not. 
I agree that on the issue of the operation of the board, the 
way its decisions are made, and so on. should be beyond 
political interference. There is no doubt in my mind 
whatsoever that that is the principle that we should operate 
under. But when you are looking at the major economic 
activities, and the fact that many places do not have very 
much, there is always that temptation to look at what parts of 
government could go to different places. 

I just wanted to make that as a comment, Mr. Chairman, that 
I did see this as one example of political interference, if you 
like. where there was some concern that the board would be 
mov_ed out, and not because of the principle of having things 
done elsewhere, but maybe there are some things that just 
cannot be moved that easily and continue to perform the 
function that you would like to see it perform. So I just 
wanted to make that comment, that that is one example where 
I do see some example of potential political interference that 
may have been headed off. 

I agree with all the comments that have been made about the 
arm's length relationship and the fact that the stakeholders 
should have a far greater say in the way appointments are 
made, and so on. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Brian. I can just add to 
that. I guess, as committee chairman. Members of this 
committee are elected officials representing various 
constituencies, elected by people, a majority of whom do not 
live in Yellowknife. We consider them the silent majority. 
They are not organized. They do not necessarily have a 
voice. We are looking at this organization, the Workers' 
Compensation Board, because in the act it states that the 
Minister shall prepare an annual report and shall table an 
annual report. Once an annual report is tabled, we as 
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Members of the Legislature can ask and enquire and do 
whatever we wish in terms of finding out what goes on within 
the material that is presented. 

Also, the mandate of this committee gives us the authority to 
look at any boards, agencies, or commissions. That is within 
the legislative reign of this government. So that is why we are 
here, and that is why we are looking at Workers' 
Compensation. 

I would like just maybe an explanation on one of your points 
regarding political involvement. You various times refer to the 
1989 review. I am a bit confused, because one of the 
recommendations in the 1989 review was that the Minister 
responsible for Workers' Compensation Board be empowered 
to take a more active role in the monitoring of the 
management of the board. I am not sure if you are 
supporting that or not supporting it. Maybe I could get some 
clarification. 

MR. LEONARDIS: It depends on how that is viewed. As a 
trustee, we are saying, 'Yes.• We believe that the Minister 
should be a trustee of the WCB fund. We do not believe that 
the Minister should be totally, or should eliminate the 
involvement of the stakeholders. Do you have anything to 
add to that, Garth? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): And another thing. Our committee • 
• I do not think the intent is for u1 to get involved in all the 
day-to-day stuff that was mentioned in your presentation. It i1 
almost Impossible, with all the other activities that we do. We 
will be taking, again, the comments, the presentation, that we 
hear during this week, and there will be other sessions, to 
determine, I guess, looking at legi1latlon and making 
recommendations. Our recommendation, will be tabled In the 
form of a report. which will be tabled in the Assembly. The 
report will be addressed, basically, to the Minister responsible 
for workers' compensation, and then he in tum will deal with 
it, I guess, accordingly, how he sees frt. obviously, and I hope 
in conjunction with the board and the organization. 

That is our process. If there is legislative change and then it 
comes back at a later day, I guest the recommendations we 
make, hopefully, will then be translated Into print and may be 
in the form of new legislation. But that 11 a considerably way 
down the road, I think, unless there are some really serious, 
significant changes that are required immediately Then we 
can act more quickly. But that i1 something that hu to be 
determined during this week. 

MR. LEONARDIS: If we can be of any help, Mr Chairman, 
we would be most happy to do so. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Any other Members have any 
comments? Mr. Todd. 

MR. TODD: Yes. I am sure the wor1um will be pi.aMd to 
hear your statement about "You pay; you play • Ale you 
suggesting that only the contributors to the fund should have 
a say in the worl<ers' compensation - ii that yOYr Implication 
with that comment? 

MR. LEONARDIS: No. As a matter of fact. Mr. Todd. If you 
were paying attention, all the way through the report we were 
referring to two stakeholders: the employer and the employee. 
We feel that the WCB was in fact established to nfeguard 
both the employer and the employee, and we feel that it 11 

imperative that both be equally represented 

MR. TODD: So on this Northern Employers · Council on 
Workers' Compensation, NECWC. has that been elected by 
northern employers, or is that just a coalition of groups? Was 
an election called ... 

MR. LEONARDIS: Actually what waa done, each organization 
appointed a representative to the board, and we meet on a 
regular basis, monthly, and each board member is responsible 
to his organization, and we have the full support of all the 
organizations represented. 

MR. TODD: But it was not an elected position, correct? You 
were not elected directly to this northern employers' council. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Each one was elected by their board, yes 
- by their ... 

MR. TODD: You were not elected by the northern employers 
across the Territories. It was an appointment made by 
whatever orge.nizations you represent. Is that correct? 

MR. LEONARDIS: Each member was elected by the 
individual organization. Yes. 

MR. TODD: There was no direct election on the part of all 
the employers in the Northwest Territories on this Northern 
Employers' Council on Workers' Compensation. 

MR. LEONARDIS: No. 

lnvHtment Of wee Funds In NWT 

MR. TODD: Okay. Thank you. Another question. I do not 
want to be too flippant, but when I look at the Chamber of 
Mines presentation, the Chamber of Commerce, and Northern 
Employers, I thought maybe you were all in the same room 
when you wrote them, but I guess one question I want to ask 
at this point is on this funding thing, where you suggest that 
WCB pension and contingency funds cannot be viewed as a 
"cash cow" which can be milked for cheap sources of GNWT 
funding. Maybe I am missing something here, but I as an 
advocate, as you probably know, have said that some of the 
Workers' Compensation funds should be re-invested in the 
Northwest Territories. I am a bit concerned about where the 
paranoia seems to be in this thing. I mean this as a serious 
question. 

When I talk, if I can, because it is an issue that is close to my 
heart, when you talk about re-investing some of these funds, 
I am talking about a marginal amount of the funds. I am 
talking about investment on the same principle as the 
Worl<ers' Compensation currently doe; its funding through the 
investment counsello.rs, whether it is Bolton, Tremblay, Laketon 
Investments, McConnell or whoever. I sense in your comment, 
and in Mr. Yamkowy's and Mr. Willy's, that you have got this 
Interpretation that we are going to pour this money in to 
subsidize programs out there. Am I getting the wrong 
me1aage here, or what? I would like more clarification of 
where you are coming from on this issue. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Leonardis. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Basically, what we are saying is that 
Investment decisions should be made based on good 
Investment decisions, not to - and I am saying this in true 
honesty - comply with some political agenda or to some pet 
project As you noticed by our presentation, we did not 
1pecify whether it should be in the Northwest Territories, 
Russia or the United States. What we state is that invested 
funds, a very large contribution to the WCB, which impacts the 
rates, and what we are saying is that whatever decisions are 
made, they are made based on good investment decisions, 
not on political agendas. 

MR. TODD: You are saying, by implication anyway, with all 
due respect, by implication you are saying, we want to see 
the fund invested in the same way they are currently being 
invested, and that 100 per cent of the funds except for a small 
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thing with maybe the Power Corporation or something - but 
my interpretation is that by implication you are saying, we do 
not want any of the funds invested in the North. I would like 
to be more specific. Where are we concerned? What do you 
mean by 'pet projects'? What do you mean by 'political 
interference'? I mean this seriously. What do you mean? Are 
you saying to me that you find that perhaps there has been 
political interference because the NWT Power Corporation, a 
couple of weeks or three weeks ago, went to the Workers' 
Compensation Board and said, 'Give us $20 million'? Is that 
what you are saying? Let us cut the wheat from the chaff 
here. 

MR. LEONARDIS: No, what I am saying here is that in the 
past, decisions have been made that were not good economic 
decisions. 

MR. TODD: Where? 

MR. LEONARDIS: Well, let us take. this building ... 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Order. Please address through the 
Chair. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman, as Mr. Lewis attested to, 
the political decision was made that they would not build their 
own building. They would lease instead. That created a cost 
to the employers of $1.5 million. Now, Mr. Lewis did qualify, 
or at least explain the reason behind it, but the fact of the 
matter was that it was a political decision, and that political 
decision cost the employers $1 .5 million. What I would like to 
express to Mr. Todd is, we are not specifically stating that 
whether it is the Power Corporation or it is a Yak farm down 
in Gjoa Haven, or whatever it happens to be, what we are 
basically stating is that if, in fact, there is a good investment 
decision, then it should be invested in the North. But it 
should not be invested in the North strictly because it is the 
North. Mr. Chairman, we are talking reasonable here. Let us 
assume that if an average return is 18 per cent, we think they 
should maintain some sort of criteria. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd . 

MR. TODD: Let me ask you th is question. Now I have got 
a brt of a selfish agenda here and I am going to qualify rt up 
front because I think we should be putting some of the money 
back in the North. because some of us have got some faith in 
it and some of us can give Northerners a reasonable return for 
their investment, and I am sure all of you, yourself included 
could do the same. If there was a reasonable return - by the 
way I do not believe for one minute that the Workers· 
Compensation Board gets you an average of 18 per cent or 
as Mr. Willy sa•d th•s morning. 23 per cent I am askmg for 
a clarification on that. You are probably lucky rf you get SIX 

or seven or eight points. and in today ·• world you would be 
lucky if you got that. 

The point I am try•ng to make is. rf in an ideal 1ttuabon you 
had an element of security, whatever you nHd as a 
stakeholder. some kind of marginal guarantee rf you want. 
would you be prepared to support the idea of bring,ng back 
in some of th is Workers' Compensation Board fund ing into an 
investment fund that would assist small business. hke yourself. 
in the Northwest T errrtones? If ,t got the same kmd of return 
as you are currently getting with Bowens (sic) or Arctic Gas. 
Alberta Telephone bonds and stuff like that? That 11 why I am 
getting a bit confused here. I need to know. beca\Jse there 
is no point in pursuing this thing any further rf the public is 
not going to support it 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman. I think what we are saying 
here - and I am a !irm believer of the North obviously 
because my livelihood 1s in the North as well - what we are 

saying is that we expect the WCB to follow prudent investment 
policy for the benefit of the employee and the employer. If, 
in fact, that can be done by investing in the North, I do not 
think there is anyone who would say, 'No, we will not invest 
in the North.• 

CHAIRMAN (Mt. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

MR. TODD: I wanted it official and said out loud, and I am 
glad to hear it. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Any other committee Members? Mr. 
Dent. 

MR. DENT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We have heard quite 
a number of the presenters say that they want to see the 
Workers' Compensation Board maintained at arm's length. We 
had a presentation this morning where the· recommendation 
was made that a final route of appeal should exist outside of 
the Workers' Compensation Board. I guess the case can be 
made that, for instance if the CRTC makes a decision about 
a radio licence, that can be appealed to cabinet, or if a public 
utilities board makes a decision, there is always a political 
route of appeal, if you will. In the Alberta legislation, the 
Lieutenant Governor in Council is allowed to intervene if he is 
of the opinion that injustice or hardship of the worker has 
resulted or will result from a decision of the board, 
notwithstanding anything in the act or the policies. What 
would your position be on writing that kind of appeal 
mechanism in as a last step? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Leonardis. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman, I really am not too familiar 
with our jurisdiction. One of the things that comes to mind, 
of course, is that the appeal process we have in the Northwest 
Territories is, there is an appeal 
where there is an employer/employee group, and to my 
knowledge, and I could be wrong and I am sure you will 
probably hear from the employee groups, but there has not 
been a great deal of difficulty, or at least every employee has 
been ... (inaudible) may not think it is fair, but every appeal has 
been looked upon and acted and evaluated, and fairly to my 
knowledge. So the additional process, I really do not know. 
I do not see what benefit it would have, to have someone 
involved that has absolutely no expertise in the workings of 
the WCB, the medical problems of the injured worker, but then 
again if it is proven to be valuable - I really do not know. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Dent. Mr. Todd. 

Polltlcal Interference In WCB 

MR. TODD: Just again, help me out here. Exclusive 
jurisdiction, you say that while you recognize the responsibility 
and desire of politicians to represent their constituents' 
interests. settlement of outstanding WCB claims and/or 
grievances cannot take place in the political arena. What 
would you do if you were in my position, and you had a 
unilingual Inuit guy sitting in Whale Cove where the WCB has 
never, repeat never, been, and he came to you as a politician 
and said, 'Can you help me? I had an accident. .. ,' in 
lnuktitut. by the way, ' ... and nobody is responding to me.' 
What would you do? 

MR. LEONARDIS: I am sorry, nobody is what? 

MR. TODD: Nobody is responding to me. I do not know 
what to do. Would you see that, if I brought that before the 
chairman or the staff, as political interference? 

MR. LEONARDIS: No. I do not see that as political 
interference. You went to the board, and the board was an 
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independent body who looked at it, for whatever reason, 
whether they did not get the claim or whatever may be. I do 
not see that as being interference, as long as you did not 
have the power to force the board to act. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

MR. TODD: You are really in a unique situation over here. 
You have well organized lobby groups representing whatever 
side of the equation you are sitting on. I said this to the 
previous reports. There has to be a recognition on behalf of 
your group and others, that there is another group of people 
out there who simply do not have that kind of lobbying and 
political skill. It is obvious, if you look at this review, that 
there is not a single presentation being made from anybody 
from the Eastern Arctic, or anybody from the aboriginal 
groups, or anybody from any unorganized, and I use 
'unorganized' liberally, employers. So I just want to get It 
clear what you are talking about, because I SM it, just so you 
know where I am coming from, I SM It clearly, Mr. Leonardis, 
as my job as an MLA and as a politician elected by people in 
Keewatin, to interfere if they fMI that the system is not treating 
them fairly. I want to make that clear, where I am coming 
from. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Leonardis. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman, I do not want to argue with 
Mr. Todd as to what his responsibilities to his constituents are. 
I do not SM the difference between an injured worker in 
Iqaluit or Gjoa Haven, and an injured worker In BC. They an 
have the same interests and the same problems and the same 
requirements. The fact of the matter is that you are mHting 
here in Yellowknife. and we are here. Therefore. we are here 
to make a presentation. If you had met In Iqaluit, you can rest 
assured that we would not be there giving a presentation 
because of the costs of travel. However. the WCB is an 
insurance program. It is a no-fault insurance program. and if 
It works effectively. it should work for what it wu set up for • 
• the benefit of the employee who has been injured. and that 
is in fact why the whole thing was set up. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

MR. TODD: I do want to argue, Mr. Leonardis. because I 
want to get a clear definition of what you mean by 'political 
interference,' and I am asking a serious question. I am not 
sure I understand; I live in a pretty simple world. so meybe 
you could give me what you mean by 'political Interference'. 

I mean. it is important because there was a heavy debate In 
the Legislative Assembly in the last round. It is not complete. 
and do you fMI that was political interference. fOf example'> 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Leonardis. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Well . let us go back to what you taid 
earlier, Mr. Todd. Mr. Chairman, H you do not m,nd If you 
pay the bills, you have the right to do whatever the hell you 
want If you do not pay the bills, then we have to involve the 
people that are paying the bills. Now, H you go 1n there. and 
I am talking about political interference, if you can go in there 
because of your position and influence the board to do 
something that was not according to policy Of directive. that 
ia political interference. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Antoine. 

Appointments To The Board 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to 
thank Fred Leonardis. I agrM with a lot of your presentation, 
but I nMd clarification on a couple of points . 

I am a Dene so I want this clarified. You are saying that you 
do not support appointments based on political consideration 
of ethnicity - meaning that you are native, I guess -
regionalism or gender which can result in the board lacking 
skills and understanding to adequately perform its duties. 
Can you clarify this for me, please? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Leonardis. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman, one of the things that is 
extremely important when you are dealing - and first of all, let 
us understand that the board is a policy-making board for the 
WCB. It is the one that has to, in fact, make the right 
decisions or policies to the benefit of the employee. What 
we are saying is, appointments should be made based on a 
person's ability to run a multi-million dollar corporation. What 
we are saying is that it does not matter whether we are talking 
about native, whether native Canadian, native American, native 
Asian or black; he or she should be appointed because of his 
or her ability to manage this multi-million dollar corporation. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Antoine. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you. I am of the opinion and view 
that even though you are native people, you can sit on these 
kinds of boards. It is a free country. I think a lot of people 
that are native are capable on sitting on these sorts of boards. 
I think you should not disagree with any appointments 
because you are native. I would like to make this point. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman, what we said Is whether 
they are native, black or oriental, they should be on the board 
if the have the capability. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Antoine. 

MR. ANTOINE: I am a new MLA here since October, so I am 
trying to find out about WCB. I have been involved in WCB 
on the giving end of it. I paid the dues myself so I know how 
that feels. In your presentation, you se.id you supported the 
process in 1989 in which a review committee report was 
completed. You seem to feel that this is the best way to find 
out what is needed for the board. Is this correct? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Leonardis. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman, I do not know if that is the 
best wey. That is one of the ways It was done and it seems 
to have brought up a lot of Information that was not available 
to the employers before, given some insight to what was 
happening with the inner works of the WCB. We thought It 
wu a reasonable way to approach it. There may be other 
weys of doing it; I am not sure. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Antoine. 

MR. ANTOINE: In 1989, there was a recommendation, No. 
62. which I would like to read. It says, ' ... that in the future the 
Minister responsible for the Workers' Compensation Board be 
involved by the board In any major projects or policy 
decisions that involve significant financial or other implications 
on employers and employMs. Policy guidelines should be 
established with such Involvement This recommendation is 
not Intended to reduce autonomy of the board; however, it 
must be recognized that for practical purposes, the Minister is 
ultimately accountable in the Legislative Assembly for the 
board, and must provide an appropriate level of leadership to 
the board dependent upon the situation. ft is the finding of 
this panel that the board was not satisfactorily fulfilling its 
accountability to the public on its own.' 

In your presentation, you were saying that the Legislative 
Assembly should not be involved in any decision. It seems to 
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be different from the position you are presently taking. Can 
you explain this to me? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Leonardis. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman, we are looking at it from a 
different perspective; that is, the Legislative Assembly, through 
its Minister, acts as a trustee of the WCB. The stakeholders 
are the employers and the employees. In the past. there has 
been very little interaction with the stakeholders in legislation 
and decision-making. As we mentioned in the report, it was 
virtually impossible to get information from the WCB under the 
guise of confidentiality or whatever the case may be. We 
have not changed that position. We are saying that the 
Legislative Assembly, through its Minister, must act as a 
trustee to the WCB. But the stakeholders are the ones in the 
decision-making process and must be involved in choosing 
the board, the chairman and the policy-making decisions. We 
are the ones that pay for the wrong decisions, and we feel we 
should have the right to make the wrong decisions. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

MR. TODD: We have had a lot of discussion on board 
appointments, and I think that is valid. I think your comment 
abou1 requiring skill and capable people on the board is valid. 
I am wondering what your definition is. What kind of 
qualifications do you see for a board member? Do you have 
to be a chartered accountant? Do they have to be a rocket 
scientist? What do you mean capable and skilled appointees 
to the boards? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Leonardis. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman. I am afraid I do not have 
that answer. That is something that we are working on. 
Obviously, we have to come up with something . We will be 
interacting with the Minister in that regard. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

MR. TODD: As Mr. Antoine said, do you see no need for 
ethnic or regional representation? Is th1I correct? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Leonardis. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman. that rs correct. 

MR. TODD: So 1t w;II be only sk ,,: ed people. in your v,ew at 
the current time. that can serve on this board are from 
Yellowknife and happen to be caucas1ans Is th,s correct" 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Leonardis 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman. Mr. Todd 1s really reaching 
ou1. Unless I misunderstood my own words. that was not 
exactly what was said in that report. What we said was that 
they have to be qualified. 

MR. TODD: What is your definition of qualification. then? 

MR. LEONARDIS: Let me answer that in just a 1econd. Mr 
Todd. Can you please tell me how the needs of an tnJured 
worker in Iqaluit are any different than an in1ured worker ,n 
lnuvik? What would regional representation bring into the 
WCB that would provide any benefit to the iniured worker" I 
do not know. If you do. then you have given It a great deal 
of thought or you must have some benefit that reg,onalism 
would bring to WCB. I am not aware of any. but if there ,s. 
I am sure nobody would argue that point I cannot 1ee how 
spreading the WCB, based on reg ionalism, would improve the 
board and the quality of service delivered to the injured 

worker. 
CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

MR. TODD: I think there is certainly a need, at least in my 
opinion, from a balanced point of view. I think regionalism 
provides some of that. There is no question that if a guy 
breaks his leg in Iqaluit or breaks his leg in lnuvik, he has still 
broken his leg. But how we approach that person who has 
broken his leg may be differently viewed from a guy who 
comes from Yellowknife than the guy who comes from Iqaluit. 
That is all I am saying. You need to find a balance to the 
thing. I, personally, feel that the balance is not there right 
now. 

I think you are implying - and it is improper for me to speak 
for you - when you talk about qualifications, everybody seems 
to have this idea that WCB makes decisions on the money. 
From my past experience, the money is made on qualified, 
financial managers sitting in Toronto and Calgary. There is 
a way in which even a person like myself who does not have 
that much experience in that field, can evaluate the 
perlormance of these financial people because they come 
forward and say what they did each month. I am a bit 
concerned - by implication, at least -- that what we are really 
saying here is that we need to u·nderstand finance to a far 
greater degree than I think we do. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Leonardis. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman, no, actually, I think that is 
:"e farthest from the truth. I think that when you are dealing 
..,,th a large corporation, your biggest skill that any manager 
has is personnel skills. Knowledge of finance is an excellent 
asset, bu1 when you are dealing with people, it is personnel 
skills and the ability to understand not only the people that 
you are serving -- your customers which in this case are the 
injured workers - but, also your suppliers -- the people that 
are supplying you the money, your employers -- and having 
to ensure that you maximize your return both to the injured 
worker and to the employer. They certainly must have the 
skills required to manage people and money. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Dent. 

MR. DENT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I notice in your 
presentation that you have recommended a review similar to 
the one being done by the Mine Safety Act for the legislation. 
but you do not really point out in your presentation areas of 
concern that you have with the present legislation. Are you 
sat1sfied with the present legislation or do you feel it needs to 
be reviewed right now? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Leonardis. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman, There are a few areas -
and It is very difficult for me to get into since I am not 
knowledgeable about the legislation - of concern. One, 
again, is board appointments. I believe a revision to the 
present legislation was submitted, and, to our knowledge 
nothing. nothing has happened. There is some need to 
review the legislation to amend it or bring it up to current 
status. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Dent. 

MR. DENT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. What is your group's 
opinion on the YMIR? Do you think it should be raised or 
maintained at the level it is at? Do you have any 
recommendations for a new level? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Leonardis. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman, I am afraid we do not have 
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a recommendation at the present time. It is something that 
was brought to our attention recently, and we do have 
someone looking at it to evaluate both its reasonableness, 
fairness, and its effect and cost. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Any more questions 
from Members? Mr. Antoine. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, again, Mr. Chairman. You say 
you are happy to report that there are some moves towards 
better consultation. You mention that the new Minister was 
able to meet with you and that a process has been put in 
place. Can you explain this to me, please? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Leonardis. 

MR. LEONARDIS: Mr. Chairman, we find that we are getting 
a better rapport - now there have been some changes as we 
all know, and we do not know what these changes are due to 
whether because of the change of the chairman or the change 
of some of the board members or the Minister or whatever. 
But it seems to be a more open proce11 which we very much 
appreciate. We are trying to keep It going and Improve it 80 

that we do have a good open proce11. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. On behalf of the 
committee I would like to thank you gentlemen for appearing 
before us and making your presentation. There is a lot of 
food for thought and it adds up with all the other submissions. 
The committee will rece11 until 3 :00 p.m. when we will hear 
from the Department of Renewable Resources on hunters and 
trappers coverage. 

One administrative note for the committee, we will have a 
quick caucus meeting in the back right now. 

-SHORT RECESS 

Workers' Compensation Coverage For Hunten And 
Trappers 

The committee will come to order. We have Mr. Joe Handley 
on our schedule right now. He is the deputy minister, 
Department of Renewable Resourcea. Joe, I am 1ure you are 
aware the committee is ptesentlng reviewing the Workers' 
Compensation Board and one of the areu of concern is 
coverage for hunters and trappers. We would like your ln1lght 
and background and information on what the Department of 
Renewable · Resources 11 doing in regard to coverage for 
hunters and trappers and If there is any new developments. 

Prnentatlon By Mr. Joe Handley, RMlewable RNourCH 

MR HANDLEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I r_,.,,ed a call 
yesterday to ask me to appear here to an-er qUfftions I 
have not prepared a written statement for you. I can p,ovlde 
one to you If that i1 your wi1h. In the meantime whet I wiU do 
is give .you a bit of the history from our depet1ment'1 
perspective and then attempt to answer any quetbon1 you 
want 

Basically what has happened is in 1987 the Workera· 
Compensation Ac1 was amended to provide coverage for 
hunters and trappers and then from that period on until 1990 
the Workers' Compensation Board ab1orbed the c:ost of 
ben!Jfits to hunters and trappers. In June 1990 there wu a 
cabinet record of decision which directed the Minister 
responsible for the Workers' Compensation Board to make a 
number of changes, including a change in the amount that 
trappers would be eligible for and some of theM would 
require changes to the Workers ' Compensation Act 

Essentially what the record of decision directed the Minister to 

do was to modify the eligibility guidelines to make them more 
restrictive. The reason, as I understand, for making them 
more restrictive was that they years maximum insurable 
remuneration, YMIR, was by the Workers' Compensation Act 
set at $40,000 per year. Income for an average trapper 
probably ranges more between $3000 and $7000 plus 
whatever the value would be of any food obtained through 
hunting, trapping, fishing and so on. 

The problem that this created was that whenever anybody was 
defined as being a hunter or trapper and were injured, then 
they would automatically be eligible for $40,000 per year. 
That led to the direction to make the eligibility guidelines more 
restrictive. 

In October 1990, each of the hunters and trappers 
associations received a letter from the Worker11' Compensation 
Board indicated that the definition had become much more 
restrictive; that In order to qualify, among other things, people 
would have had to have had no other Income than that 
obtained from hunting and trapping for at least 131 days and 
other various criteriL 

It created some problems and it took several months before 
the hunters and trappers associations began to voice 
complaints about it. One of the reasons of course is that 
many of them are not people who are very much into the 
reading culture or answering government mail. So a lot of 
this laid on their desks and over the fall of 1990 and spring 
of 1991 in the department we began to get more and more 
questions about why so many people were being deemed to 
be ineligible for compensation. 

We had some concerns with it and there seems to have been 
some, I think, disagreement between Renewable Resources 
and the Workers' Compensation Board about the amount of 
consultation that had taken place. My staff tell me that there 
wu very little or none before the letter went out and we 
certainly did not concur with the letter that was sent out in 
1990 and in fact feel that It does restrict-too many people from 
the definition of hunters and trappers. 

Since the fall of 1991 there has been correspondence back 
and forth . There have also been meetings between the 
Department of Renewable Resources and Workers' 
Compensation Board to look at alternatives and as a 
department we have suggested some changes to the Workers' 
Compensation Board. But the changes that we are 
suggesting would mean having to change the Workers' 
Compensation Act. The basic intent of our changes is to 
more accurately reflect reality in terms of peoples income from 
hunting and trapping. 

A MCond reaponsi_bility In the record of decision in 1990 was 
to recommend that the Department of Renewable Resources 
become more responsible for administering claims for hunters 
and trappers. Again that would require a change to the 
Workers' Compensation Act. We have some concerns about 
taking on that responsibility, primarily because of the 
administrative workload that It would create for our department 
and we are not set up to a11ess claims and so on. We have 
suggested in our eligibility a11umptions that we would assist 
in identifying people who made their principle income from 
hunting and trapping. We would make our fur records, for 
example, available. We would be able, through a panel of 
people that would include hunters and trappers 
representatives as well as renewable resources officers and 
justice of the peace and 80 on, a panel that might be able to 
determine at the local level whether or not a person was 
eligible. 

We have not come to a final decision on this with the 
Workers' Compensation Board because it would mean a 
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change to the act if we were to provide compensation less 
than the $40,000 provided by the YMIR. The level of benefits 
that we are recommending as a department would be 
somewhere in the range of $12,000 to $14,000. This would 
allow for a value of between $5000 and $7000 to be assessed 
as the value that individuals who rely on hunting and trapping 
would obtain from any meat and food that they obtain from 
hunting and trapping liveli hood. · 

That is basically where the situation is at. There are letters 
and suggestions going back and forth, but no resolution 
between our department and the Workers' Compensation 
Board. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Joe. Does your 
department currently pay premiums to the Workers' 
Compensation Board for hunters and trappers? 

MR. HANDLEY: We have had a holding figure in our budget 
that is used to pay for the cost of any benefits to hunters and 
trappers. It is only a holding figure because we do not know 
from year to year what the amount might be. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Is it used to pay benefits to hunters 
and trappers or is it used to pay premiums to WCB? 

MR. HANDLEY: It is used to pay WCB. WCB pays the 
hunters and trappers and we pay WCB, as I understand it. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): The amount of the award that is 
given ·to the hunter and trapper is recovered from the 
department? 

MR. HANDLEY: That is correct and I believe the amount is 
amortized, so it is paid up front by the government. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Lewis. 

MR. LEWIS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This has been a 
controvers ial issue for many Members. Can th is particu lar 
program really fit into the work of the Workers ' Compensation 
Board? Because the whole purpose of the WCB 1s to avoid 
employees tak ing employers to court. It 1s something that If 
you are a hunter or trapper you are self-employed and you 
look after yourself. Although it is a problem that has to be 
resolved , it seems to me we are using a mechanism that was 
designed for one purpose and we are try ing to fit all kinds of 
other stuff into it, because we do not have another solution 
Are these people any different to an individual consultant who 
works on his own? Would there be a different solution for 
hunters . trappers, .fisherman, carvers? The WCB was never 
set up to solve the kinds of problems we are asked to deal 
with . Have you thought th is one though for self-employed 
people? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe) : Joe 

MR. HANDLEY: Mr Chairman, that 1s exactty why we are in 
the problem we have right now The way the Workers· 
Compensation Act 1s currently set up it 1s not establ11hed to 
fit th is kind of situation . The problem 1s that many hunter, 
and trappers do not rely solely on hunting and trapping for 
their live lihood. Trapping may last two months and then the 
rest of the time they go on wage employment construction or 
whatever, and then go back to hunting and trapping 

I cannot speak for the reasons why it was inc luded 1n here. 
but there was a need to do something for hunters and 
trappers because it is a very important part of our whole 
lifesty le in the North and if we are going to encourage people 
to continue with that lifestyle, there was a need to assist them 
with some form of compensation package ,n the event they 
were injured while hunting and trapping . 

If it is going to continue as part of the Workers' Compensation 
Board scheme then I personally believe there has to be a 
change to the act and we have to have a much more flexible 
definition of what a hunter and trapper is. There are many 
people who trap 30 to 50 or 60 per cent of their time and the 
rest of it being made up of other forms of employment or 
assistance. 

The other problem of course is that tied very closely with the 
hunting and trapping lifestyle is the fact that they do earn sort 
of a cash equivalent in terms of food - meat and fish, from 
the livelihood that they raise and it is not as easy for them to 
simply pay premiums on the fur sales and use that as the way 
of calculating compensation. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Brian. 

MR. LEWIS: The kind of changes you would have to make 
to the act, would they substantially change the nature of what 
we are trying to do? Because as I understand it, you know, 
the origins of compensation really to do with an industrial 
economy, you know, where there were significant numbers of 
injuries in the workplace, and so on. I am not arguing that 
this particular group of people is not at risk, because it is a 
risky business. But I am wondering if we have to change the 
act so that it no longer does what it was originally set up to 
do, if we are going to include all kinds of - maybe 
consultants, for example, you know, that are self-employed 
and, in a sense, face the same kind of problem. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Handley. 

MR. HANDLEY: Mr. Chairman, yes, I believe for the situation 
that hunters and trappers find themselves in, there is a need 
for a significant change to either the Workers' Compensation 
Act or else some other form of compensation insurance for 
them. It is difficult, because as I say, the people work part 
time at it; they are involved in different kinds of activities 
within that broad definition of hunting and trapping, and so 
on . We have not come to a conclusion of whether it is 
possible to do it within the Workers" Compensation Board 
guidelines, but I have not reached the point yet where I would 
say it is impossible to fit it within the act if the act was 
changed. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE-JEWELL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I was just 
going to ask Mr. Handley if the department had considered 
other options as opposed to other options and developing for 
insurance coverage as opposed to only the WCB avenue. 
The reason I state that is that I believe the Department of 
Renewable Resources used to pay at least approximately 
about a million dollars toward WCB for coverage, the 
coverage cost for hunters and trappers. 

It would be fair to state that there is no way that it costs a 
million dollars for them to administer or for it to flow back to 
the trappers in the event that any of them were to get hurt, 
and the minimum amount given out in disability is probably 
nothing near a million dollars, that it would be cost-saving to 
your department to look at an option of another forum for the 
hunters and trappers, and that possibly be allowed to give 
you those cost savings for other programs for hunters and 
trappers. I am just wondering whether or not other options 
have been considered for insurance coverages, to get the best 
use out of the dollars from your department. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Handley. 

MR. HANDLEY: We have not looked at other options in 
terms of going to other insurance companies, for example, 
who might be interested in underwriting this for a premium, or 



Page 50 STANDING COMMITTEE ON AGENCIES, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS May 121 1992 

anything like that You are correct that we do have a lump 
sum of money that we hold in the department, and this past 
year it was $750,000 that was there as a holding figure in the 
event that we needed it to pay off the costs to hunters and 
trappers who are injured. In 91-92 we did not need that 
amount of money, but we cannot predict what it is. The 
amount of money that is there is held, basically, as a holding 
figure. If we do not spend it on that, then it rolls back into 
the government's general revenues. 

We have, again, not just in Renewable Resources but through 
a committee with Social Services and Economic Development 
and Tourism, Education, and Renewable Resources looked at 
other things in terms of harvester assistance programs. Again, 
those have not come to a conclusion, either, but there .may 
very well be other ways of providing assistance to hunters and 
trappers through some other harvester assistance program that 
may evolve as we work along. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Any other questions? 
Jim. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Other presenters 
earlier today have suggested that the administrative costs 
associated with the claims of harvesters should be paid by 
government, the Department of Renewable Resources·. What 
implications would thia have for the use of departmental staff 
and resources? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Joe. 

MR. HANDLEY: Yea, Mr. Chairman. Yee, that would depend 
on whether - If we are being asked to adminieter a program 
where we w~uld have to aneu clalma, seek medical 
opinion,, and so on. then the costs, I auppose, could be 
eubstantial. Again, I do not have an eatlmate of it because it 
would depend on the number of claims that were brought to 
u,. If there were zero claim,, of coul'N there would be no 
coete. My experience, In the put few month• that I have 
been with Renewable Resource, i• that there are not very 
many claim• being brought forward right now, at leut that -
become aware of. 

The advantage of going through the Workers' Compenaation 
Board, of course, ie that they already have a structure in place 
for a11essing claim,. As it ia now, our involvement in 
assessing claim, is very little, so of the amount of money that 
i, in our budget for thia purpose, all of it goes toward the 
premiums and the benefits. eventually, to hunters and 
trapper,. None of it goe, to administration. becauH we do 
not take it upon ourselvea to asseu anything. other than 
providing advice, if we are asked whether or not someone 
actually sold furs or was Involved in hunting and trapping. 
and so on. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Do you know how many claims have 
gone through, aay. in the lut year, for hunters and trappers? 

MR. HANDLEY: In 1991 -92, - apent approximately $200,000 
on hunters' and trappers' compensation program. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): What does that repreHnt in term• of 
individual,? 

MR. HANDLEY: We do not have that statiatlc from Workers ' 
Compensation Board. We get a billing from them, and on that 
basia have paid it. I can get that Information for the 
committM, If you wish. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Dent 

MR. DENT: Thank you Mr. Chalrman. Just In addition to the 
number• of individuals. it would be pouible to track their 

home communities. I think that would be of interest, too. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): You mentioned you . had been 
working with other departments, Social Services and Economic 
Development, as two instances, looking at a harvesters' 
support program; or something. In our earlier discussions this 
week, we had mentioned that there is a large group of people, 
industrialists, in a sense, as they are carvers, sewers, 
fisherman, all self-employed, with very little safety standards 
associated with their work. They have nobody monitoring 
them; they have no organized group unless they belong to a 
co-op or a co-op movement, in the case of carvers, and some 
of the organized sewing shops. I have been around like all 
of us and seen carvers at work on their kitchen table with 
power tools and dust flying and kids crawling around under 
the table. Very dangerous working conditions. Hopefully in 
your investigations in looking at something new or something 
different or something just to assist these people if they do 
get hurt, these others, other than hunters and trappers per se -
- because they are all Interrelated; U,ey relate to the materials 
they take from the land and use it - I hope that the 
government is very seriously considering some kind of 
coverage or some kind of protection for these individuals. 
There are a lot of them out there. 

I would like to thank you for coming here. I know we did not 
give you much time, but there was a lot of concern about 
hunters and trappers, and in various presentations the issue 
is coming up, so we wanted to get a perspective from the 
department, what they are doing, and things that they are 
looking at. Thank you for coming. 

MR. HANDLEY: I will get information on the number of 
individuals who have been injured and their community. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): The next group we have scheduled 
Is the Northwest Territories Construction Association. I would 
like to welcome representatives of the Construction 
Auociation. Since you are sitting in the middle, Mr. Bushey, 
I auume you are the spokesperson. _ Could you Introduce 
youl'Nlf, your title, and your cohorts, and then proceed, 
please? 

MR. BUSHEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name is 
Richard Bushey. I am here representing Rob Roman, who is 
the president of the Construction Association, but he is 
involved with the building of the Legislative Assembly, and he 
is involved on site today, so he could not be here. With me 
is Donna Laing, who is the executive director of the 
Construction Association. 

We have a brief presentation that we would like to make, and 
then we will be prepared to answer questions. 

Pr ... ntatlon By Mr. Richard Bushey, NWT Construction 
Auoclatlon 

The Northwest Territories Construction Association is a non­
profit organization representing approximately 150 contractors, 
aul>eontractors, and suppliers in the construction industry from 
acrou the Northwest Territories and throughout Canada. The 
construction industry is the largest employer of tradespeople 
in the Northwest Territories. In fact, construction employs over 
2000 workers and is the third largest employer, after 
government and mining, in the NWT. In some regions, such 
as in the Baffin, construction is the second largest employer, 
with an annual payroll that exceeds $10 million. 

Because of the number of workers employed in the industry, 
and the payroll classification of assessment rates charged to 
employers, the construction Industry is one of the principal 
funding partners or shareholders in the Workers ' 
Compensation Fund. The NWT Construction Association is 
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supportive of the purpose behind the workers' compensation 
program. However, as major shareholders with a significant 
investment in the program. the construction industry has a 
number of concerns. 

One of our primar1 ,;orcerns is the role of the Government of 
the Northwest Terr;tories :n the management and operations 
of the Workers· Compensation Board. We are all aware that 
Workers' Compensation was created in order to provide a no­
fault insurance program for employees and employers. This 
plan is unique in that it is fully funded by employers, and 
there is no liability to the government. Nevertheless, we 
realize that government has a role to play in terms of ensuring 
the implementation of the legislation and regulations to protect 
the public interest. However, what is disturbing to us is the 
apparent political manipulation, interference, and neglect that 
the government has displayed toward the Workers' 
Compensation Board. 

Mr. Chairman, directors of the Workers' Compensation Board 
carry a significant responsibility. They must appear to be fair 
and equitable to workers by providing services to injured 
workers, including compensation and reasonable financial 
benefits that are protected from inflation. In addition, the 
board of directors must also be seen to be responsible and 
reasonable to employers by establishing fair assessment rates 
and by judiciously handling claims. Composed of equal 
representation from labour and business. the board of 
directors is responsible to administer the act, develop policy, 
recommend changes to the act. and to serve as trustees of 
the accident fund; and as such, the directors have exclusive, 
independent jurisdiction. 

Consequently. the appointment of directors, who oversee the 
overall direction and operation of the board, is a key element 
to the fair and efficient operation of the WCB. Unfortunately. 
Mr. Chairman. over the last several years the Government of 
the Northwest Territories has refused to fill vacant director 
appointments to the board in a timely manner in spite of the 
fact that labour and employers have nominated many 
competent individuals to serve in that capacity. When the few 
appointments are made. the appointees are either not 
supported by the major contributors to the fund. or the 
appointees do not have the knowledge. background or time 
that is required to be conscientious contributors to the board 
and its committees. 

Mr. Chairman. the Construction Association believes that 
appointments to the board of directors by the government 
Minister responsible for the WCB should not be undertaken as 
acts of patronage. personal favourru1m, or u attempts to 
satisfy representatives of some regional or political interest 
In fact. the NWT Construction Association recommends that 
director appointments should be made from the invited 1hort 
list of candidates sponsored by employer and labour group 
representatives We would also propose that the pr,nc,pal 
funding partners and labour should choose the directors and 
select and appo,nt the chairman at an annual general mHt1ng 
of the Workers· Compensation Board. tor example Th,1 
approach would go a long way ,n euing our concerns over 
appearances of political interference 

Mr. Chairman. we are fortunate that the NWT Workers· 
Compensation Fund is one of the few fully funded programs 
in Canada. This is an important consideration. because the 
WCB is required to fulfil its responsibilities to injured workers. 
oftentimes over the length of their lifetimes A fully funded 
insurance program is required. Otherwise. the failure to 
adequately meet long-term responsibilities w,11 result in 
increasing future taxation on the employers. This would have 
a negative effect on the economy of the North. as the cost of 
doing business would have to rise and be passed on to 
consumers. 

We understand that there have been attempts within the 
government to pressure the board to provide funds to 
government departments and agencies. We also find it 
disturbing that there have been attempts within the 
government to influence the use of the accident fund so that 
it may serve as a cheap source of government financing. Mr. 
Chairman, these attempts at coercing and influencing the 
investment and funding administration of the WCB by the 
Government of the Northwest Territories should be 
discouraged. It is not advantageous to workers or employers 
to have their funds placed at risk. Nor is it wise to place 
investments in securities and other obligations which are high 
risk and do not receive the maximum amount of a potential 
return. 

Mr. Chairman, we believe that investments in marketable 
securities will maximum return and that these investments 
should be managed by professional investment consultants on 
behalf of the WCB._ To do otherwise is to threaten solvency 
of the program and to put at risk the ability of the WCB to 
fulfil long-term commitments to injured workers. 

The Construction Association also believes that the fully 
funded status of the accident fund should be maintained and 
prudently managed. In addition, the Workers ' Compensation 
Board should develop an overall, flexible, investment policy . 
and strategy in all of its affairs. This is the only way to protect 
the integrity of the fund and enhance the long-term viability of 
the program. 

Mr. Chairman, most people do not realize that a substantial 
number of claimants for workers' compensation comes from 
accidents affecting workers who reside in southern Canada. 
In fact, most of these non-resident workers have never been 
permanent residents of the Northwest Territories. In many 
cases these non-resident workers are employed for a few 
months in the NWT. They have an accident on the job site, 
and the NWT Workers' Compensation Board is then required 
to pay compensation. In some instances, this could be a 
lifetime pension. This is a particular problem for workers in 
the 50 to 60-year-old age group who may have been injured 
in other jurisdictions. They may be claiming tor injuries in the 
NWT and in several jurisdictions at the same time. Obviously, 
the present system of claims is open to abuses. 

Accidents also take place on construction sites in the NWT 
which are operated by contractors from outside the NWT who 
manage a fly-in and fly-out work force. Many of these 
companies operate in the NWT at a great distance from their 
established locations. As a result. these contractors are 
hesitant to ship items that they feel are excess freight, such as 
ladders and scaffolds. The safety division of the government. 
condemned to their restrictive travel budget, knows little about 
the activities of these contractors and what takes place on job 
srtes in remote communities. However, we do know that most 
northern contractors have good safety records. Yet 
construction industry assessment rates continue to rise. In 
tact. the NWT construction industry class 4 rates average 
among the highest rates of any other industry except for 
mining and logging. For example, building construction 
contractors must pay $8.2~ for every one hundred dollars of 
assessable workers' pay. 

This is very puzzling to us. So we have made a number of 
inquiriea to seek information, and we have met with officials 
of the WCB for an explanation. We have asked the WCB to 
identify which contractors have poor safety records. We have 
been told that the current WCB legislation and regulations 
considers the release of this information to be confidential, 
even to employers who are shareholders in the program. 

We have repeatedly encouraged the Workers' Compensation 
Board to develop a system of assessments where companies 
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who have good safety records are not penalized for the few 
in their aul>clasa that do not We have not been successful 
in this area also. Nevertheless, Mr. Chairman, in spite of all 
that we have mentioned with regard to workplace safety, we 
believe that there is an overall greater problem that Impacts 
upon safety In the workplace across the Northwest Territories. 

Mr. Chairman, members of the NWT Construction Association 
are reporting to us that the Government of the Northwest 
Territories is not enforcing safety regulations. Contractors In 
some regions have told us that there is no resident safety 
officer, and If there are safety officers located In a region, 
contractors tell us they are not aHn In the communities 
enforcing legislation In the workplace. 

To make my point more clear, Mr. Chairman, I would have 
Members of the committH recall the exterior work which was 
recently carried on in the post office building here in 
Yellowknife last year. Workers were on scaffolding that had 
no safety rails, and were working without safety harnesses, 
shoes or helmets. This work was undertaken on the main 
street of the capital, less than 50 metres from the 
government's safety division main office, and a block away 
from the Workers' Compensation headquarters. 

Mr. Chairman, safety education and enforcement is important 
to the conatruction industry, becauH as accidents become 
fewer employH productivity goes up, and the rates that are 
charged to employers tend to stabilize and hopefully go down. 
Ahhough safety education is essential, we would point out the 
fact that since more than 50 per cent of the construction 
Industry labour force comes from southern Canada, the safety 
habits of workers are often lacking or not In compliance with 
NWT standards. As a result, enforcement of safety regulations 
should not only be targeted at employers, but also at workers. 
For example, if a worker on a job site in Pond Inlet is 
instructed to wear safety equipment and Ignores the instruction 
of the employer, should it be the responsibility of the 
employer If the worker is Injured? Pr ... ntly this is the cue. 

Mr. Chairman, the NWT Construction Association believes that 
a number of serious questions go begging with regard to 
safety. Some of these questions Include the following: 

What is the role and direction of the Govemm.nt of the NWT 
salety division with regard to monitoring, regulating and 
enforcing safety in the work place? We believe that the role 
of the Government of the NWT is to provide a suffic~nt 
budgetary allocation for staff and travel. to enforce the 
regulations concerning safety on the job site. 

la thia solely a government responsibility7 We think that it is. 
because public safety should· be a responsibility of 
government. Should the WCB play a more direct role an this 
area? We believe that it should not. because it is p00f public 
policy to have the insurance and the policing function in the 
same agency. 

What are the responsibilities of wortler9 in the indua11'y 
concerning workplace salety? We think that ems>'oyers ahould 
be responsible for providing the m.ans to enact aafety 
practices. and that the workers should exart the effort to abide 
by the regulations. 

Mr. Chairman, we believe there is a lack of direction. 
leadership and commitment in the enforce1Mnt of aafety 
regulations In the Northwest Territories. There is also an 
unwillingness by the government to resolve jurisdictional 
diaputes over salety education, training, and monitoring. We 
believe this has led to the neglect of sal.ty practice on work 
sites in the Northwest Territories. We recommend that the 
government and the Workers' Compensation Board resolve 
these problems as soon as poaaible. 

Concerning legislation, the NWT Construction Association 
believes that If the government is going to draft legislation 
concerning the Workers' Compensation Board, every effort 
should be made to Involve the shareholders, workers, and the 
public in the consultation process. We also recommend that 
the draft legislation should be reviewed by an independent 
professional actuary In order to provide a cost benefit analysis 
of the impact of proposed legislation upon the fund. This 
report should be tabled in the legislature as a public 
document. 

Mr. Chairman, we would also recommend that, should 
proposed amendments to the existing WCB legislation or the 
proposal of new legislation be considered, the Standing 
CommittH on Legislation should make available drafts of the 
proposed legislation to labour and business. Time should 
also be set aside for all parties to review the bill and make 
presentations to the committH before the bill goes to the 
House for consideration. We believe that this process would 
produce more effective legislation. 

Mr. Chairman, I thank the committee for giving us the 
opportunity to present our views, and we would be happy to 
answer any questions. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Mr. Bushey. Are there 
any questions from Members of the committee? John? 
Brian? Jim? Charles? Jeannie? John. 

lnvff1menta By WCB 

MR. TODD: I had a difficult time with the last group, getting 
a direct question on the Investment thing. At least one thing 
about the four presentations is that they have all been 
consistent. They all say the same thing. I am wondering, 
could I ask you a direct question, Mr. Bushey? Again, there 
was some reference to the accident fund being used to invest, 
and Interference of the board In investments, and there was 
some reference to the billing in 1989, but this is 1992. You 
have all said it In the thrH or four presentations that have 
been made. Oo you have anything ape~iflc that you would be 
prepared to be bold and tell us, more direct, as to where your 
concern is with respect to Investments? Is it the fact that the 
NWT Power Corporation came In and asked for $20 million, 
and you are concerned that it Is not a secure investment, that 
the return on the investment is not there? Is that the kind of 
thing we are talking about here? Can somebody tell me, is 
that what we are talking about? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Bushey. 

MR. BUSHEY: In our presentation we emphasized marketable 
securities, and the reason that we state that is because if you. 
for example, had invested funds in marketable bonds last 
year, you would have received a return of 21 to 27 per cent 
That was unusual, but you would have. I think there is a 
cattaln fear from employers because of the situation, for 
example, In Ontario with their WCB fund. Also, If you had 
read the newspapers last month with regard to what the 
federal government did with the mortgage insurance fund of 
CMHC and a f- other crown corporations and agencies, 
where they basically took millions out of those funds and put 
them under the government's control to make their deficit look 
beaer. If they are empowered to do that, I guess there is 
nothing In their legislation that prevents them from doing that 
I think there is a fear out there that because of the deficit 
situation of governments, that Is one fear that people have. 

The other thing, I think, from the employer's point of view, is 
that they fHI that If the fund was Invested In marketable 
securities which are flexible and you can move around, and 
you are not committed, for instance, to bonds that are fixed 
over a long term, your retum on ln~estment would be higher, 
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and therefore the fund would be larger and the aasessmenta 
would be controlled or level · out That is a hope. Whether 
that is realizable or not is yet to be seen. I think that·ls rather 
than any one individual incident For example, you raise the 

. issue of where would you invest in the north? Well, there 
probably are occasions where you could invest, let us say in 
mortgages and certain properties which probably would be 
very good investments, so it does not rule out investing in the 
North. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

MR. TODD: I am delighted to hear you say that. I was not 
being flippant I was trying to figure out where you guya were 
coming from, and being from the East and not being too 
involved in these territorial organizations, I really was not quite 
sure where you were coming from, so I am encouraged to 
hear you say that, because that la the kind of thing I am 
talking about However, if I can just for the record, I guess I 
did check and you did get 21 to 22 pointa on your bonda, but 
you do not finance a $125 million organization on one year 
investmenta, Mr. Bushey. It is amortized out over a aeriea of 
different yeara and different return,, and I gue11 for the record 
I want to say my experience ha• been that if we got eight or 
nine points in a good year, on an average, we were delighted 
if I remember rightly. We were in a unique aituation lut year, 
so we do not want to overplay that But I am encouraged by 
your comment about the mortgage,. 

Maybe we are just simple folk• here in the East, but where 
does the thing come in that we would use WCB for the 
deficit? I am just intrigued by this whole political thought that 
aeems to be permeating through the NWT Chamber of Minea, 
the NWT Chamber of Commerce, Northern Employera' Council 
on Workera' Compensation, and now the NWT Conatructlon 
ASIOCiation. All of you are inter-connected, I understand, and 
that is okay. But I am wondering where it came from. Who 
dreamed thia up? I am aerious. 

MR. BUSHEY: Well, you take an organization like the 
Construction Association, wh01e directora come from Iqaluit. 
Rankin inlet. lnwik, Fort Smith, Fort Simpaon, so It i. not that 
the ideas are the ideas of a single individual. I think It l1 a 
fear people have by reading the newapapera and being 
involved in bu&ineaaea. They have had experience in other 
jurisdiction,, and they do not want what hu happened in 
Ontario to happen here. I think we are very fortunate that we 
do have a very strong fund, and people want to maintain It 
and feel it is sort of sacrosanct and I think that is the fHling. 
It is more a fear than it is something that ii realizable. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

MR. TODD: It ia important to point out of course. that 
Ontario has got a thrH billion dollar deficit and we think. we 
are not sure but the finance department teU ua at the end of 
this month that we have got a $25 million deficl1 1n1tead of a 
S50 million deficit. But I want to aay that you have explained 
a little more clearly to me where thia concem 18 bKaUM. u 
I aay, It is rampant through each of the preaentat,ona. 
Speaking for myself, I do not think anybody i9 of the mind 
that the deficit ahould be bome on the becka of the inJured 
worker, jult the aame as the deficit ahould not be borne on 
the back• of the amall communitiea or the people who have 
leu. You cannot beat on thOle who are weakest. You have 
got to take -av from thoae who are weallhiftt. 

So I will tell you right up front. I do not '" where the 
politicians are going to even conaider in their wildest dreamt 
taking money from the WCB when It i9 apecifically there for 
injured workera. That is juat my opinion. I do not know If that 
reassure• you, but ·I cannot see it. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Any commenta? Mr. Antoine. 

Focue Of WBC 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have heard a 
number of presentations which have a similar focus on all the 
pointa, and yesterday the Minister was here. The main focus 
of the Workera' Compeneation Board, to me, la the injured 
worker. That is where the focue ehould be. There was 
nothing in the inter-connected presentations - we really did 
not hear any real concern about the injured workera. This 
morning we had a presentation from the injured workers, and 
they read iettera from other injured workera, and there was 
pain and fruatratlon and the me11age was very clear for me, 
and I am kind of concerned that there does not seem to be 
any recognition of this in any of your presentations. 

It seems to me there ia no aensitivity to the personal and 
financial hardships that theae injured workers are encountering 
at this time, and the focua seema to be more on protecting the 
financial inveatrnent I know it is for the workera, but at a 
point In time you are going to have to spend It on the 
workera. You cannot keep re-investing and protecting it 
forever. The focus ia for the protection and to help these 
injured workera, and I am wondering if the focus of the WCB 
hu ahifted away from what It was intended to be in the past, 
and ahifted more toward• protecting the investmenta. I 
wonder If this la the attitude here. la it the reflection of the 
people you repreaent? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Buahey. 

Safety 

MR. BUSHEY: You may have noticed that in our presentation 
we emphasize a great deal in the area of safety, because 
moat buain ..... that are involved in construction in the North 
are amall buain..... which are owner-operated and which 
also employ a great many people from the community and 
membera of a person'• family In that bu1ine11. So there is a 
great deal of aelf-interest in the safety aspect Because if we 
had good aafety we would have fewer accidents and fewer 
injured people. 

Thil la a real concern of ours because we have gone across 
the Territorin, in fact we were in Rankin in the fall, we met 
with Mr. Todd; we were in Baffin, and we were told by people 
working In those buainessea and people who owned them, 
that people were getting injured becauae there was· no 
enforcement of aafety regulation,, including the Labour 
Standard• Act I would like to make a comment with regard 
to that. Safety divialon ia alao auppoaed to enforce the 
Labour Standard• Act For thoee of you who are not familiar 
with it. It regulate• the hours that people can work, et cetera. 

Well we found that many contractors who are from outside of 
the NWT are violating the Labour Standard• Act, that is when 
people are working 10 or 12 hours a day for six or seven 
day• in a row. They get tired and then they get injured. We 
have been acting aa a police function and we have turned in 
a number of contractora who have violated both the Worker' 
Compenaatlon Act and the Labour Standard• Act because of 
the fact they have violated safety regulation,, people get 
injw.d, they get hurt. 

If we had better aafety we would have fewer injured workers. 
So our emphuis la on the aafety aspect. We would like to 
have the injuriee prevented rather than the injuriea happen. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. John. 

MR. TODD: I am encouraged by the fact that we have to 
look at aafety. That ia the root of the problem. It has nothing 
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to do with the fund, the politics, the chairman, the board - it 
has to do with injured workers and the need to make their 
workplace safer. Have you got records on file that indicate 
that northem contractors, in comparison with southern 
contractors, have better safety records? Are we talking factual 
stuff here? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Bushey. 

MR. BUSHEY: I pointed out in our preaentation that we have 
met with wee and with the aafety diviaion and we have aaked 
WCB to give ua the record• of who are prone to violate. They 
aaid that thoae record• cannot be given to ua becauae they 
are confidential and we juat cannot get them. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

Buslneu Incentive Polley 

MR. TODD: So theoretically if you are correct and we had a 
buain811 incentive policy that was excluaive north, then 
theoretically our coats ahould be reduced, our injured workers 
ahould be leaa and we ahould all be happy campers. Arn I 
right? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Buahey. 

MR. BUSHEY: We have atrong viewa on the BIP. We have 
preaented a paper to the Govemment Leader, a 14 page 
paper, on why the BIP doea not work. We are propoaing 
invitational tendering proc ... , in which all contractors in the 
North who are deaignated northem are claaaified and qualified 
by their trade• in certain areaa and only thoae contractors are 
permitted to bid and bid competitively. We think that ia a way 
to control a good many of theae problems. Becauae moat of 
the violators, and thla la not becauae we -. prejudice, we 
have members who are from southem Canada too in our 
organization, but moat of the violatoR, we think from our 
experience and from what people tell ua, -. contractor. who 
come from outside of tha NWT on thla fly-in and fly-out 
operation,. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): In your paper you uk If the WCB · 
ahould play a direct role In the .,.. of aaf.ty and your 
rffponn here ia that you believe It ehould not And then in 
your wrap-up you aey you recommend that the government 
and the Workers' Compenaatlon Board reeofve th ... problem, 
u 100n u poaaible. What ia your poeltion on the role that 
wee ahould play in the area of aaf.ey regulation, 
enforcement. 

MR. BUSHEY: There ia jurladictional diapute going on within 
the govemment over who ahould play the leading role here. 
Aa you may know, In BC the WC8 la also inYollted in aaf.ty 
Our poaition ia that they ahould be two Mparllte bod•ff: that 
the govemment ahould do the aaf.ty aspect end WCB ahould 
be the inaurer. We think that II a bder way ol dotng it One 
of the problem, la that the aaf.ty divlaion ju9t doea not have 
the money or personnel to really go out and do the job and 
they ahould be doing the job. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Donna. 

MS. LAINO: Maybe it ia aomething we could toll out to you. 
becauae we are commonly concemed. the concem haa been 
expreseed about tha wettare of the wonier, health practicff. 
aaf.ty practicfl and what happena to the lnIured wortier. 
Maybe I ahould t011 it out to you people who are MLAa -
what are you going to do in term, of enauring that there ia a 
aufficient travel budget in the labour atandarda aection of the 
Department of Safety and Public S.rvicn? What are you 
going to do to enaure there are aufficient aaf.ty inapectors and 
aufficient travel budgets for thoae people to get around and 

do the Job that needa to be done? 

So it la something that I toss out to you. I waa here last 
evening. I remember that the workers' advocate was 
questioned as to her mandate and travel budget to go out 
and do these various thing• and she responded to that So 
my question to you then la, as people who are in the 
Legislative Aaaembly, who are reaponalbie for the expenditure 
of public funds, let us aee that there Is aome reaponaibility to 
ensure that we create the beat posalble and most safe 
workplace for our workers. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

MR. TODD: Parallel with that you alao have to look at the 
need for the WCB to get out there and find out what is going 
on there as well. I think that is what my argument has been 
for years. I think there la a bit of an attempt to put aome 
people in. In the Keewatin Region we now have a fire 
marshal and the.y are bringing In an electrical inspector and 
stuff like that. So there ia aome attempt to do that But if the 
aource of the problem la accidents, then all we are doing is 
throwing money in at it uni"' we take a look at how we can 
reduce the accidents. 

But I agree that the GNWT should travel in tha regions and 
parallel with that you have to aee the WCB getting out there 
too and determining tha kinda of needs and program,, et 
ceterL So I do not aee it as one iaolated group, the GNWT 
or aafety divialon. I alao think the WCB haa to get out there 
too and it has not done that 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. On page one of your 
preaentation you talk about the WCB being created to provide 
no fault insurance and then you say the plan ia unique in that 
it la fully funded by employers and there ia no liability to the 
government. I question the word •no liability• in that the act 
la fairly clear in section 57(2), that if the fund la depleted then 
the govemment will pick up and asaume they will cover the 
deficit. There will be limited liability if that ever happens and 
we hope it doea not 

On behalf of the committff I would like to thank you for 
making your preaentation and we will take your 
,-commendations, especially the onea on safety and we will 
be dealing with them at appropriate times. We will take a 
ahort receaa. 

-SHORT RECESS 

I would like to welcome Dale Robinaon, Executive Director of 
the Northweat Territories Council for Oiaabied Persona. Dale, 
would you like to proceed with your presentation please? 

Pr....,tatlon By Ma. Dale Roblnaon, NWT Council For 
Dlubled Persons 

MS. ROBINSON: Thank you. The tNlT Council for Diaabled 
Persona ia a non-profit voluntffr organization that advocates 
with and for people with diaabilitiea ln the NWT. As an 
organization. we are very concerned about the level of aervice 
that injured and disabled workers receive from the Worker,· 
Compenaation Board. In my preaentation, I will outline 
concema under the headings of rehabilitation aervices, 
financial compenaation, appeal procesa, reinstatement 
leglalation and public education. 

Rehabllltatlon Services 

With regard to rehabilitation aervicea, we aupport the early 
intervention program that requires contact with the Injured 
worker within 90 days of an accident. While kffping in mind 
there are times when circumstances require a c;telay in contact, 
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it ie important that injured workers know what is available to 
him or her within an appropriate time 10 that rehabilitation 
can begin u 100n u po18ible. The benefits of rehab include 
regaining ability, reducing the fear of re-injury and avoiding a 
dependency on a system that may impair future 
independence. 

The current problem with rehabilitation services in the NWT is 
the lac:k of eervic:es. it is essential that an injured workers' 
clinic operate out of Stanton Hospital. The cost of the 
services would be charged to the WCB. This team would 
include occupational therapists, physiotherapists, a 
psychologist, vocational evaluator and use of rehab facilities 
like the pool. Currently, injured workers are sent to programs 
in the South. Not only is this expensive, but it means that 
families are separated and ties that are established c:an make 
it more difficult to retum to the NWT. Onc:e you have 
established a rapport with the service providers in the South, 
it ie more difficult to recreate that same level of trust and 
confidence. 

lhe c:oat of uae1Sment 11 about $200 per day for six to 12 
weeks. You add in the air fare and $100 per day living 

· expenses, and you are looking at over $10,000 per client on 
the average. If the service wu provided in the NWT, we 
would be looking at a positive economic initiative in addition 
to the least intrusive system for the worker. 

The current demand for rehabilitation eervlcee for people in 
the NWT outweigh• the ability of profn1lonal1 to provide the 
eervlce. We are all famlllar with the waiting Hite for family 
counselling, occupational therapy and physiotherapy. 
Profel8ionale do a good job of maximizing what they can do, 
but it 11 often not enough. The establishment of an Injured 
workers' clinic would provide more staff and develop a level 
of expertise that would benefit all Northemers. 

Financial Compensation 

The phyeic:al and psyc:hologic:al pain that a worker c:an endure 
after .an accident is compounded when the worker and the 
family experience financial difficulty. One of the concerns we 
hear moat often ae an organization ie that the wage ceiling i1 
muc:h too low in the NWT, and that the equation ie unfair. A 
worker who earn, in exc:el8 of $50,000 per year will 
experience an Incredible wage Ion while on WCB. Currently 
in the NWT, there ii a wage ceiling of $40,000. It ii then 
recalculated to give an amount that reaulte In a Ml wage of 
which the worker is then given 90 per cent. This ends up 
being about $28,000 per year for a family . It creat" an 
incredible amount of etreu on a family at a time when etr ... 

ie already high. 

Thie equation require legielative change. We support • 
recommendation that looks at increasing the ceiling and 
addrel8ing a more equitable syltem that addr"'" the nNc:11 
of all level• of income earners. 

Benefits muat aleo be adjusted to reflect the regional var,at1on1 
in coat of living. It is a lot more expensive to live in Spence 
Bay or Holman Island or Hey River. Again. wlthOut 
addr ... ing theee di1crepancie1. - are building berriert which 
preverit retuming to home communitiel and maintaining family 
balance. 

The board muat look at a wage lo11 compensation. They 
system in Saekatc:hewan i1 financially MCure. and the key 
seems to lie in the implementation of the program. Other 
jurildictione such ae Newfoundland and Ontano have not 
been ae suc:cnsful. It is important to research theM options 
and atudy the implementation proce11. 

Appeal Proceu 

With regard to the appeal proceea, it ie .... nfial that an 
independent appeal proceea be established. there ie an 
inherent conflict when WCB members are asked to rule on 
decision, of their organization. This Is not intended to 
question the integrity of any individual, but to look at a 
systemic barrier in the process. 

The role of the appeal board should be one of an 
ombudsman and not have board members placed in the 
unenviable position of voting on their organization's decisions. 
Let an independent committee evaluate the policies and 
practices in each situation. 

Reinstatement Legislation 

Once an injured worker is rehabilitated, they need a job to 
retum to. Quebec: and Oritarlo have this legislation. In 
Ontario, the legislation provides, for up to two years, that all 
suitable position• are offered to the worker. It 11 difficult to 
mandate good will. There are opportunities for organizations 
to make reinstatement difficult. If the company does not want 
to take a worker back who is capable of working, then there 
should be a rate increase. The unions can take a leadership 
role in providing support for their injured members. 

The WCB must support some kind of re-employmerit 
measures. Thie re-employment must be supporting 
meaningful careers. In order to support these types of 
initlativee, the WCB must work in co-operation with employers, 
unions and injured workers. 

Public Education 

Education 11 crucial. Funding must be made available 
through the WCB to enable public: education. Resources must 
be allocated so that workers know what their rights are and 
how to ensure a safe environment for everyone. Co-operation 
with advocacy groups, unions and employer associations to 
deliver effective information will help prevent accidents. The 
NWT Council for Disabled Persons can also assist in 
workshops to sensitize employers and employees to hiring 
people with disabilities. As the injured, disabled and 
diecarded workers' group said in their presentation, 'The only 
way to effectively reduce compensation costs is to reduce 
accidents and injuries in the work place.• 

Recommendatlona 

Preventing accidents 11 e18ential, but we must continue to 
improve the supports for victims of accidents. The NWT 
Council for Disabled Persons makes the following 
recommendations: 

1) eltabli1h an injured workers' clinic in the NWT; 

2) raise the YMIR and include a system to address regional 
difference in c:ost of living; 

3) examine systems of wage 1018 compensation and institute 
a policy that beat reflecte the needs of the NWT; 

4) Ntablish an independent appeal proc:eae; 

5) support re-employment legislation; 

6) fund public awarenel8 initiatives for the prevention of 
ac:c:idents. 

I appreciate the opportunity to touc:h very briefly on a number 
of concerns that have been raised by our members. I hope 
we c:an work closely with the WCB to provide the best service 
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poMible to workens and employens in the NWT. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Dale. That was a nice 
presentation - very precise with some good recommendations. 
Questions from Members. John. 

MR. TODD: I would like to commend you on a plain, simple 
and straightforward presentation. You certainly were not in the 
room with the other four guys. 
I think, clearly, we see a different point of view. We see here 
what Mr. Antoine brought up earlier, which I found interesting, 
and that there is no preoccupation with funds, boards 
appointments or chair. There Is a total preoccupation with the 
injured worker. I am encouraged by this. 

Sending Injured Workers South For Rehab 

Something I have been advocating is what we call the costs 
associated with moving people south. I was talking to some 
of the guys earlier about this. I am encouraged by your point 
of view. Have you got any costs associated with it? What Is 
the net effect of moving injured workers out to Edmonton or 
wherever they go for rehab? What would be the costs 
associated with putting that into the North in lnuvik or 
Yellowknife? Have you done any work on that at all? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Ms. Robinson. 

MS. ROBINSON: I have not done any work on that 
specifically. Some of the figures that I requested from WCB 
were things like average costs of $10,000 for an average 
rehab In sending people to the South. Again, looking at some 
of those different costs. I think that with the number of people 
that are injured, we would be looking at some ~gniflcant 
prices. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Roughly, how many are sent south 
for rehab? 

MS. ROBINSON: That I am not really aura of. I do not have 
enough Information to make a strong flnanci.l atatement on 
this. but I did get indication, from people within WCB that 
there ia definitely a significant amount of money being spent. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: I think you know my big thrust on the dental 
clinic thing In the Keewatin and how we demonatrated 
northern dollans were going south and we were going to put 
it back In the North. We could do exactly the aame thing. I 
would encourage you to do some more homework on that and 
l1ar1 lobbying for thal I will certainly. with the finance 
committee. atart looking at soma of these th1ng1 

If I may, Mr. Chairman, the other thing I found encouraging 
was your part about beneftts being edJuated to reflect regional 
variations. I am wondering If you would concur - and th11 
may be a negative - that perh• then to pay tor that. we 
would reconsider what we were doing in tarma of the people 
in the south. A great deal of our Injured WOfk8'9 are lltllng ,n 
BC digging potatoea. et cetera. In a -,,.rit of f .. meM e,e we 
going to say, on the one hand. that It costa mote in Holman 
Island and Fort Simpson so we need to up thar? What would 
you think of the idea of taking it away from 1tk>88 whO e,e 
living in a lest expensive area? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Ma. Robinson. 

MS. ROBINSON: I gue11 the other way of looking at it 11 
rather than taking away from people. you Just have to add on 
to those that do not have rather than say,ng let us reduce it 
from here. 

MR. TODD: The role of the appeal board should be one of 
an ombudsman. I think the Idea of an ombudsman is long 
overdue in the North. Could you elaborate on how you would 
... that? Would you ... this ombudsman specifically for 
WCB, or would ·it be in a larger role? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Dale. 

MS. ROBINSON: I certainly think there is a need on other 
levels not just within the WCB, but with trying to keep within 
the narrow mandate of looking at reviewing WCB services, the 
idea of that being a combined role of the appeal proce11. I 
would certainly advocate that there is a need for an 
ombudaman on a number of levels. That is why advocacy 
groupa like ua exist. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: Again, I am encouraged by your comment on 
public education in that funding must be available to WCB to 
enable public education Is absolute essential, in my opinion. 
But whether you have injured workers In lnuvik, Yellowknife, 
Grise Fiord or wherever, we have to get out there. Again, I 
would encourage to pre11 politically more for that . Good luck, 
by the way, because I tried for eight years when I was on the 
WCB and like I said earlier in my usual flippant manner, they 
were like the Air Canada ad where they say •More Calgary, 
more Vancouver, more Toronto• and there is le11 of an 
undemanding of the fact that they should get out there and 
go and talk to the smaller communities about what is going 
on, u well u big union,. 

Let me say lastly, that your conclusions one, two, three, four, 
and I waiver on f,ve, on six, I support wholeheartedly. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I too want 
to echo my colleagues remarks in respect to the well 
developed brief for the committee. Your recommendations 
certainty will alleviate and eliminate a lot of the problems and 
frustrations that individual• are dealing with. I fully support 
the concept of utilizing many of the rehab facilities or trying to 
develop them up in the North in opposed to tending them 
South. The concept ii nothing but beneficial to the North, if 
we can get that developed. 

In respect to the YMIR in reflecting the cost In the regions, first 
of all I believe the YMIR should be Increased, but I think your 
Idea of taking it another step to reflect the cost of the regions, 
would probably be an encouragement for individuals to live in 
the North, as opposed to going south. Because I believe now 
aome of the diaabilitlea they receive probably gives them very 
little choice but to move south because of the high coat of 
living in the North. This probably would look at a solution 
that would keep many of the dollans flowing in the North, but 
at the same time would assist the workers from having to 
absorb 10 much frustration and at the same time having to 
absorb so much - I guess recognizing financial burdens that 
they are absorbing now, once they get injured. 

So I want to thank you very much for your presentation. it is 
certainly a refreshing presentation after ail the negative ones 
that I seem to have heard today and one that is looking for 
solutions to the problems that we are considering toward the 
worker, as opposed to the investment portion of the WCB 
fund. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Dale. 

MS. ROBINSON: What we are really saying here when we 
make it difficult for people to remain here, not that we are just 
losing that one worker, we are losing the resources that that 
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family provides to a community too. Those children will grow 
up to be productive people within the community If there are 
spouses involved and the whole extended thing. So we are 
not only discarding one person. We are saying to aomebody, 
"Vile do not value you. Go somewhere else.' The loss is 
more than one person and certainly those effects have 
probably been expressed today, particular with the Injured 
Workers Association, that it is not just happening to one 
person and it has a big impact on the whole community. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: One of the other things we are taking away from 
Is the spending power. Whether it is $28,000, the fact of the 
matter is we are taking that $28,000 and we are sticking it in 
BC. One of the injured workers wants to stay. We are taking 
that money, my money, as a contributor, away. If we up the 
VMIR some so these guys can get by and survive, they will 
stay and there will be a net economic Impact to the Territories. 
Because theoretically the money gets spent In the North. It is 
no different from your idea behind the rehab thing. You need 
to punch some numbers and SN If it makN aense. But the 
net impact of that spending goes somewhere else. So let us 
say you have 100 workers and because the VMIR is not 
adequate to live, which I fundamentally do not think it is in 
Yellowknife, never mind if you are in Muktuk bay. If 88 
workers move, you are taking that cuh flow out of the 
Territories. So I think we should be looking more cloaely at 
that and doing those kinda of financial analyala, rather than 
Just looking at what la the direct cost of VMIR u It relatn to 
the rate,. What Impact don it have on the territorial 
economy? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: That information ii alw1y1 brought to 
you in the form of a briefing and when you try to encourage 
way• of trying to utilize these dollars to be retained in the 
North, it quickly comes back to you that 60 per cent of the 
WCB funds are flown to the South to worker,. Aa if to 
basically imply that there i• no point in trying to •et up 
rehabilitative Nrvicea because these guy• are going south 
anyway. Not thinking that instead of taking a proactive 
solution and trying to initiate and create th... type of 
rehabilitation Nrvicea in the North and to encourage people 
to stay in the North. But aometimea I can aay It II very 
discouraging for people to fsel and think and comment that 
these funds can Just go to the South and we ahould aay it ia 
okay. It aeema it ia one of their polnta of rebuttal most of the 
time from WCB. that these dollars are from the woniers but 
they go south anyway. That la their attitude and it •• an 
attitude that really leavff a lot to be dN!red. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): In your preMntation you talk about 
the concept of mandatory r-mployment and you talk about 
legislation and other Jurisdiction,. S.Veral of the employers 
organization• have expreaaed co~ that ii we vary the 
current equation and it will put undue pr ... ur• on employers 
and the sustainability of buaineH. How would you argue 
against this position and the aupport of thia ldu of mandatory 
r-mployment. 

MS. ROBINSON: I think as in anything that you are going to 
be challenging a lot of long-held views. You have to look at 
a w~ of developing some form of compromise and that ia 
why in looking at it- I really fsel that the cooperation hu to be 
between employers, unions and injured workers. But u we 
can historically see. the number of people with disabilities, 
whether they were bom with the disability or have become 
injured, there is very high rates of unemployment and there 
are systemic discrimination, there is overt discnmination, 
against people with disabilitiN and I think that is another part 
of this public education. where you have to aay you have to 

reframe the way that you look at people, you look at situations 
and that we have to look at the abilitlff that people have. 
And sometimes we are too quick to Judge that people do not 
have the ability to return to certain positions or to do certain 
types of-work. 

I look within our own office and perhaps if you had a very 
brusque kind of description of some of the people and what 
their disabilities are, you may not think that they would be 
able to conduct the type of work that they do. One person in 
particular has cerebral palsy and is visually impaired, but ahe 
is a very effective administrative assistant and In a training 
program at the current time. People may not have thought 
that that person had that ability unless you saw it happen, 
unless you have the supports, the technology and basically 
the knowledge and the initiative to move forward to employ 
people with disabilities. 

Because we all want to prevent the accidents but when they 
do happen we have to be prepared to reintegrate people back 
into the work force and I think it is really re-education and 
looking at people in a different way and not focusing on what 
they cannot do, but focusing on what they can do. And 
through a cooperative effort, I believe a lot of people who 
have been discarded could be brought back in very 
effectively. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would also like 
to say that this Is a very good presentetion and it focuses on 
the concern I have since we have started this hearing. It 
focusea on the injured worker. I feel that the Workers' 
Compensation Board should refocus on the injured worker 
more and look at all the problems in their system. There 
seems to be a lot of problems and you have identified some 
of them. 

The rehab services is working in the North and I agree there 
hu to be something done to operate. a workers clinic some 
place In the North. I do not know why you put Stanton 
Hospital - it may be a typing mistake. But I do agree there 
should be something in the North, basically for financial 
reasons and I think a lot of workers would like to remain in 
the North but because of the VMIR it is not enough, so they 
move south where they can afford to live on the amount they 
are getting on the VMIR. So something definitely has to be 
done In those two areas. I would like to thank you. Mahsi. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Dale. 

MS. ROBINSON: With regard to why I said Stanton, I think 
that in trying to also consider costs in the initial stage, that we 
should be looking at building on a facility that currently has 
something available and a good basis. But I think you would 
also have to look at either having a team that moves to 
different regions and communities, and that is where the cost 
hu to be considered · and hopefully there would not be 
enough people who were injured in one region, but that is not 
the reality. So as a result, building on current expertise and 
then looking toward the future of an Injured workers clinic, 
being able to have that flexibility to move Into other regions 
and areu and provide support. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): We also have underutilized buildings 
in lnuvik or Hay River. 

MS. ROBINSON: I am real flexible on that point. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay Dale, it is nice to end on a 
fairly refreshing note and different outlooks on the situation. 
Thank you very much ·on behalf of the committee for your 
presentation. Brian. 
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MR. LEWIS: Since everyone la 80 friendly - when everyone 
I• friendly you would like to be part of It 

-Laughter 

We find there are many people who work for voluntary board• 
that make tremendoua contribution• and people that can put 
aomething together like this, demonatratea once more that not 
everybody who doe• not work for the government i• aimply 
there because they do not have much to offer. This is the 
kind of person that ahould be providing the kind of creativity 
we would like to see in our own govemmenl Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you again. 

MS. ROBINSON: Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): We will recesa now. 

-SHORT RECESS 

Telephone Whn"•" 
Telecon With Mr. Keith Coffin, Prince Edward Island 

The committee will come to order. la thia Keith Coffin? 

MR. COFFIN: Yea it is. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): It la Fred Koe here celling from 
Yellowknife. We .are in the atanding commitlN on agenciea, 
board• and commisaiona, reviewing the Workera' 
Compenaation Board. With me are five commitlN Membera 
and atAlff and there are al80 membera of the public here in the 
room. So tonight we will lilten to your pr ... ntation. We have 
about 20 minutea. Pleaae proceed. 

MR. COFFIN: Chairman Koe, my name la Keith Coffin and 
I reaide in Mount Stewart. Prince Edward laland. I appreciate 
thia opportunity to be able to addresa the Membera of the 
Legislative Asaembly of the NWT. I will try to briefly 
aummarize the events which preclude me having thi9 
compenaation. 

In t9n I wu injured on the job working in lnwik. NWT. flown 
to Edmonton and had my knee operated on. The operation 
did not turn out 80 well and left me with a permanent in1ury. 
Several yeara after that I wu awarded a lump aum Mlllement 
to pursue a buainesa intereat of mine, being logging. kiln 
drying with lumber,. Several yeara.aftet that I wu awarded 
another five per cent diaability u my leg la a degenefative 
knee and will not gat better. 

At that point thin;. all ... med fine with IN W01118'9. 
Compenaation Board. I had occuion to d-.nd IN bOard 
many tim" to my frlenda. They could not undet9land why I 
thought the board WU good becauM nochlng had eYer 
happened wrong. 

A few yeara ago I wu working at anocher tot> u a teaching 
asailtant requiring a lot of walking and I swted having trouble 
with my knee again and it required another ope,abOn. From 
that time on my life hu gone ltric1ty downhaft. Mainly 
becauae of the Workers· Compenaation Board. Since that time 
I have wound up with an injured wriat. ,..quiring an operation. 
I have an abnormal gait on my right foot from my knee. I wu 
aent for telta by the Workers· Compenaation Board and 
injured my beck. All of theae thing• they have accepted 
responaibility for but have given me no compensation for. 

I am now on weHare and loaing my houae. have Iott my 
fiancee of aix yeara and life ia not very good. and I do not 
understand why thia happened. I do not know how It can be 

fixed. I have been treated terribly poorly by the board and 
doctora uaoclated with the board, to the point of being 
abuaed. I have celled the College of Phyalciana and 
Surgeona to complain about one of the doctora and that hu 
been addresaed by the board. 

A few yeara ago I would not think I would be making thla call 
to you. Are there any queation• I can anawer'l It la not ao 
much a preaentation but I am being treated poorly and I 
would like it to atop. If anything become• of thia I will try and 
prevent anybody being treated the way I have. I would be 
glad to help. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Can you give ua 80me apecific 
problem• that you have had and about when did they atart? 

MR. COFFIN: They ltarted juat over two yeara ago. I wu 
on temporary total diaability, recovering from two operationa. 
I am an amputee firlt off and the knee I injured on the job 
hu nothing to do with the amputation, but because of the 
atraln back and forth I am beginning to have problem• with 
that knee. Being on temporary total dlaability I had requeated 
over almoat two yeara I wu on the diaability I wanted to 
apeak to 80meone with the board who may help me with 
career direction, that kind of thing. 

Trevor Alexander mentioned Nell Pierce wu the vocational 
rehab officer and I offered to confer with him and I wu told 
it wu not neceuary. At one point I aent in mileage vouchers 
u my mileage la paid to the doctor and I am required to go 
at leut once a month. Aa aoon u those were aent In I wu 
requNted to go to Yellowknife within a number of week•. My 
doctor recommended I ahould not even do that trip, not being 
extremely healthy. I wu uked to atop in Yellowknife to aee 
Or. Colter who phyaically abuaed me; wrote thing• in the 
report that were not true, thing• I did not say, that kind of 
thing. I wu in Yellowknife the next day for a ahort meeting 
with Mr. Alexander and Mr. Pierce. I wu flown directly back 
to the laland the next day and my benefita were cut off that 
aame month. 

Shortly after that I wu trying to find a career counsellor here, 
80mebody that could help me find a job. The compensation 
board wu contacted in Prince Edward laiand to aee if they 
could find aome place I could be tested, I preaume for 
aptitude• or job training or 80mething. I wu aent to Nova 
Scotia to do functional accesaibility teats, which involvea 
nothing more than lifting, carrying, pulling, that kind of thing, 
which becauM of my injurlea I really ehouid not be doing. 

In the courae of doing thoae thinga the muacl" were pulled 
in my beck. Since then, driving ia almoat impo .. ible; walking 
ia extremely difficult Jult about any chore at all. My day it 
apent jult on buic life akilla. And none of thla hu been 
eddreaaed by the board. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Have you gone through an appeal 
proc ... ? 

IIR. COFFIN: No I have not I have had to aeek legal 
counael though. I could not underatand what there wu to 
appeal. I wu juat aent to Yellowknife and I am almoat atill in 
ahock from It happening. When I sey I wu abuaed by thia 
doc:tot In Edmonton, I aerioualy wu. He twilted and tumed 
my body and did thing• that really ahould not be done. I juat 
do not underatand what la going on. 

Other than the workers' adviaor, there ia no one to talk to at 
all. I have been made fun of on the phone by members of 
the board, put down, made fun of. I do not underatand their 
peraonal attitude. So I have aent appeal• for a large number 
of item• and they would all have to go through the courts 
80mehow, I preaume. I have been denied medical apparatus, 
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medical reports that my doctors here requested and the board 
refused to send them. They have requested bracn and 
articles like that; they refused to pay for them, with no 
explanation at all. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: H I could get clarification on two 
items. When you were hurt in 19n, when were you initially 
awarded your lump sum payment? 

MR. COFFIN: In 1980 and the additional payment in 1983. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: What was the percentage of your 
lump sum settlement on your disability? 

MR. COFFIN: Twenty-flVe per cent and the f1Ve per cent on 
top of that is a monthly pension. Before I went to Yellowknife 
a year ago January, when I went I was still under the 
impression that I wu working with people that I knew and Bill 
Hart wu with the board. He wu who I dealt with moatly and 
IHmed to undenstand that I had problems and tried to help. 
When I went to Yellowknife a year ago January, I asked to 
have my f1Ve· per cent commutated 10 I could fix my house, 
buy a tractor - I have blueberry land but no equipment to 
manage the property, and If they did that I would be working 
now. They refused to do that and even dlacu11 that. Then 
after I hurt my beck they offered to help me get a tractor and 
work on my blueberries, which I cannot do not 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Your disability that they uae1sed 
here in the t-N(f and subsequently after you injured your wrist 
and your beck. 

MR. COFFIN: Yea and my foot. all from the same knH. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: When you came up to Yellowknife for 
your a11e11ment. that wu on your knH? 

MR. COFFIN: And my wrist at that time. They did not want 
to look at It but they have since accepted rnpon1ibility . 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Recognizing that they awarded you 
a disability for your injured knH and then subsequently 
diacontinuing your benefits, did they Indicate why? 

MR. COFFIN: No. 

MRS. MARIE-JEWEU.: Who made ~ an arbitrary decision 
that you should be denied aorne ol your beMfita? 

MR. COFFIN: Neil Pierce and/01 Tf9YOI Alexander. Trw0t 
Alexander wu the adjudicat01 and Neil Pi.c. wu the 
vocational rehab manager and then they amalgamated the 
offices. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: So when wu the lul time you 
received any type of benefits from the Workers· Compensation 
Board? 

MR. COFFIN: I do receive a monthly cheque ol $114 and 
other than that I received a mileage cheque about a year ago 
for a couple of hundred dollars. That ii It. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: So your disability ~tOn is 
Ul8lled at $114 per month. 

MR. COFFIN: Yea, even though they have accepted 
re1pon1ibility for my back and my wrist and I presume my foot 
u well. That la in writing. They just do not do anything 
about It. I do not know what to do. The last time I WU 

talking to either one of them on the phone, neither gentlemen 
were very nice. I cannot even stand to call and talk to them. 
It frustratn me too much. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Anybody else? 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Can I just ask one further question, 
Mr. Chairman? Since you have been discontinued your 
disability. and since you have had your ...... ment and your 
disability has declined to your monthly pension of $114, is this 
from that point on where you have found that attitude 
problems existed with at the wee office? 

MR. COFFIN: Yes. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Have you found them to be 
10mewhat insensitive to your concema? Are you basically 
saying that they arbitrarily made decl1ion1 to deal with your 
concem as they saw flt? 

MR. COFFIN: They were completely insensitive. My health 
ii literally falling down, and yet there are provi1ion1 in the 
Workers' Compensation Act for them to help a person in dire 
need. I cannot buy food; I am on weHare. I do not have a 
car; I cannot afford gu. I have to borrow a friend's car to go 
to the doctor. They do not care. It does not matter to them 
whataoever. Until one gets a hold of the act 11 when_ one 
finds out what benefits are actually in there, It 11 a secrecy act. 
I wear a dislocation brace on my knH which I find in the act 
that I am allowed $100 per year for clothing. But until I had 
received a copy of the act. I had no idea. One 11 not told 
anything at all. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: My final question 11, what was your 
monthly pension before It declined to $114 a month? 

MR. COFFIN: It was $700 and 10me a month. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: When was it decreued to $114? 

MR. COFFIN: In January 1991. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: That was after your assessment? 

MR. COFFIN: Vea, in the same month. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: I do not have any other questions, 
Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much. 

MR. COFFIN: You are welcome. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Any other questions from committH 
Members? K.ith, u I mentioned before, there are 10me 
repr"8ntativn of the WCB here. The workers' advi10r is 
here. There are representativn of the Injured Workers' 
Alloclatlon here, plus six committH Members. We have 
heard your presentation, and I am sure there will be some 
follow-up. Hopefully, aomebody will get back to you here 
shortly. Do you have any additional comments before we 
close? 

MR. COFFIN: I just hope 10mehow, either by the act or 
aomething hu changed, people can be treated more 
humanely. My health 11 in extreme danger. There SHms to 
be no concem whatsoever. It 11 really my life. I am not 
saying these people are ruining my life; It la just a matter of 
circumstance, but I am not doing it alone. I really hope for 
everyone's sake that 10mething can be done 10 that it 
becomea more honest. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you for your time, Keith. 
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Telecon Wl1h Mr. Vic Scoville, Nova Scotia 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): le this Vic Scoville? 

MR. SCOVILLE: Yee. 

CHAIRMAN· (Mr. Koe): Vic, it Is Fred Koe calling from 
Yellowknife. I am the chairman of the standing committee on 
agencies, boards and commissions. We are in a formal 
session here looking at the WCB. 

The process le that we will listen to you and some Members 
may have some questions. We have about 20 minutes. We 
are phoning people acro88 Canada, starting from the East 
Please proceed. 

MR. SCOVILLE: Thank you. I was Injured In 1987, and I 
had two operations in 1988. The operations did not work for 
me. My condition got to a certain point where I could not do 
any of the work that I could do before, but I was not totally 
disabled. I have worked all my life and have always done as 
much as I po88ibly could before I was injured and after. We 
tried therapy before and after the operations and my condition 
stabilized at one point so that I knew what I could or could 
not do. When the pain got to a certain point. I had to stop 
whatever it was I was doing. I have learned to live with that. 
and I know when I have to stop. 

Some of the programs the WCB has put me on - I have been 
told that I can put up with more pain and that I have to put 
up with more pai!', When It makH It worae, It doee not come 
back down to the level it was before. In other worda, It la 
making my injury worae and is making me more handicapped. 
That bothers me a lot because I do not want to end up In a 
whHI chair. I do as much as I poeaibly can every day. I am 
not the type of guy that lays around on the couch all day 
watching television and popping painkillers. I hete taking 
painkillers and I very aeldom take any painkillers. muacle 
relaxants or anything. 

I have a driving range and a mini-goH that which the WCB 
helped me start. When I started it. I knew it would take thrff 
or four year, to build it up for a guy to make a living off of It. 
It has not been given a chance yet. and it hu been dotng 
better each year. I have been able to look after that myMH. 
Right now. I have a lot of debt. and It is making it awful hard. 
Bill collectors are on my back all the time. They took my car 
when I wu with the pain clinic In Vancower. They threatened 
to take my equipment. my mowers and my equipment for 
operating the driving range. as well u my hoUM. I had been 
told by wee that ·maybe I should NII everything and pay off 
my bills which would leave me with nothing - no income. 
nothing. To me. this it not very good ~a. 

The rule about the 10 per cent payout on a pen1t0n le fine if 
a fellow it only 10 to 15 per cent disabled; he• etlll able to 
work so the pension doee not mean that much IO him. If I 
was only 10 to 15 per cent disabled. I could still be WOl1ling 
up north where I wu when I got injured. But wt'9ft a guy is • 
• I am In between. around 50 per cent disabled and can get 
around and do some things - OYer 50 per cent diaabled. he 
needs hit pension for the rest of hit life becaUM he ia not 
able to do too much. In my condition. I am ttlU able to do 
some things. I know what I can do and what I cannot do. 
For me to get a payout on a pension would make life a lot 
easier for me. and I could set my butinest up eo that It •• a 
lot more cost efficient 

Alio. for me to get around In my houae with the ltffP stairs 
is hard. I would like to get different ttaars in My washroom 
le really small and it it hard to manoeuvre in there npecially 
when I am on the wrist crutches sometimn. Some of this 
stuff it what I would like to spend the money on to make 

thing• easier for me, looking down the future. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Where were you Injured? 

MR. SCOVILLE: My lower back. I had a ruptured disk in my 
lower back. That injury took place at Arctic Bay. I had a 
minor injury In May of that same year so I wu off for about 
three weeks. I was working In Frobisher Bay at that time up 
on the college site which was on a hill. It was Icy and about 
30 degrees below. I lost my footing and went down on my 
back onto the hard ice. After three weeks, I was back to 
work. I did not have any more problems with it until 
something snapped In Arctic Bay. I could not do anything. 
For the longest time, I could not even put my shoes on. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Can you give _.,, some specific 
concem, you have with the treatment you have been receiving 
from the WCB? 

MR. SCOVILLE: Ye,. The wee - the surgeons that 
operated on me and the doctors - I cannot sit for a great 
length of time nor can I stand for very long. I have to keep 
changing positions. I cannot get on concrete or asphalt at all. 
It really does my back bad. The WCB had me fly all the way 
to Yellowknife once. Thay flew me to Vancouver which is a 
nine or 10 hour flight and does me no good at all. Oowntown 
Vancouver la nothing but concrete and asphalt. I was there 
for abc weeks which did not help my back. They sent me out 
there to a pain clinic. The pain clinic it there to get people 
off the couch and off of pain pills of which I was doing 
neither. They ,pent approximately $30,000 for me to go out 
there to help me deal with the pain which I had already been 
dealing with for several years now. That did not do me any 
good nor did the concrete. 

I had a previous back operation In 1984 in Ontario. I was 
back to work In a month. The surgeon said it would probably 
be thrH months, but I wu back within a month. I worked 15 
to 18 hours a day, seven days a week, up north for a couple 
of years. My back never bothered me at all. The wee. as 
soon as they were told about the operation I had before, 
immediately said my present condition was minor and the one 
from before was major. They made that decision without any 
doctor·• opinion. The doctors that operated and · the 
1peciali118 I had seen have ever mentioned anything about 
the operation before. It had nothing to do with the injury I 
received up north. That le one thing that bugged me. 

One thing they ahould do - like the pain clinic in Vancouver 
helps a lot of_people there, but. in my opinion, if a person hu 
to have an operation, they should be sent to a pain clinic 
immediately after to get their muscles built back up. It does 
not do any good years down the road. I have either another 
piece of disk in my back or acer ti88ue that le putting pre88ure 
on my nervH. They do not want to operate any more 
becauM every time they operate, they get more scar ti88ue. 
The surgeons feel that another operation would only cause 
more acer ti11ue. The ,urgeon told me that as long u I 
watch whet I do, then I probably will not get any worse, but 
doing a lot of thia therapy ltuff makn it worae. I do not know 
whether It ia the way you twist doing it or not Everybody 
say• It will not make me worae, but it hu so far, and I do not 
want to get worae, If you know what I mean. I still am able to 
walk. so I do not want to end up in a wheel chair. 

Al far as the pension payout. If it is 10 per cent or $40,000· or 
1888 they will pay It out. As I think I said before, if the 
diubled person i• only that disabled, normally he would not 
need a payout on hie pension anyhow because he can still 
continue working, so it le kind of discriminating against the 
injured person. H hi• injury is worse and he could really use 
the money, then they will not pay it out. I understand why 
they do that. too, because they take a certain amount of 
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dollars and set it aside for that injured worker, and they make 
interest on that money they set aside. They make more than 
enough to pay his pension for each year, which is good 
business for them but it is not good for the injured worker. 

In my case, like I say, if I was 80 or 90 per cent disabled, or 
100 per cent disabled, then you definitely need a pension for 
the rest of your life, but when you are able to do something, 
which I am trying to do, and I know I can make a living, if I 
did not have the debts, with what I have right now I could 
make a living off of what I could make from the mini golf and 
driving range. I think the WCB sometimes thinks that is a 
couple of months of the year job. Well, it is not You open 
up around May and close at the end of September, and 
before you open up there is a lot of stuff you have to do on 
the mini golf, like putting the stuff back out. and there is a lot 
of work you have to do out on the driving range, and the 
same thing applies in the fall, so it is not just a few months of 
the year. It takes up about eight or nine months of the yeai, 
because you are always working on stuff during the winter, 
painting stuff out in the barn and stuff like that 

One thing I have been told by the compensation board is that 
the pain is all in my mind. It is not in my back, it is in my 
mind. Well, when you have got pain 24 hours a day and you 
cannot sleep hardly at all at night, and if you overdo 
something it makes it worse, then it i1 awful hard for me to 
understand how they can tell me it i1 In my head. Another 
thing, I get into aome kind of program like the Vancouver pain 
clinic, and they pay me benefltl while I am in that It made 
me worse. As soon u I wu out of the pain clinic, and in 
worse condition than before I went in. then they cut off my 
benefits. 

I went to an upgrading course here in Yarmouth that wu a 
16-week course. I went five and a half weeks, and it is all 
concrete and uphalt there too and that bothers me a lot and 
sitting. I stood it u long u I poaaibly could and I could not 
stand it any more. I could not concentrate on the cla11es. I 
was doing good at the grades but I just could not concentrate 
because of the pain. As soon as I stopped going to that. they 
cut me off again. And then they uy, 'Well, you tried, we tr•ed 
and it did not work. We are aorry. • Well, I am in worse 
condition than when I started, and 'aorry" doea not help. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay, Vic. You mentioned that you 
flew to Vancouver for this pain clinic. When wu that? 

MR. SCOVILLE: I went up there on tM 20th of January and 
came back the end of February. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Of thi1 yeat1 

MR. SCOVILLE: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): And when did you fly to Yellowknife? 

MR. SCOVILLE: That wu beck in 1988, I think. They 
brought me up there for their medical examiner to ... me, 
and for the people I wu dealing with at that time to ... me 
It was Les Robinaon and Cathy Bentley. I think. When we 
started up on the mini golf and driving range. that II who I 
wu dealing with - Les Robinson. He put a lot of work •n and 
he fought a lot to get the compensation board to help me with 
that They would only help ao much. They gave me enough 
to pay off the existing mortgage on my house. At. that time I 
owed $24,000 total debt. and I paid off tM mortgage 10 I 
could re-mortgage to do the landscaping and buy the 
equipment At the present time, I think I am about S57 ,000 in 
debt 

This will be my second full year open. I have only had one 
full season since I opened. The first season I was open 

approximately three months. I did not get open until the 
middle of July. Then last year wu a full year. I took in about 
50 per cent last year than I did the year before, and I plan on 
taking In probably about another 30 per cent more than I took 
in last year, this year. My biggest problem there, too, is 
advertisement and stuff like that With a debt load like that, 
you spend all summer with whatever you are bringing in, 
trying to catch up on it, and when you do close up in the 
wintertime, when you do not have any income, you have 
spent all your money you made in the summer trying to catch 
up on bills, so you end up doing the same thing the next 
year. You end up behind the eight ball again. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Vic, I have one of the Members who 
wishes to ask you a question. Charles. 

MR. DENT: Hi, Vic. Could you tell me, before the Workers' 
Compensation Board decided that the back injury you suffered 
in the North was not the major problem, what percentage 
disability did they assess you at? 

MR. SCOVILLE: I do not quite understand. What they had 
me assessed at from the injury in the Northwest Territories? 

MR. DENT: That is right, originally. 

MR. SCOVILLE: I wu not assessed with any disability before 
I wu Injured In the Northwest Territories. They told me 15 
per cent When I got the files for an appeal, their medical 
examiner had originally asseaaed me at 20:s per cent He put 
in hi• notn to file that 2.5 per cent was previous. There was 
no previou, disability, but he said 2.5 per cent, and 
aomebody in the WCB looked at that and said, 'Well, that 
does not aound right We will put it down at 5.5 per cent 
previous, and 15 per cent as ours.• I do not know just who 
it wu. Some of their writing I cannot make out in their 
reports, but somebody overruled their own medical examiner 
because it did not look right They took 5.5 per cent off the 
20.5 per cent Well, 15 per cent disabled wu low as far as 
I wu concerned, and u far as the surQeons were concerned 
at that time. 

The surgeon that operated on me, Or. Molloy - most 
specialists I have dealt with, doctors and surgeons, have told 
me that it does not matter what their report says. When it 
goe, to the compensation board, they use their own methods 
of determining the amount He said it does not matter what 
he puts down. He said he will put down what he honestly 
thinks, but he said that it does not mean they are going to go 
by what he aays, because he said they have their own way of 
doing thing,. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Another follow-up question. Charles. 

MR. DENT: Vic, you said that the WCB helped you start your 
bulin811. Can you tell me how? Wu that through a partial 
commutation? 

MR. SCOVILLE: How they helped me was, they gave me 
money to pay off the existing mortgage on my property so I 
could get clear title to it. They gave me $27,000, I think it 
wu, and then they gave me another $6000. The landscaping 
and that cost more than the original estimate, because it 
rained all 1pring and ao it took a lot longer to do it. I was 
able to open the first year late because of the weather, and 
because we did not get the decision on it until yet In 1989, 
I wu planning on getting a lot of the work done in the fall, 
and I did not get the okay to go ahead until it was too late to 
do anything. It was in the wintertime, then, about January, so 
we did not get started until the spring of 1990, so it took until 
about the middle of July before I was able to open. 

MR. DENT: Are you still receiving a pension, and if so, how 
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much it It? 

MR. SCOVILLE: I wu getting $332.00 per month, • 15 per 
cent dleebllity pension, and they advanced me four yeert on 
that to help me out. 

MR. DENT: What would your solution to the problem be right 
now? What do you went the board to do? 

MR. SCOVILLE: I would like to be ....... d at the proper 
level of dieebllity for one thing, and It la not 15 per cent Or. 
Molloy, the lest time I sew him, said in the 30 per cent range. 
I em worse now then I wee then. The level of my dleebility 
hu never gone beck down since I came back from the pain 
clinic in Vancouver. That has been since the end of February, 
so I do not think It le ever going to go back down any farther. 
It hu levelled off at • certain level again, so I would llke to be 
ueeued property. The compensation board I• auppoeedly 
going to send me to somebody In Halifax to have another 
ueeaament done. Apparently then, whoever doea the 
ueeaament In Halifax sends the file back to Yellowknife, and 
the same medical examiner there that examined me before 
decide• what the disability la again. They did not take hi• 
word for it the first time. 

I do not know why it would change now. There were thing• 
in hi• fllea. When I wu up there, he did some tfftl on me, 
like ankle jerk• and atuff like that. and I have no ankle jerk at 
ell on my right leg. Every doctor and apecielitt I have been 
to mentioned that in ell their reporta. He checked It out. He 
hammered away on It for about five mlnutea, but he never 
mentioned that at ell In hla report. and they eleo never 
mentioned anything about the thrN WNka I WU off In Mey of 
that year when I allpped on the Ice and fell on my back. That 
wu nwer mentioned In their reporta at all, but 1hey kNp 
mentioning about the operation I had away back In 1984. 
They bring that up In all their conv..-.ationa and letten. I 
have queationed them about that, but 1hey have never given 
me an anawer on that yet. 

But I have a fHling It WU becauN that happened in the 
Northwest Territoriea too. I felt that If there wu any previoua 
injury. It wu done at that time, becauM you cannot work 
seven day• a week, 18 houra • day, with • bad back. I do 
not care who you ere. Not the kind of work I did, like heavy 
equipment and welding, and ell that atuff. There wu nothing 
wrong with my back before. I would 1ay I could out-work a 
lot of people a lot younger than I wu. which I did do when 
I wu up there. 

Another thing I would like to mention ii that 1hey only have 
one adviaor for the compenaation board workera in the whole 

Northwest Terrltorlea. That '""" kind of atrange. becauH 
that le an awful lot of area for one per.on to have to deal 
with. It would elffl09t Hem like It would be too much tor that 
person to do a good job If ahe hu that many people to deal 
with. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okey, Vic. Ate there_,.., OCher 
queationl? 

MR. SCOVILLE: One thing I would like to 1ay la that 
aometimaa I fNI like they think becauM I have a bac:tl Injury' 
that I am brain dead, that I do not know what la good tor me 
or what la not good for me and I cannot make .,.., deciaione 
on my own. I told them repeatedly that concr.re and uphalt 
- I do not know what it don to my back. but If I am on It for 
five minutea I am In agony - and they aey, "Well. try different 
ahon. • I have tried ell that stuff and it don not aeem to help, 
but it don not aeem to make any difference to them. I 
ahould be able to take more pain. They told me one time that 
if I wu totally disabled, there would not be any problem. If 
I wu parelyMd from the neck down, well, I do not want to be 

that way. 

I do u much u I poeaibly can wery day and some days I 
can do more than other deya. But when the pain geta to a 
certain lwel, I know when I have to atop doing It. Al long u 
I keep doing It that way, I probably will not get any more 
dleebled than what I em. When you have no lnoome coming 
In and they say If you do this we ere going to pay you again, 
what doea • guy do? He hee to do something. So he tries 
It and It mekea him worse and then they aey, 'Well that le too 
bed. We tried and you tried. But we ere going to cut you off 
now because you ere not doing anything.• 

I think another thing is, they can fly me ell the way up to 
Yellowknife and ell that, people I em dealing with there, I em 
the Injured worker. It seem, to me It would be better - they 
ere not Injured - If they come down to '" me or whoever 
else they ere dealing with, on a more personal buie, to see 
what the fellow I• trying to do. I am not laying around crying 
the bluea and trying to get a great big fat penalon. I would 
just u aoon not have any penalon at ell. But I em Injured 
and I have • penalon coming to me and I would just u soon 
have a payout and make my own living and not have to deal 
with anybody else. Because the headaches and the pain that 
you have to go through trying ell these different things. 

If I wu a guy lying on the couch ell day with • remote control 
watching TV pumping painkillera, then I could see them doing 
that; trying to get • fellow out and doing aomething with hi• 
life. I em already trying to do that I em quite confident that 
I will be able to do It. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): We have heard your comments and 
eome of the recommendation, you have made. Aa I 
mentioned there ere other people involved In the eyetem and 
a lot of people have been taking notea. There wlll be some 
follow.up on thl• conversation. We have other cells to make. 
We ere travelling from the East going ecroee almost each 
province here talking to different people. I thank you for your 
time. 

MR. SCOVILLE: I thank you for celling end listening to me. 
If you have any further queatione I em more then willing to 
talk to you. Thank you. 

Teleoon With Mr. Joe Kubik, Saskatchewan 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. le this Joe Kubik? Thie 
If Fred Koe. I em the chairmen of the standing committN on 
agenciea, boerda and commleelone. We ere meeting here In 
Yellowknife and the commlttff le reviewing the Workers' 
Compenaation Board of the NWT. With me here in the room 
ere five other committee Members who are MLAs from ecroee 
the Territoriea. Alao In the room ere members of the public 
repreMntlng the Workers' Compensation Board, the workers' 
advisor le here and we elao have members of the Injured 
Workera Alloclatlon and some members of the pren. So we 
ere here to llaten to you and some of the membera may have 
eome qufftlonl. Pie ... proceed. 

MR. KUBIK: My name la Joaeph Kubik. I got hurt In March 
of 1985. I wu working In Terra Mlnea. When I got hurt In 
1985 I had aurgery on my back, It wee my back I Injured. I 
had eome disk• taken out and for a year I wu on full 
compensation and then after • year - I em not positive of the 
time frame - I wu celled Into Yellowknife and then I wu put 
on a 20 per cent pension. 

Still after the surgery in that year time frame that I wee off, I 
atill could not retum back to work. I had • herd time walking 
and hopefully they were going to do more surgery. Every 
time I would end up in the hospital no more surgery was 
performed. 
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So this carried on and carried on and when they put In on the 
pension they gave me a 20 per cent disability pension, which 
I wu getting at that time, it was in the neighbourhood of $300 
or 10. I still could not return back to work and then they gave 
me an increue of frve per cent and put me on a 25 per cent 
disability. I still could not return back to work. Every time I 
would try and do something I would end up in the hospital. 
I could not do any lifting, I was restricted to lifting five pounds 
and compensation would keep saying there is nothing wrong 
with you, go back to work, that is all the money we are going 
to give you. So living on $300 and some a month and you 
cannot go back to work, that is pretty hard. 

So then from the 25 per cent then they increued me to 30 
per cent and that is all they pay for a back injury and .1 still 
could not go back to work. So it carried on and finally I said 
to myseH I either go back to work or there has to be some 
kind of a problem some place. My doctors specified to me 
and on paper in the letters they wrote to compensation that I 
could not return back to work. So with this 30 per cent 
disability I went back to the doctors and said to either give me 
surgery or tell me what the problem is because I have gone 
my limit. 

So I did go back to the doctors, they were going to redo 
surgery and then when they looked at the final x-raya and the 
milligrams and the CT 1can1, I wu totally disabled. The 
doctors told me I would never work again u long u I live. 

So I informed the compensation on this and they said they did 
not have any statement like that from the doctors. So then I 
put in for an appeal case. It took me awhile to get that. 
Finally I got the appeal and it wu stated on the doctor's 
reports in the appeal that the man is disabled. I am classified 
today u a paraplegic. 

So with the lawyers and everything I spent just about $15.000. 
All this wu in black and white from the lawyers. I never lied. 
The doctors did not lie. When it came to an appeal it cost me 
roughly in the area of $15,000. On the appeal it says you can 
fight your own cue. Well I never had any case to fight it 
was in black and white, right from the doctor's reports that I 
could not return back to work. But the way I lff it, if you do 
not get a lawyer to do the job for you, you do not get 
anything done and your answer is you go back to work. 

So that is the situation with my disability. But that it all 
cleared up now after two appeals that I want through. So I 
am on 100 per cent diaability. So everything I gained it cost 
me money for the lawyers. 

Then when I did put in for partial payout - thit is all I want is 
a partial payout. Other people in my situation do not want 
payouts. I think they would want a partial payout. Thit II all 
I am uking for. Becauae before I got hur1 I wu $75.000 in 
debt I did not uk to get hurt We have compensation 
covering us. Thit compensation, I understand. we are 
covered for life under it. once we do g« hurt Now in the 
situation that I am in, the money I went through fo, lawyers 
and everything, which I did not need - 10 when I did say I 
would like the return for what it cost for lawyers, I proved what 
the problem wu. They said I did not need a lawyer. Before 
I got a lawyer they said there was nothing wrong with ma. all 
I wanted was more money and to go back to work. 

So it takn a lawyer to tell them to more or less say this is 
what the doctor says. So that point wu proven. So all thi■ 
money that I did receive, it cost me in lawyer'■ fff■ and like 
I said, I was around $75,000 in debt when I did get hur1 and 
today approximately I owe less than haH of that 

Then when I did star1 asking for a payout they ■aid they did 
not do ■uch a thing. Well I feel when the compensation gives 

you a penny, they figure they give you a payout We are not 
uklng for a payout we are uking for partial payout to get 
out of debt That 11 all we are asking for. Then they turn 
around and say they will only give 10 per cent. H you are 1 o 
per cent injured you are on a partial pension. H you are 1 O 
per cent partially disabled, they will give you that payout. It 
just depends on what wage you are getting at the time you 
got hurt This 10 per cent could mean maybe a $20,000 
payout. Well that is peanuts. You cannot do anything with 
that $20,000. The thing is with a 10 per cent disability you 
are capable of going back to work, which actually does not 
mean nothing at all. But once you are 100 per cent disabled, 
you are in a different situation altogether. 

This is why I feel that they should give you maybe a 25 per 
cent payout partial payout. To them you say partial payout 
and they say payout. To me there la a difference. H they 
were to pay me out they would have to give me just about 
haH a million dollars. I am not asking for that All I am 
asking is for a partial payout to get out of debt, which I think 
the other people in my situation are asking for the same thing. 

So I will leave it at this. H you have any questions I will 
answer them to the beat of my ability. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Joe. Have you had 
trouble with the attitudn of the people you have been dealing 
with? 

MR. KUBIK: I had trouble until I got a lawyer and then after 
I got the lawyer it says right on the appeal papers that you do 
not need a lawyer if there la anything that is your own cost 
But without a lawyer you cannot do anything. I did fight for 
this - this would be about two years after I got hurt, in 1987. 
I am outside raking the yard, in about haH an hour I am just 
about on my hands and knees. That did not help at all. And 
then when I did get a lawyer and we got all the medical 
evidence from the doctors, the doctors did have it in black 
and white to the compensation board that I wu not able to 
work. So it all boiled down to that I had to have a lawyer. 
And I think every other man and woman are in the same 
situation: you have to have a lawyer and lawyers do not come 
for nothing. 

This Is what I feel they are in the wrong by doing that H the 
doctor states that you are disabled and cannot return to work, 
they should not argue that You should not have to take a 
lawyer. H you are hurt, you are hurt. When I turned around 
and asked them to pay me back for the lawyer they said they 
do not do that and that I did not need a lawyer. But when I 
told them I could not return to work, they said all I want is 
more money. That is what I was told straight to my face. I 
said that if that was the case, there is no sense in me saying 
anything more to them. I gave it to the lawyer and told him 
the situation. The lawyer got the medical report from the 
doctor and that is all that was done. Then there was no 
argument at all. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay, Joe. Brian Lewis has a 
question. 

MR. LEWIS: Joe, I certainly know an awful lot about backs. 
I know that if you have a bad back you can be almost like a 
baby. You just cannot do anything. I want to check on one 
thing you raiaed earlier on. You said that you were told that 
the limit on backs, according to WCB, was 30 per cent. That 
is it. 

MR. KUBIK: This is what I was getting until I got a lawyer. 
They said this is the limit we pay on your back. The problem 
is in my back, but it all goes down to my legs. The situation 
I am in is that they f1Xed up the disk, but my sciatic nerves 
are split and stretched. The situation I am in now, I should be 
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paralyNd but, fortunately, I am not What happen,, I do not 
know, but fNery time I lift or whatever anything, thi1 all gon 
down to me and I .cannot walk. It hump, up my back and 
that 11 u fa, u I can go. That is my 1ituation. 

MR. LEWIS: This is a question that come, up time and time 
again. I had several people come to '" me about four years 
- before the workers' adviser was appointed - who Mid that 
whenever you go into workers' comp with a back problem, 
they Immediately get auapicioua and do not believe that you 
have a bad back. One worker told me that he wu told by 
wee that the reason why they behave thi1 way 11 bec:auH It 
is so easy to fake a bad back and that It i1 the easiest thing 
to fake. Have you ever heard anything Ilk• that? 

MR. KUBIK: I have heard of different people uying that you 
can fake a back problem. I would believe to uy that the 
compenlation did have the attitude that I wu doing the earn• 
thing. I will tell you that In the first thrN years that I wu off 
work, It just about drove me crazy. I just about ended up in 
a mental hoapital becauM every time I tried to do something 
I would end up in the ho1pital. All they could do to me wu 
give me demerol and morphine to calm the pain down. That 
ii all they could do. Thla carried on and carried on, and then 
I finally went to one doctor - my doctor here In North 
Battleford made thil appointment for me - and I told him the 
1ituation. I Mid that If he can fix me, to fix me; If not. tell me 
what the problem ia and why you cannot fix It. He got all the 
x-raya, the myelogram and the CT acana becauM the doctors 
that did the aurgery on me are the onn I wu alway1 Mnt to. 
Thay aald that they cannot do &l'f'/ aurgery on you. That la u 
fa, u I got with them. Why, I never did get that anawer. 

The doctor I went to - the lut one here - looked at the 
myelograma for about half an hour and told me why the 
doctors will not operate and that he would not either becauM 
any doctot In hla right mind would not tlOuoh you becauN u 
eoon • they touch that area, I would autornatlcaUy be In a 
wheel chair. He told me I am walking and that I am a YfK'f 
lucky man to be doing eo. He told me to ~ • that way. 
That la when I found out what the problem wu. Olher than 
that, I cannot 1ay anything at all I do understand your point 
of thla faking IIUfl. I wlah I could fake .. but I oannot. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you wry mudl to, your thM. 
Aa I mentioned before, we have numeroua people here taking 
notN, so hopefully aomeone will get back to you. Where are 
you phoning from? 

MR. KUBIK: Thie ia North Batlleford. Sukatchewan. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. We wlah you well. 

Telecon With Mr. Ray W~ llar.llobll 

Mr. Wonnlck, we are here to liaten to you and hear ~our IIOfY 
about concern, with compenNlion. and we may have aome 
quntiol\ll after. We have about 20 mtnutN. PINN p,oceed. 

MR. WONNICK: I wu working up In the Temtone11 for ITT 
when I had an Injury. I had an additional claim wtltl the 
Manitoba board before I had gone up there. Now. the NWT 
aay that they will not accept &l'f'/ reeponalbilllV for an injury I 
had prior. The Manitoba board layl that I went to wortl IO • 

ia the rnponaibillty of the NWT. I have been penaliZed 
becauN I had only wortled to, a period of 10 weella when I 
wu up there and got hurt That la what they are calculating 
my Income on. My Income now la .... ll'lan saooo per year. 
I find It very, very hard at thia time to maintain a family. being 
a father, and the rnponaibillty of that la vety trying. 

I have a permanent Injury and, at thie time. I am going to a 
pain clinic. I have tried therapy and am llill on about $180 to 

S200 worth of medication a month for anti-inflammatori•• and 
painklllera. I have leg brae" for my legs. My leg1 were fairly 
damaged at the tim• and will not heal. My concern at this 
time ia that the injury itaelf i1 over a thr ... year period. At 
different tim .. , they refun to pay me for two or thrN month, 
at a time, and I have no other income coming in. They will 
re-evaluate it and Mnd some money to me again. I find that 
every time thl1 happen,, they force me to go to work a couple 
tim.. and I have had further complication, and could not 
carry on. 

Thay laid that they would give me 1ome kind of upgrading 
which conaiated of a one or two-day computer courae. I do 
not have any real education. I have been in thi1 trade for 35 
yeara. Buically, thia ia all I know. For me to go to another 
line of work, I find I have very little mobility. I have constant 
pain all the time which 11 why I am on medication. With my 
educational level - I am juat 52 yeara old - I do not '" a 
future In what I can handle on a one or two-day training 
course. I uked them, at that time, if they would Hnd me to 
achool for thrN montha. I auggffted that they do It that way, 
and they gave me a conaulting firm here in Winnipeg. I went 
there and all that firm did wu cut a few ada out of the paper 
and told me that I had to take th ... Jobe or they would cut 
me off. I did not qualify for some of the jobl they were trying 
to get me to take. Every time I wu interviewed by a 
cornP&l'f'/, they would uk me where I had worked the 
previou1 two or thrN years. When I told them I wu on 
compensation, they would not allow me to work with them or 
be part of their company becauM they know that it they 
accept the rnponalblllty of hiring me and I have a relapH, 
then It 11 alwaya a new claim. That new claim 11 going to be 
charged to the people that I am working for at that time. It 
never goee back to the first Injury. 

The compenaatlon board aaya that If I can return to work, I 
have recovered. Some of ua, when we have leg or back 
lnjuriea, we cannot compa.tely recover .. If we have a relapM, 
a new company la very, very reluctant to hire ua bec:auM they 
know that we might make a fM week• or a month or two, and 
I we have further compllcatione - and we find that Iota of 
tlmee when we have to go on th ... Jobe, we are ltlll under a 
lot of medication. Our keenneu la not there and we could fall 
Into eddltlonal lnjurln. Sometlmn we have to change our 
occupation mldetrearn without any real achoollng and with the 
amount of medication we are taking, we find It very hard 
becauM we are forgetful and are very vague in our 1peech 
and thoughtl. 

With the amount of people on the unemployment line righ1 
now, It ia very competitive. I do not have a clue who would 
hire me at thla point I have uked for additional training. 
Thay will give you a 1lx-month period with a con1ulting firm. 
Thay do not have any real Ina u far u job opportunltie1 go. 
All they do la take a fM ada out of the paper, atlck them on 
• piece of paper, and 1ay that you have thrN jobl to lry to 
find on• from, otherwiM they are going to cut me off the 
benefitl. It ii very Intimidating and very hard bec:au1• it you 
walk in with leg bracn, people take a look at you and you 
can '" the writing on the wall. Thay give you their beat 
wl1hel and are lincere. I think they are happy when we leave 
their premilea becauM they know we are going to have 
additional problema u we go along. With the amount of 
people looklng for work out there, it i1 very hard to qualify. 

Al thla point In time, I am atartlng to find that I do not have 
any future. What am I going to receive a few years down the 
road when I am completely dlaabled? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Ar• you preaently receiving benefits 
from wee in the Terrltorln. 

MR. WONNICK: Yn, $31.18 a day. They pay for my 
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medication, and they pay me 16 cents a kilometre to go in for 
therapy, to the pain clinic, or to see my doctor. That is all I 
receive. I do not have any other income other than the 
Territories. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Do you have some specific issues or 
concerns with the WCB? 

MR. WONNICK: It is very hard because with these people 
being that far away - now they finally got in touch with the 
advisory board in the Territories. They made an appointment 
for me to go to Winnipeg. Now she has to go through three 
years of paperwork in order to try to resolve some of these 
differences. I was in there last week. I have not got any 
outcome of that. But it has taken three years, and now if the 
Territories cuts me off of what I am getting now, I am going 
to lose what I had. 

I had a big fight with the bank a while ago. Sometimes I do 
not get paid for two or three months at a time. I have to pay 
all the late charges, and then the Territories will quickly 
transfer some money into my account, saying that It was a 
postal error, a post office strike, or whatever it is. And all it is 
is a cover-up. It gets to the point that - I do not know of 
anybody that could basically maintain a family on $9000 a 
year. It leaves me very doubtful. From where am I going to 
receive help? 

I find out that I even have a hard time with the medication, 
because my medication is around $180 to $200 a month. I 
have to pay for all my fuel to go in. I have asked for an 
increase In mileage, because our fuel was up to 78 cents a 
litre here, a while ago. Now It Is back down again, 10 it is a 
little easier, but It colts me almost $20 a trip, and I am only 
receiving about $1!5 or $16 out of that. And there Is no 
allowance mada for wear and tear or insurance, or anything. 

I have got leg braces that I had to go In and have modified 
for me, because the leg is deteriorating. It has atarted to lose 
Its form or go out of shape. They wanted me to go to work 
with these leg braces on, and 600 or 700 milligrams of anti­
inflammatories and painkillers. I tried It for a couple of weeks, 
and it got to the point where I was flat on my back for a 
month and a haif. My leg swelled up, and now I have 
additional chronic pain all the time. Now they have got me 
going to a pain clinic. 

Before they try to get me to work. I think they have to flX me 
up first. Alf I said, I have been out achool aince 19!57. I have 
worked since 1957. I have an engineering degrN. and 
achooling ia something n- for me. I cannot ~rb very 
much on a one-day or two-day computer course. To me that 
is very hard for me to even comprehend, that indifference. 
And I find that if I learn to turn a computer on and off - a 
company is not going to hire ma. The consulting firm aay. 
'Well, at least you have taken th•s one-day computer course 
You know how to turn the computer on.• I would not ture 
anybody on that basis. I do not know why they would push 
me that hard. 

I told them that there is an adult education program just 
outside of Winnipeg. It is thrN or four montha. They told me 
that the course was too long. They would give me a one or 
two-day course. I have not had any tUCCffl In that area. I 
have been out of achool for a long time. to It It going to take 
me II little while to get into that; and they did not agrN to 
that. 

I tried for additional benefits and they said, •No.• This is 
where I am at. I am ttuck. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay, Ray. One of the Members has 
a question. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you. Some of the things that we have 
been hearing from people is that the WCB staff seem quite 
insensitive to the situation that injured workers find themselves 
in. I was wondering if that has been your experience as well. 

MR. WONNICK: My first adjudicator - I will not mention any 
names over the phone, but - she was more that 
compromising. She was a pretty sound person. The second 
adjudicator I got, she was a hatchet person. She just cut me 
off, or I either did this, or - there was no leniency in that area. 
I said to the lady, •1 am going to stop by the RCMP going to 
these appointments. I have got 70 kilometres driving with this 
medication, and I am scared I am going to either have an 
accident or I am going to lose control." And she says, 'Well, 
you should be able to function under that. I have checked 
this medication.' And I said, "You are not the person that is 
suffering from It. How would you know? You would not have 
a degree of hurt or feeling.• 

A week and a haif ago a chap shot himseif here on the 
parking lot of the Compensation Board right here in Winnipeg 
because he went in, and It was very intimidating for him; he 
could not handle It. He went and sat in his truck, and he shot 
himseif. And he is dead. And there are a lot of people that -
• all of a sudden the board would just cut off everybody that 
has been on comp for a year and a haif or two years, so cut 
them all off. And they do not have any support system. 
Where are they going to go? Their families are breaking 
down, and there is not money to help these people. A lot of 
these people need outside help, like myseif. I need some 
outside help. I do not have the education factor. 

Now, at my age, I have to change my occupation. I know 
nothing other than I am an engineer and a mechanic. I could 
function fairly well In that area until I got hurt. Now I cannot 
function. I barely have mobility for a f- hours a day. I find 
It very, very intimidating. 

MR. ANTOINE: Okay, Ray. The insensitivity of some of the 
WCB staff seems to be a concern here, and I was wondering 
how we could deal with this situation. · 

MR. WONNICK: I think what the board should do is that 
when there is an asse11ment done, It should be done through 
his doctor; it should be done through his chiropractor; and 
they should take that into consideration. 

What they do with me now, they send me to Winnipeg, and 
they have a compensation doctor. He does not take a look 
at any of the reports that are in. He takes a little cloth 
measuring tape and measures It; then he takes a pin, and he 
sticks it in my leg. He does not take a look at the X rays. I 
have crucial ligaments torn out of me leg; I have a couple of 
fractures in here; I have some of what he calls separation 
disks in my back. He has not taken that into consideration. 
They always seem to favour his report. 

As I said, I will not mention his name, but the last one I went 
to said, 'Go to work.' I went to work for three weeks; the leg 
twelled up, and it Is funny. Three weeks later I have got a 
doctor casting leg braces for me, and they put me into 
therapy. Prior to that it was a compensation doctor who said, 
'Well. you have been on compensation for four and haif 
months now; it should have healed; my report is that you go 
to work immediately." 

So I went to work for three weeks, and finally the company 
came up to me and said, 'What Is wrong?' and I said, 'I 
cannot function.• And the guy says, 'We see you are getting 
pretty wobbly." And I said, 'I have had to increase my 
medication in order to try to stay with the company.' I liked 
the company I was working for. It was a truck dealership here 
in Winnipeg. The people treated you nice. But I just could 
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not fynctlon. I wu Juat losing It. I had to recheck my work 
over thrff or four tlmH. I have been in that trade for many, 
many years. I ueually do not have to recheck my work. It i• 
good. But I found myaelf making miatakH. I found myaelf 
covering up, and I wu atarting to lie to myaelf. And finally 
one moming I told my wife, •1 Juat cannot make It.• So ahe 
phoned in, and the adjudicator wu more than sympathetic at 
that time. But that was my firat adjudicator. My aecond 
adjudicator, she aay• to me, "'We have had you on job Harch 
for •ix month•. If you cannot find a job, you are on your own. 
Sorry.• 

I cannot find anybody at thia point in time that will hire me, 
and I find It very, very trying. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay, Ray. We are making phone 
call• to varioua people aero.. Canada here, and we have 
heard your atory, u I mentioned, and there are repr ... ntativea 
from various groups here, people taking notH, 80 I ... ume 
there will be some follow-up to ... what kind of Uliatance .•. 

MR. WONNICK: Okay. Juat before you go, I would like to 
find out that the compensation board works, or should work, 
with the company that you were working for when you got 
hurt. My company hu signed my inau!ance papers here that 
I had resigned from my position, which I never did. I came 
out on a medical leave. The company hu shown no intereat 
in my injury or how my family le making out u a rffult of the 
Injury. Could they be helpful in that area? Nothing. Thay 
just avoided the ayetem. My own company would not take 
me back now, alnce I have had this additional injury, becauM 
I could not make the medical. I received no help from them, 
not even a calklp or a card - even from the union. 

We paid hundred• and hundred• of dollar8 while we were 
working, Into theM unions, and the only thing the union ever 
gave me le the compenution board. the 1-600 number. That 
la all they have ever dona. There le no follow-up. There ia 
no aupport for that person who ia hurt. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Do you want to give ua the name of 
the company? 

MR. WONNICK: That I worked for? m. lnwtk SeMc ... 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay, Ray. We sympathize with you, 
and the meaaage you are giving us • very 11mdar to the 
mffl8ge we are getting from othef people acron Canada in 
similar altuatlona. 

MR. WONNICK: I think you will find that a lot of us that ware 
up in the Territoriff working probably know our tradff, but we 
are not really - when·we get a lot of ~ lellers and - get 
a lot of th ... follow-up repo11a. we are not .van mNe aware 
of what is on our file, and that ia very. very eeary becauM I 
do not know what the compenaatlon board hu on me I have 
never ... n the file. I have never '"" a repo,t Of a follow-up 
on that. They Ny they have all ~ kinda of medical 
repol'ta. But I never ... any of thoee, 90 I do not know. when 
they qufftion me. I do not know what they have In front of 
them. They are prepared: I am not. I am jull a tredeaman. 
Thay are qualified people In that area; I am not. I am tuat an 
Injured worker. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Ray. and I wiatl you well 
and your family well. 

MR. WONNICK: Thank you fo, calling. Good-bye 

Telecom Whh Mr. Robert Brewer, Alberta 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): We would like to hear what you have 
to aay about the compensation p,oc.... We have about 15 

minutes. Tell ue what happened to you. 

MR. BREWER: I have a pretty good atory actually. I wu 
hurt in the TerrltoriH. Everything wu hunky-dory. I received 
compenaation for a certain length of time the firat time. I tried 
to go back to work and It failed. The aame thing happened 
and it took me almost a year and half to get compenution for 
exactly the aame injury. In that year and a half, I owned a 
houM and had a family. I no longer have a family; I no 
longer have a houM; and my credit rating le nil. I could not 
get any help from anyone. I tried going to welfare. I tried 
going to different conetituenciff. For the aame injury, I could 
not underatand why it wu taking ao long juat to get 
compensation. it juat blew me away. BecauM it wu such a 
strain on my whole life,. I became auper,etre ... d out and 
ended up having a stroke which I did not like and which wu 
not good for my health at all. It added to my injury. Other 
than that, if it wu not for the workera' adviaor, I probably 
would still not have any money today. it I• just the way the 
aituation wu and just the way things are going. 

• Aa well, ff It was not for the workera' adviaor, I do not honestly 
know if I would be here today. I wu ao atreased out and so 
strung out becauM nobody wu helping me and I had a 
family to aupport; I could not do it. I have no clue why we 
pay into this thing and why we cannot get it out. it wu kind 
of diaappointing. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): What le your current atatua? Are you 
on aorna kind of diaability inaurance now? 

MR. BREWER: YH, wee hu come acron, after a year and 
a half, to help me. The workera' advi80r'• help from the 
Terrltoriff wu a Godaend. Kathe Pagonl• could not be 
praised enough in my booka. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Do any Membera have any 
queatlona? Mr. Lewis. 

MR. LEWIS: We are all taking notH.here 80 it would help, 
Robert, if you gave u• who you were working for, what the 
Injury wu. and when it happened. That would help ua a little 
bit. 

MR. BREWER: I wu working for PCL. Poole Construction 
Urnlted northem, for a long time in the Territories - I still 
ueociate with them becauae they are still my employer u far 
u I am concemed, and u far u they are concerned, I am 
still their employee. When I injured myself, I hurt my left 
knee u well u my lower back. It wu quite a aubatantial 
injury becauN I am • a big guy and I could not do anything 
any more. I could not do the same stuff I wu doing which 
wu really diaappolnting. 

MR. LEWIS: When did this happen, Robert? 

MR. BREWER: Two and a half years ago in October. 

MR. LEWIS: Where wu this? Wu it in Yellowknife? 

MR. BREWER: No, It wu in Baffin Island. 

MR. LEWIS: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Antoine. 

MR. ANTOINE: I uked thi• question to the other people we 
have been talking to. The wee ataff ... m to be insensitive 
to the· situation that workera find themselves in. Can you tell 
u• about any of the experience you had? 

MR. BREWER: I do not know ff it la inHnaitivity, if that is 
what you want to call It. I find that they just do not seem to 
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understand or realize there are some real people out there 
who' actually get injured. These people are not trying to take 
them for everything. I would rather be working and making 
$6000 a month than making what I am making now. There is 
no way in the world. I have been a hard worker all 20 years 
of my life since I have been in the work force. I do not know 
if it is called insensitivity. I just think it is a lack of knowledge 
as to what is happening to the people that are injured. I do 
not think they understand that this is for real and that they are 
situated in a spot in their lives and are supposed to help us. 

If we get injured, that is why the insurance is there in the first 
place. I want someone to help me. I do not want them to tell 
me that they do not think my injury is that good and that they 
think I do not deserve anything. Excuse me. I cannot go 
back to work, here. I hurt myself on the job and they are 
telling me I cannot have anything. In that area, that is 
insensitivity. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Robert. Yesterday, we had a 
presentation from the workers' advisor. She outlined her role, 
and the workload that she carries. From what you have 
indicated, you had pretty good experience with her eervices. 
I am wondering if you can give us any suggestion about the 
support eervice that should be available for injured workers. 

MR. BREWER: As far as support eervicea for injured workers, 
I sure would not abduct Ms. Pagonis' position. She does a 
hell of a job. I am sure ehe could use eome help: ehe ie by 
herself up there. I have been all acroae Canada working, and 
I never realized how many workers' advieors and how much 
compensation there ie for people, et cetera. but there are a lot 
things going on in this world. One person to take care of the 
whole NWT has to be phenomenal. It is an incredible job. 

Ae far as suggestions are concemed, all I suggest ie that the 
actual person who is in charge of the claim should take two 
or three of them and go out to the job to lff what this person 
actually does for a living before they judge him or before they 
send him to an appeal board. Why do things have to always 
go through an appeal board? I do not understand this. My 
company pays into the WCB to give it back should I get 
injured. I do not understand why it ie not Just cut and dried. 
If I injured myself and I have proof that I did it, I do not think 
I need to get six doctors to do it either. That 1Nms crazy. 
One doctor after another, and they all sey the same thing. 
Then, it still takes a year and a half to get compensation. I do 
not understand it at all. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay, Robert. Thank you for being 
available and making your pr ... ntation to UI. We are moving 
our way acroM Canada here. talking to other people 

MR. BREWER: Well, I hope I helped, or at leut pul my two 
bite in arrywey. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Your story ie very 11m,lar. a, I 
mentioned before. to other workers. and we are ge1bng a 
good feel for ... 

MR. BREWER: I will tell you eomething. that if it wu not for 
Ms. Pagonis a few times I know I would not have made rt. 
She works almost like a psychologist. Maybe she should do 
that too. Give her extra money to go and do that. becauee 
she did a hell of a job with me arrywaye. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay, Robert. We wilh you well, 
and keep your head up. 

MR. BREWER: Okay. Thanks very much. 

MR. LEWIS: Just a suggestion, Mr. Chairman. Maybe it 
would be good, when the next person comes on the line, if 
you would just guide them a bit, you know. What happened, 
and where? 

Telecon With Mr. Paul Saftner, British Columbia 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Hello, Paul Saftner? . 

MR. SAFTNER: Speaking. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Paul, it is Fred Koe calling from 
Yellowknife. We are in a standing committee on agencies, 
boards and commissions. We are in session reviewing the 
Workers' Compensation . Board. We are in the process of 
calling various individuals across Canada to listen to their 
situation regarding their experiences with the Workers' 
Compensation Board here in the Northwest Territories. With 
me in the room are five other Members of the committee, plus 
staff. Committee Members are made up of elected Members 
from acrou the Territories. Also in the room are various 
members of the public, including Workers' Compensation 
Board repreeentatlves, Kathe Pagonis, the workers' advisor, 
members of the Injured Workers' Association, and some 
members of the preM. 

What we would like to hear from you, Paul, basically, is a little 
history of where you got hurt, when, the magnitude of the 
injury, and some of your experiences with the board. Please 
proceed. You have about 20 minutes. 

MR. SAFTNER: Actually, I got hurt in 1983 while on the City 
of Yellowknife fire department Subsequently I was told by the 
city there was nothing wrong with me, to report back to work. 
I had left the city after seeing my doctor, and he told me I 
could not go to work until this wae completely finished, and 
thay did not go along. At that time, I think I had about 80 to 
100 sick days coming to me, eo I felt after 20 some years with 
them, if this was their attitude I just left and tried to make it on 
my own. 

I had a letter from Workers' Compensation saying that if I 
could not, I could re-open my case, which I tried to do in 
December of 1988, and I have been fighting with WCB since 
then. So far, it has been negative in some ways. In the last 
year I have been getting some help, due to, I think it is, Kathe 
Pagonis, the worker advisor, and Trevor Alexander. They are 
both very good people. 

The medical department, I think, is where most of the problem 
lies. It took from December 1988 to March 9, 1990, that is 16 
months, for them to make one decision of a 2.5 disability. 
Now, 25 months later, I am still waiting after seeing 
orthopaedic and spinal surgeons. I have seen two of the best 
In westem Canada, and they have told me that I cannot work. 
I have been accepted as fully disabled by Canada Pension 
and Revenue CanadL I still have not got an answer from 
Workers' Compensation. 

I would like to state, in one letter I have .here from the medical 
team of WCB in Yellowknife: "When we examined this worker 
in 1988, the 11 th .month and 24th day, there was no 
measurable disability. Thie was strictly a judgment call, and 
one could probably make a 1.5 disability.• In another letter 
about a month later from the same department, it says: 'Been 
and examined by Or. Gibson of the NWT Workers' 
Compensation Board, after a complete history taken and 
examination ... ' So in one letter he ie saying It was a quick 
judgment, and in the other that it was just a judgment call. 

They have received letters from these two spinal surgeons_. 
and what they did to me. I have taken milograms, 
discograms, arthograms (sic) and every other damned thing 
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you can take, and I still have got nothing from them. I am 
now getting paid for temporary total disability, but that could 
end tomorrow, which always leaves you thinking, 'What do I 
eat next week?• I could go on, but I guess you have probably 
heard a lot from other workers. 

Another one is your tribunal. Where do these men get their 
medical licence from? How do they know, when they turn 
down advice from specialists and say, "Oh no, there is nothing 
wrong with this man.• I know some of these men. They have 
no damned medical history at all. After fighting since 1988, 
I have got about a foot and a half of paper from WCB, and I 
have seen several doctors - I think altogether about 15 - and 
here I sit waiting, waiting, waiting. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): So you have gone through the 
appeals tribunal process? 

MR. SAFTNER: I went though the appeals tribunal on 
December 13, 1990, and they aaid If I could come up with 
more evidence, my situation would be looked into. They have 
more evidence from Or. Richards and Or. Petrogam (sic), 
these two orthopaedic and spinal surgeons, that tells them 
exactly what la wrong with me, and so far nothing. I wu seen 
again by another WCB doctor here about a month and a half 
ago, and I guess his letter went back to Or. Gibson to review, 
and I just have not heard. They are the ones that even 
suggested that if they wanted aecond advice, it should be 
from an orthopaedic surgeon, and they got It from two of 
them. I do not know what else to do. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay, Paul. I will just ask the other 
committee Members if they have any questions. Do any 
committee members have a queatlon? Brian Lewis. 

MR. LEWIS: Paul, when you Mt up your buain .... 
remember thla occasion when you went on your own. Were 
you given any help at all? I am asking the question because 
we have talked to a few peop•e already that have gone into 
starting up small businesaes and 10 on. I am just wondering 
if you were given any assistance at all in any of those 
ventures. 

MR. SAFTNER: I was not aware that you could get any. and 
I tried it on my own, doing the work, and It was heavy. The 
buaineM wu not big enough. I tried hiring help but it just 
was not big enough to keep on hired help, ao I had to aell it. 
and I took a very substantial Iola. 

MR. LEWIS: So Paul. what happened? Wu it after 1988, 
then, when you had a crack at that? This la when you 
reopened the case, to have It r-aluated? 

MR. SAFTNER: In December of 1988 I went back to WCB ,n 
Yellowknife and told them my troubles. and I told them I WU 

moving out of Yellowknife becauae It was very ex~n1n,e and 
I was going to move to where I could get by If I would 
receive help, and it looked good, and immed,ately upon 
getting down here I got a letter saying tNt after my 
exarflination - I gueaa that ia that letter I told you abo\4. that 
quick examination - there wu nothing wrong with me I 
returned to Yellowknife and I saw B,yan Rober11, and he 
helped me out and told me, 'Well, you should be on 
compensation.• They put me on temporarily for a few montha, 
and then the medical board aaid. "No, there is no change. 
We are not going to help him. There la nothing wrong with 
him.• 

MR. LEWIS: Okay, thanks. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Paul, as I mentioned, we a,e phoning 
various people acro11 Canada, talking to them, and your story 
ia very similar to other ones where we are finding out some of 

.the illues related to how you are being dealt with. 

MR. SAFTNER: I think you will find - you are probably 
having problems there too, but I have talked to several people 
here In British Columbia, and they are having the same 
problems other places in Canada, so you are not alone. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you very much, and I wish 
you well, Paul. 

MR. SAFTNER: Thank you for hearing my little spiel there. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): We will take a 10 minute break. 

-SHORT RECESS 

Telecon With Mr. Steve Ouellette, British Columbia 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Is this Steve Ouellette? This Is Fred 
Koe calling from Yellowknife. We are In a aeMion of the 
standing committee on agencies, boards and commi11ions, 
presently doing a review of the Workers' Compensation Board. 
We are in the proce11 of phoning Individuals across Canada 
who have had experiences dealing with the board_. With me 
are five Members of the committee, representing different 
areas acro11 the North, plus some staff and there are people 
from the public in the room. There are representatives of the 
Workers' Compensation Board, the workers' advisor, Kathe 
Pagonis, there are members of the Injured Workers' 
Aaaociation and a member of the pre11. We would like you to 
give us some of your experiences, where you got injured, 
when, and some of the things that have happened up until 
today. 

MR. OUELLETTE: I got Injured In September 1989. I was 
walking In a trench and we were moving some concrete forms 
and the crane came over to get the concrete forms and the 
hoist cable came loose from the back of the crane and the 
hoist fell on me. I wu standing on the concrete form when 
that happened. The hoist hit me and- I stumbled down the 
bottom of the trench. 

After that I went to the hospital and I stayed there for a little 
while and went home. I could not walk, there was too much 
pain in my legs. A few days after that I went to the hospital 
to get painkillers. I thought It was going to go away. A few 
days after I went back to work. I was taking painkillers every 
thrN hours, two or three Tylenol 3. I stayed on the job but 
I did not do anything. I was more hiding from people and 
kind of resting. 

After that I did not go back to work. I said it was crazy and 
It wu too dangerous for me to work under drugs. After that 
I went on compensation for a long period of time. I did not 
have any marks so the compensation wu telling me I had 
nothing and they were being rude and telling me to go back 
to work and get somebody to help me and do the work. They 
were very rude. 

June 16, 1990 they stopped benefits and they told me I was 
able to go back to work, I wu fit, but that was not the case 
because each time I tried to exercise I was getting a lot of 
pain. So I appealed the decision of the board in July 1990. 
From there I did nothing. I waited and waited and waited and 
got very depressed. I went to the compensation a few times 
and they told me I had nothing and that there were thousands 
of people like me all over Canada and they are all working. 
It is one time you feel that maybe something is wrong with 
you and you try to exercise and work yourself up to a point 
where you say you are going to go back to work. But each 
time I tried to exercise I worked myself to a higher pain. The 
pain would get very intense and I could not sleep at night and 
I would take more painkillers. 
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I was at a point where I did not know what to do. I went to 
see a psychiatrist and · it did not help very much. He was 
giving me sleeping pills and that did not work and then he 
was giving me uppers, that did not help any. I talked to a lot 
of people as to what I should do. One day I talked with a 
guy in construction and he told me to go and see the workers' 
advisor, Kathe Pagonie. She helped me and made me feel 
better and said they would look into it. She made me feel 
better. When I went to see her I was right at the bottom. 
Nobody would call me any more. They asked me to do this 
and V,at and I would say no. If I would do something with 
them, I would not participate and I would go home and take 
more painkillers. You end up not knowing what to do and 
what is going to happen. You hope for the beet. The doctors 
eay it will get better but that is not the way it worked. 

I went to eee a doctor and the doctor aaid you may learn to 
live with this. From there is changed. Kathe Pagonie was 
being very poeitive and very helpful and try to work with me 
against WCB, because WCB was keeping the door closed. 
They would call me in and ask if I still had a problem and 
then they would say, "Okey, this it over, go back to work, go 
back to work. Get out.• Stuff like that They treat you like 
you are nobody. 

This went on for a year and in December 1990, tix month• 
after all this, I decided I should go back to echool. I asked 
different people and they said it would be good for me. So 
I was looking forward to something new and etartlng to feel 
better. My back was still the same thing. We checked the 
courses at BCIT, NAIT and SAIT. I got the courses and I 
chose BCIT. I asked them what was the prerequieite and I 
moved to BC and I etarted part-time echool. I was not eligible 
to enter full time because I am bom and raieed In Quebec. 
I needed grade 12 in English so I nNded to do upgrading 
and I was out of echool for eo long I needed phyeice and 
math. 

I went to echooi two nights a week. I did not get anything 
from WCB. I was keeping in touch with Kathe. I did that with 
my own financing. That kind of kept my mind better. I wu 
feeling like I was doing something. Al the end of the clul in 
May I went back to Yellowknife. I went to'" wee and then 
they fixed a day for the appeal that I filed in July 1990. They 
fuccd a day in July 1991. The apologized for the delay. Al 
the end of July 1991 I went to the appeal boerd and from 
there I won my appeal because the wee were lying to me. 
They were pushing me away. 

Ten months after they etopped iasuing payment I rece,ved a 
cheque in the mail saying they were going to g,ve me a 
pension: they agreed I had a problem with my back and they 
sent me a cheque for $1400 for 10 months - $140 a month. 
That is not even being realistic. What is that g0tng to do. 
$140 a month'? Then we decided. ,n talking with Kathe. and 
she was saying she was doing her best and helping me out 
and being positive. So we decided to write a lefter to the 
Minister of Workers· Compensation Board who was Hon. 
Jeannie Marie-Jewell at the time. We wrote a lefter to that 
and after that wee kind of gave me more res~ and tt11ngs 
etarted to go better. 

I came back to BC and I finished the pat1-time course at BCIT 
for my English. I passed the course eucceufully. so I 8tat1ed 
full time in September 1991 and in November 1991 I received 
a letter that WCB decided to help me. Only then. over a year 
later. Before I started my school they were saying that wu 
not the course I wu going to take. I checked everything and 
that was the best for me. 

When they were not issuing me benefrta. I got • lawyer and 

he helped me get a third party action going because I wu 
not getting any help from WCB. Then WCB started to look at 
it and they said I could not use a lawyer, they were going to 
help me and I had to use their lawyer, Adrian Wright I did 
not get good feedback. I was not feeling comfortable, I tried 
to change that I included that in the letter to the Minister of 
Workers' Compensation Board. In the end I received a 
positive answer so I could use my own lawyer. In the 
meantime Kathe told me Adrian Wright is a nice guy and try 
it and see what happens, all the time trying to make me feel 
better. She would aay to take things one day at a time and 
see what Is going to happen. 

Now I am in echool full time and getting WCB benefits on a 
eteady basis. But the one year wu the worst year of my life. 
It wu very tough, it wu frustrating. You feel llke you are 
nobody. If I had not had my eavings or anything, I do not 
know what I would have done. That Is basically it. I am a bit 
nervous here. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe):· Thank you Steve. You are doing 
okay. Brian. 

MR. LEWIS: I just wanted to ask you about when things 
began to tum around for you. One or two other people that 
we talked to tonight said that things really began to move 
when we spent time with the workers' advisor, but the main 
thing that C!lffle through in one case was that until you get a 
lawyer working on your case, no one took you that seriously. 
Would you confirm that that was your experience too; that 
once you got legal help it began to move it bit better? 

MR. OUELLETTE: When I got my lawyer it did not really 
move things. He sent them letters but it did not change too 
much, until I went to see Kathe and we wrote to the Minieter. 
They etarted to be more humane and more respectful and talk 
to me like I was an adult, not like I wu the low life of the 
ltreel 

MR. LEWIS: So maybe then when you wrote to the Minister 
that la when things etarted to get better. Is that what you are 
nylng? 

MR. OUELLETTE: Yes, that made a big difference. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): So Steve you are currently receiving 
full diaability allowance now? 

MR. OUELLETTE: Since they agreed to help me with the 
echool. For a long time I was going to school and they said 
they were not going to help me. I had my savings and I 
calculated everything. Also my parents said they would help 
me if I had problems. It would have been tight, but I was 
doing it on my own. Then in November 1991 they decided to 
help me, two months after I started full time. That is when 
they decided to issue benefits. Things started to go better 
from there, I could concentrate better on my school. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Lewis. 

MR. LEWIS: Steve, where was this accident? 

MR. OUEUETTE: At the City Centre building in Yellowknife. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Steve, I would like to thank you for 
your time and for making your presentation to us. Your story 
It very similar to other people across Canada who have had 
injuries in the North and are trying to get rehabilitated or take 
on a different life. I with you well in your school and in your 
future. 

MR. OUELLETTE: Thank you very much. Good-bye. 
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Telecom With Ma. Sandy Laidlaw, Br111ah Columbia 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): What we are doing, Sandy, ia -
phoning people acroaa Canada. talking to them about their 
experiences with the WCB here in the Northwest Territories. 
What we would like to hear from you initially is a brief history 
of your accident, where you are, where it happened, when, 
and some of the experiences you have had with the board. 
Please proceed. 

MS. LAIDLAW: This is initially with my husband, Gary 
Laidlaw. He is the one that put a claim for white hand 
syndrome in Yellowknife in 1982. He was tested by doctors 
and they figured out a percentage of his disability. 
Yellowknife WCB were very helpful because they got the ball 
rolling, but becauae Gary worka in different mine• acroaa 
Canada la where the problem arisea. We are not getting any 
response from any other WCBa. I believe we are really 
victim• of the aystem here. I think that all compenaatlon 
boards ahouid work together even though they are provincial. 
It is a white hand ayndrome disease. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Can you elaborate a little more? 
Have you filed any claima? 

MS. LAIDLAW: Y .. , we filed a claim in Yellowknife in 1982. 
He got a settlement in 1987 for white hand. He wu 12.aome 
per cent disability and 3.8 per cent of that was to do with hia 
work history in Yellowknife. The rest of It wu acron Canada. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Don any Member of the commlttH 
have any queationa? Mr. Lewia. 

MR. LEWIS: Sandy, I would like to get aoma idea of what 
other place• Gary has worked. 

MS. LAIDLAW: Gary hu worked all over Ontario u wall u . 
Manitoba, Sukatchewan, BC, Quebec and the NWT. Being 
that he ia a miner, wherever the joba are, that la where it takea 
you. The disease that he hu ia white hand which hu to do · 
with working with vibratory machinH, and being In the 
dampn ... and cold underground. 

MR. LEWlS: Where ia the other claim, Sandy? 

MS. LAIDLAW: There la a claim going on in Ontario which 
I have been fighting for over the lul 1 O yeara. N It wu not 
for Kathe Pagonia, one of the workera' advltora In Yellowknife. 
I would not be anywhere with them. I have written • letters 
in the last thrH montha, and I have not received one reply 
from them. I finally aent one about 1hr" waeke ago. 
registered mall. To thla day, I atill have not racaivad any1h1ng. 

MR. LEWIS: Thank you very much, Sandy. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Sandy, the,. doff not 9"ffl to be 
any other queationa. What we have been doing thlS evening 
for the last thrH hours ia talking to people ac:tOM Canada 
who have been relaying to ua their altuatlOn and 
circumatancH in their dealing• with the board. The stoflff 
are very aimilar; lffmingly, inaanaitivity of the board in 

dealing urgently with caHa. We will take 1h... into 
conaideration. Charle• Dent hu a queation. 

MR. CENT: You make it aound like you are aatiaflad with the 
way you have bean treated by the NWT Workers· 
Compensation Board. 

MS. LAIDLAW: They have been vary good to ua. If we 
phone them to uk them any queationa - npecrally Kathe -
if I have a problem and I call Kathe, aha ia alwaya there to 
help me or to give aome advice or tau ma which step to take 
next. When I phone Ontario, I kNp getting put on hold 3000 

tlmee and my bill la tkyrocket high. I still do not get 
anywhere with them. Yellowknife hu helped. When I phone 
Kathe to get any Information, ahe tell me what we ahould do. 

MR. DENT: Thanks. I just wanted to aee if you had any 
complainta abo_ut the NWT Workers' Compensation Board. 

MS. LAIDLAW: No, I do not 

MR. DENT: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Sandy, for taking the time 
to talk to ua. I wiah you well. Take care. · 

MS. LAIDLAW: Good-bye. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Committee, that la the last phone call 
today. I think, from all our calla tonight, the stories have been 
fairly almilar. Certain incidenta have happened, and I think 
the poaitlon of workera' advisor, in most cun. has usisted 
greatly in these claimantt dealing with the board. 

Our day tomorrow la acheduled to atart at 9:00 a.m. We are 
going to hear more preaentationa, and will end up the 
aftemoon meeting with the Minister and the chairman of the 
wee. again. 

We will receaa until 9:00 a.m. tomorrow. 

-ADJOURNMENT 
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STANDING COMMITTEE ON AGENCIES, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

YELLOWKNIFE, NORTHWEST TERRITORIES 

MAY 13, 1992 

Members Present 

Mr. Antoine, Mr. Arvaluk, Mr. Dent, Mr. Koe, Mr. Lewis, Mrs. Marie-Jewell, Mr. Todd 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): I would like to resume this session 
of the standing committee on agencies, boards and 
comm1ss1ons. This morning, on our agenda we have 
representatives from the Union of Northern Workers. I would 
like to call them to the centre table, please. Darm, if you do 
not mind introducing yourself, your position and your cohort. 
and please proceed with your presentation. 

Presentation By Mr. Crook, Union Of Northern Workers 

MR. CROOK: I am Darm Crook, president of the Union of 
Northern Workers. This is Campbell West, our research 
officer. We have about a 15 or 20 minute presentation, 
depending on how fast I can read, and I would like to thank 
the committee for this opportunity for us to do this 
presentation. 

Independence From Government 

The Workers' Compensation Board, In our opinion, should 
remain completely independent from government Operations 
of the WCB are funded solely by assessments paid by 
employers. It should remain that way. 

We are strongly opposed to statements from some MLAs that 
they would like the GNWT to be able to exert more influence 
over the management of the WCB financial reserves and 
investments. For instance, to require that those funds be 
invested in northern businesses. Again, WCB should be fully 
independent from government. This means complete 
autonomy to invest the funds where the board and its 
politically neutral financial experts determine it will get the best 
return. 

I am not saying that the board should not invest in the north, 
but I am saying the board should invest in a politically neutral 
environment with no control from the Legislative Auembly or 
MLAs. 

Keep Safety Inspectors In Th• Safety Oepanment 

There has been discussion that some government functions. 
like Safety and Public Services. should be amalgamated w•th 
WCB. We are cautious about this. WCB IS basically a 
privately funded insurance scheme, rnpons,ble to Its two 
stakeholders - workers and employers. The government must 
serve the public at large. We do not believe it IS appropriate 
to take some resources from the government • Safety 
Department, for instance safety ins~ors. out of the pubhc 
domain. 

Safety Education 

One example is in the area of safety education Last year the 
WCB began moving into this area. However. 1hortly attar. 
concerns were raised by an employer in Yellowknrfe. that the 
board had no mandate for safety education. It is the Union·• 
position that some education is valuable and 1hould be 
undertaken by WCB. Safety education is going to prevent on 
the job accidents and will keep the employer's own 
assessments down. However, if the board 1s going to do 
some safety education, the funding for this should come 
completely from its own resources. That ii the way it is now. 

The public, through taxes, should not be expected to shoulder 
the burden for making workplaces safer. Employers directly 
benefit, and they should pick up the tab. 

Also, safety inspectors could see their independence and 
integrity broken down by bringing them under the jurisdiction 
of the WCB. If a safety inspector finds that a workplace is 
unsafe, an employer is going to have to spend money to 
make that work site safe. With the employer being a main 
stakeholder in WCB and appointing half of its directors, it is 
not hard to see how their self interest could be brought to 
bear on the work of the inspectors. Large powerful 
employers, such as mines, could effectively lobby the board 
to pressure safety inspectors to turn a blind eye to safety 
hazards and infractions. The UNW believe Safety and Public 
Services should remain independent in all aspects from WCB. 
Inspectors must be left to do their jobs. 

Overall, the UNW is pleased with the establishment of a safety 
education branch by WCB. Our members and service 
representatives in the eastern Arctic feel this office could visit 
even more work sites than it does now. As well, more must 
be done to translate WCB safety education materials into 
lnuktitut. The Union has learned over the years that workers 
who speak English and lnuktitut prefer to have the material in 
lnuktitut. 

Failure To Report 

Fines for not reporting accidents should be increased. Failure 
to report undermines the board's entire operation, since 
assessment rates are based largely on the number of reported 
accidents in each industry. 

WCB Structure 

The union favours the trend over the last three years or so, to 
have a smaller board. The present size of seven members is 
agreeable. as long as half are representatives of organized 
labour, and half management, with a neutral chair. 

The honorarium for sitting on the board is $350 per day. This 
information should be public and disclosed in the WCB's 
annual report Individual names do not have to be revealed, 
but the honorarium should be. 

Board members are appointed by the Minister. There should 
be a joint worker-employer consultation process enshrined in 
the act. where half the WCB directors are recommended by 
organized labour, half by management, and a neutral chair is 
agreed to by the board members once they are appointed. 
This would eliminate the possibility of patronage by the 
Minister. Workers' Compensation is a serious issue and should 
be treated as such by this government Patronage 
appointments to the board are unacceptable. Workers and 
employers should be solely responsible for recommending 
and appointing the directors that will run Workers' 
Compensation. 

Review Process 

The review committee is comprised of two members, one 
labour and one management, appointed by the Workers' 
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Compensation Board upon the recommendation of workers 
and employers. This equal representation should be 
enshrined in the act Also, honorariums for review committee 
members were not disclosed by the board. They should be 
printed in the WCB's annual report 

Appeal Process 

The appeals tribunal sits with three members, chosen from its 
reserve of five, all appointed by the Minister, a chairman 
recommended by the board from its directors, and two 
members each from labour and management. 

The UNW would like to see the appeals tribunal consist of one 
board member, one person chosen by the appellant, and a 
mutually agreeable chairperson. The decision of the tribunal 
would be binding, and the costs of the appeals tribunal would 
be paid by the WCB. 

Reporting on the appeal proceu ia very scant in the WCB'a 
1990 annual report We would like to see more statistica 
regarding the number of appeals and the outcomes of them. 
This information could be presented in a general fashion 10 

as not to breach confidentiality. 

Finally, the honorarium of appeal tribunal members should 
also be published. 

Medical Evidence And The Claim Procns 

The UNW has concerns with the treatment of medical 
evidence in the board's decision concerning claims, reviews 
and appeals. The board has its own medical doctor who 
advises the board on medical evidence in each case. We 
believe the board should consult the advice of an independent 
medical specialist. The outcome of claims, reviews and 
appeals depends largely on the medical evidence preaented 
to it, interpreted by the board's doctor. To give workers 
confidence that medical evidence is objective, we believe the 
board should use an outside, independent medical specialist. 

The UNW has also found unethical employer influence over 
medical assessments for claims. This seems to re1ult where 
doctors are employed by government agencies, such u a 
health board. Here is an example of what we have ... n 
happening: A government manager will phone a doctor to get 
information on the status of a worker's workplace Injury. 
Biassed aueuments have been done ea a rnult, which have 
worked against the interests of our members. WCB hea to 
make it clear to employers that they have no right to an 
employee's medical record unless the employH conHnts in 
writing. This material is confidential . The employff is only 
obligated to tell the employer when they can return to work, 
if they know. There ahould be no direct communication 
between an employer and a doctor. 

YMIR And Pension Payments 

The YMIR has been whittled eway by Inflation The preHnt 
$40,000 was 1et in 1989. Since then. the cost ot lhltng has 
increased by about 16 per cent This amount ahould be 
indexed to cover cost of living increues. The same treatment 
should be accorded to a pen1ion that a worker recelvff from 
WCB. It should be indexed annually by an amount equal to 
tho ccr.iumer price index. 

Pensions Versus Lump Sum Payments 

Should workers have more freedom to accept lump 1um 
compensation instead of long-term pensions? We say no. If 
a worker is given a pension, it is hopefully a means to survive 
and pay the bills. If the worker is given a lump sum payment 
and buys a house or other assets, what do they then have to 

live on? Is society expected to pick up the social assistance 
tab for this worker? The intent of the legislation which set up 
the pension scheme is to help the worker retain a decent 
standard of living if they cannot do a job they previously did. 
This intent must not be lost. 

Compensation For Workplace Strnsors 

Working in the north, due to isolation and other cultural 
factors, can be stressful. WCBs in some jurisdictions, Ontario 
for instance, recently have moved in the direction of 
recognizing job-related stress as a compensationable injury. 
We would urge the WCB to consider expanding compensation 
to cover this area. 

Senshlvtty Toward Clients 

Finally, the board is being perceived by MLAs and workers to 
be cumbersome and insensitive. The WCB should ensure that 
their staff have full interpersonal communications training. 
Many clients who deal with WCB are already under excessive 
stress. They are Injured, and they are uncertain about their 
financial and employment future. 

I thank you for the opportunity to make this presentation. 

Use Of wee Doctors In Final Assessment 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank ycu, Darm. Maybe I can start 
this morning. The comments you made about medical 
examinations and the board insisting that their own doctors 
make the final assessment or evaluation, even though people 
use outside doctors - can you elaborate a bit on that? I see 
your recommendation is that they take these other 
...... ments or evaluations and use them in their case, but 
just perhaps elaborate a little more on that. We heard last 
night, when we talked to these people across Canada, just 
about all of them had problems in getting the board to accept 
a third party evaluation. 

MR. CROOK: When the board has their own doctor making 
that final assessment. that individual is compensated by the 
board, and it only makes sense that that individual is going to 
come down on the side of the board or in an effort to attempt 
to save the board aome financial resources. 

We will take it a step beyond that. We have members that are 
not highly educated members. They are out there in the work 
force and they have an Injury whereby they could receive 
compensation.· They have all their assessments done in their 
home community. They have to, at some point, in a lot of 
cues, come Into Yellowknife and go down to the WCB to 
have an assessment done by the WCB's doctor. We have 
membe,-, again, that do not have an education. They come 
in and call on the union to go with them because they are 
afraid to face the WCB's doctor on their own. I have 
personally gone in with an individual member of ours to the 
final usnsment - let us call it that. This guy had lost his 
foot. but he had to be flown Into Yellowknife to be examined 
by the WCB's doctor. The member came to us and asked 
someone to go with him. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Any other questions. Mr. Todd. 

Structure Of The Board 

MR. TODD: Structure of the board; both the organized 
unions and what I call the organized employers seem to think 
it is their sole right to have representation on WCB. What is 
your feeling about the unorganized worker? What about the 
worker that is not represented by a union? Should there not 
be some representation there? I am just curious. 
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CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Darm. 

MR. CROOK: I think the worker right now that is not 
represented by a union has the full opportunity to become 
represented by a union. By accessing that avenue, that 
worker, then, has every opportunity to have representation on 
the board as well, If you accept our position. 

MR. TODD: That is not an answer, but that is okay. Let me 
ask you this. I do not agree with that, by the way, because 
you know as well as I do that not everybody is an organized 
worker and never will be. There has to be representation for 
people outside of the organized worker. In particular, in the 
Eastern Arctic where we do not, in the small business, have 
organized labour and they employee small people in the 
construction industry; to some extent, a large organization that 
does not have unions, and there should be some 
representation on there as far as I am concerned. I do not 
want to get into a confrontation here this morning, but I think 
it is somewhat arrogant on the part of big business and on 
the part of organized labour to assume that they are the sole 
voices of the people when it comes to WCB. 

Membership On Review Committee 

I am wondering about the review committee. You are say in 
your report that the review committee is comprised of two 
members; one labour and one management. appointed by the 
WCB upon the recommendation of workers and employers. 
Were you consulted in the recent appointments to the review 
committee? 

MR. CROOK: The UNW itself was not 

MR. TODD: You were not consulted with respect to Mr. 
Johnson's and Mr. Hinchey's recent appointment to the review 
committee. 

MR. CROOK: Not the UNW. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Mr. Todd. 

Lump Sum Payments 

MR. TODD: I wonder. again. in the pensions versus lump 
sum payments, in the past there wu a much more flexible 
approach to lump sum payments where the board, based 
upon whatever presentation made by the individual that 
wanted it, would make a decision. My understanding of the 
current situation is that if your pension is 10 per cent or less, 
they will commute it in a lump sum payment Do you feel that 
If a worker wants a lump sum payment. la over 21 and can 
make his own decisions, th.at he should be entitled to ii" Do 
you not feel - a lot of people feel this way, by the way, not 
only on your side of the equation but on the other aide of the 
equation - this has been a little too rigid? Wa should. In fact. 
have a more open approach to thie thing. be =• flexible 
and deal with things on an individual basis rather than just a 
rigid policy saying 'No"? 

MR. CROOK: I realize that this is a bit of a patamaliatlc-type 
attitude. However, once you open It up tor a lump sum 
payment for this individual, be it 10, 12 or 15 per cant. whara 
are you going to draw that line? When is .omabody 
permanently disabled, are you then eventually going to end 
up giving that person a lump sum payment as wall The 
person spends it all on one item and then you have the rest 
of society continually picking up that person·• living through 
social assistance? Workers' compensation was ong,nally 
designed to give that person a way to still live with dignity 
from an injury at work. It is a hard one to come down hard 
and fast on; however, If we do not. where are you going to 
draw the line? It will eventually be totally eroded 

MR. TODD: Again, I realize it is a very controversial issue, 
but maybe you should uk the guys behind you because they 
are the guys making the lump sum payments. It seems to me 
that - I am not suggesting for one minute that what you .are 
saying there are occasions - it is very paternalistic, and I 

appreciate you being candid about it, but I find it almost 
patronizing. I think there has to be more flexibility. There are 
situations where some of these guys are sitting with a 12, 13 
or 14 per cent disability and they cannot cash it out. They 
cannot pay their mortgage payments because they do not 
make enough money to do it. I am saying - you said it, with 
all due respect. and so have some of the other presentations 
made to us - that this position is far to rigid. I think you 
should come forward or reconsider all of this when we make 
our report when we present it to the chairman, but I think you 
have to give some flexibility to the worker. _Right now, If you 
have one point over whatever the ceiling is, they will not pay 
it out. I know it is not an easy issue, but. to say 'no' to 
everybody does not make any sense to me. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Crook, any comments? 
Members? Mr. Dent. 

YMIR 

MR. DENT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Crook, in your 
presentation, you talked about the YMIR. You do not actually 
recommend a figure, but from the tone of the presentation, it 
.ounds like your union would feel a proper for the YMIR 
would be basically 16 per cent higher than it is now - so 
about $46,000. Is this correct, or do you see a different 
figure? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr.Crook. 

MR. CROOK: Basically, we believe that when the $40,000 
was set, it fell behind, and whatever the cost of living - and 
this is minimum - has been since then is compounded as 
well. Do not just 16 per cent it. Go back and compound that 
increase to where it should be today. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Dent. 

MR. DENT: Has your union taken a position to come up with 
a recommendation for an exact figure that you think we should 
be looking at this year? 

MR. CROOK: No, we have not 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Anybody else? Mr. Todd. 

Investment Fund 

MR. TODD: In the fund investment, - If I am politically 
neutral - la your group of the mind that it is currently political 
In their feelings or even in terms of trying to influence the 
board for Its money before Its money is invested? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Crook. 

MR. CROOK: We do not believe that is the case now, but 
al.o do not want it to happen. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

MR. TODD: I have a tough time with this one because four 
or five people brought it forward yesterday. I was not able to 
come to grips with it. One group said they do not want the 
GNWT balancing the budget on WCB money. Within the 
organized labour, are there people that would actually believe 
that kind of thing would happen? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Crook. 
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MR. CROOK: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

MR. TODD: From my perspective, I cannot I have not heard 
that. Maybe you are all just talking to each other and should 
be talking to somebody else. 

The other question would be, hypothetically, if we took some 
of the WCB money and turned it into some kind of investment 
on some of it; put it back into the Territories and got some 
kind of return as we are currently getting in investments, 
would you view that in a favourable light? Or, do you think 
we should continue to use investment money in Ontario, 
Alberta, Manitoba and BC?. How would you view reinvestment 
of some of that money up north? This is a pet project of 
mine. That is why I am curious. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Crook. 

MR. CROOK: First of all, when you say we invest it, it 
depends who you mean by 'we.' Do you mean 'we, the 
people of the North,' or, 'we, the Legislative Assembly'? 

MR. TODD: You would use the same rules as you are 
currently using with independent financial counsellors making 
the decision on how the money is to be spent It is my theory 
that some of the money should come back if we are putting 
it all in. I am wondering how you would feel, as organized 
labour, if that took place. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Crook. 

MR. CROOK: With that clarification, I think I have said it in 
my report I have no problem whatsoever with money being 
invested in the North as long as that money is invested 
independent from government 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Lewis. 

Lump Sum Payments 

MR. LEWIS: I would like clarification on the issue of lump 
sum payments. In the presentation we heard, the question 
was put, 'Should workers have more freedom to accept lump 
sum compensation?" You say , 'No,' that there should be no 
more freedom than exists right now. But from what I hear you 
say, you are not absolutely against it You are just saying that 
it should not be loosened up so that it ia almost like a nght to 
have a lump sum rather than to have the month by month 
payment The reason I raise the issue is because a few 
people we talked to last night not kids arry more. These are 
people in their fifties, and it ia pretty hard to '" where your 
future is. and some of them have deek:Md they are going to 
be self employed people. That ia the only way they could ... 
going. So I auppose what I am trying to g« out of you ia 
that. do you aee them, there still being that pouibdity that is 
one way in which we ahould still go. It ahould still be on the 
books, if you like, u a policy, that option ia available. rf the 
board sees that as the logical way for an 1ndrvidual to look 
after his future. 

If he ia going to aet up a email restaurant or. u we heard 
yesterday, a gardening businesa or a golf course, then if the 
peraon has had good advice and the board is convinced that 
is the we.y the person can survive best at his age and with his 
particular state of health, then that should still be an option 
available. What ia your comment on that? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Darm. 

MR. CROOK: No, I do not. because once you left that option 
there. you are rely ing on some people. membera on the 

board, to make a judgment call on an individual. They are 
not just going to be judging that individual on his or her 
ability to do the job, his or her ability to run a business. They 
are also going to be judging that individual on his or her 
education level. They are going to be making a personal 
assessment of an individual, and once that starts happening, 
where does it stop? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Brian. 

MR. LEWIS: Okay, we are not going to debate here or 
argue, but would you not agree that the board is always 
making judgments. For example, yesterday we heard from 
several people who said, 'The judgment of the board was that 
I go back to work, but it is impossible; I cannot go back to 
work.' So would you not agree, then, that the board in fact 
is in the business of making judgments about a person's 
fitness to work or not? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Darm. 

MR. CROOK: Yes, the board is, on the advice, presumably, 
of qualified medical practitioners that are experts in the field. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Brian. 

MR. LEWIS: This is my final one. Would you not agree, 
then, that before you enter into any activity, then you would 
do so on the basis of advice, whether medical advice or 
professional advice, that this kind of advice is what you use 
before you decide to enter into any activity at all? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Darm. 

MR. CROOK: Yes, I would. However, that is not the same 
type of advice as you should be getting from a medical 
practitioner. If a person has lost a leg from the knee down, 
a medical practitioner can say, 'This person has lost that leg 
from the knee down, and he is going to be disabled to this 
amount• What you are asking for in your question, Brian, is 
an estimation for something that may ~r may not happen in 
the future. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

MR. TODD: I do not want to flog it to death, but you know, 
u a union organizer you have to give and take. You have to 
negotiate. It seems to me the position you are taking here, 
Darm, is pretty intransigent, particularly as it relates to 
organized labour or whatever. You have got to give some 
flexibility. I understand your concern. You do not want to 
deplete the pot You want to make sure that a guy gets his 
fair ahake, et cetera, but I want to say again, and I will say it 
out loud and get it into the report, that I disagree. It is too 
intransigent, this position, for me, even though I recognize 
what your concerns are. 

In today·• world it is the spirit of compromise that gets you 
anywhere. It is not saying, these are the rules and that is it. 
That is why we are in the mess we are in now, because 
people have been translating the rules literally and not taking 
a -look at how they can deal with the human aspect of the 
thing. I think that this position is just far too intransigent. I 
think you should reconsider and think about it Perhaps there 
are situations where a lump sum payment may work to the 
beat benefit of the employee or injured worker. You cannot 
all have failures out there. That is what I am trying to say. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Darm. 

MR. CROOK: I believe you are right, John, in that there 
could well be some situations where a lump sum payment 
would be in the best interests of that particular individual, but 
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I guess our position is, is it worth it to take that gamble? It is 
the same as capital punishment; is it worth it to have capital 
punishment if you run the risk of executing one individual that 
is innocent? That is our position. When the mistake is made, 
then it is too costly on the individual. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay. Any other questions? 
Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Mr. Chairman, I was not going to 
make a comment, but I find it is necessary in respect to the 
UNW's position on lump sum payments, and them just 
basically blatantly denying it for reasons of possibly leaving 
an individual to be dependent upon the system, whether it be 
social assistance or whatever, and to allow them to get a 
pension so they can live in dignity. It appears that it is 
obvious they are not aware of certain workers that are deemed 
a certain amount of disability and percentage that leaves them 
possible with a pension of anywhere - I believe last night we 
heard $140 per month. I believe we heard last night different 
variables, where an individual even indicated that they had a 
house, they had a family, and their pension is so small they 
cannot make the mortgage. They cannot keep up with their 
family commitments, and I do not know where denying them 
a lump sum payment, if their percentage of disabilify varies 
from zero to 10, or zero to 20 per cent Even though they do 
get a pension, they still cannot live in dignity. 

That was obviously clear to us last night by many of the 
workers who expressed their concern. So even if they did get 
their pension, they do not even have enough money to be 
able to meet their financial commitments, so they still have to 
use the system, and not only are they going through the 
stressful process of going through WCB to determine their 
pension, but you are adding another stress to get them to go 
to social assistance to top up their pension, which I think is a 
position you have taken that allows an individual to go 
through many stresses, and I am sure some of them just 
about admitted last night, to even look at suicide. That is 
some of the realities some of these workers are looking at. I 
think your position on just saying no. totally no, is a position 
that leaves you very , very narrow minded. and probably a 
position that does not make you recognize what aome of 
these workers are going through. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): A comment. Darm? 

MR. CROOK: Well. I think there is another way of looking at 
it, too. Perhaps the pensions are a little bit too low in some 
cases, or in many of the cases. Perhaps that end should be 
looked at. If the pension is a small pension, that lump sum 
payment is probably going to be a small payment u well. 
and once that payment it gone the individual is still back in 
the same boat. He or she has nothing to move forward wrth. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe) : Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Well, Mr. Chairman. I am not going 
to berate the point. I just wanted to indicate to Mr Crook and 
the UNW that I feel their decision on denying 1n totality a 
pension, is a very rigid decision. It doet add many 
compounding factors and consequences for an injured worker 
to absorb. and to indicate that these individuals may have 
only a small pension and what can they do with it? A 
disability pension. lump sum payouts, can range. Some of 
them have ranged to the point where it allows an individual to 
at least buy a house, and the secure feeling of owning a 
house is something that can take a lot of stresses off any 
individual. 

As we heard from one individual, he did .not have a home, he 
did not have a house, he did not have a credit rating, he did 
not have anything. This is the point I am trying to make. The 

lack of availability of financial funds does not give him the 
ability to be able to do anything to help himself, and as a 
result these poor individuals have such low self-esteem that 
you do not know what type of consequences they are going 
to have to face. When you get into societal aspects, this is 
what society has to deal with, and I think it is totally unfair, 
because I believe that the system for WCB was to help the 
injured worker whenever a worker got injured. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Comments. Darm. James. 

MR. ARVALUK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am a little bit 
confused here. I need some clarification. The president of 
the UNW, who is supposed to represent the labour force, 
seems to be responding to some of the questions contrary to 
what workers seem to want, in respect to what Mr. Todd and 
Mrs. Marie.Jewell were saying. I guess my question would 
be, if a right handed worker, who also happened to be a 
hunter when the construction season is not on, if he loses a 
hand or all of his fingers, for instance, while using a skill saw 
or table saw, and we know immediately that he will not be 
able to pick up nails with his left hand any longer, and 
therefore he will not be in a position, until he is retrained for 
other jobs, to work in that particular profession. However, he 
still will be able to go hunting. Because he . happened to be 
right handed, he still will be able to handle without using so 
much of his left hand, and he knows that. What he wants to 
do now is get a lump sum payment, get his ·hunting gear, and 
continue to provide for his family. 

With Mrs. Marie-Jewell's statement, otherwise he must go on 
welfare. He will still be able to hunt and trap if he can get his 
equipment. My question is, do you assist these kinds of 
injuries depending on what kind of injury it is, and there is a 
possibility for that person to continue his livelihood? Do you 
have some kind of guidelines where you help the WCB board 
to determine what kind of a benefit that person should get? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Darm. 

MR. CROOK: We have not suggested any guidelines in the 
report. There already is a set of guidelines out there for 
training, retraining, compensation for loss of wages at 70 per 
cent of that salary for a fixed lump, set a time until the person 
i1 able to work or should be able to work, that is, in my 
opinion, already there, and the matter then comes to finally 
when the person is rehabilitated, whether or not the person 
becomes pensionable or lump sum. That lump sum payment, 
If It i1 made, is not going to assist the person to any great 
extent to re-establish himself in the market. There is already 
a process to attempt to re-establish a person. I do not know 
how long it lasts. Is it a year or is it two years? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): James. 

Delay In Claims 

MR. ARVALUK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am very happy 
that in your presentation, you want to have the WCB get some 
information. especially for those who are unilingual, in lnuktitut 
and other languages other than English or French. However, 
even with that kind of information, because the method of 
WCB is set up in such a way that it is imported from, in 
principle, employer'• liability principles, then that person will 
still not be able to represent himself or seek information as to 
how he or she may be compensated. I have a two part 
question, Mr. Chairman. First of all, ten years ago I was with 
a fellow who was injured and had to wait 16 months before he 
was compensated. There was another one who lost his finger 
and waited something like four years. My first question is, are 
these kind of delays still going on today? Secondly, as a 
union representative, how do you get the claims to be done 
quickly? 
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CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Darm. 

MR. CROOK: I believe there are still delays going on today, 
but perhaps not to the extent they used to be. There are 
some cases that are dragged out because of the appeals 
process, the review and everything else. I do not know that 
we as a union can push to move that process on any faster 
than it does move. We can and do assist the people who are 
having problems in directing them where to go in assisting 
with any appeal presentations they may have to put forward. 
But I do not know if we as a union could speed that up. 

There is always a certain amount of bureaucracy that is going 
to have to be followed and as long as there is bureaucracy 
there it is not just going to flow overnight If there is a way to 
speed it up, then let us find it and do it. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In your 
introduction you say you represent 5500 territorial government 
employees and you also work for 40 territorial funded hamlets 
in the housing association. My involvement in this hearing 
and looking at WCB is that we are looking at the rights of 
injured workers. These people have certain rights and WCB 
has a big fund and the purpose of this fund is to provide 
services for these people. Of course there is investments and 
the fund itself is self-funded and you have to protect that. of 
course, but the ultimate goal has to be the injured workers. 
You say you represent workers but yesterday we heard in 
telephone calla that people who are injured workers are no 
longer employed and they no longer pay union dun. 

I am wondering if the position you have taken la coming from 
all these 5500 employees you have? It seems to be a pretty 
rigid position you have taken. If you represent people who 
are disadvantaged you should try to fight harder for them. 
Right now the board is comprised of different members and 
one of those members is coming from your union. I am 
wondering if the position you are taking is the one your 
representative on the board is taking? It seems to be 
inflexible. So whatever you are aaying here, if It is 
represented on the board, it Is going to be very difficult tor 
injured workers who are saying they nffd help, lump sum 
funding and so forth. It seems to me their right. a,e not 
protected. 

It is difficult for me to sit here and say nothing because I just 
want you to know that there are qurte a few people who are 
injured in the aboriginal community but they are not 
represented, 10 they come to me as an MLA So I try to find 
out how it works and it is really getting cumbersome. 

There are a couple of specific areas I am curious about Thi• 
is the first time we have heard about th11 ltrHI - ,ot>-related 
stress should not be condition• at which won,.,. can claim 
compensation. What is your poaition on strn►related 

disorders, addictions, alcoholism. drug abuM. emotional 
problems? I am wondering If those _,_relawd disorders 
should be compensated? 

MR. CROOK: That is a hard judgment call there and we 
never looked at it from that end. Somehow or another people 
that have addiction problems should be grven an opportunity 
to aeek treatment should they so choose. But I do noc think 
we can say that because an individual hu an addiction 
problem that it is necessarily related to the JOb. I think stress 
has to be judged on the direct medical effect it has on the 
individual - olood pressure, heart problems. 

The other avenue for the addiction problem - it should be 
dealt with as well , but not through workers· compensation. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

Safety 

MR. ANTOINE: You seem to agree that WCB should be 
involved in safety education. Could you tell us more about 
what you think this involvement should be? What should the 
WCB be doing and what should the department's 
responsibility be? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Darm. 

MR. CROOK: i believe WCB should have a full education 
program set up. I believe that is what they are starting to do. 
They should have the ability to travel to Fort Simpson, Fort 
Uard, if and when called upon by the employer or the work 
force, to put the education in front of the p_eopie. The safe 
work site occurs when the people know what to look for for 
safety problems. Without the education the work sites are 
unsafe. 

I think I expressed it in my report that WCB has made a good 
start by creating that division inside of themselves. I think 
they have one person now, that one person is not going to be 
able to serve the North of that person is going to be doing the 
full task themselves. The person may be able to develop the 
program and get it started, but then if it is not expanded for 
services to be delivered to all the communities of the North, 
then it is a waste of money. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

Union Section To Help Injured Workers 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Another comment 
you made is that your services are sometimes used by your 
members when they wish to appeal a decision by the board. 
Is there a unit or section within your organization that is 
designated to help out injured workers? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Darm. 

MR. CROOK: Inside of our organization we have full-time 
service officers that are not just designated to look at the 
workers' compensation problem, they may also be designated 
to try to assist or guide a person with an addictions problem; 
they may also be there to do negotiations on behalf of 
members; they may be there to fight grievances; to do 
competition appeals. We have full-time officers whose task is 
to represent workers in a full variety of scenarios. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. ANTOINE: You say you are representing all these 
people here. does that position you are taking come from all 
the people you represent? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Darm. 

MR. CROOK: Well obviously all 5500 territorial government 
employees and the other thousand that work for these other 
40 units that we have, have not been personally consulted. 
We work on a representative system. In each region we have 
the Territories and our organization broken down to eight 
regions. In each of these regions we have a regional vice­
prnident who is elected by the membership and in each of 
those areas we have locals. The position comes from 
consultation with the executive of the UNW who assumably 
is representing view of their membership. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. ANTOINE: So your position that you have taken on this 
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lump sum problem, that comes from that sort of a system? 

MR. CROOK: That is correct. 

MR. ANTOINE: So the position is coming right from the 
membership. 

MR. CROOK: Through their elected representatives. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: Would it be fair to say, Darm, that the Union of 
Northern Workers, when it relates to the safety inspector and 
safety department is that you see the WCB's role as an 
educational role and that the policing component remains with 
the territorial government and the fiscal responsibility for 
payment of that remains with the territorial government? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Darm. 

MR. CROOK: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jeannie. 

Non-Union Worker Seeking Assistance 

MRS. MARIE-JEWELL: In the presentation it says, "Vve urge 
you to work to ensure that WCB continues to operate free 
from political influence and to get the best possible deal for 
workers on the job.' Mr. Crook is here to represent UNW 
workers, the individuals who pay union dues. What avenues 
does he feel should be made available ~o non-union workers 
who come to their MLAs for assistance through the process of 
addressing their concern, when they have the right to 
represent their union workers through the process? What 
does he feel is the difference when non-union workers come 
to MLAs for assistance through the process on their concern? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Darm. 

MR. CROOK: I have no problem if an individual constituent 
goes to an MLA for assistance and that MLA goes In and 
starts from the bottom up and works through the appeal 
process the same as we do. No problem whatsoever in 
assisting their constituent in presenting their appeal before the 
tribunal. I have no problem with that But if the MLA through 
the Legislative Assembly or through a Minister comn down 
from the top and says, "Fix this.' we have a real problem with 
the system then. Use the system the 1&me u we have to u 
a union when we represent our people, by assisting the 
people through the steps that are there. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jeannie . . 

MRS. MARIE-JEWELL: To take it one step further. Mr 
Chairman, is that there are protocols that are ,n place 
Generally the protocol for an MLA 11 to go directly to a 
Minister or to another MLA ,n regard to addressing a concern. 
And if I recall correctly. there was a letter Mnt to. even. I 
would say for myself, from a previous MLA. that he was 
denied or he should have been told not to contact WCB 
workers through the process, because they felt rt wu polrtJcal 
interference. 

So what I am saying is that basically the union or the public 
is saying not to use the proper protocol. for MLAs to go to the 
Minister to address a concern. But if you also take them 
through the process, by each step, they fHI threatened. or 
they feel intimidated because it is an MLA. I guest what I am 
say·ing is that the unions can take them through the steps and 
there is no problem with it So what avenue II there for a 
non-union worker? Until recently . They have an association 

of injured workers and discarded, but before that, there was 
nothing. How do they feel that this type of problem should be 
addressed? is what I am asking. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Darm. 

MR. CROOK: We also have here in the Northwest Territories 
an organization that is called the NWT Federation of Labour 
who, I am sure, a lot of the individuals here have heard the 
past president and, I think, this president say that they are 
prepared to assist and represent people who are not 
organized. That is another avenue that is there. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE-JEWELL: Mr. Chairman, I guess the reality of 
the North is that if you go to many of the hamlets and many 
of the councils, they would not even realize that there is the 
existence of the NWT Federation of Labour. They would not 
even know their mandate. And these poor individuals off the 
street, aboriginal people that maybe I represent, or maybe Mr. 
Todd or Mr. Arvaluk represent - they do not know about this 
organized labour. And who do they go with? Do they think 
of the NWT Federation of Labour in their community? No. 
They think of Mr. Todd, who is their MLA, or Mr. Arvaluk, and 
that is who they approach. I guess the point that I want to 
make is that the union is taking a self-righteous approach to 
state that there should be no political interference in respect 
to the WCB. But the problem that I want.them to understand 
is that individual constituents feel at many times there is not 
alternative route, no organized group, to represent their 
interests. Thank you. 

Appeals Tribunal 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Darm. I have one, before we finalize. 
On page four you talk about the appeal process, the appeals 
tribunal. You are recommending that it be restructured to 
include a board member, a person chosen by they appellant, 
and a mutually agreeable chairperson. Just elaborate a bit on 
why you recommend that and what advantage you see in this 
system over what is there now. 

MR. CROOK: The appellant then, I believe, has a direct 
representative; and this is set up almost like an arbitration 
board, then. The appellant has a direct representative on that 
board that is theoretically going to argue on the appellant's 
behalf. The board has a direct representative to protect the 
interests of the board. The independent chairperson 
agreeable to both sides obviously has to be somebody who 
is knowledgeable in the affairs of the compensation board as 
well as honourable and open-minded and fair-minded. 

The appellants are going to have some direct representation 
there if they have a person of their choosing. Perhaps that 
could be part of an answer to a previous speaker. It is a 
smaller board than now exists. There are five that handle this 
now. if I am informed correctly. This would cut it down to 
three people. Ultimately what would end up happening if 
there was a division of opinion is that the independent 
chairperson would make the final ruling. If the board's 
member and the appellant's member could not come to grips 
with it, you independent chair would end up making the 
ruling. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): On behalf of the committee, I would 
like to thank you for your presentation and wish you well in 
your future deliberations. Thank you. 

MR. CROOK: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): We will take a four minute recess 
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before the next group. 

-SHORT RECESS 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): We have a quorum. I would like to 
call the meeting back to order . . We have a representative from 
the United Steelworkers of America. I would like to invite Fern 
Denault to the table. Fern. Are you the president of the 
United Steelworkers? Yes. Please proceed, Fern. 

Presentation By Mr. Fern Denault, Unhed Steelworkers Of 
America 

MR. DENAULT: Mr. Chairman, Members of the committee, 
we thank you for giving us the opportunity to be a witness in 
front of you today. There are a few things that we would like 
to address on the issues of workers' compensation. 

It seems to be more evident as the days pass that at times 
people may not have had the opportunity to know much of 
the history behind the establishment of workers' compensation. 
Prior to the establishment of Workers' Compensation in 
Canada, workers suffering an accident. or their dependants, 
in cases of fatalities, had the sole recourse of suing their 
employers through the court system for just compensation. 
This option was of little concern to the establishment of the 
day. Workers were generally poor, on the brink of destitution, 
and they were kept that way. Lawyers have always been a 
privileged part of society and less accessible to ordinary 
people in those days. Justice alwaya carries a high financial 
cost. The victims were many. 

The labour movement. during this period of time. wu making 
progress and becoming a force and a voice to contend with. 
They were turbulent. difficult tim .. , becauae a comfortable 
social system established for the benefit of the wealthy wu 
challenged, with aome auccess, by organized workers, who 
took some control of the forces applied upon their lives, 
through the collective bergaining exerciae. 

These agreements, or contracts, were. and are to thia day, 
providing organized worker, with protection againat 
management right abuses. giving ordinary people the 
precedent tools necesaary to achieve meaningful. aocial 
change. 

The workers were becoming more powerful. A threat wu not 
perceived by the captains of the industry in the area of risk 
and liability due to accidents in the workplace. Ordinary 
working people were not empowered to collective accesa the 
justice system and aeek compensation and retribution for the 
damages suffered u victims of industry . 

The table wu set for discussions between reaaonable. 
practical people. All the necesaary elements. cnecka and 
balances, necessary to achieve a workable agreement 
between the principals involved. unions and employer• -.ere 
in place. A humble beginning for an important pact 

The fundamental principles of no-fault cornpenaation to the 
worker for damages auffered at the place of employment were 
reached. The organized workers, on their pert. -e w,lhng to 
give away their right to aue the employ8f u a r-.ult of 
damages suffered from an industrial accident. Workers· 
Compensation u we know it wu born. 

These facts are historical ; they are not rhetorical. 

We feel that a review of this institution should start by 
recognizing who the principals on the issue are They are 
organized labour and employers. 

Government plays a key role in assuring the continuity of the 

institution and should take this responsibility very seriously. 
The delicate balances established through tradition and 
legislation must be maintained in order to assure that workers 
and employers maintain historical mutual coverage. To do 
otherwise puts at risk the already stressed relationship 
between the parties due to inadequate indemnity to injured 
workers and, in cases of fatalities, their dependants. 

We recommend that representation on the board should be 
limited to the two groups who hold the vested interest on 
workers' compensation. They are organized workers and 
employers. We further recommend that representation should 
be equal in numbers. 

We often hear frustrations being vented on the high cost of 
workers' compensation to the small business and various 
industries, followed by requests to cut benefits to the workers 
or tighten up programs to further restrict access, or to tag the 
level of benefits to the interest returns performance of the 
investments of the board. We suggest that these are the very 
approaches that have compounded the fiscal pressures on 
Workers' Compensation Boards and hindered their ability to 
perform duties in accordance with their mission, at an 
alarming national level, therefore losing the confidence of 
many injured workers and their families, in the country. 

We commend the board for being in its sound financial state, 
and we ask the Government of the NWT to resist meddling 
with the board members' fiduciary responsibilities. The NWT 
Workers' Compensation Board presently finds itself in an 
envious position because ours is one of the few that are self­
sufficient in the whole of Canada. 

We are aware that aome Members of the Legislative Assembly 
with to capitalize ventures such as the NWT Power 
Corporation with privileged funding agreements by borrowing 
from WCB. We recommend against such agreements 
because, in our opinion, there is a real danger of 
compromising the security of the fund. We recommend in the 
strongest terms possible that the MLAs take a hard look at the 
form and reason the fund is presently diversified and secured; 
its purpose is to cover existing liabilities. 

MLAt and Members of the Executive of the Legislative 
Assembly, along with interested parties, should be made fully 
aware that even if the accident fund of WCB it sitting at 
$110.5 million, $103.8 million is required to fully fund the 
future liabilities for prior years' accidents, and that the 
remaining $6.7 million is simply a contingency reserve to 
protect the board against possible future adverse events. 

Now that $1 .3 million that we are talking about, that is to 
cover accidents that have already happened. The 
Government of the NWT has to recognize that this contingency 
ia meagre compared to the risk. For the sake of example, of 
only one of the "fly in and fly out" transportation of crew 
changes. crashing at any of the operations would end the 
mining industry. 

Given these facts, the Government must not add unreasonable 
preasures onto the board members on the whim of patronage 
expediency at non-competitive rates of interest for risk 
venturea. For example, capitalization of the power corp. It is 
our Information that the interest rate that was offered was 
around the 1 O per cent area. Well, the performance of the 
funds of the board have been way better than that. To place 
money in that way, workers and employers would have lost 
money from the fund, because the fund would not have been 
allowed to perform to its maximum. 

This is the kind of practice that could really send the cost to 
employees through the roof. We must also remind you that 
this capital that exists at WCB was not raised through a tax 
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base and, therefore, does not belong to the GNWT. 

We agree that small business does shoulder a higher burden 
than some of the other bigger employers and that, in part, 
their complaints are fully justified. The mining sector is 
presently a highly subsidized sector and this subsidy comes 
directly out of the pockets of the small business community, 
especially with regard to the higher risk fly in and fly out 
operations. Even if they were made to pay as much as 20 
per cent higher premiums, this privileged sector of our 
economy would still be in a position of subsidy from the small 
business operator. We do not believe this to be a fair 
assessment practice, and would back fully a just redress in 
this area. This would be a just and fair move on the part of 
the board that should find political favour with the citizens of 
the NWT, given the minimal contribution these fly in and fly 
out operations make to our economy. 

We further believe and recommend that the transfer of 
industrial and mining health and safety services from Public 
Services to the Workers' Compensation Board would greatly 
contribute to a potential redress of this inequity by adding an 
increased level of efficiency; therefore, properly identifying and 
correcting the practices of higher risk employers by evaluating 
and imposing just levels of assessment. 

We also recommend that a full bi-partite review by an 
independent board of inquiry consisting of an equal number 
of representatives from the employers and organized labour 
with the full support of the Legislative Assembly and properly 
mandated with intent to implement its recommendations 
without further government intervention, be undertaken without 
delay. This need is urgent. No increases have taken place 
with the pensions in the last four years; the last increases 
were in 1988. 

The yearly maximum insurable remuneration, YMIR, has not 
kept up with the increased inflation levels of these past years. 
Ninety per cent of net up to a maximum of $40,000 does not 
reflect an adequate remuneration to workers of the mining 
industry. A further example, is that the 90 per cent net. or 
$40,000, we are told only brings home to the iniured worker 
$25.000 to $28.000 a year. They have taxes deducted from 
that. The northern resident reduction II not allowed. and there 
is a double-take on CPP and UIC 11nC'e the employer appears 
to also pay into it The board deducts. These pressures are 
unnecessary. These are certainly not in keeping wrth the 
consumer price index of Canada that we believe to the 
baseline comparison used to maintain an equitable 
remuneration level. 

In addition, job re-entry is becoming an unaurmountable 
obstacle to injured workers, and the problem increases since 
we are developing a more stable. work force that hu ,nvHted 
and are constructively contributing to our economy. 
In closing, we wish this standing commrttee constructive and 
positive deliberations, and hope to have been perceived and 
accepted in the traditional role that organ12ed ---.orkers are 
proud to exercise, and in the full respect of the members we 
represent and the workers-at-large. 

For your added information. I have been dealing with tob re­
entry . We have provided to you an example on the lut page 
of the kind of article our local has been able to negotiate 11111th 
our employer that helps the artuation along. A good portion 
of our work force of the Nerco Con Mine 11 made up of 
people who wcm1 injured and have come back to the woril 
force in meaningful employment through this type of article in 
the collective bargaining agreement. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Fern. Questions. John. 

Responsibility For Health And Safety Services 

MR. TODD: Let me first of all commend you on being direct 
as it relates to the financial component and the concern you 
have regarding the NWT Power Corporation. I could not get 
anybody else to say it for the last day and a half, so I 
commend you for that. 

I asked your brother Crook how he felt about the responsibility 
of industrial mining health and safety being turned over to the 
WCB, and I want to know if you are implying that this should 
be the responsibility of the WCB? Is this correct? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Denault. 

MR. DENAULT: I am . encouraged that the honourable 
Member has changed comrade to brother, just to throw in a 
little dig here - looking at some of our Steelworker charters I 
notice that Mr. Todd is a charter signed member of Local 803 
United Steelworkers at Giant Mine. A humble beginning. 

MR. TODD: Does your union believe that the fiscal 
responsibility for the health and safety services should come 
under the WCB? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Fern. 

MR. DENAULT: If it is made possible that there is no 
intervention that would make it difficult. The cost could be 
covered through assessments. Now that provides you with 
another problem because employers are already saying they 
are being dinged too hard. If that type of move is in the 
picture, it would need some transfer payments, in the same 
way that transfer payments are being made between the 
federal and territorial government, for example. 

MR. TODD: You have indicated here that the Workers' 
Compensation Board is solely funded by the employers, it is 
independent, et cetera. My concern would be that once you 
mix it up and you are asking for GNWT to move money 
across to pay for this safety - beca~se I do not believe it 
should be there personally, the policing component of it -
then you are really mixing up two different pots of money and 
I think there is a real danger there. 

There is a bit of a contradiction because in fact the employers 
are going to pay for this, just for argument sake, because that 
is e possibility and I would not be surprised if that is what the 
Minister is trying to do, to save the government money. If the 
employers through the asseuments end up paying for this, 
then you have already said some of the employers are almost 
in revolt now with the costs. How are we going to pay for it? 
Because on the one hand you are saying do not touch the 
pension plan, we have that fully funded at $110 million; we 
have a $6.7 million contingency reserve which was 1989 
figures; we want to add all this fiscal responsibility with Safety 
and Health; and on top of that - and I want you to know I 
agree with you - you want to up the YMIR. But it has to 
come out of somewhere and I am saying there is a bit of a 
contradiction there. I want to know how you feel about that. 
You are adding significant fiscal costs to the WCB, we both 
acknowledge that and it has to come from somewhere. If we 
up the assessments anymore we are going to have a bloody 
revolt on our hands. So I am just concerned if you have 
thought this thing through with respect to your 
recommendation that these responsibilities go over to the 
WCB? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Fern. 

MR. DENAULT: Yes we have, Mr. Chairman. There is a 
long-term benefit, we believe, where the service is coming 
from. The long-term benefit is efficiency of operation. We 
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believe that H It were under WCB that through the powers of 
assessment and super assessment, risk assessment, WCB 
would be in a good position to give some needed incentive 
to those employers and they are few in numbers, but they are 
very costly and those employers could get the smarten-up pill 
when the need It. In return we see a system that would 
become more efficient; we see a work place that could benefit 
and become a much safer work place. 

In the short term however, there are pressures that are exerted 
and this is why we say that It should be dealt within the same 
manner as transfer payments are dealt with between the 
federal and territorial government, when the territorial 
government is taking over new responsibilities from the federal 
government. Ample precedence to this exists. A similar 
mechanism would greatly benefit this changeover. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: And some of these things that are being 
transferred, now there ii a price attached. I want to say to 
you clearly that I disagree with your position on this, so you 
know where I am coming from and I believe it should stay 
where it belongs. As Mr. Crook said earlier, I believe the 
WCB should be looking at the educational component of It. 
That is what this is all about. You are trying to reduce injured 
workers, not Increase them. So you have to find a method to 
get out there and talk to people and make the work place 
safe. So H it was from an educational component you would 
have me on side, but H it is from a judicial one, no. 

Regional Variations In YMIR 

One of the excellent presentations made yesterday was from 
the N'NT Council for Disabled Persona. She suggested 
benefits under the YMIR must also be adjusted to reflect the 
regional variations in the cost of living. It la a lot more 
expensive to live in Spence Bay, Holman Island, than It la to 
live in Hay River. I am wondering how you feel about that? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Fern. 

MR. DENAULT: Mr. Chairman, we believe it is already 
addressed some way. We do not agree it is fully addressed 
because we believe the YMIR needs to be increased 
drastically. But we believe it is addrested in that atructure. 
The problem we have is with the YMIR Itself and with the 
disparities between the region• and the higher coat of living, 
those are normally reflected through also higher wagn and 
salaries. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: That is not neenaarily true. The 0tganlzed 
worker certainly does well, but there are a number of people 
who are not organized out there who do not make the same 
kind of investment salaries and wages But somebody hu 
to recognize that the cost of living in Holman Island 1s higher 
than living in Yellowknife - this lady hu rec0Qn1ud rt. 
Nobody else has recOQnized it. She is suggeat1ng that maybe 
there should be some method to reflect that eost Yo..i are 
saying you do not see that as a problem. 

MR. DENAULT: What we are used to la recOQnizing the 
higher eor. o! living in various regions by collectlve 
bargaining. This is the vehicle we are used to dealing with 
and we would suggest that it would be • vehicle that would 
provide the proper solutions to people in the regions also. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: But the reality is that everybody is not organized 
and everyone does not want to be organized As a good 

unionist you should know that and am sure you do. So 
what do we do with the non-organized worker who is living in 
Whale Cove who has to pay $45 for a roast? Should we look 
at addressing that? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Fern. 

MR. DENAULT: The inequities that exist, exist essentially 
from an employer/employee relationship. Now we do not 
support a situation where a person would actually be making 
more on WCB benefits than they would normally be making 
at their salary level. We believe it should be the same. We 
believe it should be full compensation. We do not believe 
that that would help to cure the entire situation of 
rehabilitation, gainful employment and all those issues. 

Workers' Advisor Position 

MR. TODD: What Is the unions position on the workers' 
advisor position? Is It pleased with the position and the role 
It Is performing? How does It see it continuing? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Fern. 

MR. DENAULT: The labour advocacy role that · is played 
within that function is one that we are familiar with. It is one 
that we have to perform in every day of our lives when we 
decide that yes we will be involved and yes we will be active. 
It is an important step and it should provide a similar type of 
service to anybody on the street or even us, because at times 
we are stumped. We are not perfect people, all 
knowledgeable, to go in and require information, maybe help 
break down the barriers, that sort of thing. That is the type of 
role we would enjoy seeing out of that service and it is a very 
important job that needs to be done there. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: So from that I am detecting that you are 
supportive of the workers' advisor position. 

MR. DENAULT: We are, yes. 

MR. TODD: How do you see it operating? Do you see it 
operating sort of arm's length from everybody? Do you see 
it in • government department? I am trying to come to grips 
as to how people view this position. 

MR. DENAULT: We do not see on a long term a great 
benefit should the workers' advisor position stay in isolation at 
thia time. We do see that the Government of the NWT is 
moving toward establishing an ombudsman. We believe that 
u the ayatem matures the citizens of the N'NT would greatly 
benefit H there was an ombudsman structure with advocates 
dealing on dHferent issues. We believe that that would solve 
a lot of the problems and frustrations that come to MLAs from 
varioua communities all the time. It would fill the gap. But 
kept in isolation as it is right now, what we worry about is the 
possibility of development potential for the people who serve 
in that position - personal development. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Brian. 

MR. LEWIS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In this presentation 
we were given one example at the end of how the union was 
able to get a clause in the collective agreement which made 
people with partial disabilities, affirmative action people for re­
employment. We have heard that this particular clause exists 
in some jurisdictions as a legislated right for workers. I 
wonder H we can get some comment on that, whether it would 
be appropriate to have something like this in legislation rather 
than in the collective agreement. 
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CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Denault. 

MR. DENAULT: Mr. Chairman, one of the reasons we 
submitted this example to you today is to drive home an 
important point. Very often legislative change comes from 
exercises such as this that get the necessary recognition for 
the value and the service they provide. Across the count,y 
and at the origin of workers' compensation, it is that very type 
of thing that happened and then became enshrined in 
legislation: to meet a need. This is why we say that organized 
workers can help to solve many of the problems that we face 
in society. This is how we do it through the collective 
bargaining agreements. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

Make-Up Of The Board 

MR. TODD: The make-up of the board is a big Issue to 
everyone; that the stakeholders, organized labour and 
management should have equal representation on the board, 
and that they should be consulted in the process. Was your 
union consulted on the two recent appointments of the review 
committee - Mr. Hinchey and Mr. Johnson? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Fern. 

MR. DENAULT: We were consulted on the one. Mr. 
Johnson. 

MR. TODD: Would that have been directly through the board 
or through the union representative on the board? Was it a 
formal consultation or was it a casual chat with Brother Evoy? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Fern. 

MR. DENAULT: There is two different things. Mr. Johnson 
was there some time ago and Mr. Hinchey'• name came 
about a month ago and that wu through the Federation of 
Labour. 

MR. TODD: Did you get a formal requeet? 

MR. DENAULT: We have good working relations within the 
labour movement and we respect the verbal d1acu111on 
between principles as fairly formal for our needs. 

MR. TODD: So somebody c·ame and uked you your opinion. 

MR. DENAULT: Good. 

MR. TODD: Put aside your biase,. how do we ensure or who 
represents the non-organized worker if we take th11 approach 
of union versus the private sector? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Fern. 

MR. DENAULT: We belreve there 11 a lot of eHmplH that 
already exist on how the unorganized WOriler benefltl from the 
precedents that are established through exerclMI that 
organized workers participate in. One of the clau'" that you 
were looking at a ,_ minutes ago i1 a prime example On 
the entire iasue of WCB this is how it began and everybody 
benefita. not just organized workers. but everybody benefitl 
from that exercise. We believe that i1 how workers who are 
not organized benefit. It is a freebie to them. It ii a altuation 
where they are not a participant but yet the fall from the 
exercises that organized workers participate in reachff them 
anyway. So it is a freebie that they get and we do not 
oppose that. In fact we support that Everybody should gain. 

The reverse however is not true. The reverse does not 
happen. We will challenge you to find a precedent anywhere 

where the reverse has happened and where people have 
gained from the exercise. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Charles. 

Dollar Figure For YMIR 

MR. DENT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Has your union taken 
a look at what they think the YMIR should be in terms of an 
actual dollar figure? Are you prepared to recommend a dollar 
figure for, us to consider? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Fern. 

MR. DENAULT: Mr. Chairman, we believe that to put a cap 
is wrong. We believe that a person should be fully 
compensated and it varies, depending on the relationship, the 
salary and wage relationship that exists between various 
employers and workers. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): . Charles. 

MR. DENT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Removing the cap 
would obviously have some pretty drastic implications on the 
payroll costs to employers in certain sectors. Do yoµ think the 
economy here can withstand that kind of impact right away? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Denault 

MR. DENAULT: We believe that proper assessments would 
cure that problem. Employers should be assessed based on 
the pre11ure1 that they place on the administration of the 
board. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Charles. 

MR. DENT: You pointed out in your presentation that you 
think that some of the mining companies should have their 
premiums increased significantly. That would drive a few out 
of business, I expect, and I am sure that as legislators we 
would hear a real hue and cry from the mining industry 
claiming that most of them would be driven out of business. 
How do we balance their complaints against the demands of 
labour when we are in tough economic times and we are 
concerned. all of us, about providing as many jobs in the 
North as we can? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Fern. 

MR. DENAULT: Mr. Chairman, the argument of driving us 
out of business is one that we as organized labour have to 
listen to every time we sit at the negotiating table. Yet we 
achieve contracts that offer our members a good level of living 
and very few employers ever blame us for going out of 
business. It is a matter of sitting down, discussing the needs 
and negotiating where you have to be. These are exercises 
that are good and honourable and usually you can get 
around. •You are driving me out of business," because that 
appears to be the thing to try and get you to back off all the 
time. It is a strategy to get you to back off and eliminate 
pre11ures. You have to be able to get over that hurdle and 
go down to the nitty gritty and the issues at hand. 

The fly-in/fly-out operators of the mining industry is where we 
are aaying you are facing some major problems, major risk 
and to tell you the truth, it has been our experience in looking 
at those operations, that to this day they pay very, very little 

' to the coffers of the NWT. So how can they justify a just 
compensation assessment is driving them out of business. 
They pay little as it is. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Charles. 
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MR. DENT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In your presentation 
you recommended a full bi-partite review be undertaken and . 
that there la an urgent need for that You justify that with a 
need to increase the YMIR and pensions. Are there any other 
extremely serious issues that you think that that sort of review 
committee needs to deal with? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Fem. 

MR. DENAULT: Mr. Chairman. there may be, baaed on the 
findings of such a committee. This la from our perspective. 
Now mind you, organized labour and our local within the 
United Steelworkers is only one of the principles involved in 
the in the issue. So other people might identify other areas 
that would have to be addreaaed by this type of exercise. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Charles. 

MA. DENT: Mr. Chairman, I gueaa I am just trying to find out 
if the union feels that the legislation and the activities of the 
board are, in general. at a fairly good level or if we need to 
go through the time and expense of having another review of 
the Workers' Compensation or if action on the YMIR and 
pensions is the only thing that really is important right now. 

MR. DENAULT:_ Mr. Chairman, we like to give recognition 
where recognition is due and as far u looking after the funds 
of WCB. the board has done commendable work. However, 
in the area of providing benefits to the injured work•,. and 
dependenta in cases where we have a fatality, the 
performance has not been good. What we are saying la this 
is where this exercise should concentrate on, the committM 
we would uk the MLAI to put together. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): James. 

MR. ARVALUK: Thank you. Mr. Chairman. In your 
presentation you say the board should be limited to two 
groups, the organized worke,. and employers, and you also 
mention that if the organized labour can effectively repr ... nt · 
non-organtZed workers. However It will not lffm to work the 
other way around. In Chesterfield Inlet the tNlT Power 
Corporation regional supervisor has to go Into Chesterfield 
Inlet every year to take over what they call "temporarily laid 
off" power plant operators. He has to be laid off for 
something like two months or 10 day, - I am not sure which• 
• because he is not a union member. I gu ... they term it u 
a casual. He has been doing that tor quite some tame. and he 
still hu to be laid off every year becauM that 11 •n the union 
collective agreement . 

Here ii a non-union member affected by the unt0n'1 collectlve 
agreement I know it is not your union. However. • 11 not 
necessarily so that a United Steelworkers union member will 
be sitting on WCB. That it no guarantM there So how do 
you justify that union-organized worker's membetlh1p on the 
wee will - how will you. in the act or in the polq or tn the 
regulations of the WCB. see that ~ memberl will be 
protected? Where can you jultify to me. Olhef ttlan that we 
are very good? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Fern. 

MR. DENAULT: In cUet 1uch u prnented by the 
honourable Member, Mr. Arvaluk. the iatue of layoff II one 
that is within - I am just giving this to you as information -
within the collective bargaining agrMment exerc.... It II one 
of the plac" where an employer atreaan the management', 
right component It it an axerciM and a power of the 
employer to hire, fire. lay off. It it not one that •• pnv•leged 
to the organized workers. or the union, that repreMnt them. 
What union, try to do. speaking of the exerc•se• that we 
participate in in our collective bargaining agreementt. it we try 

to minimize the impact upon casual workers or upon people 
who have , .... r "niority In caaea of iayoff. So far, in 
collectlve bargaining exercises, this is how it has been going. 
So in essence, when we sit down with an employer, we try to 
whittle away a bit of that management rights, and, If we have 
justification becau .. of abuses, we can achieve. But layoff is 
in the control of the employer. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Arvaiuk, please be quick. 

MR. ARVALUK: Thank you Mr. Chairman. I know we are 
running out of time, but mostly just a statement. Mr. Chairman. 
Yea. B,ecauae that worker la not a union member, you have 
given the management the right to exercise laying off that 
person annually; whereas If he were a union member, you 
probably would have a different collective bargaining 
agrMment there on that worker's behalf. This is my concern. 
When non-union membera are not represented by unions, 
therefore, traditionally as well as today, the managers or 
ownera of the company give them a kind of raw deal, of which 
this is an example. 

So I do not know how the union members will be able to 
represent non-union members as we already have this kind of 
example in the Eaatem Arctic. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Fern, any comments? 

MR. DENAULT: Y", Mr. Chairman. I am unfamillar with th.e 
collectlve bargaining agreement that exists in a particular 
municipality. However, u part of the collectlve bergaining 
exercl... a decision la made by a ratification vote of your 
entire memberahip. The entire memberahip decides baaed on 
iuun that are raised by the employers - and the right to lay 
off la an istue that is always raised by the employer - and 
iuuH that the members have raised at the bargaining table. 
A ratification vote is held, and this is how people make the 
decision. The decisions, the agreements, are never perfect. 
Moat of the cues where there is layoff, in the type of 
industrial setting that we are used to, even though people 
have leaser seniority, or they may be casual people, they still 
benefit from the agreement that is in place at that locality. So 
I am acrounging a bit here because I am not familiar with the 
acenario that the Member is bringing forward. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you Mr. Chairman. I would like to 
thank Fern Denault for your presentation. It was very 
informative, the historical aspect of the Workers' Compensation 
Board. I would just like to say that the fundamental principle 
that you mentioned, where the worker gives up his right to 
,ue in an industrial accident - I take it that that was a 
mutually agreed principle between the employer and the 
workers. So the employer is involved historically in agreeing 
to auch an arrangement So the employers are off the hook 
from being sued. In exchange, they pay · money to the 
compensation board. A lot of focut seems to be on thi1 
money and who controls It It seem, to me in the last little 
while here there has been a lot of energy being spent on how 
to protect that money and who la going to control it, like 
political manoeuvring, who 11 going to sit on the board, and 
IO forth. 

Rehabilitation For lnJured Workers 

But my main concem, I am glad that you answered Charles 
Dent here, saying that the focus should be on injured workers 
now more than anything _ else. I think I support that position 
that you are taking, because what we have done here is that 
we have heard from injured workers that have called, and they 
are having problems with the system. The system is not 
serving them. I know that being an injured worker is not a 

• 

• 
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planted thing. It is an accident. and you do not know whether 
you are going to get hurt or not Then once you get hul't, 
then you are an injured worker. 

Sitting here the last few days, I was thinking about what are 
the rights of these injured workers? Has anybody put any 
effort into trying to identify what their rights are of these 
injured workers? Here you are a union man; you represent 
people who pay you the dues; but once they are no longer 
working they do not pay the dues, and what happens to 
them? I am concerned about that 

One problem is that they have to go through the system to try 
to get some compensation. and there are some problems that 
I am hearing about: re-employment programs and retraining 
assistance. I know that the rehabilitation and so forth is done 
down in Edmonton and Vancouver and so forth, and I think 
that is one area where groups such as yourseH - you say that 
you represent everybody here, the workers; you are saying 
that the fundamental principle was arrived at between the 
organized workers and the employers - 10 in your position 
here you are aayinsi that organized labour should represent all 
the workers in the North, and my point here is that the main 
focus is on the injured worker. And what we have been 
hearing in the last few days is that nobody is helping them 
except for a workers' advisor. Some of these people have 
paid you their dues, and I am wondering how you are helping 
and assisting these people to get rehabilitated, and is there 
any program that you have to re-employ them? Do you have 
a program for r .. mployment and retraining? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Fem. 

MR. DENAULT: Mr. Chairman, I am happy to'" that you 
have caught on to the pact, because we kHp hearing a lot of 
frustrations about how the employer has to shoulder all the 
burden of compensation. We kffp hearing It and hearing It, 
and It is not a true reflection of the pact. I am very happy to 
'" that that is there and that you recognize that. Because 
the very important aspect of that pact is the workers· giving up 
their right to sue their employer. That only became a danger 
when the workers were in the position to actually do Jt. 
Because they could not afford it before ~ organ,zed 
themselves. 

On the concern about people who are no longer paying dues. 
go through a local. I can apealt for our local. I would not be 
necessarily mandated to apealt at large for other organizations. 
but I know that in most of the organizations the pnnc1plea hold 
true, and they hold_the same. Whe!' we have members and 
members have problems with Workers· Compenaation. or other 
agencies, because there are other agenc181 that affect people 
also, we do act when approached by the members. 

We do act in an advocacy position, helping our member to 
achieve a just settlement wherever the member II hav,ng a 
problem. We do extend that. also, to put members or 
anybody that walks off the atrHt and need a hand We have 
never limited the service that we provide. In fac:t. we en,oy 
when people come to us and say to us, •t have a problem 
here; can you help 9"8 out'?• We enJoy it. And we do It. 
There are no charges, or anything like that. In fact. d 
anything, if we can look at it in a seH-serving kind ol way. the 
publicity is good for us when we help people. And I believe 
if you check, within the records of the board you w,U '" that 
the union has represented both members, non-members, 
retired members. and people that have Just walked off the 
ltrHL 

I know the Federation of Labour was helping people ,n the 
Simpson area a few years ago. It II the kind of relationship 
and the kind of work that we enjoy doing. So we do not 
close the door once a person does not pay dues. And when 

the person is there and is a du ... paying member, the 
privilege that the person hu for being a dues-paying member 
is that person can help us to make proper decisions within 
our locals. And that is what we try to motivate within our 
membership is to participate in the life and the decisions of 
the locals. 

In dealing with the need in the rehab 1ituation, it is pretty aad 
to us to see people have to go to Edmonton and Vancouver 
for rehabilitation, in many cases, in moat cases, being taken 
away from their families for a month at a. time and sometimes 
more. We would like to SN proper rehab facilities in the 
North for people. Our people live here. We would like to see 
those kinds of services close to them. We believe that 
everybody would appreciate that in the Northwest Territories. 

For re-employment, poaaibilities of coming back into the work 
force, that is what the last page of our presentation is, and 
that is how we have done it. Mr. Lewis, Mr . . Chairman, a 
while ago pointed to It in the way of, what wu the term, I am 
not thinking of the word but there is a privileged status that 
we provide in our collective bargaining agreement for an 
injured worker that got hurt at the place of employment where 
we are. That is as much as we can do. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John, a final comment? 

MR. TODD: Yea, if I may. You know, like Mr. Antoine, he 
says It much more eloquently than I do. When I look at what 
I now view as my pHr group's presentations in the last two 
or thrff days, there certainly was a total preoccupation with 
the money, the malt►up of the board, and very little reference 
to the injured worker, which really caused me some 
consternation. I have made notes to myseH, and I said 
•preoccupation with the funds,• 'board appointments to the 
chair: "very little reference to the injured workers: and I put 
four organizatlona together and theoretically they are 
supposed to reprnent me I gueaa, as a businessman, and 
they do nol I put one together here, and that said, 'Thia is 
the only presentation that has a primary focus on the injured 
worker: and that was the lady from· the disabled workers. 
That ia one point, so I agrH with Mr. Antoine. 

I think the other point that caused me some problem, if I may, 
1n terms of when we talk about this money, is that there were 
distortions, in my opinion, being created, certainly by the NWT 
Chamber of Mines. They implied that this fund, if it was 
invested, wu making 21.3 per cent That is totally incorrect 
H you average out the fund, and I want to get this in the 
record, because the implication was, do not put it in the 
North. In my opinion, that was the implication, and I am 
entitled to my opinion. Last year there was an 18.9 per cent 
average done. It is averaged out in the investment policy. 
The last four years there was 11.8 per cent average return, 
and in the last five years there was 9.8 average return, so for 
the record I want to get it in there. That is the figures 
provided by the investment group in the WCB. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, John. As Chairman I 
was put in this spot I hate to be SHn to cut off di1cu11ion. 
n is going quita well, but as a committee we have also set a 
fairly optimistic schedule. So far we have bffn doing well on 
the time lines. Fem, I would like to thank you for your 
p, ... ntation, and Members for the diacuaaion. It has been 
quite a good morning so far, so thank you very much. 

The next witneaa or person to make a presentation is Mary 
King. Mary is from Hay River and she is representing the 
auto body shops, so welcome, Mary, and please join us. 

Pr ... ntatJon By Ms. Mary King, Auto Body Shops 

MS. KING: I did not bring a formal presentation. I hope you 
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will get transcripts in cue there ia anything you find of interett 
that you would like to follow up. The reason I came occurred 
because, actually I wu looking at the budget for the coming 
year and I saw what a high rate we had to pay for workers' 
compensation, and I have never been comfortable that the 
worker hu actually got the best You know, the news you 
hear is pretty well always negative · from the Workers' 
Compensation. But just in the little group that I work with, I 
was not satisfied that of the fellows I work with, and I am 
particularly talking about the guys on the floor. I am not 
talking clerical so much. I wu not sure they would get the 
best from the Workers' Compensation Board if anything should 
happen to them. 

I have to say we have not experienced any problems, and I 
guess I was looking to the future. For the rate that we had to 
pay, I could not be certain without going out and getting a 
competitive pricing, that the fellows would be covered well. 
So I wrote a letter and asked if I could have permission to 
solicit, u I do with everything else. With insurance I uk to 
see if I can get a price comparison, what would the ·coverage 
be? I did not get a reply, and it rather irked me. I addressed 
this letter to the chairman and the board. Nothing happened. 
This was last August. 

At that point, I was paying for six fellow,, $13,000 in one year. 
You have to pay that within the first four or five months of a 
year. For a email business, that is quite a drain. Sometime, 
you might make $2000 in a month if you had a bad month, 
and this ie gobbled up quite easily by a payment to the 
Workers' Compensation Board. 

So when I heard thi• review committN wu on, I thought that 
perhaps if you are reviewing your legialation - I am lolt when 
you are talking unions and things like that because I am not 
familiar with that I am just thinking of the coverage that the 
fellows I work for, and I have to say I work for them because 
I look after their interests as far as making eure they have got 
proper lighting, proper safety material•. and all that and I wu 
not sure they were getting the benefit of good coverage. 
When I look at the penaion plan I have in place. it ii quite a 
bit better. the pension plan that I have 

What I was looking for was an opportunity to ask that the 
long-term disability and the life inaurance portion. if anything 
should happen to them. be put out and, aay. get It from an 
insurance company like Great West Ute or any of them. And 
any of the short term - the cuts, the bumpa and the bNiaff, 
the run down to the doctor and get aomethlng out of your eye 
type of thing, could be handled by the Workere· 
Compensation Board, but the very hard core thing that would 
affect them for a long, long time in hir life. I wanted to be 
able to go out and solicit, and c teut confirm that wee 
coverage wu good, but could I g.t bettlf for the aame 
dollars. 

So then. along com" thi• year and now I am paying $22.400. 
basically for the same crew, and I have hid to torti out 
$22,000 by the end of this month. We are e amall company 
and that is e lot So I asked, for my class what ia your d_irect 
costs against the revenue that comff from my clua" I found 
out that. for instance, the coats in 1988 were S83.000 The 
revenue they generated was $204,000. The coats of my class 
in 1989 was $54,000. Thay generated $393.000. and so on. 
In 1990, the costa for my clua. and I am not aaying my 
buainess, I am saying the class I am in. was $23.900. They 
generated $336.000 for that clasa. In just four years. my clua 
cost $218,649. They generated a total revenue of S1 .218.402. 
In four years that is in excess of a million dollar1 

Okay. 10 the rate goes up. Why is the rate going up? They 
are already generating a good revenue on my clau It Jumps 
from six dollars to eight dollars. I know. for instance, in 

Alberta the rate for the same class, the body ehop class, was 
$2.58. per hundred. It generates $42,000. I am paying eight 
dollars. I realize part of the reason might be we are a smaller · 
group and it cannot be 1pread so far, but when I look back 
at the revenue that wu generated versus the coata of that 
class, I do not SN why it hu to be eight dollars. That was 
what I wu trying to get at, and I would have done it by mail. 
I would have done it by correspondence, because I have no 
hatchet really with the WCB. I just get the sense that they do 
not look after the workers. I heard a little bit of It this 
morning. 

They are more involved with money. They are more involved 
with the status of the wee, and for me, because I come from 
a small town, I work and I know personally, I have _lived many 
years with the same people I work with, I am more interested 
in what would benefit them. I know them ail personally. If 
something happened to them and I did not provide them 
good coverage, and I did not IN that something could have 
been better for them If, aay, they lost an arm or a leg or 
something tell on them, I would feel better that I have made 
some effort to make 1ure they are well taken care of, and I 
have never had the sense that the workers are that well taken 
care of. That is hearsay, and I regret having to say something 
like that, but at the same time it gives me the sense, where I 
am coming from, that I have to look out for, them. 

My presentation would be, could you allow or could you 
recommend in the legislation that small companies that 
already have acce11 to group plans that· already give them 
good coverage, could we enhance that somehow, particularly 
for the long-term diaability and that, which pays quite a bit 
better than what WCB would pay. These are often young 
men. They all have children - most of them do not even 
have children yet - they have two, thrN or four children. 
They are young. They need good stability, and $42,000 is not 
going to look after that famlly. 

The other thing that disturbed me, and I am still relating to the 
cost aspect of it. I see where it is 85 .cents per hundred for 
government employees. I think they set aside several of them, 
but basically It is 85 cents per hundred for a government 
employee. When I look at the range of the staff in the private 
sector u compared to the range of the staff in government, 
why am I paying six and eight dollars and they are paying 85 
cents? For instance, if you had a highway construction, a 
government employee in that section would be paying 85 
cents per hundred - I mean the employer of the government 
employN. If I had a group of people on there, I would be 
paying six to eight dollars per hour for the same people to do 
the aarne thing. Why would something like that occur? 

I am not looking for an answer here, but these are questions 
that have come to mind. I am not so sure there is a 
reasonable explanation why government employees would be 
85 cents, whereas private sector has to be quite a bit more. 

That relate, particularly to the cost aspect of my concerns. I 
have to say that. for instance in 1991, the staff I have at the 
body ahop had no claims whatsoever, and they had this jump 
- well, actually, by the end of the year it wu $15,000 and it 
jumped to $22,400. Of course, there wu a little bit of cost 
upect in there because I did say that perhap1 we have one 
extra fellow on hand. That Is the cost aspect of It, and I 
cannot help but try to reinforce. Could you please see if there 
ii some way that I can go out and eoliclt proper competitive 
pricing? I think if you had proper pricing in place, the rates 
would go down, the reviews of all the claims would be well 
looked after. 

Again, I am talking from the sense of what I hear on the street. 
I am beginning to sense that there are some workers, and I 
have seen this only in Hay River, who are willing now to linger 

• 
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on WCB if they can, much the same way that previously you 
may have heard that people go for UI. I am beginning to 
think that with such a large fund, and I have to say I heard on 
the radio this morning the fund that the WCB controls is $123 
million. If they have that much money, they are not going to 
be reviewing and making sure that the worker gets back on 
the work force quickly, and I would hate to see that WCB 
would be abused, because if an abuse takes place, then the 
fellows that really require the attention of the WCB would lose 
ultimately in the end. 

The other part I was concerned about was the process. 
guess what happened when I started asking people about -
this has all been said before. I guess I wondered as I was 
flying over here this morning, is it worthwhile for me to even 
bother appearing here? I know there have been presentations 
from different groups, the same concerns, and I do not really 
get the feeling that there has been a response. Again, I have 
to say I think the WCB, the public image of it and all that, is 
on the downslide, and they have to begin to be more 
concerned with the individual person and what they can be 
doing for him, because If it goes to this business of money 
and all of that, the employee is going to suffer. I regret not 
having a major presentation to make. I guess I am more 
speaking from a very small business. 

If you have any questions I would be happy to answer. 
Otherwise I thank you for your time and I do hope that you 
would consider something for the smaller business people. I 
heard the gentleman ahead of us and I suspect he represents 
union which is a large number of people and I represent just 
a small group. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Mary. You are the only 
one who has come from out of town. I understand you paid 
your own way to come before us and you are so far the only 
one representing an employer who contributes and cares - I 
guess all employers should care about their employfft - but 
you have made a fairly good presentation and we appreciate 
your frankness. This is the forum to hear cases like yours and 
recommendations that you have made and we in tum will try 
to deal with them and be that voice in terms of chang•ng 
legislation. Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Thank you. Mr. Chairman. I would 
like to thank Mrs. King for doing her pr ... ntation and I find 
it is a breath of fresh air for the commrttN Members to Mar 
from small employers. All our Maring• have been from 
organized labour, organized unions, individuals who repr ... nt 
a large body of members. Your concerns reinforce some of 
the concerns that I hear from small bU9inetMI in our 
community where the rates have incredibly increased to the 
point where many employers and small busin ..... are now 
considering doing sole source contracts with employHS. Just 
to avoid having to pay wee premiums that have increased 
drastically over the time period. 

I think that is one of the concerns we have come to recognize 
where wee is starting to focus and orient themsetvn u an , 
investment type of program u opposed to looking at 1n1ured 
workers and as opposed to utilizing their funds accordingly . 
As a result. inasmuch as their management wu good. they do 
have $125 million fund. but I believe they have focused_.., 
from their initial intent to ensure that a coverage wu there at 
a reasonable rate. And now u someone commented 
yesterday, you pay you play, but you are paying a very heavy 
rate, forgetting about what you are paying tor and the 
mandate of WCB is somewhat outdated. 

And I believe our legislation - certainly I can assure you that 
we will be pressing for changes to legislation. but at the same 
time we do have to look at the rates. Because what has 
happened is that the rates in classification does not allow tor 

segregation of your employfft in a small business and 
unfortunately your business would be looked at aa an auto 
body shop, probably somewhat of a high risk and your rate 
would be high, whether it la for your clerk, whether it is for 
your body man and unfortunately you have to absorb the cost 

In this time of recession it Is not only hurting the small 
business, it is hurting the total economy, because as a result 
you get your layoffs and other ramifications that have to be 
absorbed. 

So I thank you very much, even though it is not a written 
brief. Small business people do not have the time to 
formulate briefs and whatnot; they are in there to provide a 
service to the public. I think your presentation is very well 
understood by Members and I especially thank you for coming 
from a community outside of Yellowknife, to give a different 
perspective from many of the small businesses across the 
Territories to the Members of the Assembly. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

~ernate Ways Of Covering Employees 

MR. TODD: Your comment about looking for alternative ways 
of covering employees, do you think that that thinking comes 
about because the rates are Increasing? Is that kind of 
thinking done by more people? Is it a trend or is it just your 
particular opinion at this time? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mary. 

MS. KING: Thank you. It is partially related to the increase 
In rates. When the rate was smaller I thought it was 
somewhat comparable. But as the rate increases, the benefit 
to the employee does not increase and I would like to go out 
and solicit, have it in the legislation that I can go out and 
solicit alternatives to WCB. That is the only reason I am here 
today, is to ask that that be part of the legislation. Then I can 
verify that yes, the rate I am paying is reasonable. I never 
want to be without coverage for our staff. We have a group 
policy that covers them 24 hours a day. WCB only covers 
you for eight hours a day. It is tied into the rate, 
unfortunately, but just by the fact that I think I can get 
1omething better for the same rate. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: Within your peer group, are there others that feel 
the same way? I am curious because I am hearing the same 
thing in my riding. 

MS. KING: Not particularly. I am quite competitive. We like 
to go out and look at things and I do not necessarily want to 
go to Alberta, to tell you the truth, I do not want to do that 
But if it Is going to benefit my staff, I will go. 

What I am hearing from the other ones is negative. I talked 
to a fellow yesterday and he is extremely negative about it 
And generally what I am hearing is not so much that they 
want to go out and solicit other rates, they think the system is 
going to be abused. I know of three cases right now where 
people, I 1u1pect, are abusing the system. There is nothing 
there that would assist me or would assist the other employers 
to stop the abuse. You 1ee that is where they are coming 
from more than negative aspects of it They are not saying 
they do not want to be without WCB, but they want the 
coverage, but they think the money aspect is getting too high. 
The status of the fund and all that, it is not what people want. 
tt you are a small town employer, you want your staff covered. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jeannie. 
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MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: I believe there la a fundamental 
principle here that Mre. King ie trying to bring forth to the 
Member• and I have to fully agree with It. It ie the principle 
of choice. We live in a society where we have the opportunity 
to chooee accordingly and it appeare now the legislation doe, 
not give any choice to small businesses or employers to look 
at alternatives. The act now just basically states that the 
coverage for your workers is through the Workers' 
Compensation Board because if you do not have your 
workers' compensation compliance form, you do not get a 
business licence in the communities. It Is ae simple u that. 
There is no choice in the matter. And that is buically - u 
our society grow, people feel they have rights and people 
when they pay, they like to have the choice. And that la 
baeically the concern. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: Any change in society and In an environment of 
a receasion, people do look at how we can get productive 
coats and competitive coats. But Jeannie the fact of the 
matter is in the legielation we gave up the right to look for 
alternatives and the worker gave up the right to sue. I know 
a little bit about WCB. So if you need to eeek what you 
believe is rightfully yours, an alternative, then we would have 
to take a hard look at legislation changes. Becauae the 
current legislation aaya we have given that right up and we 
pay to WCB to protect the injured worker. 

It may be that In theae changing times that we have to take 
a look at legislation and make aome change,, I do not know, 
it would have to be debated. And I do not think we should 
be u stringent In our thinking u certainly aome of our 
preaenters are being. But I know It would require legialative 
change, for sure, and you would really ralae the hackles. This 
is dynamite in the eye• of a lot of people. I am not making 
a judgment on It. I am merely telling you the facts the way I 
eee it anyway. I know your fNstration becauee I am in a 
aimilar situation when you look at the coata you know you can 
go and buy insurance cheaper than that 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mary. 

MS. KING: I am not saying do away with worllers' 
compensation coverage. I want the workers' comp. But the 
WCB could still send auditors in. I have only 8"n one 
auditor come in and he did the tire shop and it wu just a 
local hire auditor. If WCB were caring. they would leave 
Yellowknife and get out into the communities. Now if I had 
the opportunity to solicit, they would have to come into my 
place and make sure I had the coverage and then they would 
see the conditions of the workers. They would have an 
opportunity to meet the fellowa on the street I do not 8" any 
reason. Your automobile coverage is legislated. You have to 
have inturance. It don not say you have to buy It from the 
GNWT or a board of the (3NWT. You go out and aohcit the 
best price po111ble. And there ii an auditing system there, 
you have to provide your pink slip when you get your hcence 
to operate that vehicle. If the auditors would come in. I could 
get a workers compliance, insurance compliance. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: I think you just said the magic word, you have 
to know your marketplace and your clients and it appears to 
me, and I sat on the board for eight years and I fought like 
heli to get into the communitin and was not auccHSful. 

MS. KING: Well if you had auditors you could move around 
the communities eaeily . 

MR. TODD: The magic word is to get to know your clients 
and that is what ie not happening. You have an extremely 

centralized organization, probably well intentioned, but 
extremely centralized that don not •imply know its client bue 
and It d088 not know the changing time, that ia going on, like 
you addre11ed thie morning, which I think ie excellent So we 
have to get acrOM to thie group that they have to get out in 
the marketplace and talk to the client bue. 

One of the thing I wae trying to addre11 with the group• 
earlier ie that big bueineae and big union• have lobbying arm• 
and administration to get out there and do their thing, 
because guy• like you and me who are in the email busineas, 
do not We aometimee use the chamber or stuff like that, and 
the Influence within the WCB la lacking. There ie a big 
Influence of unlona, which ia perfectly understandable, and 
there I• a big influence with the contributors - stakeholder. 
There I• a bit of an Imbalance. I am not discounting the fact 
that you need atakeholders there, abaolutely, but there ia a bit 
of an Imbalance and In your type of thinking doe• not come 
to the fore on the regular baela becauee there i• not a 
mechanlam for It to happen. Th••• guy• have organization• 
that can state their point of view and lobby hard. We are 
talking about the NWT Chamber of Mines, the NWT Chamber 
of Commerce - I do not know if any of them ever get elected. 
I am elected and I repreeent my riding and I am going to 
represent it to the beet of my ability and I think I also 
repreaent. to aome extent. emall busineH. And I think that is 
what is lacking In the equation. We are not clicked into the 
lobbying mechaniam. 

Phased lna1alment Plan 

MS. KING: When I mentioned that I had to pay $22,000 
within five montha, that wu a eerloue comment I made. There 
la one other thing I wlah you would make a recommendation 
on; that It be tied Into payment I would not mind making 
monthly payments. If I have to continue with the WCB that is 
fine, but if I generate a certain payroll at the middle of the 
month, why can I not make a payment like I do to the tax 
department, GST, everything, do it once a month. Why do I 
have to do It all at the beginning of. the year, the •lowest 
aeaaon? 

MR. TODD: That i• the tragedy of the thing. If you can 
apply to say you do not have the cuh flow to pay these dues 
on the front end, can I do it on an instalment baeie and then 
they adjudicate It and aay yea or no. I have done it for my 
own company and they give you a phued instalment plan. 
The problem ia they are not out there telling people that 

MS. KING: Okay, but you also have to pay a penalty, you 
have to pay a aervice change and it all adds up. I do not 
even bother to try, I just pay It. All of a sudden what if I have 
hired another 10 people. I am etlll paying my own rate, at the 
end of the year I might have to jump up - for eome reason if 
I could ever have more staff I would. But that would work in 
month by month. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay, we hear you and thank you 
very much for coming and being frank and straight forward. 

Telecon With Mr. Tommy Wright, Gwlch'ln Hunters' And 
Trappers' Auoclatlon 

We have one more telephone call to Tommy Wright in lnuvik. 
Hello Tommy, this is Fred Koe. We are in seaeion with the 
standing committee on agenc;iee, boards and commissions 
and we are reviewing the Workers' Compeneation Board and 
people want to get aome reaction from people acroH the 
Territories on hunters' and trappers' coverage. With me are 
Members of the committee, there are eix Members plus myself, 
representing varioue riding• acroH the North. There are also 
various members of the public here. So the procese is that 
we wish to hear from you ae a repreaentative of a hunters and 



May 131 1992 STANDING COMMITTEE ON AGENCIES, BOARDS ANO COMMISSIONS Page 87 

trappers organization on some of the issues and concerns that 
you have in terms of dealing with workers' compensation and 
then we may have some questions. 

MR. WRIGHT: First of all we have a thing from the Workers' 
Compensation Board here and it says income of at least 
$10,000 from hunting and trapping activities. We have a lot 
of people who go into the bush and hunt and trap and want 
to live out there. but at the rate of fur prices now there was a 
concern that maybe people do not make that much money. 
So that has to be the minimum they make. So we thought if 
that could be lowered or some of the things could be 
changed. 

A lot of the people who go out in the bush or like to go out 
in the bush, maybe they are not going out there to make big 
money but they would like to live off the land again. As I was 
talking with some of them, that is a pretty high number. If you 
do not make that, you do not get any compensation. So we 
thought if that could be lowered or the other option that they 
have here is say if somebody does not meet the criteria for 
this $10,000, they could get their own, but it would be four 
dollars per hundred and again it is a pretty high coverage. 
Even in the work force there is a lot of places where you pay 
only $3.50 per hundred and stuff like thal 

I do not really know what the answer is, but some of these 
things could be lowered and maybe if it could be hunting and 
trapping in the winter. a few of those months they could be 
covered and maybe when they are fishing in the summertime 
they would not have to be covered. But I think something 
needs to be changed. 

I do not think anybody is going out in the bush to plan on 
having an accident But according to the criteria now, 
preceding the accident you have to have been trapping 12 
months of the year. In this day and age there are a lot of 
people who work a little bit in town. get a little unemployment 
insurance. live off the land a little bit really it kind of fouls 
them up. In a lot of cases you cannot just do one thing. So 
maybe you could think about that. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Tommy What the 
committee is doing is hearing presentations from a wide 
variety of groups. organized labour. big business. small 
business. people who have been injured and we are hearing 
now from hunters and trappers organization. We will be 
taking recommendations and points of view that you present 
and take them into consideration and will be making 
recommendations to the Minister responsible for Workers· 
Compensation. 

There are sections in the act that deal with hunters and 
trappers, so we want to hear recommendations or your 
viewpoints. Do you know how many people up in the 0.ha 
have benefitted from this coverage? 

MR. WRIGHT: As tar as I know in the last frve years there 
has been one or two in Arctic Red - I think one guy lost his 
leg and he got compensated for that. I think there wu 
another one for something else. Then there wa1 one in the 
Oeha here that had an accident and wu covered and you 
know that really meant a lot for them. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): So you agree there should be 
coverage. 

MR. WRIGHT: I do not know how but say if a guy 1s 
trapping and he does have an accident where it would stop 
him from trapping the rest of the year. It is really a good 
thing that he has some way of continued income And maybe 
another thought would be that say .he broke a leg or 
something that stopped him from getting any income. maybe 

you could have to coverage just for something like that. 
Suppose it was just some little thing that stopped him from 
working for a month or less, maybe we could say we are not 
going to carry that. But have some kind of a thing that if it 
stopped him from working altogether, say for six months or a 
year or whatever, maybe that could be covered. Just an idea. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): James. 

MR. ARVALUK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think I 
understand your point of view that the Workers' Compensation 
coverage criteria does not really represent today's situation. 
To live off the land traditionally 12 months of the year trapping 
and hunting and earning more than $10,000 is kind of 
impossible for a couple of reasons. No matter how far away 
you are from the nearest community with the modern 
equipment like outboard motors and skidoos and speedboats, 
you are now today competing with other part-time hunters who 
are weekend hunters and they get into your camp every 
weekend - you cannot really compete using traditional 
methods of hunting and trapping. 

For example in our case we could only use kayak or dog 
team only because you are competing with the nearest 
community. So you will need modern equipment to be a full­
time hunter. Therefore you must work part-time in order to get 
your modern equipment that the fur prices is not paying for 
any more. 

Are you suggesting then that the optional coverage for hunters 
and trappers of which is four dollars for every $100 should be 
eliminated or at least reduced and have the coverage for 
hunters who are not necessarily full-time hunters but they are 
not working at the time. In other words, some construction 
labourers work in the summertime and they hunt for the rest 
of the winter. But they are not hunting and trapping 12 
months of the year. You cannot anyway in reality. What are 
you suggesting on behalf of the hunters on this rate of the 
WCB coverage program, especially subclause 18? 

MR. WRIGHT: I do not really know. I do not think we 
really need to worry about the part-time hunter because if he 
has a job and is doing this thing he can afford this coverage. 
But it is the ones that want to live off the land and stay out 
there, but maybe he is not going to make $10,000. He is 
going to miss that one and he cannot afford the other one, so 
he is going to miss the whole boat. So if there was some 
kind of thing where he was covered six months of the year. in 
the trapping season. Again this is just a suggestion. There 
are so many different situations. Maybe this $10,000 could be 
lowered and this would help this person who did want to live 
off the land and stay out there. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): James. 

MR. ARVALUK: You are suggesting that something must be 
done more relevant to the hunters' lifestyle. Weekend hunters 
are full-time workers, but I am talking about those trying to live 
off the land but cannot really afford to live off the land all year 
long because they need some other modern equipment in 
order to compete with the weekend hunters. But something 
has to be changed within the WCB. 

MR. WRIGHT: Yes, maybe this will take a lot of thinking on 
whoever is doing the study, but it is something to look at. 
There might be a better way. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Brian Lewis. 

MR. LEWIS: I do not know much about hunting and trapping 
but this whole business of insurance interests me quite a bit. 
It seems to me that the hunting and trapping group do not fit 
in really well with the model that we have of workers' 
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compensation, because it wu set up to deal with some other 
kind of problems where the employers and the employee• did 
not want to be fighting each other in court all the time over 
big aettlementa. What about a plan which is separate from 
what they have right now in WCB? Where there ia a separate 
insurance program Mt up through the hunter• and trappers or 
through one of the departments of government. which would 
look at all theae people who are sett-employed and try to look 
after themselves in various pursuits. And then people could 
be compensated on the basis of real loaaea. 

Because the problem that I aee with the group is that they do 
not frt into any kind of salary level. Everybody sort of 
operates on a different buis. I was wondering if there was a 
possibility of having a separate sort of insurance plan funded 
by the government so that anyone who does have a loss can 
make a claim in a different way from what is done right now? 

MR. WR_IGHT: Okay, what about this one? I talked to the 
guy who is head of the tourists operators and the outfitters 
and fishing camps, all these people - I do not know if this 
hu happened all over, but here in lnuvik if anybody has a 
fishing lodge or does something with tourists or an outfitter or 
stuff like that, they pay $50 a year and they get a million 
dollar coverage. It is kind of PL and PD (aic). Maybe we can 
frt under that somehow or that kind of a framework. 

CHAl~MAN (Mr. Koe): Brian. 

MR. LEWIS: That would be a aeparate Insurance policy 
which again haa to do with employers and employees and 
there aeema to me we have a large group of people who do 
not work for anybody. They work for themaelvea buically. 
The problem that I see la there is auch a big range of level• 
at which people can aupport themaelvN in different waya and 
maybe we have to develop a more flexible plan so that people 
can get coverage, which Is not going to be tied down with the 
rigid kind of ayatem we have under WCB. It ia a real problem 
becauae they do not seem to know where to frt everything in 
there. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Okay Tommy, on behalf of the 
committee I thank you for being available. I know we gave 
you fairly ahort notice, but we wanted to hear from some 
community repreaentativea and we will take into conaideration 
the points that you raised in our deliberation, and hopefully 
come up with aome solutions to thia iaaue. 

MR. WRIGHT: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): It ia lunchtime. We are acheduled to 
come back at 1 :30. We have two other groups that have 
indicated they want to make preaentationa and we are g01ng 
to try to fit them in. Sam Gargan ia one cl them with some 
huntera and trapper1 from Providence and they wiU be ,n town 
ahortly after lunch. We alao have the MiniateJ echeduled tor 
2:30. I do not propoee that we meet tonight. We WIii take the 
evening off. We will rec.M until 1 :30. 

-SHORT RECESS 

It ia 1:30. I would like to reaume thia .... ion cl the atanding 
committee on agenciea, boarda and commiaaions. Right now 
we have acheduled repreaentativH from the NoMweat 
Terrltoriea Federation of Labour. Mr. Jim Evoy, who II the 
president. ia here. Jim, introduce your cohort and pleaae 
proceed. 

MR. EVOY: Thank you Mr. Chairman To my right II Alex 
Lacroix. He is the chairman of our occupational safety 
committee at the Federation of Labour, and should I require 
assistance of a technical nature or documents that I cannot 
locate in my preaentation in answer to your que1t1on1, I will 

call upon brother Lacrobc to usist me. ff I might proceed. 

Pr ... n1atlon By Mr. Jim Evoy, NWT Federation. Of Labour 

Certainly thia la a timely review, and I am sure I am not the 
first person to say it, but with the tragedy in Pictou (sic) 
County, I guess a timely subject to be looking at in the 
Northwest Territories ia workers' compensation; and the 
aftereffects, I guess poor workplace safety la really where the 
WCB comes into play. I believe they found some more 
miners at the Plymouth, Nova Scovia mine, and unfortunately 
when they found them they were deceased. So on that 
sombre tone, we will proceed with what we hope is a v•ry 
brief presentation and some question, on the part of the 
committee, and we will leave you to your deliberation,. 

Briefly, the Federation of Labour represents over 9000 
organized workers In the Northwest Territories. In cue you 
did not know it, the Territories has one of the highest 
proportions of unionized workers in North America. We have 
members in all communitiea. Some work, for example, for the 
forestry companies in Providence; soma are miners in 
Yellowknife; some flX houses in lnuvik; and some simply help 
load the barges in Hay River. But much to some people's 
diapleuure, there are union members in all Northwest 
Territories communities; and to repeat. we have one of the 
highest percentage• in thi. country of unionized work force in 
the North. 

The federation helps keep the CBC on the air; it handln your 
mail; we install your phonea; when you go to a government 
office, there are union membera there, federally, territorially, 
municipally, the nurse, the carpenter, the clerk, the secretary, 
the cook and the janitor. I guns I could tum that into a song 
If given enough time to develop It. They are aboriginal, non­
aboriginal, and u I said, they are in every community. 

The Federation of Labour usists all workers, whether they are 
organized, unionized, non-unionized, aboriginal, Inuit, Dena, 
non-native. The biggest portion of our work in our office is 
assisting the drop-in traffic that either phone in or drop by our 
office with some of their problems. To aort of epitomize that 
philosophy that we have, we also hold a yearly barbecue for 
the unemployed In Yellowknife. We also work closely when 
familiea are bereaved by workplace deaths. We have gone as 
far u intervening and requesting coroner's inquests, and 
working directly with the family. 

Our main job is to be a political voice of all the union, in the 
Northwest Territories. We fight for better laws to protect 
workera in all the communities. We are the political voice of 
the uniona. 

Overall, the Territories' workplace laws are a national 
embarrassment. The government hu created the most 
abysmal workplace laws in the country, bar none, and lack of 
enforcement only makes the altuation deteriorate further. And 
on the raging debate that aome of your committee members 
might have u to who should enforce the aafety laws, quite 
frankly I do not give a damn. But somebody better start 
enforcing them. So take that to your deliberationa. The NWT 
haa a working fatality rate four times the national average. 
Meybe I could stop there. 

I think further on, aome of the people, apparently, you have 
questioned was to where aafety should evolve to, who should 
look after safety, should WCB look after aafety, I think over a 
five year period that astuteness and intelligence and politicians 
with foresight could prepare a five year plan where_ the safety 
inapectoratea evolve into the aame ministry and work much 
more closely with the WCB; and the five years is used, that 
the one million dollars - just for a figure I pluck out of the air 
- that It costs to administer Safety- and Public Services now, 
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that in year five it is one million and in year four it is 800,000, 
and that the Government of the Northwest Territories decrease 
its financial commitment to the enforcement arms of Safety 
and Public Services. And after five years, in essence, by the 
two departments working closely together, the diminishment of 
accidents and the decrease in costs of those accidents should 
level out If it does not level out, then I guess the assessment 
rates would have to be increase to employers. But. done on 
a five year scale, it would allow that transition not to be an 
immediate dumping of a heavy burden on territorial 
employers. Just a suggestion. 

Backing up a bit, one of our major missions is to pave the 
way for people in the communities to understand labour better 
and the workplace better, and to be able to realize their 
potential in the wage economy. Another interesting topic that 
I understand your committee has been deliberating on is 
whether unionized workers, or people that are in unions, 
should represent non-union workers. I wonder, did you ask 
the Chamber of Commerce? Did you differentiate between 
which members belong to the Chamber of Commerce in the 
business community and which do not? Because I 
understand that almost two thirds of northern businesses do 
not belong to the chamber. So maybe we should have 
representation for them. But I notice you called upon the 
Chamber of Commerce here. 

I get a .little sick and tired when I hear businessmen saying 
that the non-union worker is not getting a fair shake. We have 
got to get out there and help represent the non-union worker. 
Well, If the little business guy would quit screwing him, he 
would not need no help. Even in Alberta. the home of the 
Aryan Nation and the Ku Klux Klan, and Jim Keegstra, their 
board is all union reps. So this new and innovative 1cheme 
that some people want to perpetrate on northern people by 
having so-called non-union workers representing workers, to 
me is a crock. It is just another way of management 
weakening labour's position or weakening the position of 
workers. And I cannot say that too strongly. 

In the 1986 and 1989 ministerial reviews of the Workers' 
Compensation Board, both well-intentioned, well-heeled panels 
recommended equal representation of employers and workers. 
And there was no differentiation and specifics about the poor. 
downtrodden, non-union worker. We are all down-trodden. 
And I guess on that. you know, tome of the other questions, 
and maybe I should not react to qu91tion1 that were uked of 
other groups. 

Some of the other things the Federation of Labour dON is 
heavily involved in the coalition against pulp mill pollution. 
That is not a union/non-union issue When I attended the 
Dene Assembly last summer at the invite of the national chief, 
that was not a union or non-union iuue That was flying the 
flag with the interests of all workers at heart. When we went 
in front of Jim Bourque's commission to add our views to 
what a constitution for Denendeh snould be. nobody uked u1 
if we were un,on or non-union. They knew that we 
represented the voice of working people in the Northwest 
Territories. That is why we went there: and that 11 why we 
are here today. 

Coming from all that. I would just like to add that ii i1 our very 
strong view that workers' representativN on any newly­
composed Workers' Compensation Board 1hould be from the 
organized sector, and they have to have equal seats. That 
does not preclude the fact that workera from the small 
communities, who may not be in union,, 1hould not have 
some input and should not have tome direct involvement 
We could do many things. We could get committees with 
regional tribal councils: we could do all kinda of things where 
the labour reps and the board would have to work closely 
with the people in the communities. Or we could delve into 

our union ranks and find Dene, Inuit, lnuvialuit people within 
the union ranks. We have, as union people, a legal obligation 
to represent people that come forward with their problems. If 
someone comes to me with a problem, and I do not represent 
them properly under the Canada Labour Code, I can be 
charged, taken to court, fined, or thrown in jail. So I do have 
a legal obligation to try, at least, to represent workers. 

I apologize for the tone, maybe, of that part, but I become 
somewhat concerned when I hear businessmen and 
businessmen-turned-ML.A concerned about workers. It just 
bothers me. I am concerned about workers. Let the business 
guys be concerned about business. Basically, the present 
structure of seven people on the Workers' Compensation 
Board, with three and three - it is at times too big and at 
times too small, but it works. The old system, with 11 and 12 
on there - , if we had had a few more we could have had a 
convention. As far as appointments go, I think they should be 
staggered: one business person at two years; another one at 
three years, or something like that. I challenge your thought 
processes and say that maybe a way to pick the chairperson 
is that the incumbent board of three and three should be 
assigned the task to pick a chairperson. If you pick 
competent people to a newly structured board; if you picked 
three and three, or whatever you come up with; if your 
selection processes were carefully done, perhaps you could 
do much like BC just recently went through. They picked 
their own chairperson. Granted, they did not do it in one day, 
but they did it; and I think they did a good job. 

Accountability, I noticed in the initial letter from the Legislative 
Assembly, they want the people to speak to you a little bit 
about accountability. My understanding of workers' comp has 
always been very clear, that the system is accountable to the 
employers and the employees; and that the reporting system 
Is through the Minister to the Legislative Assembly. I do not 
have a great problem with that. If some people do, well that 
is the way I understand it. The employers put the money into 
it and the workers take it out, and it is a historic relationship; 
and I am sure you have heard people more eloquent than I 
speak to those issues. But it is like apple pie. That is the 
way it is. And I do not see any other jurisdictions in Canada 
trying to get out of that or get away from it. It must remain 
independent. But it must understand at all times that it is 
accountable. Independence does not mean that it can start 
granting divorces. It has to be accountable. 

The rates, just passing through some of these things, I 
understand a formula is in place, and it seems to be working. 
I think if government - government~ across Canada, from time 
to time; I cannot recall when this one did it, but maybe they 
did not - they like to tinker with rates; they like to freeze 
rates; they like to selectively influence rates. I think if a rating 
system is in place that has been brought together by business 
and labour with actuarial and consulting advice, and if that 
rate system says it Is fair and just and it will pay the bills, I 
think it has to stay like that. It should be closely scrutinized. 
But it should not be tinkered with. 

The YMIR, years maximum insurable remuneration, and the 
SPI, I am sure by now everyone knows what those acronyms 
mean, and I am sure you know where we stand on them. 
One thing that this committee could do; it is all ML.As on that 
committee; I sincerely call upon your help when these things 
come in front of the Legislative Assembly. But when you are 
looking at helping boards and agencies and commissions, 
well you can certainly help workers in the Northwest Territories 
by voting in favour of the amendments that will come through 
to approve - the insurable remuneration levels .and the 
supplementary pension increases; and furthermore, at some 
point in time, have them enshrined in legislation so that it 
does not become political. I think the supplementary pension 
increases should be geared to the consumer price index, or 
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whatever, and It ahould be done automatically. 

Lump auma. The minilterial review panel In 1989 laid to the 
WCB, "You people had better g.t control of th ... lump aum,. 
You had better quit handing them out juat left and right.' I, 
for one, and I have people within the labour community that 
differ with me quite atrongly, but I have got the awitch here 
today. and I, for one, do not believe in workera getting large 
lump auma of dollara. Call me biaaed If you like, but It la a 
penaion acheme. You cannot go to the unemployment 
inaurance in advance and draw your UI, and you cannot draw 
your Canada Penaion In advance. 

I can give you an example, and I will not uae any narn", but 
pleue do not doubt me when I tell you that thil wu a 56 
year old worker. He worked In a mine. He had a lump aum 
three tlm... And It came to a total of 26 per cent And he 
had cuhed them all In. He did not do that atereotypical thing 
that people accuae workera of doing, blowing the money in 
doing all thia. He spend the money over a period of time, 
and what we had eventually wu a 56 year old worker that 
could no longer work in the minn and had no education, 
becauae 26 per cent diaabiiity to him wu very debilitating. 

I know that many people diNgrN with me on lump aum,, but 
look at what compenaation ii. I mean, N we are going to do 
lump auma, l9t ua g9t right down and dirty. Wt-ff have a 
compenaation ayatem? N you hurt youraeN, you juat g.t a 
cuh payment. That ii not what the &y9tem ii there for. TM 
ayatem ia there to protect earning• and to give you a pension 
over a period of time. But you will hear different vlewa on 
that. And different provlncea will give you different pollcl• 
that thay have In place. 

I would like to go back to laf.ty education and enforcement 
one more time. Again, there ... ma to be a bit of a contnt 
betwNn, maybe. a couple of government departmenta or 
quui-govemment departmenta. Should I be a government 
Leader for a day. heaven forbid, I think I would call the two 
departmenta in and· 1ay, '09t back to me in a WNk and teU 
me how you are going to do thia.' If It wu not done. tti.n I 
would do aomething about It. Workera have to lit back while 
all theM conteltl go on or the political will ii there to do the 
enforcement. Talk about enforcement. You wiU hear 
eloquence on both· aidn about enforcement Until the aix1h 
floor 1ay1. the mnaage gon down. 'Start enforcing.' I ia not 
going to be done. 

You know, we go down·1outh to bulinn1 conferenc ... ~Come 
on up. We are iook.ing for bu,,n ... • What we should tell 
them i1. "We are open for bu,,n.... but we are gc»ng to 
protect our workera. We are going to ptotac1 our 
communitin. We are going to protect our people We heve 
got some fair but tough raw. in the North that 1ay you heve 
got to work under thaM conditiona • Muctl like Alaaka. 
Aluka laid. 'Come on up. We are open for bulcneu • But 
they aaid. "We tlave got aome tougtl rulN about tlow you do 
bu,,n ... here. We want our people to benefit. not J"9I 1ha 
corporationa. • 

The inveatmenta. I have heard that that quenon tlaa ar,een 
from time to time. I do believe there ii an invet1mant policy 
in place. It ii certainly your prerogative, I guau. and I do no1 
know how broad your mandate i1. to acrutinize that investment 
pohcy There are investment managera. hired tor their abil11Y 
and prow"' to handie other people'• money I believe aome 
ot them handle 1!5 to 20 billion in other people's penaion 
tund1. It might 1Hm som-hat of an evuive atance to take. 
but there i1 the policy; there are the managers n the 1Quare 
peg fltl into the square hola. that 11 it. 

I have a request. that dunng your deliberation,. your reports. 
even 1ometime1 during the mad,a coverage that we 

differentiate when crltlclama are made of the board or the 
lnatltutlon. I think It la Important that the general public know 
that we are not f9flectlng on the workera at the Workera' 
Compenaatlon Board. ThOM people work In very atreaaful 
jobl. Thay deal with Injury and carnage and death every day 
In their work In the workplace. Thay are paid the ume acale 
u the reat of the govemment employNa, and I think they 
work under, In meet caaee, much more atr...tul conditions 
than moet government employM1, Thay are union membera, 
too. 

What I ... it that what happen, in theae 11tuation1 i1 that 
while WCB makN the front page, and while critlclama are 
levied, acme juatlfled and acme not. that It becomn hard on 
the ltldl. Th9Y really atart to queation their abllitln, their 

- aupport, and their commitment. So I think that we have to 
make It clear that It II too bad we could not have two 
different. dlatlnctlve namae and to who we are really looking 
at here. I think the employNI have to be commended for the 
job thay do with the numbera they have. 

Al far u people who llt on the board or are in Mnior 
managerial po1ltlon1, you live by the aword; you die by the 
aword. They are big boya. Thay will take their lumpa. But 
pie ... kNp the ataff of the WCB in mind when you write your 
report. I think N you really took a look at It, that they do a 
tremendoua job. 

I could go on and on and on, but I would probably juat get 
myaeN In a bit of trouble. I would Ilk• to make a atrong 
recommendation that one of the recommendation. that com" 
out of your dellberatlone would be a bipartite review of the 
legillatlon that we preeently work under, live under, and you 
people have to exlat under. Two minieterial review panel, in 
a row, 1988 and 1888, recommended the aame. And nothing 
hu bNn done with ll I mean, we are working with an 
archaic piece of leglalatlon here. And really, the whole 
admlniltration of the ac:t II being run more on pollcln than it 
it on the act. You take a MCtlon of th4 act that does not 
really addrNI eomethlng clearly, and then It 11 policiea that 
aort of, I think, tell people how to deal with the act. 

So If you really want to make what I believe would be a 
wOtthwhile recommendation, It would be to do jult that. And 
give them a broad mandate. Do not conatrain them with any 
agendu. Juat give them a mandate to go out there. The 
cloaea review that would come to that, in my mind, would be 
the '86 review, which I believe had a much broader mandate 
than the '89 review. But aomewhere in the term, of reference 
It haa got to be a review that does something. It cannot just 
be put in the traah heap. 

Another thing that hurta progreu in the way of legi1iation 
advancement with WCB. with the act and the progre11ion ot 
It • that It ... m, to be a miniaterial hot potato. It i1 flipped 
around a lol It ... m, to be looked at aa aecondary. and it 
ii flipped up all over the place. And It 11 not It i1 very. very 
1mpo,1ant. And when one Minilter geta their te.th into it. they 
lhould leave It with that Minlater. Hopefully, pick that Miniater, 
get that commitment. and leave it there. I know the political 
realibea of It maybe would not allow that to happen, but that 
• what should happen. It should be ... igned to a Minister, 
and hopefully that Miniater can stay with it 

That i1 about all I have to say. I guess I leave myself to 
questions. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Jim. Just a couple of 
points, I gueu, to react to some of your statements. Our 
mandate i1 fairly broad. I realize this i• new ground, new 
territory we are stepping Into, but we have stepped into it with 
both feet. and I know I am thoroughly enjoying this wHk 10 
far. Al far u what the pren NYI, they are public meetings. 
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We kJ)ow how the press works, I think, and we cannot dictate 
to them what they print or put on the radio. 

I think we all individually share your concerns regarding staff 
of Workers' Compensation. but we have to realize they are 
also part of the system and part of the whole environment that 
we are dealing with. So we do not want to differentiate 
between one individual or one clerical position or a board 
position. I tf:'link they are all part of this process, so we deal 
with them collectively. But we realize that individually they 
work and play and live with us, so we respect that 

The floor is open to Members. Mr. Lewis. 

Statistics On NWT Accidents 

MR. LEWIS: Just information, Mr. Chairman. We have a 
very, very high unemployment rate in the Territories, and we 
do not really have a bouncing economy. I was interested in 
the statistics that despite all that, the people that do work, we 
have four times the national level of accidents. I would be 
interested to know if there is a reference for that. What is the 
origin of that figure? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. EVOY: I believe, Mr. Lewis, that figure referred to 
fatalities; and recession or not, the whole country is in a 
recession. We do have accident numbers that denote a 
couple of things. Number one, we are spread out. We are 
far apart, and we do not have as many inspectors, probably 
as we need. We do have a lot of accidents in the North, just 
by virtue of the distances and the conditions we work under. 
Combine that with not a hell of a lot of enforcement. and your 
numbers are going to go up. 

I do not know if it has been pointed out to the committee yet 
or not, but I believe the latest statistic was the 67 per cent of 
our injured workers - their home bue is southern Canada. 
Recession or not. there are a lot of projects that are going to 
go through this summer. And unfortunately, a lot of them are 
going to be manned by southern workers, and no matter what 
statistics you read in the paper or the government releases, 
my indicator of where the work force is com•ng from II where 
the claimants on WCB are com,ng from. Sixty-aeven per cent 
of inJured workers are from southern Canada. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr Lewis. 

MR. LEWIS: Yes.. I just am interested in the ong,n of the 
figure. though. Is this stats that are kept by our own 
government, this figure? Or is rt a figure that II kept by the 
industry? Or is it a Stats Canada figure? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): J•m 

MR. EVOY: Stats Canada 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe) : James 

MR. ARVALUK: Thank you. Mr. Chairman Throughout this 
presentation, especially on the Un,on of Northern Work11r1. I 
do not know how that ,s different from the Federal.Ion of 
Labour. Maybe it is an umbrella organu:atIon and ,s reckoned 
as such. But the presentations of those two are not really 
different. One page three of the previous presentation. "The 
union favours the trend over the last thrH year. or 10 to have 
a smaller board. The present size of seven members 11 

agreeable - as long as hatf are representatives of organized 
labour and hatf are management. with a neutral cha,r • 

have been going through the act. the Workers' 
Compensation Act. There is nothing ,n there promoting that 

part of the board will consist of organized labour and part of 
the board would consist of management of the l(lbour force. 
For example, the deputy ministers or managers of government 
or the companies. I think the whole spirit of the Workers' 
Compensation, as the speaker said, was to give the managers, 
to relax them a little bit so that they will not be sued by the 
workers; and the workers, in turn, will be assured, through this 
Workers' Compensation Act. Where do we get this whole idea 
of that they should be the managers and the organized 
workers rather than workers of the Northwest Territories 
regardless of whether they are union members or not? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. EVOY: Well, I thought I was quite clear on that. For 
example, in my situation, when I speak on behalf of workers. 
I was elected at a convention by workers from every 
community in the Northwest Territories, They were not only 
from Yellowknife. They were from Simpson; they were from 
Arviat; they were from Gjoa Haven. I guess, perhaps the 
committee might want to get - my opinion has been stated. 
I believe the board should be half organized workers because 
we have a legal responsibility to represent all workers. But I 

think that the board should call upon and look at Canadian 
practice. I mean, this is not some nefarious scheme on the 
part of these big unions to crap all over the guys in the 
communities. It is our job to look after everybody, and I will 
tell you right now, people that come to my office during the 
day, many people from the communities, they come to us for 
help because we are experienced in this field and we have 
spent a lot of time in the field representing workers. And we 
know how to get around the bureaucracy. We know how to 
cut through things to achieve things. It is as simple as that. 
tf you want a doctor, you go get somebody out of the medical 
association. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): James. 

MR. ARVALUK: Thank you Mr. Chairman. I guess we are 
not too different from each other. I am, too, not from the 
organized labour, but as an MLA from Aivilik, I really strongly 
believe that we should build a road from Coral Harbour to 
Tikiraq Bay to start the tourism business there. We would 
also like to ship ... (inaudible) ... which everybody wants in the 
South and apparently it is better than Minneapolis. We need 
156 new houses in Coral Harbour. We need a new school 
and five more teachers, according to government guidelines, 
ratio between teachers and students. But as a responsible 
citizen of the NWT I cannot do that. I have to look at all other 
areas of the NI/Vf, all other communities. They also need the 
same or even maybe more requirements of these such 
services. That is why I stated that even though as a union 
representative, it is very important, I believe that, but because 
there is also other workers who are not union members I think 
that it would be, I do not know, respectful that this issue of 
union or non-union is not mentioned when you are dealing 
wrth the workers' compensation. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Any comment, Jim? 

MR. EVOY: No. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

Unions' Position On Hunters And Trappers 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, again, 
Jim Evoy, for your presentation. I understand that the NWT 
Federation of Labour represents all the unions in the North. 
You are the political voice of all the unions. There is one 
thing in this whole discussion on WCB that the unions have 
never mentioned on the hunters and trappers section of the 
WCB. I know that the organized employers would like to see 
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it removed out of WCB because they figure that they are not 
contributing to it, so they should not be involved in it. I would 
like to know the unions' position on hunters and trappers. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. EVOY: Thank you. I can say, and look you in the eye, 
Jim, that wearing a different hat when the issue arose, I voted 
against the diminishing of the coverage to the hunters and 
trappers in the Northwest Territories. I was on the losing side 
of that vote, but I did vote in support of the existing YMIR and 
the existing coverage that the hunters and trappers throughout 
all the communities had, and I fought strenuously to stop the 
diminishing of that. It just was not something that got 
anybody's attention when it happened, and I am supportive, 
and labour is supportive, of going back to the coverage that 
hunters and trappers had previous to that last change. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. ANTOINE: I may suggest that Sam Gargan is going to 
be coming up here later on today, and as far as I am 
concerned, compared to me he is an expert in the WCB area, 
especially hunters and trappers, so it will be good to listen to 
what he has to say. 

Safety 

Just one thought I have is that the workers give up their right 
to sue the employers in exchange for WCB, and when it 
comes to safety, I am wondering if the employers also feel 
that WCB is taking care of the injured worker so they do not 
put that much effort into the safety of the workers, because 
they are off the hook because the workers give up their right 
to sue them if they get hurt. I was wondering if you have any 
thoughts on that 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. EVOY: I think the long-term employers in the Northwest 
Territories, the major companies, would not think In that 
manner. I think they know it is a long-term commitment and 
that inevitably they are going to have to pay thna bills. 
Unfortunately, there are some employers that fHI Wor11era' 
Compensation is just another coat of doing buain.... n la a 
license to kill and to hurt. I think where real dangers 
sometimes arise, is when southern conaortiuma. entrepreneurs, 
or joint ventures come into the North to do a major project 
We could be saddled with some horrendous bills after that 
joint venture partnerships disbanded, because even after 
Norman Wells - and I have pulled out some atata - after the 
Norman Wells pipeline there are some contractors that are not 
even in business any more, and they have left guy, ,n the 
communities where. a bad knee is not too bad to me although 
it is bothersome and painful and I do not want one I know 
kids that cannot even go out and trap arry more. bi.rt they are 
only getting a five or six per cent pension. 

So the aftermath of mega projects is where I would have to 
agree with you, that you can come in and do it and get out. 
and the real WCB coats will not start to show up for thrH, 
four or frve years, and the other employers In that industry 
group are going to be saddled with those coats. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Antoine. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you. You mentioned something in 
your presentation that safety has to be done. and you said 
something like, somebody should do it. H the strengthening 
of the safety area of the whole industry la done properly, I do 
not think there will be as many injured workers as we have 
today . Can you elaborate on that? Do you have any 
thoughts on that? I know you said somebody 1hould do it, 

you do not care who does it, but somebody should do it. 
Can you elaborate on that? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. EVOY: Well, I think the two are interconnected or 
interrelated. H we do not arrest the accidents, then the WCB 
rates are just going to keep going up. We are in tough 
budgetary times. I understand that in some of the 
departments responsible for enforcement they are facing 
things like cuts to PYs and cuts to budgets, and cuts to things 
like that I think this is a thing that is driven from the top 
down, and I do not necessarily usually agree with things like 
that, but I think this is something cabinet has got to start with; 
the actual Executive Council has got to start it. H the MLAs 
are the ones that precipitate it or prompt it, that is great But 
there is a message that is getting out from the Northwest 
Territories right now, that we are sort of an Alabama or a 
Louisiana. You can do whatever you want, whether or not 
you pay overtime, vacation pay, bang people up, we have a 
pretty cavalier attitude when it comes to our own people, and 
if we are going to promote northern employment, I am afraid 
people in the communities are a little bit too smart to be 
promoted into that type of employment. They are not going 
to go out there to be treated like a piece of shit arid run over 
by a machine. 

We have got to protect our own people, and I believe one 
place it has got to start - we all have a role to play in this, 
labour has a role, business has a role, but I think government 
has a major role. It is a philosophical decision as to whether 
or not we are going to start looking after people in the 
workplace. Who really benefits from lax labour laws? 

Look at the embarrassment when we hit the Globe and Mail 
or we hit the Journal, another mine tragedy in the North. I 
mean, we went through one just a little while ago where the 
experts said it was a freak accident A freak accident be 
damned. Twenty-six recommendations from the coroner's jury 
said it was no freak accident. We have. got to overcome that, 
and by overcoming that and getting that message out that we 
are very serious about this issue, WCB hopefully can benefit 
from that 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: I think it has been recognized, if I can just 
summarize for a couple of minutes, that in the three or four 
presentations of what you would define as 'the other side of 
the equation,• there was no question there was a 
preoccupation with the funds, the make-up of the board, the 
chair, et certa, and it seemed, to me at least, somewhat 
embarrassin_g. We had very little reference to the injured 
workers. We had a good presentation yesterday by Dale 
Robinson from the disabled group, that looked at injured 
workers, and of course the unions today are doing exactly 
the same thing. I think we all recognize there is a need for 
increased safety. 

My concern would be, and I am wondering where you are 
coming from, is with respect to the fiscal responsibility of the 
Department of Safety. There is no question, if you look at the 
thing in the total equation, that If you get better safety you get 
lower claims, your rates and assessments should decrease, 
and it is in industry's as well as the unionized workers' 
interests to do that. But at the current time, all these 
inspectors, whether elevator inspectors or fire inspectors, are 
all funded through the operations and maintenance budget of 
GNWT, and I am wondering how you would see it working. 
Would you see it as a separate department under the 
auspices of the board, or what, and how is it going to get 
paid? 
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CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

Penalty Assessment Program 

MR. EVOY: Let me make a recommendation, and please try 
to follow through with it. not because it is coming from my 
lips, but that it has come from lips much more intelligent and 
articulate than mine before, and it works. Please look to 
British Columbia to the penalty assessment program they have 
there. That just takes the enforcement arm of the inspectorate 
and puts it with the WCB. It is not a judicial system where 
you have to lay charges, and it goes through courts and 
people can get up and say, 'Yes, he had his hard hat on. 
No, he did not.' The penalty assessment system in British 
Columbia works and it works well, and workers and employers 
alike both support it. It quite simply works like this. The 
penalty assessment officer or safety officer sees an infraction. 
He immediately writes it up, and writes up the penalty 
assessment. Instead of a fine in court, it is an additional 
assessment against the employer. All the names of the 
employers are published. They do have the right to appeal. 
It works. It is quick. 

You can get hold of their division there and I am sure they 
can send you information. What it does is, it takes it out of 
the court system and it is tied in with assessments on WCB. 
If you want to be a bad actor - and some of the fines are 
severe, they are very severe - that is one way I see around 
this dilemma. It is like the accusation we make when we are 
in the big cities. You know, you see the cop filling up his 
speeding book at the end of the week because he has got to 
get paid. Well, I think the penalty assessment division would 
pay for itself pretty soon. They have no lack of places to go 
up here. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: That is one side of the equation, J•m. What 
about the fact that what we need is, and we have said many 
t•mes, even when I was on the board, a more financ ially 
funded educational program, and I do not sav that in a 
flippant sense. We have got to get out there and educate 
people. You have to educate employers. but you also have 
to educate employees too. I did not see anything - yea, let 
us get some more inspectors in there, more policemen in 

there. and let us collect some fines. and that is probably 
leg itimate. But. you know, you have got to run something 
else parallel rather than just beating on people Do you see 
the need for a more aggressive educational program on safety 
on the part of the Workers· Compensation Board" Do you see 
a need for that? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe) : Jim. 

MR. EVOY: Yes . I do. I would like to say something before 
that. I am sure we all know that the "fety and respons,b1hty 
in the workplace 1s the employers' respons1b1l,ty When I go 
into your home. you are responsible for my safety When I go 
onto your worksrte. you are responsible for my safety Now, 
if you have a group of workers that are working under 
ignorance and it is an unsafe condrtlon, II ,s not the 
responsibility of the Government of the Northwest T errrtones 
nor the Workers' Compensation Board to go and hold a 
course. It is the responsibility of the employer I am strongly 
supportive or education for employers, workers, and let us get 
into the schools and go to regional council meetings. and let 
us get this th ing going. 

But what I would hate to see it turn into is that all of a sudden 
employers and employees start using safety education as an 
excuse. There is an onus on people when you work and 
when you employ people, to work safely and to run a safe 
shop. It is not up to the Government of the Northwest 

Territories to be running around spending millions of dollars 
teaching people how to work safely, and I am speaking mostly 
in the context of employers. I think we should be into the 
Arctic Colleges; we should be into the high schools; we 
should be doing all those kinds of things. 

But I go back to that original point - I think this all should 
come from the sixth floor. A major decision has to be brought 
down that we have a serious commitment to this, and part of 
it is education. Part of that equation is education. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: I know that safety is a long outstanding issue in 
the WCB, away back from the Berezowski days. Just for 
clarification, you said that the fatalities were four times the 
national average, Jim. Have you got it broken down by 
industry? Is it the mining industry? Is it the construction 
industry, or is it just fatalities, period? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR. EVOY: I do not have them here in front of me. We have 
broken it down, and I am sure that WCB could as.sist you in 
breaking them out. I may use 'fatalities' at times in a rhetoric 
sense. Fatalities are only a symptom of the overall disease. 
In some years you will get eight; in some years you will get 
three; in some years you will get ten. You have got to look 
at the other things. You have got to look at statistics 
contained in the WCB's annual report, all kinds of niggling 
little injuries; all kinds of eye injuries. We should not be 
getting a whole bunch of eye injuries, because there are all 
kinds of proprietors and entrepreneurs out there that sell 
safety glasses. You can tell by the type of injuries that there 
is really no advancement in the areas of safety and the 
restraint of accidents in those areas. The type of accidents 
that we have are the type that, a lot of them should never 
happen. 

I would conservatively estimate, a word-I do not bandy around 
very often, that we could diminish the number of accidents by 
a third in a year should those things be arrested, just the 
simple things like hard hats, safety glasses, steel toed boots, 
and things of that nature. We are getting too many of those 
little piddly accidents. As far as the deaths go, I am sure your 
committee has the mandate to ask the WCB for a breakdown 
of the deaths and what industries they are in. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

MR. TODD: The implication was, if I remember rightly the 
other day, that there was a greater degree of accidents by 
firms who were from the outside coming in, than there was 
from northern firms that are here. That was what was said the 
other day. Do you agree with that position or not? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim. 

MR EVOY: I really do not know, John. I guess if I was 
running a business here, I would probably say the same thing . 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

Appointment To Review Committee 

MR TODD: i do not know who it was, but I know somebody 
said it. Another bone of contention, I guess, by everybody, I 
mean everybody is bored on how you make it up, and the 
stakeholders should be involved, et cetera, you said you see 
the unions being a major stakeholder in this and they should 
be equally represented and should be consulted on the 
appointments. When they appointed the review committee, 
the recent two appointments of one labour and one 
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management, were you consulted, as the union, on those 
appointments? 

MR. EVOY: No. My understanding is that those 
appointments were made directly, as per the act, by the 
board. 

MR. TODD: There was no consultation took place? 

MR. EVOY: None whatsoever that I know of. 

MR. TODD: Do you feel consultation should have taken place 
with respect to the review committee? 

MR. EVOY: The way the existing act reads, I do not see the 
requirement 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

Lump Sum Payments 

MR. TODD: Again, lump sum payments are very 
controversial. We all know that. I was a bit concerned, and 
maybe in retrospect there were too many in the 1980t, but the 
current position of some of the unions to suggest that there 
should not be any, I think, is a bit intransigent I wondered 
how you felt. What happens if a guy has 1 O per cent. you 
can take it out; but, if a guy has 11 per cent, you cannot pay 
it out Do you not feel that there should be a little more 
flexibility, knowing you are a strong anti-lump sum payment? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: I am not strong anything, really. I do not want 
to be the guy that ruined Chriatmu or something like that 
Lump ,urns are against the basic principles and philosophies 
of WCB. Right now, it reads 10 per cent I heard of a worker 
that actually asked to have his penaion decreased so that he 
can get his lump sum. He had to go pretty far to try to get 
it if he was not successful. I am saying that we have to draw 
the line somewhere. I think the Canada Penaion comes at 65 
years of age. Personally, I would rather '" It - without 
revealing my age - kick in around 45. But you have to draw 
the line somewhere. I think thia is the type of thing that 
people can work on and develop. Somewhere, someone has 
to deliver the bad news. You just cannot have Injured workers 
lump summing their futures away. There are people in the 
work community that would probably - in a dar1c alley - take 
objection to what I say . That ia where I stand. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Kee): Mr. Todd. · 

MR. TODD: Jim, you ,aid that ~ Woncers' Compensation 
hu to be accountable. To whom Is It accountable to. in your 
ayes? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: It should be accountable - and I w,1h aomeone 
would find a better word to the stakeholders. The employers 
have to be satisfied that they have coverage. and tne worker, 
have to be satisfied that they are looked after 

The Legislative Assembly is responaible if thing, go wrong. 
I ask that you not uae the WCB u a political football. But 1n 
a bad ca&e acenario, when WCBs go bad - and 1n aome 
jurisdiction, they have gone bad - it Is Inevitably the 
politician, that will ,utter the wrath of both aldff. So ~re 11 

,ome involvement granted. 

MR. TODD: And pay the bill if it doea. 

MR. EVOY: Yes. if it does. 

MR. TODD: So we do have some - however minor -
jurisdiction or responsibility for the Wor1cers' Compensation 
because, ultimately, as elected leaders we are accountable. 
Is that correct? 

MR. JIM EVOY: I agree. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): I have no more Members on my list. 
Jim, thank you very much for you presentation. Any last 
comments? 

MR. EVOY: Just a couple, Fred, if I could beg the 
committee's indulgence. John, you mentioned that there was 
no sensitivity. We did not mentioned the injured worker. We 
have only 10 or 15 minutes to make a statement. I think you 
know where an organization would stand on most of these 
issues. We did not just start paying attention to WCB because 
the ABC committee was put together. It is a daily thing in our 
lives. WCB is probably the most talked about in workers' 
circles that there are. 

Mention\ng the disabled in the injured workers' groups so 
eloquently represented help carry our message. We are 
talking about some of the care so that these people can 
advance their causes. By not mentioning the disabled, we are 
not mentioning the Council for Disabled Persons and by not 
mentioning the thousands of injured workers on pension out 
there and the literally dozens of widows that have lost their 
partner does not mean that we do not care. It means that we 
are looking at some of the cares and some of the areas we 
think the ABC committee has a mandate. But if anyone in this 
room ever wants to get the true feeling of what workers think 
about WCB, come on over and see us and some of the 
re,ults of the carnage in the work place and the unsafe work 
practices. Deal with a family that has just lost one of their 
kids. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

MR. TODD: H you do not mind, I do want to get this on the 
record. One of the things I enjoyed yesterday in the report 
from the NWT Council for Disabled Persons was when they 
talked about the cost of rehab. I talked to some of these 
injured wor1cers at the back today who talked about the 
tremendous cost or moving people to southern Canada. H we 
could find a way to bring this into Yellowknife and the North, 
would you guys support that kind of thing? Or is it necessary 
that these guys go south? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: We certainly would as long as it was not Tory 
retraining Ink or tomething like that. In some of the federal 
ecene, we aee, it becomes a bit of a farce. We would, 
however, auggest that one of the recommendations this 
committff might make is maybe the GNWT Personnel 
Department and people like that be working with rehab, and 
that we all attempt to re-employ injured workers in the North. 
The atrongest recommendation has to be to get the legislation 
changed to make the injury employer responsible for re-hiring 
the injured worker. In Ontario - I will say it - there are 
financial inducements to the employers to do that There is 
help available to the employers to do that. Maybe that would 
addreu some of the concerns. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd. 

Workers' Advisor Position 

MR. TODD: When we talked to - and you missed some of 
the aeuions which is unfortunate - a number of injured 
workers on the phone the other night. They all talked very 
highly of the workers' advisor for which I know, Jim, you are 
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instrumental in getting forward. There was some talk about 
that moving into a government department or something . . 
How do you see the workers ' advisor functioning? What kind 
of role do you see that as a spokesperson for organized 
labour'? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: First of all, organized labour does not need 
advisers. We have lots of people with opinions just as I am 
sure the business community does. The workers ' advisor 
moving in - I am in a bit of a conflict here because I recently 
studied tha_t position. As far as the workers' advisor working 
in a government department is no different than 11 other 
jurisdictions in Canada. Some of those are very progressive 
jurisdictions with good socialist governments. In essence, it 
seems to be the norm; it seems to be Canadian practice. 

MR. TODD: I am trying to think of one. You do not see it as 
an ombudsman role? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy. 

MR. EVOY: The word has been used a lot lately in the North. 
It was used by us some years ago. The ombudsman would 
be above the workers' advisor. If the workers ' advisor was 
having a rough time with the bureaucracy or a pol itician or 
Minister, they could go to the ombudsman. If a worker felt 
they were getting a poor shake by the advisor or even by a 
union, they could go to the ombudsman. If someone 
appealing a social services divis ion, go to the ombudsman. 
We have so many different government departments that I 
think the ombudsman - yes, I agree with it - should be the 
top, and then the advisor with problems could go to the 
ombudsperson. 

MR. TODD: I th ink we all recognize that a person cannot live 
on $20,000 a year in Yellowknife. definitely not in Whale Cove. 
and even less in Grise Fiord . One of the th ings that came up 
yesterday was, should there be some benefits adjustments 
made to reflect the regional variations of the cost of IMng? 
Make the assumption that there is a change in YMIR based on 
the recommendations you bring forward. Let us assume for 
arguments sake that you get a satisfactory YMIR that we are 
all happy with . It is the same acrosa the board. yet the colt 
of living is tremendously higher in Ori .. Fiord compared to 
Yellowknife. What kind of position do you think you would 
take as a spokesperson for the organized labour across the 
W{T7 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Evoy 

MR. EVOY: Very seldom do I come nght off the ""all . but let 
me try . I can · see. for example. the Baffin rts.lf only nad 10 
per cent of our injured workers so you still ha1te tne nucleus 
in the Fort Smith Region which Is 67 per cent of ,n,ur~ 
workers. Built •nto the benefits paid to workers ,, a standard 
fee of $5400 northern allowance You cou ld take that and as 
it is expanded in the different regions by the GN'NT. ano use 
the same formula. But you would have to pro1te residency 
and things of that nature. If you want to tinker wrth It. yo,,; 
could do that There is a Draconian way of tinkenng w,tr t 

that I should not even suggest to you people. but I know that 
you are of auch - you are fair people - would be to ha1te one 
for th;, North and one for the South. It is not fa,r that our 
so1.,'them injured workers would be treated differently I do not 
think that is right I think we use the bas,s that rt Is I notice 
in government ads for jobs whenever the hiring flurry starts 
that certain reg ions of th is terrrtory have a higher isolated post 
allowance. If a worker was in Grise F,ord and he had a 
debilitating injury on pension. maybe he could be ad1usted. 
In response to your question, th ia is a way it could be done. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you very much, Jim, again. 
That was a good presentation and good dialogue. 

We have a couple of groups that we promised to fit in this 
afternoon. Maybe we can hear them before 3:00 before the 
Minister. 

First, Dave Thompson will make a presentation. Welcome, 
Dave. Please, proceed. 

Presentation By Mr. Dave Thompson, On Behalf Of Injured 
Workers 

MR. THOMPSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am here on 
my own to represent myself a little bit, as well as possibly 
some of the other unorganized people other than what Mr. 
Evoy was saying. 

I wrote something on what I heard yesterday, not too much on 
what I heard today. I was not present when the City of 
Yellowknife made their presentation, but I went through the 
papers rather quickly. The city is more concerned in saving 
a few dollars, even by being sued, than what this review 
should really be about. These items should be looked at a 
later date, but I think people like us are more interested in a 
WCB process between themselves and the employees. The 
N'NT Chamber of Commerce says its whole income comes 
from the employer when, realistically, I believe the employers 
have this figured within the cost of their wages of the 
employee. 

They also say WCB pays the injured worker approximately 
$40,000 per year. Really, I do not quite figure this out 
because I do not get that much. Not even close. I get 
approximately $25,800, not $40,000. Where is $14,200 going? 
I am not getting it. It is going to income tax because next 
year when I make out my income tax, I have nothing to file . 
How can I claim $5400 for looking after my residence which 
I am still paying for'? I am not paying anything to CPP. I am 
losing all these benefits. I have no more dental plan. Any 
dental work I have done has to be paid out of this little 
amount. How does one survive on that income when I am 
used to $60,000, $70,000, $80,000? I live and spend all that 
money in the NWT. Now I have nothing left to spend because 
I just do not have it. I can live cheaper in the South. It has 
been proven: I just came from rehab in the South. I saw the 
government send down eight or 10 guys or more and spend 
approximately between $200, 000 to $300,000 which could 
have been spent by having rehab right here or in lnuvik or a 
couple of different centres. But, you could stay here. We 
ahould look at a lot more things like this. I would not mind 
finding out where my $14,200 has gone. This basically means 
that I am contributing even more than what the employers 
th,nk I am contributing. 

Also. workplace safety has been brought up by committees of 
the N'NT Construction Association and say that safety is an 
issue. That is fine. But a lot of times they themselves, the 
employers, are at fault by telling employees it is okay and not 
to worry about it. They say they will fix it later. I must admit 
that 1ome workers may take short cuts off and on. Sure, 
everybody has done that in their life. Sometimes, you need 
to finish a job better of faster for an employer. Realistically, 
who needs policing: the employer or the employee? It may 
be a little of each. It is working together. 

They also said that the government should take total 
responsibility for safety when, in fact, I think that if they 
policed it between themselves or worked together as groups 
or however, they could come to a solution that would work for 
everybody. The cost of safety has to be borne a little by the 
government and a little by the contractor. The fact that these 
fly in and fly out contractors who are skipping out on the 
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safety standards, maybe raise the rates. And also raise rates 
of contractors with poor safety records. Have a base rate, but 
for ones with bad safety records really raise the rates. Give 
them something to think about. Make them think. Save us 
guys the injuries by doing something like this. That 
responsibility should also be absorbed by the contractors, 
employers, or whatever way you want to put it. 

I like making $60,000 or $70,000 bucks a year. I do not want 
to sit around with a little piddly $25,000. I am not into eating 
wieners every night. I like the odd steak once in a while. 

Personally, I fully support the NWT Council for Disabled 
Persons presentation and encourage the board to seriously 
consider the full document, including the six points in their 
conclusion. They brought up some real good points that I 
think you guys really have got to think about in depth. 
Yesterday, other than the injured workers mentioning it, and 
also the Disabled Persons mentioned it because they talked 
about the employee - nowhere yesterday did I hear anybody 
else speak for the employee. The employers spoke for 
themselves. We feel like numbers. 

When you are through the WCB process, you do not even feel 
like a person. You feel used, abused. You do not know who 
you are, what you are, where you are going, or what tomorrow 
is going to bring you. Your future is total uncertainty. When 
you go to WCB they sometimes tell you, 'Well, mortgage your 
house, claim bankruptcy.' They tell you lots of things. Too 
much has not happened to me yet, and the reason probably 
that a lot of it has not happened yet is because I am a very 
outspoken person and I do not take shit from nobody. I stick 
up for myself. Some people who do not have the ability to 
stand up and speak for themselves and say something, get 
walked over and do not get benefits. 

When I was down aouth, I found out from other ~pie that, 
hey, WCB has no information package to tell me I am entitled 
to thia, to this, to this. Other people dug a little deeper. So 
I said to myself, I am going to start digging a little deeper. 
which I did. WCB, probably even to this day, will not 
compensate me for what they should be compensating me for, 
for items I spent money on. So WCB should also have an 
information package for employees. 

I do not want to take up too much of the board"a time. 
thank you very much for this opportunity. I just hope that 
maybe a lot of other people could have come up singly and 
brought issues up as well. Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you, Dave. I think John hu 
a question. 

MR. TODD: We spoke a little bit yesterday on th11 rehab 
thing. and it has kind of got me charged up. From a notthern 
perspective, if we can move it back up. there are some colt 
savings. Not only that, there is the Mt imptlci to the 
Territories. We talked about it yesterday. In your bea1 
estimation. when you went out for rehab, what do you think 
the costs were for that one trip that you made? I am not 
trying to put you on the spot. I am just wondering about your 
best estimation. 

MR. THOMPSON: Well, Mr. Chairman. I wu out for 
approximately eight weeks, and I expect the coats would be 
anywhere from $20,000 to $23,000. If I had been out for 12 
weeks, it would have been in the $30,000 range. Not only 
that. after four weeks they told me that there wu nothing they 
could do for me, but they kept me anyway, maybe just to do 
a little bit more exercise and feel a little better. So that wu 
more money wasted, in my estimation. The rehab should 
definitely be brought up here, and the money spent here. I 
think rehab, even privately and separate from WCB. would be 

beneficial. It is beneficial to any community whether it would 
be here, Smith or lnuvik, or maybe have two or three of them 
across the Territories. Keep the money here. 

Honest to God, even when I went down south - I have been 
up here 25 years - I went down south and I was down there 
for two months, and I will tell you the culture shock, for even 
me, was astronomical. The board paid me $4800 a month to 
be down south. When I live here, the WCB gives me $2150 
to live. They just about doubled that down south. I did not 
need that extra money, although thank God they gave it to 
me, because it helped me pay some bills I could not afford to 
pay before on the money I was making. 

MR. TODD: That was the point I wanted you to make. Thank 
you. 

MR. THOMPSON: Oh, well I made it. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Jim, quickly. 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you for your presentation. Did you 
use the appeal process? 

MR. THOMPSON: No, I have not needed to use any appeal 
process yet, because I refuse to sit back and let somebody 
run me over. I probably am a little bit stronger minded than 
a lot of other people, and I will stick up for myself, but I also 
stick up for the guys behind me as well. So I am not only 
looking out for myself for today, I am looking out for my fellow 
workers later on, not only here but across the North, whether 
they are organized or not I am trying to help look after them 
as well as myself. 

MR. ANTOINE: Just one more. Through these hearings, we 
hear a lot from the employers, organized labour, and different 
interest groups make presentations, but the main purpose of 
the Workers' Compensation Board is for the injured worker, to 
help them recover from their injuries, or if there is a fatality to 
take care of the family, and that sort of thing. I am wondering 
If the rights of injured workers are that well protected. Do you 
think there is a need to identify the rights of the injured 
workers? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Dave. 

MR. THOMPSON: Mr. Chairman, yes, there is a definite need 
for that. Whenever I go in and see somebody, whether it be 
here or down south, I obviously have been told by my doctors 
that I have to change professions. After 25 years of doing 
something that I like, and being of the temperament that I am 
and the personality that I am, which is quite different than 
other people, and maybe there are some people the same as 
me. We are not all the same. So I have to look at a total 
completely different work environment, but it is not something 
that I can turn around and decide that I want to do tomorrow. 
They are pushing me, like, 'Decide what you want to do. Do 
you want to be an airplane pilot? Do you want to push a 
pencil, or do you want to be an MLA?' I do not know yet. 
After 25 years of doing something I really enjoy, I have to 
change. To change in mid-atride and decide just like that, 
some people can and some people cannot. To decide 
instantly is an impossibility. Did you guys decide to be an 
ML.A just like that, or did you take it under consideration over 
a time period, or did you decide to become an MLA because 
over a period of time you got pissed off at something, and 
said, 'Ah, I am going to run and do this or that• It takes time. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you very much, Dave, for 
coming forward. Jeannie wants to make a comment. Hang 
on. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: I just wanted to thank Dave for 
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advising us of some of the information that we needed in 
respect to rehabilitation costs in comparison to the costs as a 
WCB client. Mr. Chairman, it is unfortunate that there were 
not more individuals that were able to advise us of their 
processes and some of their concerns in respect to the 
process of WCB. I cannot emphasize too much the positive 
aspect of hearing these types of concerns. 

I guess one point I want to make, and particularly for the 
record, Mr. Chairman, is the fact that these individuals, first of 
all, they are not used to the public process and it takes a lot 
out of them to be able to present themselves accordingly, 
particularly when there is the press and everything here. We 
are used to that type of environment. If you notice, in 
comparison to organized labour that come in with their big ten 
or fifteen page presentation all typed up and everything, some 
of the fundamental concerns are left out. This is where these 
people bring in the realities of life to us, and make us 
recognize what some of the fundamental problems are. 

The other point that I want to make is, with these organized 
groups in Yellowknife, it is very, very frustrating at times, 
because they are so organized that they have the ability to get 
to the people, to the Ministers, to politicians, to make their 
point on what they want to see done, and these individuals do 
not. I think this is the reason it is really unfortunate that we 
did not have more individuals that had to go through the 
WCB process to bring forth their concerns to us. So I would 
like to thank Dave for advising us of his concerns. and the 
recommendations of the Council for the Disabled Persons 
emphasizing how ◄ mportant they are and something we should 
consider looking at when we are deliberating our 
recommendations. So thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Jeannie. And again, 
Dave, thank you very much. 

MR. THOMPSON: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): We have one more before we take 
a quick break. Sam Gargan hu come in from Fort 
Providence, our resident expert on wee for hunters and 
trappers. Sam. if you are prepared you are welcome to 
address the committee. 

Presentation By Mr. Sam Gargan, On Behalf Of Hunter, 
And Trapper, 

MR. GARGAN: Thank you. Mr. Chairman. I travelled to Hay 
River this morning, and then on to here My plane Is waiting 
for me at the airport as soon as my presentation ,. made. 
The only reason why I came here is that Mr Hamilton 
reminded me there was a hearing on wee. and lt\at rf I had 
a presentation I wanted to do. I would do It at that time 

One of the things that Is in the act itself ,, with regard to 
'principally engaged • I have been working on two occu,ona. 
with two hunters and trappers that were iniured on the trap 
line. One of the b iggest problems that those ~pie had with 
regard to their occupation as hunters and trappers, wu lt\e11 
lack of being able to speak or write in English. so when ttungs 
are brought to my attention - I am not aay,ng that the 
adjudicators are misleading the hunters and trappers. but rt 
would seem that it has been happening. 

One of the reasons I got caught up with this whole MCtion 
10(1) of the Workers ' Compensation Act it bal1calty on the 
definition of 'principally engaged' being defined in policy by 
the adjudicators. One of the definitions i1 that you have to 
make $10,000 in order to be compensated. When I f1rat saw 
a letter written to Mr. Landry, what they taid •• that under 
section 10(1) of the WCB Act. you do not qualify for 
compensation because you do not make over $10,000. One 

of the arguments I have used with regard to putting a number 
on the principally engaged is that it is contrary to what the 
principle of the section is. They have admitted to that. 
Whether or not they are still going to use the adjudicator 
using the $10,000 from here on in, I am not too sure. 
Certainly, they are suggesting that they should not have 
defined it in numbers - $10,000. 

One of the arguments I have used to the WCB - and I have 
worked on each case for two years - is we have appealed 
and won most of our cases because of the principally 
engaged and the $10,000 number is like asking the aboriginal 
people to exploit animals in order to meet a certain quota. I 
am suggesting that is not the Dene way - to meet a certain 
quota and exploiting animals. With the fur price as it is, you 
have to kill a lot of animals to make $10,000. This is my 
argument. 

The workers have won another case like for Mr. Landry. One 
of the things they said with regard to the definition of 
'principally engaged' was that they agree with me in that the 
policy is going against the principle of section 10(1). 

The thing is that there is another area in the Workers' 
Compensation Act with regard to definitions. I find some 
problems with parents or children that are custom adopted. 
What happens is that it is the natural mother that gets 
compensation as opposed to the custom adopting parents. 
You might want to look at that too. You should have 
definitions on that. I have written a letter to Dennis Patterson 
to suggest that they should get rid of that policy. 

Mr. Chairman, this is my presentation. I do not wish to see 
that hunters and trappers principally engaged, deleted from 
the Workers' Compensation Act itself. I wish it could be in 
there. The definition is too broad, but the two cases I have 
worked on are not similar. One, Ted Landry, is a full-time 
hunter and trapper. In the other case, the guy was out there 
and was transporting gasoline for his brother. A 45 gallon 
barrel rolled on him and broke his leg. He was not really a 
hunter or a trapper, but he was compensated. Perhaps we 
should be very clear on who we determine are hunters and 
trappers. I do not know whether hobby hunters and trappers 
qualify as opposed to full-time hunters and trappers. 

This is one are when people in my constituency ask me for 
help in dealing with WCB or the adjudicator, I do it without 
questioning their motives. I could very well - even though I 
have been successful In gaining compensation for those 
individuals - ·sit back and ask whether or not this person 
really is a hunter or a trapper. Kathe helped me with winning 
some of those cases without really being too clear on the 
circumstances. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Is optional coverage available for 
hobby hunters and trappers? It is like me. I like to go 
hunting and fishing. 

MR GARGAN: The Department of Renewable Resources 
pays the premium for hunters and trappers to the WCB. For 
myself, I do hunt and trap, but I do not consider myself a 
hunter or a trapper. I think we really have to be clear on this. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Arvaluk. 

MR ARVALUK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am probably 
going to get myself lost in this one, but I will do my best. 
First of all, in the Eastern Arctic, most of the workers are 
sewage truck drivers or water truck drivers, et cetera, and the 
wages they make cannot support a family for groceries, et 
cetera. Hunting supplements that income or ability to get 
more meat for the family. Otherwise, they would go hungry. 
The wages are not that low; however, the price of goods is so 
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much more expensive. We have a very good example in 
Pelly Bay where every1hing has to be flown in, including 
houses, because they do not have sealift. I think this would 
be like a single mother in the West that has to take evening 
jobs if she is not well trained in a profession. For example, 
if she is a waitress, that one job will not support her family. 
Therefore, she has to have another job in the evening to 
supplement her day job. We do exactly the same thing in the 
Eastern Arctic except we hunt on the weekend in order to 
supplement I do not know if you want to call it hobby 
hunter; we call it a supplementary income to hunting. It is 
absolutely necessary. I do not know how this would be done. 

My question would be, keep the WCB coverage for employees 
of the labour force only, but cover section 10(1) for other 
income earners such as hunters, outpost campers, fishermen 
and traditional camps; whatever is not covered under the 
labour code. I do not know how you, as a hunter and 
trapper, would see that Do you want to see separate 
agencies to look after the non or self-employed or those who 
are not employed by an employer? I do not know how to ask 
that properly. Do you know what I mean? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Gargan. 

MR. GARGAN: Mr. Chairman, I am a Member. but I ·do quite 
a bit of hunting and trapping. It is like I said before ; I do not 
consider myself a hunter and trapper as defined under the 
Workers' Compensation Act because I am not a full-time 
hunter and trapper. Just because I do that, I am one. I think 
the definition of 'principally engaged' is to broad that It is 
open for abuse. What I am suggesting is that two very similar 
circumstancH except that I would consider one of them a 
hunter and trapper. The other perton went out there one 
night and was delivering gas. The 45 gallon drum dropped 
on his leg and broke his leg. He stayed there for 48 hours 
before someone finally found him. The guy wu getting 
$40,000 per year from WCB. There is one person that I would 
have to suggest is not qualified for that compensation. It is 
so broad. 

I fight all my cases with equal force. I have pretty successful, 
Mr. Chairman. to date with all the claims that were made 
under the 'principally engaged' definition. I have won all the 
cases either through appeals or regular correspondence. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): We will start calling you "lawyer.' 
Thank you very much, Sam, for coming back to make your 
presentation. We will take a 10 minute break and resume at 
3:15 p.m. 

-SHORT RECESS 

Hon. Dennis Patterson, Minister, WCB And Mr. Bryan 
Roberts, Chairman, wee 

The committee will come to order. We have with us the Hon 
Dennis Patterson, Minister responsible for the Workers· 
Compensation Board and Bryan Roberts, chairman of the 
Workers ' Compensation Board. When - start.cl the NHIOn 

on Monday these two gentlemen appeared before us. We 
have been at this for a couple of days and heard 
presentations from a wide range of groups and 1ndrvidual1. 
respecting their interaction or experience, with the Workers· 
Compensation Board. Before we get into questions, do either 
of you gentlemen have any comments. 

Minister's Comments 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Thank you. Mr. Cha11man. We 
both have tome brief comments but primarily I am here to 
hear from the committee questions and comments you wish to 
make to me. 

I have had some opportunity to be briefed on the wide 
ranging and Intense and thoughtful presentations -that your 
committee has received over the last couple of days. I 
certainly will want to take much more time to become familiar 
with what was said and the dialogue that occurred with 
Members of your committee and yourself. But I do want to 
congratulate your committee for having taken this initiative to 
hold these hearings. I think the interest and response 
demonstrates that there was a need; there is a lot of concern 
about the many issues that were raised. And from what I 
understand, there has been quite a lot of effort put into 
submissions by people, sonie of whom are represented in this 
room. 

I think that is very useful and will be very helpful to me as 
Minister responsible for the board and it will be helpful to the 
chairman and members of the board and of course I know will 
be carefully considered by your committee as well. So I 
would like to say that I look on this as an opportunity to 
become better informed about issues and to tackle the issues 
that have to be dealt with and I will consider the results of 
these hearings very carefully, along with your 
recommendations in moving to improve workers' 
compensation in areas that are identified. 

I do understand there have been a number of submissions 
received from individual workers who have undoubtedly with 
great difficulty in some cases have conveyed their own very 
difficult pressing personal circumstances and the frustrations 
that they have experienced with being unable to work and on 
occasions with the policies or even the personnel they have 
had to deal with In the Workers' Compensation Board. I think 
It i• appropriate that I ask Mr. Roberts to comment briefly on 
tome of those issues, since he is more directly responsible for 
those aspects of the operation of the board. 

Mr. Chairman, there was an issue raised and a sharp 
discussion on the role of the Minister in Workers' 
Compensation matters. I have had a chance to reflect a bit 
on those discussions since Monday. I.would like to state that 
my own personal philosophy that quite apart from the legal 
constraints that may limit the power of a Minister to get 
involved with Workers' Compensation Board matters and those 
legal limits undoubtedly should be reviewed, but quite apart 
from those legal and jurisdictional issues that lawyers will 
provide advice on, my own personal philosophy is that open 
communications between the board and the Minister 
responsible and communications of the kind that have 
occurred through your committee this week, are probably the 
very best way of dealing with concerns and issues and 
problems, 10 as to avoid confrontations which I know have 
occurred in the past 

I have looked at the Financial Administration Act, the 
Legislative Assembly and Executive Council Act, at the 
Workers· Compensation Board Act, and I do believe there are 
some tools that the Minister can use, even without changes 
to any of those pieces of legislation. 

For example, the Financial Administration Act, sections 91 and 
92 require that f/Very territorial corporation including the 
Workers ' Compensation Board, file a corporate plan and 
annual operation budget for the approval of the Minister each 
year. That appears to be a tool that could be used. I believe 
that it may not have been used in the past It may be a 
provision that your committee may want to examine or you 
may want to recommend be examined in a legislative review 
as to its usefulness. But there are provisions that would seem 
to give the Minister some powers and of course the power of 
appointment and the fact that the chairman and members of 
the board are appointments at pleasure. I think this is quite 
clear from the Workers' Compensation Act, would also be 
powers available to a Minister who may want to have a 
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change in the approach taken by this board. 

There are constraints on the power of the Minister as laid out 
in the Workers' Compensation Act itself, particular sections 
78(5), which makes this position of funds in the accident fund 
something within the exclusive jurisdiction of the board. 

As I say, Mr. Chairman, I do not want to get into that question 
in detail today, except to note that it is obviously a strong 
concern of your committee. I think it is something that should 
be reviewed. Perhaps the legislation is not as clear as it 
might be and undoubtedly there are some ambiguities that 
should be looked at. But I do believe, and I will say it again, 
that this kind of communication that is under way here 
through your committee should be taking place on a regular 
and open basis between the Minister and the person of the 
board and for that matter, between the Minister and Members 
of the Legislature, is probably the best way of tackling issues 
of concern and problems and avoiding confrontation. 

So in closing I would repeat again that my impression of the 
submissions and discussions that have gone on this week is 
that your committee should be commended for initiating this 
process. I am not sure where it is going to lead, but I do look 
forward to working with you to implement and act on your 
recommendations and deal with the issues of public concern 
that have been so clearly raised in the course of the hearings 
so far this week. 

I am available for questions or to hear any comments you 
might have, but I would ask Mr. Roberts to address some of 
the specific issues relating to the issue of sensitivity and the 
way the board deals with workers and their claims. Thank 
you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Thank you. Mr. Patterson. Mr. 
Roberts. 

Board Chairman'• Comments 

MR. ROBERTS: Thank you. Mr. Chairman. Firstly on behalf 
of the board I would also like to express our welcome of this 
review. I thank you and the Members of your committee of 
affording us the opportunity to appear before you. We 
certainly look forward to your recommendations. 

We have listened very closely to the. concerns and 
recommendations of all those who have appeared before you 
and who have communicated with you by telephone and we 
certainly thank them for therr efforts. There ia one area of 
great concern to myself and member• of the board , i• the 
issue of the insensitivity of staff. I know every one of those 
people over there, they work in very drfficult artuationa. they 
are working with people who have been traumatized and who 
are having and awful problem. Actually I have never lffn a 
more caring staff for a number of year, there 

In listening to a number of the concerns that -re expressed 
and in reference to the insensitivity involved. I found that 
much of it dealt with more of an insensitive policy. prov111on1 
of an act that is outdated and does not meet the requirements 
and the needs of the injured workers. I think th11 got turned 
into the fact that our staff are insensitive and that simply 1s not 
fact. 

There is no doubt that with some of the policies they have to 
enforce, some of the provisions of the act that they have to 
carry out. they have to make some very drfficult decrs1ons 1n 
not granting things from time and time and they do not enioy 
that part of their Job. 

We listened to a number of workers last evening. I certainly 
appreciate their concerns, do not get me wrong on that. but 

just with the type of cases that they were stating and raising 
concerns about, it seemed quite consistent. I am not sure 
what the process was in establishing those contacts, I was 
wondering if the committee could give us some direction on 
how that was done. We could certainly provide a random 
selection of names for you at any time. 

I would also like to draw your attention to the Kellogg report 
which was an independent client service audit that was done 
by the firm and it shows again that we have to make 
improvements, you know you always have to improve your 
system, but it shows that the client service component of the 
Workers' Compensation Board was very good. So again I 
believe and I sincerely hope that this insensitivity that has 
been referred to, has been clarified that it is insensitive policy 
and problems with the legislation. We have some very 
dedicated staff there and it is very unfair for them to sit and 
get that type of criticism, which we do not think is fact. 

As a point of interest, I would like to give you some figures on 
claims for 1990 and 1991 and we have copies of the sheet 
here for your records. In 1990 there was 3498 filed with the 
board. Fifty-two of these cases went to the review committee, 
which is the first avenue of appeal. From those 52, eight went 
on to the appeals tribunal. The workers' advisor stated she 
has worked the following number of hours helping injured 
workers and for 1990 it was 1100 hours. 

In 1991 there was 3457 claims filed. Fifty-eight of those 
claims went to the review committee requesting a review of 
the adjudicators initial decisions. From those 58, six cases 
were heard by the appeals tribunal. The workers' advisor 
spent 1400 in 1991 assisting workers with their problems with 
the compensation board. This information is available and we 
will have it for you. 

We certainly realize we have improvements to make and we 
are certainly willing and prepared and will be implementing 
some changes that will help that. Some of the situation is 
with policy, some is with the physics~ layout of the building 
which I do believe causes some concerns to injured workers 
coming in. In those situations where the board of directors 
have the authority to improve the system, they will. 

A closing comment on this. We believe that the outdated 
legislation, which I think we all agree does not meet the needs 
and requirements of the injured workers, and this contributes 
to a high level of frustration and dissatisfaction with the 
system and I think tends to bring on this insensitivity, it is not 
because they are not being dealt with properly by the staff but 
are just totally frustrated with the system. 

I thank you very much for the opportunity to speak to you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): On behalf of the committee I would 
like to thank both of you and your respective staff. Every 
since we scheduled this review the staff have been very co­
operative and information has been given to us, a fair 
exchange of information. So on behalf of the committee and 
our staff I would like to thank you gentlemen. The floor is 
open. Mr. Dent. 

Review Of Workers' Compensation Act 

MR. DENT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. During the past few 
days one of the most comment recurrent themes from almost 
every presentation has been a concern that the act is perhaps 
outdated in some areas and has led to problems with policy. 
I know the reviews earlier, 1986 and 1989 recommended that 
periodic reviews be conducted. Has the Minister given any 
thought to a process to review the act and can he let us know 
what his plans might be in that area? 
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CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Patterson. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
certainly have given some thought to a legislative review and 
I have had discussions with the Workers' Compensation Board 
about that issue. As I said on Monday, I felt that knowing 
your work was going to focus on the board, it might be 
premature to actually initiate anything until we hear your 
recommendations, which might touch on how a legislative 
review should be done. But I can tell you what we have 
discussed so far. 

Firstly, of all the board has agreed that they will largely 
underwrite the costs of such a review. They feel it is 
appropriate and something that could be underwritten by the 
board. 

Secondly, our discussions have centred on the need to have 
an independent chairperson of such a review and indeed a 
process that is independent, even though it might be funded 
through the Workers' Compensation Board. 

Thirdly, the review should represent - the people doing the 
review should be reflective of the interests concerned with the 
WCB and obviously starting with the employers and workers. 

So those are basic principles that would govern this review. 
I think that we should take a close look at the process that 
was recently followed in the Yukon. I was quite impressed 
with the fact that a neighbouring jurisdiction with a somewhat 
similar situation, although not identical to ours, has just done 
a legislative review, that by all accounts, hu met the 
expectations of all the stakeholders. And if you can get both 
labour and employers agreeing that a procest and an end 
result is more or less satisfactory, then you have a process 
that is worthwhile examining. 

One thing about the Yukon procest that appealed to me wu 
that a lot of the support to the review committM was actually 
provided by the Workers' Compensation Board ltHlf. So by 
asking the board and its staff to undertake research and to 
provide information to the independent review committM. you 
had a way of plugging the existing board staff corporate 
memory into the process and giving them 10me senH of 
ownership if not participation in the prOCffl. That feature u 
well struck me as being worth considering. 

I should say that the Minister of the Yukon and the 
chairperaon and the staff of that board have offered to provide 
assistance to us or advice to us, 1hould we wilh to undertake 
such a review or take advantage of their experience. 

So I think that is u far as I can go right now But I will 
assure you that since I think many 1ubmi11ions are pomtmg 
to a need for a legislative review, we should be prepared to 
initiate this quite urgently. The one point I would mah as that 
there may be 10me matters that should be dean wrth m 
advance of a legislative review and your commftlM may wish 
to make some recommendations on that. One that I know is 
a concern of many people and many Members and 
undoubtedly your committee, is the issue of the YMIR That 
matter could be dealt with in advance of • rev•-- I am not 
suggesting every change has to be held up while we do • 
review that realistically will not produce rHults for eome 
months. So with that qualifier I would like to aay that I am 
ready to respond and get something under way, especially if 
your committee may recommend it. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Charles. 

Increase In YMIR 

MR. DENT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am heartened to 

hear that the Minister does not feel it is necessary to prolong 
the consideration of an increase to the YMIR. We did not 
have one presentation that suggested it should not be raised. 
Some presentations were silent on it, but by far the largest 
number did suggest that it should be raised. 

The range for suggested increases was all the way up to no 
cap. I was just wondering if the Minister has given any 
thought to how we could move forward with coming up with 
an acceptable figure for an increase in the YMIR so that we 
can deal with it at the next session of the House or is he 
expecting this committee to try and come up with the 
process? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Minister. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, no, I would not 
expect your committee to come up with detailed 
recommendations on that Issue. My view is that because 
there are fairly complicated calculations involved in increasing 
the YMIR and it has to do with the adequacy of the accident 
fund to bear the increased costs and the actuarial advice. 
The appropriate route is to seek advice from the Workers' 
Compensation Board itself on that issue and I can tell you that 
considerable work has been done on that issue. And then as 
I see it, I will take their recommendations to cabinet and then 
proceed with the usual process through legislation. 

If your committee believes that this is a matter of urgency then 
perhaps your recommendations could assist speedy 
consideration of this in the Legislature, since the normal 
legislative process can slow things down. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): James. 

MR. ARVALUK: You stated that there is a provision in the 
WCB Act that the WCB shall submit a report to the Minister 
and apparently it has not been done and it should be done. 
I thought in the law the difference between 'should' and 
'shall,' I thought that when it says 'shall' I thought it has to be 
done. Why is it not being done? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): I believe you may be confusing two 
acts, the Financial Administration Act which the Minister 
quoted today versus the Workers' Compensation Act. If the 
Minister wants to respond. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It 
is Mctlons 91 and 92 of the Financial Administration Act and 
I think the Member is correct, it is mandatory and something 
that 1hould be done. Your committee may be interested to 
find out how many corporations meet that section because I 
believe it applies to every territorial corporation. As I said, 
1ince we talked on Monday I have learned that at least last 
year such a corporate plan and annual operating budget -
well I should say since my time anyway - such a corporate 
plan and annual operating budget has not been submitted for 
my approval. I have talked with Mr. Roberts to make sure that 
situation now changes. But it is the Financial Administration 
Act. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): James. 

Workload Of Workers' Advisor 

MR. ARVALUK: Thank you for clarifying that, hopefully it will 
be abided by. My next question is to Mr. Roberts. When 
they passed the client statistics 1990-91, I am shocked that the 
workers' advisor has stated she has worked the following 
hours, 1100 in 1990 and 1400 in 1991. A normal week of 
approximately 50 hours a year. The WCB has the claims 
personnel that they deal with. Why is the workers' advisor 
having to work 68 per cent of those claimants when they have 



May 131 1992 STANDING COMMITTEE ON AGENCIES, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS Page 101 

their own claims officers? What went wrong? To me it ia 
high? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Bryan. 

MR. ROBERTS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I do not have the 
breakdown of all the work that was done. The assistance 
provided by the workers ' advisor is for workers having 
problems getting their claim through the system • or requiring 
different information or requiring assistance to get their case 
ready to appear before the review committee or the appeals 
tribunal. Some of these cases are very complicated and it 
takes quite a while to get the information and get it explained 
to the worker so they understand exactly where they are. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): James. 

MR. ARVALUK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Would you 
consider reviewing your operation, since these claimants 
require a lot of time of the workers' advisor anyway, that you 
would amalgamate or restructure so the claims officer from 
WCB works in the same way - I do not know how you 
categorize it - what I am understanding is that the claims 
officer does the paper work according to the application, but 
when there is a problem then the workers' advisor then has to 
go into something that the claims officer cannot help the 
claimant to do, which is more complicated and quite similar 
to that of the psychologist or comforter or social worker type 
of approach. If 68 per cent of the claimants are having a hard 
time to the point where they have to go to the workers' 
advisor, then there is something wrong somewhere with the 
process. Are you going to look into whether somehow that 
reflects more on the claimants rather than on the 
administration or bureaucracy of the WCB claims procedure? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Roberts. 

MR. ROBERTS: Thank you Mr. Chairman. Firstly I would 
like to point out that it is not 68 per cent of the claims that 
require the work done on them. For 1990, for the total of 
claims under review and appeal, there were 60 claims: and 
the workers ' advisor has to go through all of the records, and 
their job there is to ensure that there were no errors made and 
to ensure that the injured worker receives usiatance for which 
to go on with their appeal. We have noted the 
recommendation of the workers ' advisor for better acceu to 
the files and the adjudicators, and this will certainly help 
speed up the process. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Todd 

MR. TODD: Mr. Patterson. All thie wffk we have heard 
different aides of the equation expreuing their op,nlone. One 
aide all within the eame room when they wrote their Pf0poaals. 
and the other eide were all within the earn• room when they 
wrote their propoaals. They are all claiming \o be 
accountable. Who, in your opinion. is ultimately accountable 
for the Workers ' Compensation Board? Who hu to take the 
final decision on the Workers' CompenlCtlon Board' 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Minister. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Well, the Minister reaponsible, 
and ultimately, the Legislative Auembly. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe) : Mr. Todd 

MR. TODD: Good. Thank you. Good. Then we should be 
telling a few people that We are ultimately accountable for 
the WCB, the elected repreaentatrvea of tti. Northwest 
Territories. That is the first thing. 

Act Versus Polley 

I wonder if I can address my comment to Mr. Roberts. Maybe 
you have actually hit on the source of the insensitivity. You 
could be right I wonder if you could elaborate a little more. 
I mean, does the act contradict policy? I had written here two 
days ago, 'Act versus policy.' Whenever we have talked 
about insensitivity, I just wrote it in the corner of my paper. 
I thought, well, if we are just literally translating the act, then 
maybe that is what is causing the problems in the ability for 
us to respond to an injured worker. Maybe, in fact, it is not 
a human fault problem, as I had thought it was. In fact, it is 
an act and policy problem. Could you give me a little more 
detail on it? Give me some examples of where that is 
affecting some of the decisions and some of the cries for help 
that we have heard this last five or six days? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Roberts. 

MR. ROBERTS: Thank you Mr. Chairman. I had probably 
better try to illustrate this with examples, if I could. Our 
current benefits are based on $40,000 per year, and we have 
many, many injured workers who are earning substantially 
more than that They cannot understand why they cannot be 
compensated for their loss of earning. This sets up a very 
frustrating situation between them and their workers. 

The funeral expenses is another example. it is based on a 
percentage of $40,000. It is right in the act The current 
situation just does not even close to help paying for the 
average funeral. And when you are dealing with people like 
that, it is very difficult to give a rational answer as to why the 
benefrt is so low. People are under a tremendous amount of 
'J)ressure in those situations. That is some of it. 

You can go through a number of different things in the act 
which I think were quite fine in 19n, but they do not address 
the issues of 1990. And the board must operate within the act 
and do their policies within it. So you try to go as far as you 
can with the policy ... 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): So then when something is not 
working, you create a new policy or change a policy to make 
it work? 

MR. ROBERTS: We try to get as far with the policy as we 
can. of course, but there are just certain things where the 
board has some discretion. Then they can do that. There are 
other situations In the act that do not allow discretion, such as 
the benefits, the funeral, transportation of the body, et cetera. 
The provision of clothing for people who have to wear 
prosthetic appliances is in there at $100. You really cannot 
get too much for $100 today. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Just to follow up on that issue, are 
those costs indexed? Funeral costs, or prosthetics, or 
clothing? 

MR. ROBERTS: No, sir. They are not. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

Workers' Advisor 

MR. TODD: You know, in the presentations that were made 
to us - and it is unfortunate, you were not here the other 
night when we heard these guys on the phone. I just simply 
cannot bel ieve that they are all lying. I just do not believe it. 
Some of them have to be telling the truth. And on that 
assumption, I heard this sort of cry for help, and the only help 
that they have really got, rightly or wrongly, or they viewed, 
was the workers' advisor. That seemed to be a real serious 
instrument of communication. And I am wondering. There 
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are spme rumours afoot - I missed the first day - or 
somebody said something about the fact that the workers' 
advisor may be linked into a government department or be 
part of a new ombudsman, et cetera. I wonder, Mr. Patterson, 
what your views are on this worker advisor that WCB has now 
had for the last two years. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Thank you Mr. Chairman. First 
of all, I think the workers ' advisor is essential. I think that one 
of the obvious changes required in the legislation is that this 
position should be recognized and given statutory protection 
and recognition. As I understand it, because the act does not 
provide for a workers' advisor, there have been some 
frustrations of the kind Mr. Roberts has outlined. I think Ms. 
Pagonis referred to them in her presentation. She has to get 
certain authorizations to get into a file directly from the worker; 
there are time and geographical barriers to doing that When 
I asked the board about that, they said that it was because of 
provisions of confidentiality in the act which never 
contemplated a workers' advisor. So for reasons like that. the 
position should be put in the act and recognized. 

Finally, I would comment about rumours of changes, and the 
like. Because the workers' advisor position really is an ad hoe 
arrangement now, created by, I think ycu could say, a policy 
of the Workers' Compensation Board, this individual is 
basically working, as I understand it, presently on a month-to­
month contractual basis, with no real security; with no benefits 
of the kind that are normally available to government 
employees; and housed in an office which, although it is 
independent from the board and the government. ia kind of a 
lone office without much support. When she is away, the 
answering machine is all that is there. When she is on 
holidays, there is no back-up. There are all kinds of - I do 
not even know where she gets her typing done. There are all 
kinds of problems of that nature. 

I had asked the Workers' Compensation Board to look at the 
workers' advisor position because of my concern and, I 
believe, the incumbent's concern about some of these 
unsatisfactory arrangements that are now in place. I have 
received some recommendations from the board, and I am still 
evaluating them. But one of the things I can say here now 
that I want to see done is I believe that position should be 
established as a permanent position, even in advance of 
changes to the legislation. I think it can be classified and 
established as an indeterminate government position ao that 
the individual can have more security than in the present very 
ad hoe arrangement 

It also seems to me - and this observation wu made by the 
board in looking at that position - that without compromising 
the independence of the office, It mey be easier on that 
individual if they can be physically located in a depe,11Mnt of 
the government so that support systems in the wey of 
telephone anawering service, MCretarial back-\lp, and even 
collegiality, maybe, could be provided, so that the pel"90n ia 
not completely isolated. 

But I want to assure the board that if - look at that option • 
• and I have not taken a _final decision on that - but rf we look 
at that option. the arrangements will in no way be designed 
to impair the independence of the workers ' advisor The 
reporting relationship will remain with the Minister and to the 
Minister. and if there is an arrangement made to establish the 
office within a department. it will only be for logistical 
purposes and not in any way to compromise that 
independence. 

So I hope that answers the Member's question. that yea, some 
consideration is being given to changes of that nature. but the 
integrity of the office and its mandate and its importance will 
not be compromised. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

Representation On Th• Board 

MR. TODD: One bone of contention, as they would say, by 
all groups, particularly the contributing group - that is the 
employers' organizations - was on board appointments. And 
they were quite clear that we were to make sure that we had 
highly dedicated, highly competent people. And I asked them 
the question, what do they see, what kind of expertise do they 
see sitting on this board? I did not get an answer. I wonder 
how you feel about your definition of what kind of 
representation we should have on the territorial Workers' 
Compensation Board. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Minister. 

MR. TODD: I am getting angry now, because I just read the 
NWT Chamber of Commerce's crap that we got 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Thank you Mr. Chairman. 
Well, I think there is no question that so-called "stakeholders' • 
• and I do not really like that word any more; it gets used so 
much, but - the obvious interests of workers who suffer 
accidents and the consequences and employers who 
contribute to the accident fund, obviously you have got to 
have a balanced representation of those so-called 
stakeholders. But I also believe that the board should try as 
well to represent the people of the Northwest Territories. It 
should, wherever possible, be reflective of the geographical, 
human diversity of the Territories - gender, representation of 
the sexes. So it has to be much more than representing the 
persons with a stake in the operation of the board. You can 
have that, but you can also reflect the territory at the same 
time. So, for example, I think it is very important that people 
on the board be northern residents, have northern experience; 
if they are representing employers and workers, have 
experience in as broad a range of activities as possible. 

While I do believe the board's work is .complicated, that it is 
one of our most complex boards, I think there are actuaries 
and lawyers and professionals who can provide advice to the 
chairman of the board. So we do not necessarily have to 
have actuaries sitting on the board to take advantage of 
sound actuarial advice. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): John. 

Ascal Responsibility For Safety 

MR. TODD: I am glad to hear you say that. Mr. Patterson, 
because the other four organizations, I think, do not think that 
wey. Anyway. The iuue, particularly with the organized 
labour, and understandably so, on safety and what they view 
and, I suspect. why we saw an increase in terms of the kinds 
of Injured workers, et cetera, and the lack of the policing 
component to It - it is my understanding that they are 
advocating that this come under the Workers' Compensation 
Board. At least, that is what they imply in these proposals 
they are making. How are we going ta pay for this, if that 
takes place? Where is the money going to come from? Who 
ia going to be fiscally responsible if cabinet and the 
government decides to move the safety, fire, elevator guys, et 
cetera, over to the Workers' Compensation Board? Who is 
going to be fiscally responsible? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Minister. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, that, as Mr. 
Ballantyne used to say, that is a very good question. I am not 
trying to dodge it, but to me that is one of the fundamental 
questions that should be examined in a broader review that 
might be recommended and a review of the legislation. I tried 
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to say on Monday that I think there are two approached that 
can be taken. There are pros and cons with each. 

Mr. Todd has raised a concern about costs. I guess as the 
Minister of a department that is suffering restraint along with 
other departments, as I said on Monday, if costs in the safety 
area can be borne by the board, then this may be an 
advantage to the government. Obviously, people who pay for 
the consequences of accidents have an interest in investing in 
safety. So that makes some sense. On the other hand, I 
think it has also been pointed out to your committee that there 
may possibly be some inherent conflicts in having the insurers 
also be the policemen, as I think one person submitting put 
it. 

I have not made up my mind on this question, Mr. Chairman. 
I will be direct with the Member. Right now, we have a 
compromise. We have aspects of safety education under the 
responsibility for the WCB. The inspection side of it remains 
with my Department of Safety and Public Services. My 
philosophy, as I said earlier, has been to at least ensure that 
these two activitieft ere done consistently and co-operatively 
as much as possible. Where we go from here, I have no clear 
ideas. I think it is a complicated question. There are many 
factors. There is experience in other jurisdictions that we may 
want to look at. I believe in Yukon they have gone the 
direction of all under the board. As I said, Yukon has just 
undergone a major overhaul of the act and structure of the 
board. It may well be helpful for us to take advantage of that 
work. I cannot answer the Member's question today . I have 
not considered all the arguments. It is a question we will 
have to face but, today, I have no quick fixes to offer on that 
point, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Point. John. You refer a couple of 
times to a review in Yukon. My understanding is that the 
review in Yukon was an initiative by the Minister responsible. 
It was directly driven by that Minister. I guess, as Minister 
responsible here, are you willing to take that type of 
leadership and direct this rev iew of safety and education 
enforcement? 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: The short answer. Mr. 
Chairman, is, 'yes.' I do welcome the advice of your 
committee on these matters. Frankly, I am awaiting the advice 
of your committee before undertaking major initiativff of that 
kind. Clearly, a legislative review is a major iaaue that should 
be dealt with. You may also recommend that there a,e other 
matters such as occupational health and safety that should 
logically be looked at alongside or at the same time u the 
legislative review. ·Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe) : Remember. legislative rev- is only 
one component of the whole system that we ate dealing with. 
Obviously, the problem is that tomebody hu to be 
responsible and take control and say . u Mr Evoy mel"lbOned, 
"Do it.• That is my point. John 

MR. TODD: For the record. I did not talk about coat. I talked 
about fiscal responsibility . I uked, -Who wu gomg to pay 
the price?" I wu not talking about how much It wu going to 
cost. la th11 trend or this train of thought w rth respect to 
safety and everything going under .WCB being d1seu11.ci wtth 
cabinet as it relates to Strength at Two Levels? Would there 
be ways and means of saving, theoretically, th11 government 
money? And, i! ! may, hes sny d iseuuion taken place with 
the business community on this i11ue. You are obviously in 
a discussion, Mr. Patterson. This is not a new Idea. It It an 
old idea. It it on the agenda again. Hu there been any 
discussion on this issue with the stakeholde~ who pay the 
bill? 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Minister. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, to answer the 
first question, yes, there has been discussion at cabinet. I do 
not want to give the impression that the decision has been 
taken, but there has been discussion of that issue. I also 
have had discussions with the employers' counsel on workers' 
compensation on that issue. 

To answer Mr. Todd's question about whether I think it is 
appropriate that I discuss this with stakeholders, yes, it is 
absolutely appropriate. I am suggesting that this is a matter 
that should be reviewed. If it is reviewed, it should be done 
in a manner that will allow public input so that we get the 
best possible advice on how to deal with the issue. Thank 
you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Do any other Members have 
comments or questions? Jeannie. 

MRS. MARIE.JEWELL: Mr. Chairman, believe we have 
heard many recommendations and concerns expressed over 
the past few days. I do not feel it is our - right now to 
question the Minister accordingly with respect to what we want 
to see done. It is now our responsibility for formulate and 
consolidate those recommendations and present them to the 
Legislative Assembly. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Shall we report progress, then? Jim. 

Political Interference With Operation Of The Board 

MR. ANTOINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Patterson, we 
heard from a group called the NECWC, Northern Employers' 
Council on Workers' Compensation. In their presentation, they 
said they met with you. I know there is a lot of discussion 
about the employers saying they have a big stake in the WCB 
because they contribute a lot of money to it so they have an 
interest in it. They said they are happy to report that they 
have met with you and that they have begun a process of 
providing informed input into the WCB process. They talk 
about no political interference. I am wondering if you can 
explain that to me. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Mr. Patterson. 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, the group met 
with the politicians. They tell me, among other things, that 
they do not want to see the politicians interfering unduly with 
the operations of the board. This group was formed quite 
recently as a result of the attention being paid to workers' 
compensation iauea by the new Legislature. I think, as well, 
the Injured, Ddisabled and Dscarded Workers group was 
formed as a result of strong concerns as well. My feeling is 
that, as Minister responsible, I should make myself accessible 
to such groups as they request meetings. I think I should be 
open to receiving advice. It does not mean I have to take the 
advice, but my feeling was that I should be accessible to such 
groups. There is obviously a lot of frustration and concern. 
In some cases, it is possible to provide information which 
alleviates concerns through these meetings. I have only met 
with them once. 

I feel that primary contacts would be the NWT Chamber of 
Commerce, the Conitruction Association, the Chamber of 
Minff and, as well, organized labour. I feel that as long as 
It ii made clear that I am simply considering representations, 
there is no reason why I should not keep my doors as open 
u possible. That is what I did. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): Any other comments? Do either of 
you gentlemen have any closing remarks you wish to make? 

HON. DENNIS PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, I will just make 
one comment about process. I would ask that if your 
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committee, in Its deliberations on the results of this week, has 
recommendations that you feel are urgent, I would be grateful 
to hear them as soon as possible perhaps through yourself, 
orally or otherwise, in advance of a public report. I think that 
if you are expecting some action prior to the next session of 
the Legislature, I would appreciate getting early notice on the 
areas that are considered priorities. I ask that the committee 
consider, even informally, an arrangement of that kind. 
Having said that. I will just say that I look forward to your 
recommendations, and I look forward to continuing to work 
with your committee to improve the workers' compensation 
system in the NWT. Thank you. 

Chairman's Closing Remarks 

CHAIRMAN (Mr. Koe): I think throughout the last couple of 
days there were certain very key focal points and key issues 
that were raised. In some cases, notice was given that 
Members will be pursuing certain recommendations. I think 
those were adequately discussed. I, as Chair, because we are 
a committee, we will take direction from the group and I will 
act on that advice and direction. I thank both gentlemen very 
much for coming. I wish you well and, hopefully, if we do 
come up with recommendations, that we act expeditiously in 
the best interests of the people that we represent. Thank you. 

For committee and public, I can say this Is the last of the 
people to respond to our request to appear before us. 
Advertisements were put out to the press through press 
releases asking people if they were Interested in making a 
presentation to us to please come forward. The people that 
have made submissions, either In person, In writing or by 
telephone, were the ones that responded to our advertising. 
That is how people got on the list. We phcned Sam because 
he was interested in certain issues. I make a plea now that 
if there are any members of the public who wish to make a 
statement may do so now. We have a few minutes. The 
opportunity is available. We are not a closed shop here. Is 
there anybody else that has fl0t registered who wishes to 
make a statement? 

Okay, if not, then as chairman of the committee. as 
mentioned, this ends our public session of this committee. 
would like to again thank all of the people who made 
presentations to us, in whatever form they did. We have a 
fair stack of information, or written material, and then what we 
heard verbally, that we will be considering. The committee 's 
worl< is not done, because tomorrow and on Friday we will be 
going in camera, sorting all the information we have OYt. and 
the process now is to - again, I usume we will be, it is part 
of the formal process of c:ommittHs to make a report to the 
Legislative Assembly. So we will be targeting aome kind of 
report for th is June session. 

More than likely, after deliberations this w.ek, there will be 
certain other aspects of this revi- that we have to look at 
more in depth. One is the legislation. That obviously is 
going to take considerably longer than e month So that is 
probably something that will be done over this summer, which 
means that probably there will be a more in-depth report in 

September. But those are things that we have to d1seuH 

So again, on behalf of the committee, I thank all the members 
of the public for being here, for participating, and the 
information that we receive is fruitful. A lot of thought and a 
lot of preparation went into the submissions. We will consider 
all tha material very carefully and, hopefully, come up with 
some good recommendations. Thank you very much. 

For committee Members. we will resume tomorrow at 9:00 a.m . . 

-ADJOURNMENT 
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